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Acknowledgment of Country
We, in the spirit of Reconciliation, acknowledge the Wurundjeri People
of the Kulin Nation as Traditional Custodians of the land now known as
the City of Maroondah, where Indigenous Australians have performed
age old ceremonies. We acknowledge and respect their unique ability
to care for Country and their deep spiritual connection to it. We pay our
respects to their Elders, past, present and emerging.

Cover: As part of the 20-Minute Neighbourhood Place Activation Pilot Project, a pop up park was built at
Eastfield Shopping Centre, Croydon South
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Welcome to the Maroondah City
Annual Report 2020/21
The Annual Report provides a record of the
achievements, performance and financial
management of Maroondah City Council for the
2020/21 financial year in delivering a wide range of
services to its community.

Requirements include a report of Council’s
operations, audited performance statement,
audited financial statements, and copies of the
auditor’s reports on the performance and financial
statements.

Council is committed to transparent reporting
and accountability to the community. This Annual
Report is a key tool used to advise the Maroondah
community of Council’s performance during the
financial year against the Council Plan 2017-2021
(Year 4: 2020/21) and Annual Budget 2020/21.

Council endorsed the financial report in principle
at its meeting on 16 August 2021 and the Audit
and Risk Committee reviewed these financial
statements at its meeting on 19 August 2021.
The Standard and Performance Statements were
certified by the Principal Accounting Officer
(Manager Finance and Governance), the Chief
Executive Officer and two nominated Councillors.
The Victorian Auditor General’s office has certified
the Performance Statement and the Financial
Report including the Standard Statements.

The Local Government Act 2020 states that all
Victorian Councils must prepare an annual financial
year report.

How to use this Annual Report
The 2020/21 Annual Report is divided into seven sections:
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1

Our Highlights

Provides reflections from the Mayor and CEO and outlines key capital works
and highlights from 2020/21.

2

Our City

Profiles the City of Maroondah outlines our vision and details Council’s
integrated planning framework.

3

Our Council

Provides details of our Councillors, Wards and the Council organisation.

4

Our Performance

Identifies 2020/21 achievements relating to Council’s eight outcome areas
outlined in the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21). Each outcome
area includes information on achievements, challenges, future directions,
interesting facts and statistics, as well as Council’s performance against the
commitments identified in the Council Plan.

5

Corporate
Governance

Reports on governance procedures and risk management.

6

Statutory
Information

Provides information linked to statutory requirements including the
Victorian Local Government performance indicators and the Local
Government Performance Reporting Framework.

7

Financial Report

Includes detailed financial statements which fulfil Council’s reporting
requirements.
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Our highlights
Message from the Mayor and
Chief Executive Officer
We are pleased to present the 2020/21
Maroondah City Council Annual Report to the
Maroondah community and to the Minister for
Local Government.
While the Annual Report reflects on Council’s
activities during 2020/21, we continue to have
our sights firmly set on the future. To ensure we
are well placed for the future, we have developed
the new four year Council Plan 2021-2025, based
on the community directions in Maroondah 2040
- Our future together, and the feedback from
our community through the many consultation
activities undertaken recently.
Other strategic and long-term planning has taken
place resulting in the completion of a new Children
and Families Strategy; a new 2 year Youth Strategy
Action Plan; and a new Liveability and Wellbeing
Strategy, which will provide longer-term direction
and the key priorities to improve the health and
wellbeing of the Maroondah community. In response
to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, Council has also
prepared a Maroondah COVID-19 Recovery Plan.
We have continued to plan for the future of
our two key Activity Centres. The Ringwood
Metropolitan Activity Centre Masterplan 2018 was
adopted by Council in November 2018 replacing
the 2004 Ringwood Transit City Masterplan.
Council has prepared Amendment C130 to
implement the objectives and strategies of the
Masterplan. The process for inclusion of C130 in the
Maroondah Planning Scheme progressed over the
past 12 months, with a Planning Panel hearing held
in July 2020 and a report to Council in December
2020. The Amendment has been submitted to the
Department of Land, Water and Planning.
Council has continued to work with key
stakeholders, user groups, and the community
on the development of the Croydon Community
Wellbeing Precinct Masterplan and the
development of concept plans for the various
community and recreational hubs. This long-term
project will bring together a range of community
services, programs and activities for people of all
ages and abilities within a parkland setting in the
Croydon Activity Centre.
Council continued its advocacy to the Victorian
Government and the Australian Government
to seek funding opportunities for a range of
significant projects that will benefit the Maroondah
community. Commitments during 20/21 include

Victorian Government funding of $8.6 million
for intersection and bridge improvements at
Canterbury and Heathmont Roads, $2 million
for Dorset Recreation Reserve and $2.5 million
for JW Manson Reserve, $600K for McAlpin and
Yarrunga Reserves, and $275K for a new dog park
in Ringwood North, as well as funding from both
levels of government for a range of other sporting
and community facilities.
We continue to actively support and participate
in regional partnerships and initiatives, including
the Eastern Regional Group of Councils (ERG).
Chaired by the Maroondah Mayor, the ERG works
collaboratively to achieve integrated advocacy
and planning as well as joint procurement for
shared services, which is supported by a new
four-year plan. The ERG works closely with other
regional groups including the Eastern Alliance for
Greenhouse Action, Eastern Transport Coalition
and the Eastern Affordable Housing Alliance.
We have successfully completed the fourth year of
the four-year Council Plan during one of the most
challenging years in recent times.
The COVID-19 pandemic was declared on March 11,
2020, with a profound impact on our community.
Council has continued to provide the majority of its
services during the various stages of the pandemic
and the government restrictions over the past
12 months. However, the long-term closures during
2020 and short reactive shutdowns during the
first half of 2021 has resulted in a cumulative loss
of approximately $20 million across the 2019/20
and 202/21 financial years. These closures and
shutdowns particular impacted our leisure facilities,
including Karralyka, Aquanation, Aquahub, our
stadiums and golf courses. It has also meant a
redirection of resources and/or funding in excess of
$10 million to respond to COVID-19 in the 2019/20
and 2020/21 financial years.
While noting the above, Council’s 2020/21
Budget and Long Term Financial Strategy
(LTFS) continued to be based on sound financial
management, as well as an understanding of the
rising cost of living facing ratepayers along with
consideration of the significant financial impacts of
the COVID-19 pandemic.
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The LTFS outlines Council’s projected financial
position for the next 10 years and provides a guide
to the community, Council and management in their
analysis of options and decision-making about the
future directions and operations of Council.
The LTFS demonstrates our long term financial
sustainability and ensures we can continue to
invest in community facilities and services while
operating within the rate cap environment as set
out in The Local Government (Fair Go Rates) Act
2015. Maroondah City Council complied with the
Victorian Government’s 2020/21 rate cap of 2.0 per
cent over the average property rate of Council.
While we continue to manage the impacts of
COVID-19, we are very proud of the work that has
been achieved by the organisation, in partnership
with the Councillors and the community. Council
has continued its best practice service delivery
while ensuring prudent financial management and
investment in Council’s employees to ensure they
have the skills, knowledge and tools to meet the
needs of the Maroondah community.
The significant achievements of the past year
should be celebrated and are detailed throughout
this report. We commend it as a record of the
extent of what has been accomplished to ensure
our City, and the Maroondah community, continues
to be active, prosperous, vibrant, sustainable,
accessible, thriving, inclusive and empowered.

Key highlights
The COVID-19 pandemic continued to significantly
impact the Maroondah community in 2020/21, and
Council continued to implement an organisational
structure to implement a coordinated relief and
recovery framework. The framework aims to
support a community led recovery through: the
provision of up-to date community information and
engagement; coordination of personal support;
referrals for emergency shelter, food, material aid,
relief and counselling; recovery initiatives that build
on community strengths and needs; monitoring
of the social and economic impacts of COVID-19;
support for our CALD community; support for local
business and economic activity; while ensuring the
continuation of Council service delivery. Further
information can be found on page 10 and 11, and
throughout this report.
Maternal & Child Health service supporting
families
Maternal and Child Health service has developed
strong partnerships to improve the mental health
wellbeing of children and their families through
improved referral pathways. In addition, the
increased demand due to COVID-19 saw a range
of services offered via Zoom, phone or Facebook.
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In March 2020 the service expanded its face to
face offering when it opened a centre in Eastland,
providing a convenient alternative for parents.
Walking sports provides options for people over 50
A variety of walking sport programs, including
football, netball cricket and pickleball provide
modified sports that provide low-intensity cardio,
strength, ﬂexibility and balance for people aged
over 50. These programs have been designed so
anyone can play, regardless of age, ability or ﬁtness
level, with a number of come and try days held
over the past 12 months.
Improvements to sporting pavilions
The redevelopment of the Griﬀ Hunt Sporting
Pavilion in Croydon North was completed in
2020/21. The project included the rebuild of ageing
changeroom facilities with focus on inclusiveness
and accessibility for all abilities. The Pavilion
is home to the Maroondah Rugby Club and
Maroondah United Football Club.
The design for the $1.5 million Cheong Pavilion
redevelopment includes the demolition and
reconstruction of the changerooms and amenities
and includes the provision of female friendly and
accessible facilities. The project will also include
umpires changerooms, storerooms, and major
improvements to the existing multipurpose area.
A number of new facilities were formally opened,
including the new HE Parker multi sports pavilion
in April 2021 and the Silcock Pavilion in May 2021.
Both facilities will provide significant improvements
for their user groups, providing female friendly
facilities with designs that ensures inclusiveness
and all-abilities access.
Small Business Friendly Charter
Council became a signatory to the Small Business
Friendly Council (SBFC), in partnership with 54
local councils to provide small business owners
with the support they need to do business.
Charter commitments are aimed at creating a fair
and competitive trading environment for small
businesses.
Developing youth leadership
The annual Student Wellbeing Action Team (SWAT)
program saw a select group of Year 10 students
from six Maroondah secondary schools participate
in this annual leadership program. SWAT supports
young people to uncover their strengths and use
their new skills to lead a wellbeing project in their
own school. The 2021 topics included teamwork,
leadership skills and knowledge of personal and
community wellbeing.

Karralyka goes online and launches new website

Accessibility improvement works

A new look Karralyka website was launched in
February 2021 to coincide with the start of the
new theatre season. The new website is responsive
to all devices and includes a new online ticketing
system. While many performances have been
cancelled during 2021, it will be a valuable resource
for our patrons in coming years. And despite the
cancellation or postponement of many onsite
events and performances, Karralyka continued to
oﬀer livestreaming of selected performances that
could be accessed free from home.

A range of accessibility improvement works
were undertaken during 20/21 and include the
construction of a new footpath on the east side of
Laurence Grove in Ringwood East linking Knaith
Road to Railway Avenue; construction of three
indented disabled parking spaces adjacent to
Knaith Road Reserve; construction of an accessible
ramp to the Senior Citizens Centre in Knaith
Road Reserve; and the conversion of the existing
pedestrian crossing at the intersection of Laurence
Grove and Railway Avenue into a raised crossing.

Christmas in Maroondah

20-Minute Neighbourhood project

With many events impacted by the pandemic
restrictions, including the annual Maroondah Carols,
a number of smaller events were organised to
share the Christmas spirit. Wyreena Community
Arts Centre provided a magical series of Christmas
windows with vignettes created by local designers.
The Elf on the Shelf campaign encouraged
the community to ﬁnd one of Santa’s ‘elves’ at
shopfronts and other locations in Maroondah and
residents were encouraged to decorate their houses
through the Light Up Maroondah competition.
Spreading cheer in the community was also achieved
through Christmas banners and decorations on
display throughout local shopping precincts, and
nativity scenes at Ringwood Clocktower Park.

Following the success of Stage 1 of this project
Council received two Victorian Government grants
to deliver place activation projects at Croydon
South and Ringwood East.

Carbon Neutral Certiﬁcation
In 2008 Council made the commitment to
becoming carbon neutral and in December 2020
achieved Carbon Neutral certiﬁcation by Climate
Active. Certiﬁcation recognises
that through our operations, Council is removing
as much carbon from the atmosphere as we are
contributing. Over the recent years, changes have
been made to services and facilities in order to
achieve this commitment including: 5-Star GreenStar
certiﬁcation for the Realm oﬃce; delivering building
energy eﬃciency upgrades to Aquahub ,Aquanation,
Maroondah Federation Estate, Realm and The
Rings under an Energy Performance Contract; and
replacing street lighting with LEDs.
Standards for Canopy Tree provision
The development of the Maroondah Minimum
Standards for Canopy Tree Provision is a key step
towards ensuring urban development contributes
to sustaining Maroondah’s current high levels of
canopy cover into the future. These standards
establish landscaping requirements, to ensure that
newly planted canopy trees can achieve their full
potential in terms of growth, health and longevity.

These projects have allowed a new approach to be
trialled that encourages community connection to
place, as well as supporting social and economic
recovery from coronavirus (COVID-19) through
the delivery of temporary place activations,
infrastructure, and community events in our local
activity centres.
Activations at the Eastﬁeld Shopping Centre in
Croydon South provided a temporary ‘pop-up’ space
to improve the vibrancy of the centre by delivering
place-based, community-focused activities including
local events and public art projects.
Tarralla Creek Stormwater Harvesting Scheme
In partnership with the Victorian Government and
Yarra Valley Water, Council is delivering the Tarralla
Creek Stormwater Harvesting Scheme. The scheme
will provide irrigation for four sportsﬁelds within the
Croydon precinct and include the construction of a
Gross Pollutant Trap, a 900kL underground storage
tank within the Town Park Athletics ﬁeld, a 500kL
header tank at Croydon Park Oval and associated
treatment and pumping infrastructure. Construction
works are scheduled to commence in early 2022.
Social Technology Project for our older residents
The Social Technology Project is the ﬁrst of its kind
for Maroondah and was oﬀered to existing and new
Kerrabee members as a way to stay connected
while in isolation. Many people in the community
are unable to navigate online programs, so Council
oﬀered 1:1 training using a free loan device with
data to encourage people to give online activities
a go. Council also established a new online social
group program, Virtual Engagement Recreation
Activities (VERA) with a focus on activities for the
body, mind and spirit while connecting with other
people. An added beneﬁt for participants was
being able to use their new skills to also connect
online with family and friends.
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Homelessness Charter
Council has partnered with twelve other
municipalities in adopting a Homelessness Charter
and advocacy campaign calling for more social
housing to end homelessness. The Charter focuses
on a shared commitment to advocating for inclusive
housing growth, scoping and identifying land in
areas to be repurposed for adaptable housing, and
advocating together for inclusive housing growth
including mandatory inclusionary zoning.
Implementing the new Local Government Act 2020
The new Local Government Act is being
implemented in four transitional stages, during
which time it will co-exist with many of the
provisions within the former Local Government
Act 1989, up until 1 July 2021. Council is committed
to working through each phase and has actively
participated in developing key policies, while also
meeting all timeframes for implementation.
Keeping our community informed and engaged
Council continues to provide information across a
range of channels and platforms, both traditional
and digital. Multimedia and video output increased
during 20/21, the fortnightly eNewsletter provides
news on Councils services, activities and events
and as well as this important COVID health and
support information to our community. Information
has also been supplemented with a number of
printed bulletins sent directly to our residents.

Awards and recognition
Maroondah City Council is proud to be recognised
for its commitment to leadership and service
excellence. A selection of the honours received
during 2020/21 are highlighted below:
2020 AILA National Landscape Architecture
Awards - Eastern Regional Trails Strategy Infrastructure Category Winner
The Eastern Regional Trails Strategy is a
document that establishes priority linking projects
across seven local government areas with a view
toward an interconnected shared trail network.
A total of twenty-two existing or potential trails
were identified and assessed as part of this
study. It is a guiding document that will underpin
the development of a cohesive trail network in
Melbourne’s outer-east by equipping decisionmakers with tools to advocate for investment
in open-space infrastructure. The Strategy was
developed in partnership between Maroondah City
Council and six Local Government Area partners,
in conjunction with Fitzgerald Frisby Landscape
Architecture, who were the lead consultants on
the project. Sport and Recreation Victoria were a
funding partner.
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2020 Planning Institute of Australia
Excellence Awards (Victoria) - 20 Minute
Neighbourhood Project - Healthy Active by
Design Category Winner
2020 Planning Institute of Australia Excellence
Awards (Victoria) - 20 Minute Neighbourhood
Project - Best Planning Ideas Large Project
Category Commendation. This award recognised
Maroondah City Council, GTA Consultants and
Department of Environment Land Water and
Planning on a collaboration project that supports
healthy and active living with the intent to increase
a community’s physical activity and health
outcomes in the built environment.
The 20-minute neighbourhood project in Croydon
South is all about ‘living locally’ - giving people the
ability to meet most of their daily needs within a
20-minute walk from home, with safe cycling and
local transport options.
Judges were impressed with the project’s health
outcomes and that it seeks to improve the public
amenity, accessibility and attractiveness of the
Eastfield Shopping Centre and surrounding
community suburbs.
2021 LGPro Awards for Excellence - 2020
Reconciliation Week Program - Indigenous
Community Partnership Category Finalist
The 2020 Reconciliation Week program was
developed in partnership between Maroondah
City Council, Mullum Mullum Indigenous Gathering
Place (MMIGP) and Maroondah Movement
for Reconciliation. The program resulted in a
strengthened partnership between the three
organisations, increased audiences and capacity
building. While the organisations have worked
together to present annual Reconciliation Week
events over a number of years, the particular
challenges of 2020 (COVID pandemic) resulted
in very high levels of trust and collegiality and
strong outcomes. The online program was well
received and the enhanced rapport between the
organisations has led to new programs to benefit
the MMIGP community.

Australia Day awards
The Maroondah Australia Day Awards recognise the
achievements of Australians and the contribution
they make to the Maroondah community. The
nomination process for the awards is open
throughout the year, with the annual awards
presented on Australia Day, and in three categories.
Maroondah’s Citizen of the Year was awarded
to Anupa Shah for her significant support to the
Maroondah community. After moving to Australia
in 1999, she started volunteering her services to a
range of organisations.

Anupa works as a volunteer for the Sikh
Volunteers Australia Organisation, a non-profit
volunteer organisation focusing on reducing
distress in the community by providing free food
to disadvantaged families.
Anupa also participates in the Food and Blanket
Drive Project where she provides support for
homeless people, distributing home-cooked food
and blankets. She also volunteers to visit older
people in their homes who are isolated from
society, providing a friendly face and conversation;
and she provides respite support for foster families.
Young Citizen of the Year was awarded to Lachlan
Kennedy for his contribution to the wellbeing of
young people in Maroondah. Lachlan was one of
the Heathmont College school captains for 2020
before he finished his VCE.
Lachlan is a current member of the Maroondah
Youth Wellbeing Advocates program which provides
two-way engagement between Council and young
people. Lachlan has shown maturity in providing
feedback on important Council documents and is
always willing to share his opinion in a respectful
manner. Lachlan also created a wellbeing project at
school as part of the Maroondah Student Wellbeing
Action Teams project.
Lachlan MC'd the 2020 Maroondah Youth Awards,
has been involved in multiple video projects with
Council, and is following his passion for working with
people by studying a Bachelor of Youth Work in 2021.
The Community Event of the Year was awarded
to Glen Park and Eastland Food Relief Collection
Services, for their partnership to provide meals
during the COVID pandemic. Glen Park Community
Centre pivoted its Order and Collect service to
provide food relief meal distribution, to help keep
those in need fed during the challenging time for
Victorians.
The Centre partnered with Eastland and launched
the Eastland Order & Collect service in May 2020,
allowing customers to place an order directly over
the phone at any participating Eastland retailer and
collect on the same day from the convenience and
safety of their car through the Eastland Valet area.
This partnership has allowed Glen Park to be able
to connect with people in need who may not
have known about or had access to Glen Park
Community Centre previously, enabling more
members of the community who may be struggling
to gain support and easier access given Eastland’s
proximity to public transport. The service will
continue to support the Maroondah community
post this pandemic.

Community endorsement
Council’s overall Community Satisfaction results
provided good news with the Maroondah
community continuing to rate Council’s overall
performance at a level significantly higher than
the state-wide average. This is evidence of the
high standard of work across all areas of Council,
including our strategic leadership.
Council’s 2021 results remain steady when
compared with the past five years and continues to
perform well in terms of ‘overall performance’ (65)
when compared the state-wide average results (61).
Performance across some individual service
areas has improved in the past year, in particular
relating to Council’s response to the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic including increases for
‘family support services’ (66 to 69), ‘elderly
support services’ (64 to 67), ‘disadvantaged
support services’ (60 to 64), and ‘emergency and
disaster management’ (67 to 72).
Other highlights of the 2021 survey include:
•

	
The
rating for ‘recreational facilities’ (79)
was four points higher compared to the
metropolitan Melbourne average (75), and eight
points higher than the state wide average (71)

•

	
The
rating for ‘waste management’
(74) is five points higher compared
to the state-wide average (69)

•

	
The
rating for ‘condition of sealed roads
(67) is ten points higher compared
to the state-wide average (57)

This Victorian Government initiated survey is just
one of a range of tools used to measure Council’s
progress towards the vision and outcomes
highlighted in Maroondah 2040 - Our future
together. The survey is one of the processes by
which Council receives important community
feedback to ensure its activities are well targeted,
performing efficiently and are relevant to the
community.
Council continues its commitment to continuous
improvement and effective community
consultation and encourages active involvement
and participation to ensure we continue to be
responsive to the needs of the community.

Cr Kylie Spears
Mayor

Steve Kozlowski
CEO
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Responding to the impact of the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
Australia’s COVID-19 vaccine rollout is underway,
with over 10 million doses administered to
17 July 2021.

The COVID-19 pandemic is unlike any other event
in recent times. Its impacts have been global,
deep and profound, and has changed the way we
live and almost every aspect of our lives for the
foreseeable future.
COVID-19 was first identified in Wuhan, China in
December 2019. The first case outside of China
was recorded on 13 January 2020. Since then,
there have been over 190+ million confirmed cases
and over 4.08 million deaths. These numbers are
expected to continue to grow with more recent
strains of the virus more infectious.

Victoria has faired far worse than any other
Australian state, experiencing a second wave of
COVID-19 from June to October 2020, followed
by a further three periods of lockdown. Victorians
have now been living with various forms of
restrictions since March 2020. As at 17 July 2021,
there have been over 20,785 confirmed cases in
Victoria (40% of national total) and 820 deaths
(47% of national total).

Compared to most other countries, Australia has
been relatively successful in containing the spread
of COVID-19, as a result of prolonged national
border closures (since March 2020) and localised
state and capital city lockdowns and restrictions.
Nationally, (as at 17 July 2021) there have
been 31,771 confirmed cases and 913 lives lost.

The City of Maroondah has had relatively few
COVID-19 cases - only 113 since the pandemic
began. This is fewer than any other Eastern
Metropolitan Region Council. Despite having few
cases in the municipality, the impact of staged
restrictions on Council and the community has
been significant.

16
Mar
State of Emergency
For 4 weeks

19
Jul

24
Mar

31
Mar

First death

Stage 3
restrictions
commenced

21
Mar
$1.7 billion
economic survival and jobs package
(including $500 million W4V)

18
Mar
$6 million
Funding for homelessness orgs

25
Jan

11
Mar

First case

WHO declared
COVID-19 a
global pandemic

Jan

Feb

Mar

State of
Emergency
extended

26
Mar
Stage 2
restrictions
commenced

21
Mar
Council facilities
closed

Apr
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Local
Lockdown
Stage 3
restrictions
commenced

11
May
Easing
some of
restrictions

8
May
Kinder’s grants
announced

May

2020
10

21
Jun

30
Jun

Jun

9
Jul
8
Jul

27

Mandatory
Sep
face covering
2nd Step
State of
Restrictions
Emergency
reduced
extended

2
Aug
Moved to
Stage 4
For 6
weeks

Re-enter
lockdown
For 6 weeks

Five-step
roadmap
Released to
reopening

13
Sep

1st Step
Restrictions
reduced slightly

Interstate
border
closed

Jul

6
Sep

Aug

Sep

Impacts of COVID-19
Throughout the 2020/21 financial year the
complexity of recovery and providing certainty
in planned actions were exacerbated by the
continuing threat of community infection
and the lack of a definitive timeframe for the
complete rollout of the vaccine program. As a
series of staged restrictions were implemented
in Greater Melbourne across the financial year to
reduce transmission, a broad range of social and
economic impacts were felt by our Maroondah
community.
The social and economic impacts have
implications for individuals, families and
communities and exacerbate pre-existing
social problems. Like all disasters, the impacts
of the pandemic are not distributed evenly
across the community, with some groups more
disadvantaged and impacted than others.
The community highlighted both positive and
negative impacts. In July and August 2020,
Council asked the Maroondah community how
they had been affected by the pandemic. Feeling
part of the community was identified as the top
positive impact whilst the inability to undertake
recreation activities, hobbies and interests was the
top negative impact.

1
Nov

State of
Emergency
extended

19
Oct
3rd Step
Restrictions
reduced
slightly

Oct

Nov

Dec

Council’s facilities have been required to close
under Chief Health Officer directionson up to five
occasions, resulting in over nine months of closures
for most of Council’s leisure, customer service,
library, arts and youth facilities. The long-term
facility closures during 2020 and short circuitbreaker shutdowns during 2021 have resulted in a
cumulative loss of approximately $20 million across
the 2019/20 and 2020/21 financial years.

28
May

10
Mar

UK strain
came to
Melbourne

30
Dec
3 New cases
After 61 days,
Restrictions
back

Jan

Feb

Lockdown
Circuit breaker
for 6 days

$1.2 billion
For encouraging to
holiday within Australia

5
Feb

No active cases
in Victoria since
29 Feb 2020

4th Step
Restrictions reduced
significantly

The pandemic has occurred at a time when
Council had a range of key activities underway
including implementation of the Local
Government Act 2020, Council elections, as
well as the transition of Council’s administrative
facilities to Realm.

Lockdown
for 5 days

24
Nov

28
Oct

Maroondah businesses have also been severely
impacted with 95% of businesses indicating that
they have been, or will be, affected by COVID-19.
Revenue loss was the number one impact
followed by customer loss and increased costs.
The key areas of support identified as required
by Maroondah businesses was financial support,
followed by financial guidance and information.

12
Feb

Zero cases
of community
transmission nationwide
since 9 Jun 2020

11
Oct

The community has also spent more time
feeling anxious, worried or experiencing mental
health concerns, and mental health support was
identified as the most needed support for the
community - receiving almost twice as many
responses as any other support mechanism.

21
Feb

7
Jun

9
May

81 Active cases
in the Victorian
outbreaks

72 days
no recorded cases
of community
transmission

3
Jun

25

Lockdown
Circuit breaker
extended

May
Vaccinations
started for public
9 New cases
Restrictions back

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

2021
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A broad range of essential Council services
(i.e. emergency relief, waste collection, road
and footpath repair) have continued to operate
during COVID-19 restrictions, whilst the service
delivery model of other Council services has been
adapted in order to continue to provide a service
to the Maroondah community that complied with
restrictions (e.g. online/phone maternal child
health consultations).
Council’s 2021/22 comprehensive result was
$28.5M less than forecast. Despite this, Council
remains in a sound position financially with all
VAGO financial sustainability risk indicators
showing results within acceptable low to medium
risk levels. In 2020/21, Council received over
$3.3m in Victorian Government Grants related to
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Council’s response to
COVID-19
Councils play an essential role in the state’s
emergency management arrangements by
preparing communities to respond to and
recover from emergencies. To navigate the
COVID-19 pandemic, Council established a Crisis
Management Team in March 2020. During peak
periods of the pandemic, the Team was meeting
daily to respond to the rapidly changing situation
and restrictions.
The Team has been supported by the COVID
Action Team and three Working Groups.
Council also put in place dedicated a temporary
resourcing structure in May 2020, initially for a
three month period. This was extended as the
pandemic continued, with a number of roles
currently in place until October or December 2021.

Ratepayers
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•

Interest waiver on
outstanding rates

•

Rate payment
arrangements
based on individual
circumstances

At a local level, the coordinator of relief and
recovery is local government. Councils are often a
conduit between state government agencies, local
communities, not-for-profit organisations and
service providers.
An effective response to emergencies affecting
the Maroondah community was only achieved
through building on the strong partnerships
that already exist. These partnerships involved
non-government and government organisations,
community-based groups, service clubs, churches
and the private sector working closely together
throughout the year with the people and
communities affected by the emergency.
These partnerships also provided an opportunity
to support the establishment of a local
vaccination clinic in the ex administration facilities
in Ringwood East and a number of pop-up COVID
testing clinics within the city.
Council’s service delivery and activities have
supported the needs of our community in the
form of fee and permit relief, deferral of due
dates, coordination of emergency relief, provision
of community support, provision of business
support, implementing early recovery initiatives,
and reprioritisation/adaption of service delivery.

Community recovery from
COVID-19
Following considerable background research,
liaison with agencies and community engagement
with our community, the Maroondah COVID-19
Recovery Plan was developed to provide clear
strategic direction to guide and focus Council’s
priorities for recovery for the City of Maroondah.

People
sleeping
rough

Sports clubs

•

No charges for
winter training
or competition

•

Summer clubs
charged a pro rata
free from the start
of competition
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•

Established a new
service for people
experiencing
homelessness to
access showers
using local
sporting facilities

Business

•

Charges waived or
deferred for outdoor
dining permits and
some renewal fees

•

Design and digital
distribution of health
and wellbeing tips

•

Provision of free
expert business
and mental health
assistance

The Plan was informed by engagement with
over 1,100 stakeholders (via phone calls and
survey) and almost 3,000 Maroondah community
members (via surveys and a focus group).
Council officers worked with leading recovery experts
to consider a holistic overview of the recovery
priorities and how the social, economic, cultural,
human, political, natural and built environments have
a profound impact on health and wellbeing.
The priorities highlighted in the Maroondah
COVID-19 Recovery Plan are based on input
from over 2800 responses to various community
consultation activities, local social and economic
data, service delivery impacts and feedback from
local agencies, community groups, organisations
and specialist advisory committees.
Through this plan, Council has delivered a broad
range of community recovery activities with many
detailed further in this Annual Report.
Some of the community recovery activities
of Council during the 2020/21 financial year
have included:
•

providing information on available services
and support that is accessible, repeated,
includes translations and in different formats

•

supporting community relief agencies
through the Maroondah Emergency Relief
Network to meet increased demand from
vulnerable individuals and households

•

introducing the MaroondahConnect
support service

•

implementing a series of Be Kind Maroondah
initiatives to support community connection,
social inclusion and mental wellbeing

Community
grants
•

One-off grants to
support emergency
relief agencies
and community
organisations
supporting mental
health and social
inclusion

•

delivering a wide range of mental health and
wellbeing promotion events and activities

•

delivering a range of programs to facilitate
community connections, reduce isolation,
enhance mental wellbeing and connect
with vulnerable residents

•

supporting agencies in the rollout of the
COVID-19 vaccination program

•

facilitating the expansion of outdoor
dining areas for hospitality businesses

•

delivering place activation projects in
Croydon South and Ringwood East

•

undertaking a shop local business
promotion campaign

•

facilitating support for volunteer-led organisations
in partnership with Eastern Volunteers

•

liaising with key partners such as Migrant
Information Centre and culturally and
linguistically diverse (CALD) community leaders
to understand needs and provide support

•

providing support and guidance for sporting
clubs and associations to facilitate return
to sport in a COVID-safe manner

•

offering a fee subsidy program for arts and
cultural groups and creative practitioners
to increase access to facilities

•

promoting participation in activities
that connect people and nature, such
as the City Nature Challenge.

Community
engagement
•

130+ people
expressed an interest
in supporting
community
recovery activities

Community
facilities

Libraries

•

287,888 loans and
renewals adapted to
Click and Collect and
Click and Deliver

•

1,118 requests
for children's
activity packs

•

Fees and permits
waived for facilities
not in use
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13

Annual Report 2020/21

Maroondah at a glance
Maroondah is home to...

31
119,401

47,021

people

households

9,700
businesses

neighbourhood
community and
local shopping
centres

We provide...

1

metropolitan
activity centre

1

major
activity centre

133
public
playgrounds

26

facility
playgrounds

1

3
aquatic centres

2

3
skate parks

golf courses

3

7

arts and
cultural facilities

2

maternal and
child health
centres

1

early childhood
education and
care services

14

Facility
management for
22 kindergartens
and long day
care centres
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1
youth centre
(EV’s)

libraries

3

theatre and
function centre

social support
centre (Kerrabee)

565
parks &
reserves

We maintain...

51

sports grounds
including oval,
soccer and
athletic tracks

39kms

790kms
of stormwater
pipes

487kms

of shared trails

of local
roads

639kms
of footpaths

84,717
street trees
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Our city
The City of Maroondah covers a land area of
61.4 square kilometres in Melbourne’s outer east,
22 kilometres from the Central Business District.
The area is a substantially developed peri-urban
residential municipality, with an estimated population
of 119,401 residents and 47,021 households with an
average of 2.54 people per household.
It includes the suburbs of Bayswater North, Croydon,
Croydon Hills, Croydon North, Croydon South,
Heathmont, Kilsyth South, Ringwood, Ringwood
East, Ringwood North and Warranwood. The city
also includes small sections of Kilsyth, Park Orchards,
Vermont and Wonga Park.
With little remaining land available for greenfield
residential development, future population growth
will be mainly stimulated by housing consolidation
and medium density development.
Maroondah has the strategic advantage of being
located at the north-eastern junction of the Eastern
Freeway - EastLink corridor. There are two train
lines and many bus routes linking the city with other
regions. Our sustainable transport links continue
to expand, with on-road cycling paths and
39 kilometres of shared trails, including the Mullum
Mullum Creek Trail, the EastLink Trail, Taralla Creek
Trail and the Dandenong Creek Trail.

VIC

Calder Hwy

Hume Hwy

Maroondah Hwy
Western Hwy

Eastern Fwy
CBD

Princes Fwy

EastLink
Princes Hwy

Nepean Hwy
Sth Gippsland Hwy

Location of the City of Maroondah

Aerial view along Maroondah Highway with Realm and Ringwood Station in the foreground, looking towards the
Melbourne CBD
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Our history
Before European colonisation, the Wurundjeri
Woiwurrung People of the Kulin Nation were the
traditional custodians of the land now known as the
City of Maroondah for more than 35,000 years. The
Wurundjeri People have a deep spiritual connection
to the land and a unique ability to care for Country.
The Kulin Nation refers to an alliance of five
tribes (language groups) who are the Traditional
Owners and lived across a geographic area that
encompasses Melbourne and its outer regions. Their
collective territory extends around Port Phillip and
Western Port, up into the Great Dividing Range and
the Loddon and Goulburn River valleys. The five
Kulin Nation language groups are:
•

Boonwurrung (Boon-wur-rung)

•

Dja Dja Wurrung (Jar-Jar-Wur-rung)

•

Taungurung (Tung-ger-rung)

•

Wathaurung (Wath-er-rung)

•

Woiwurrung (Woy-wur-rung),
commonly known as Wurundjeri.

The language groups were connected through
shared moieties (divided groups) – the Bunjil
(wedge-tailed eagle) and Waa (crow). Bunjil is the
creation spirit of the Kulin and Waa the protector of
the waterways.
The Wurundjeri People take their name from the
Woiwurrung language word ‘wurun’ meaning the
Manna Gum (Eucalyptus viminalis) which is common
along ‘Birrarung’ (Yarra River), and ‘djeri‘, the grub
which is found in or near the tree. The traditional
Country of the Wurundjeri Woiwurrung People
are defined by natural and environmental features,
significantly by water. The direction of water flow
provides a clear indication of the shape of Country
and reflects the cultural understanding of the
Wurundjeri People as the “people of the Birrarung”
(Yarra River). The Birrarung and the waters flowing
into it are considered to be the traditional Country of
the Wurundjeri Woiwurrung People.
European settlers arrived in the 1830s and
commenced using the land for grazing cattle. The
original Ringwood village emerged in the mid to late
19th century, following the initial sale of land and the
local proliferation of grazing, fruit growing, antimony
mining and brick making activities.

The first constructed road through the area led to
Mount Dandenong and was known as Sawmill Road,
then Oxford Road, then finally given its current name
of Mount Dandenong Road. The area became better
known as it was used by bullock teams heading
for the gold fields in Woods Point and the Great
Dividing Range.
The railway line from Melbourne commenced its
eastward development in 1861 extending to Lilydale
through Ringwood and Croydon in December 1882.
This resulted in a consolidation of township facilities,
including the provision of local churches, banks and
schools to accommodate a growing population. The
line to Ferntree Gully followed soon afterwards.
The proclamation in 1924 of the Borough of
Ringwood coincided with the electrification of the
railway line, encouraging township development and
subdivision. Electric trains were in service between
Ringwood and Croydon in 1924 and were extended
to Lilydale in 1925.
During its early days, Croydon was part of the
Shire of Lillydale’s South-West Riding. Unlike some
neighbouring towns, it had not been planned and
proclaimed a town by the Department of Crown
Lands and Survey, but resulted from the private
subdivision of crown land in the Parishes of
Warrandyte, Mooroolbark and Ringwood. Severance
of Croydon from Lillydale Shire was requested in
1957 since it was the most densely populated part of
the Shire. The Shire of Croydon was declared in 1961.
Considerable suburban expansion during the
post-war period gave rise to the declaration of the
City of Ringwood in 1960 and formal recognition as
part of the broader metropolitan region. Eastland
was established in 1967 as a major ‘new format’ retail
centre. In 1971, the City of Croydon was declared,
reflecting increased residential development and
population growth in this area.
Maroondah City Council was formed on 15 December
1994 by the amalgamation of the former Cities of
Croydon and Ringwood, and parts of the former
Shire of Lillydale and the former City of Doncaster
and Templestowe. The term ‘Maroondah’ is named
after an aboriginal word meaning ’leaf’ which
symbolises the green environment of the city.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
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Our community

Our environment

Maroondah has an estimated population of 119,401
residents and 47,021 households with a similar age
structure to the State’s average.

Maroondah is currently home to 650 hectares of
open space in the form of reserves, conservation
areas, regional parks, trails, sporting fields,
neighbourhood parks and more.

Compared with metropolitan Melbourne,
Maroondah has a slightly higher proportion of
residents aged 50 and over and a lower proportion
of residents aged between 20 to 34 years.
Maroondah is an increasingly culturally and
linguistically diverse community. According to
the 2016 ABS Census, 566 Maroondah residents
identified as Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait
Islander. The number of Aboriginal and/or Torres
Strait Islander individuals with a significant
connection to Maroondah, that is those that live,
work or play in the municipality is likely to be
significantly higher.
Nearly one in four Maroondah residents were born
overseas. The most common countries of birth
for overseas residents are England, China, India,
Myanmar and New Zealand.
There is a strong sense of community
participation within Maroondah embodied by a
large number of committed volunteers. More than
two thirds of parents in Maroondah are actively
involved in their local schools and one third of
Maroondah’s residents are members of organised
community groups.

Maroondah’s 42 bushland reserves offer residents
and visitors the enjoyment of wildflowers, wildlife,
bush walks and wetlands. There are also many
areas of recreational open space in Maroondah.
The City has 565 parks and reserves with 51 sports
ovals, two golf courses, 133 public playgrounds,
three skate areas, and five outdoor exercise
equipment locations. Mobility and connectiveness
is supported by 39 kilometres of shared trails
associated with these open space areas.
There are more than 750,000 trees (mostly
native species) in parks and reserves providing
shade and shelter, helping to control water runoff,
evaporation and erosion and providing a home for
wildlife. Thousands of trees, shrubs and grasses
are planted annually throughout Maroondah,
either in place of plants that have reached the
end of their lifecycle, or to build on our leafy
environment. Where possible, Council plants
indigenous species to ensure longevity of existing
plant and wildlife populations.
Maroondah’s residents and businesses are great
recyclers: over 27,498.14 tonnes of recycling and
green waste was diverted from landfill in 2020/21.
Maroondah continues to have a high diversion rate
of waste from landfill.
Maroondah City Council has been certified
as Carbon Neutral by Climate Active for its
operations as a public statutory body. Council
has implemented emission reduction measures
across built infrastructure, plant and fleet and
natural environments, and fostered partnerships
to mitigate and adapt to the effects of climate
change. For unavoidable greenhouse gas
emissions, Council has taken responsibility by
investing in carbon offset projects that reduce or
remove emissions from the atmosphere.

Nature Play Week event at Barngeong Reserve
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Our economy
Maroondah has a diverse economy with nearly
9700 businesses employing 44,000 people.
97 percent of these businesses are small business,
employing less than 20 people. The majority of
businesses are in the construction, property and
business services; finance and insurance; retail
trade; and manufacturing sectors.
The largest industry employers are the
construction, manufacturing, retail trade and
health care sectors. In total, businesses in
Maroondah provide employment for over
44,000 people and the municipality has an
annual economic output of $14.8 billion.
Maroondah has four activity centres at Croydon,
Ringwood, Heathmont and Ringwood East.
Ringwood is one of the largest in Melbourne.
In addition, a range of key service and retail
precincts are clustered along the Maroondah
Highway corridor and 31 neighbourhood,
community and local shopping centres are
spread throughout the municipality.

The Bayswater Business Precinct (BBP) is a
thriving business and employment community
which is home to 5,000 businesses and supports
more than 30,000 local jobs.
Well known across Australia and internationally
for its skills in heavy vehicle, fibreglass, metals,
pharmaceuticals, medical technology, defence
and construction, the Bayswater Business Precinct
is an economic powerhouse which contributes
more than $14 billion to the local and Victorian
economies. Renowned as a hub for innovation and
excellence, the Precinct has long been recognised
for its tradition, technology and specialist skills in
advanced manufacturing.
In recognition of the important role this
precinct plays within the regional economy, the
Maroondah, Knox, and Yarra Ranges Councils;
and Regional Development Australia, have
partnered to maximise further investment,
business development, employment, and supplier
opportunities for the precinct businesses.

Maroondah is well positioned to take advantage
of Victoria’s future growth. Ringwood is identified
as a Metropolitan Activity Centre within
Plan Melbourne, the Victorian Government’s
metropolitan planning strategy. Croydon is
also identified as a Major Activity Centre with
concentrated retail opportunities and medium
density housing development continuing to
strengthen its town centre.

Maroondah Highway looking towards Ringwood
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Our Community Vision
Maroondah will be a vibrant and diverse city with
a healthy and active community, living in green
and leafy neighbourhoods which are connected
to thriving and accessible activity centres
contributing to a prosperous economy within a
safe, inclusive and sustainable environment.

Vibrant and
culturally rich

Clean, green
and sustainable

Prosperous
and learning

Safe, healthy
and active

Accessible
and connected

Well governed
and empowered

Attractive, thriving
and well built

Inclusive
and diverse
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Our future outcomes
Council worked with the community to develop a vision for the future of Maroondah which was adopted
in June 2014. In 2018 and 2019, Council refreshed the Maroondah 2040 Community Vision to capture
the latest community aspirations and priorities, along with emerging themes and trends. This refreshed
Maroondah 2040 Community Vision was adopted by Council on 22 June 2020.
Maroondah 2040 - Our future together provides the strategic blueprint for Council and the community to
continue to work together to shape the future of Maroondah to the year 2040.
Maroondah 2040 - Our future together identifies a range of preferred outcomes for the community
looking ahead to the year 2040.
The community’s future vision is:

A safe, healthy and active community

An accessible and connected community

In 2040, Maroondah will be a safe, healthy and
active community where all people have the
opportunity to experience enhanced levels of
social, emotional and physical wellbeing.

In 2040, Maroondah will be accessible for all
ages and abilities with walkable neighbourhoods,
sustainable transport options, and a safe integrated
transport network.

A prosperous and learning community

An attractive, thriving and well built community

In 2040, Maroondah will be a thriving regional
centre of economic activity and education,
where the sustainable growth of local businesses
is supported, and diverse lifelong learning
opportunities are accessible for all community
members.

In 2040, Maroondah will be an attractive,
sustainable and well built community with thriving
activity centres and a network of neighbourhoods
where everyone has the opportunity to live, work
and play locally.

A vibrant and culturally rich community
In 2040, Maroondah will be a vibrant and creative
community recognised for celebration of the arts,
cultural expression and diverse entertainment
options.
A clean, green and sustainable community
In 2040, Maroondah will be a resilient community
committed to sustainable living, enhancing our
natural environment, and providing leadership in
responding to climate change.

An inclusive and diverse community.
In 2040, Maroondah will be an inclusive and
equitable community where all people are valued,
supported and socially connected, and diversity is
embraced and celebrated.
A well governed and empowered community
In 2040, Maroondah will be an empowered
community actively engaged in local decision
making, led by an innovative community inspired
Council that collaborates regionally and proactively
champions local needs.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
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Our organisational vision

We will foster a prosperous, healthy and sustainable
community.
Our mission

Our values

We are dynamic and innovative leaders, working
in partnership to enhance community wellbeing.

•

We are accountable to each
other and our community

•

We collaborate in an adaptable
and supportive workplace

•

We perform at our best

•

We are open, honest, inclusive
and act with integrity

Our enablers
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•

There is a range of enablers that
support Council working towards our
vision and acting on our mission:

•

We are adaptable, capable,
positive and engaged.

•

We ensure everyone is heard,
valued and respected

•

In delivering services, we are people focused,
proactive, integrated and responsive.

•

We are brave, bold and aspire for excellence

•

In our approach to our roles,
we are collaborative, strategic,
sustainable and best practice.
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How we plan
Council’s strategic documents are linked by an
Integrated Planning Framework. The Framework
seeks to ensure Council’s activities and resources
are aligned to meet the aspirations, needs and
expectations of the Maroondah community.

The Framework includes a number of other key
planning documents, Financial Plan, Asset Plan,
Service Delivery Plans and Budget; as well as
a range of supporting strategies and policies
adopted by Council.

The Maroondah 2040 - Our future together and
the Council Plan 2017-2021, along with associated
legislation and regulatory requirements, provide
the direction for Council strategy, policies, plans
and service delivery.

All community focused plans, strategies and
policies have been formally adopted by Council
and can be accessed on Council’s website.

These strategic documents in turn guide internal
service delivery plans that identify activities and
projects to be undertaken by Council to meet
community needs and expectations.

Council Plan
and Long Term
Financial Strategy

Legislated
Strategies
and Plans

Council Policies,
Strategies and Plans

Service Delivery Plans and Annual Budget

Individual Work Plans
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Maroondah 2040
- Our future together
Our future
together

Maroondah 2040 Community Vision
Updated June 2020

Council’s Integrated
Planning Framework
is underpinned by
the shared long-term
community vision outlined
in Maroondah 2040 - Our
future together, which
was refreshed in 2019/20
following extensive
community engagement
and consideration of
emerging trends.

The aspirations and priorities for the future have
been grouped into eight broad outcomes.
Under each of these outcomes, a range of key
directions have been identified that are high
level strategies aimed at guiding the activities of
Council and the community in working toward the
achievement of the vision.

Council Plan
Maroondah City Council
Council Plan 2021-2025

From Maroondah 2040
- Our future together
evolves a four-year Council
Plan that establishes
Council’s medium-term
key directions (strategies)
and resourcing to deliver
on the outcomes identified
within the vision.

The Council Plan outlines
the role of Council
in delivering on the
Maroondah 2040 Community Vision. A refreshed
Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21) was
adopted on 27 July 2020 to guide Council’s
activities for the 2020/21 to 2021/22 period.
This Annual Report reports on the achievements
and progress towards 2020/21 priority actions in
the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21).
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Financial Plan
The Financial Plan describes the financial
resources required to give effect to the Council
Plan and other strategic plans of Council and
expresses them over a rolling 10-year period.

Asset Plan
The Asset Plan provides information about
maintenance, renewal, acquisition, expansion,
upgrade, disposal and decommissioning of
assets under the control of Council over a
rolling 10-year period.

Revenue and Rating Plan
The Revenue and Rating Plan describes how
Council will generate income to deliver on the
Council Plan, programs and services, and capital
works commitments over a 4-year period.

Other major plans
In addition to Maroondah 2040 - Our future
together and the Council Plan, there are a
range of other strategic documents that have a
significant influence on Council’s service delivery
and the Maroondah community.
These include:
•

The Maroondah Planning Scheme (including
the Municipal Planning Strategy) contains
policies and controls that affect how land can
be used and developed. The Municipal Planning
Strategy includes strategic directions about
how Maroondah is expected to change through
the implementation the planning scheme.

•

The Maroondah Health and Wellbeing
Plan provides directions and guidelines for
working in partnership with key community
stakeholders towards the improved health
and wellbeing of the Maroondah community.

•

The Municipal Emergency Management
Plan addresses the prevention of, response
to, and recovery from, emergencies
within the municipality of Maroondah.

Other Council policies,
strategies and plans

Key principles

There are many other policies, strategies and
plans that also contribute to the delivery of
outcomes and key directions within Maroondah
2040 - Our future together and the Council Plan.
All community facing policies, strategies and
plans can be found on Council’s website at
www.maroondah.vic.gov.au

Maroondah City Council is committed to
performing its role in accordance with the
overarching governance principles of the
Local Government Act 2020, and supporting
principles relating to community engagement,
public transparency, strategic planning, financial
management and service performance.

Service Delivery Plans

Charter of Human Rights

The provision of strategic direction through
Maroondah 2040 - Our future together, the Council
Plan 2017-2021, Financial Plan and Asset Plan set
the direction for Service Delivery Plans across
each of Council’s service areas. These plans are
reviewed annually to meet community needs and
expectations.

Long Term Financial Strategy
The Long Term Financial Strategy takes the
outcome areas and key directions as specified in
the Council Plan 2017-2021 and expresses them in
financial terms over a rolling 10-year period.

Budget
The Budget documents the financial and
non-financial resources required by Council to
implement the key directions and priority actions
identified in the Council Plan 2017-2021 for each
of the eight outcome areas.
Consultation is conducted on the draft Budget and
feedback is considered before Council adopts the
final Budget.

Overarching governance principles

Council recognises and protects the rights,
interests and responsibilities of individuals, the
community, and public bodies in the City of
Maroondah in accordance with the Charter of
Human Rights and Responsibilities. Council’s
strategies, policies and decision-making
procedures are compatible with the Charter of
Human Rights. Council aims to ensure that it
pursues a human rights approach across all areas
of Council activity.
Risk management
Council continues to build upon its culture of risk
management as an integral part of corporate
governance and operations, developing strategies
and systems to minimise risks. This ensures the
sustainable delivery of services and amenities
enjoyed by ratepayers, residents and visitors.
The identification and management of risk
will continue to be undertaken in a systematic
process, implementing the principles set out in the
Australian Standards for Risk Management
AS/NZS ISO 31000:2018. The Maroondah City
Council Strategic Risk Management Plan and Policy
provide the framework for this to be achieved.
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Community engagement
Council is committed to engaging with the
Maroondah community in a meaningful,
accountable, responsive and equitable way. Our
community and stakeholders play a vital role
in shaping the City of Maroondah. We consider
community engagement to be an essential
component of good governance and leadership.
Community engagement is a planned process
that provides a range of opportunities for our
community to be involved in Council’s decision
making, relationship building and community
strengthening. Effective community engagement
enables Council to make well-informed decisions
at an operational and strategic level and creates
a better level of understanding between Council
and our community. Community engagement is
achieved when the community is and feels part of
a process.
Council’s approach to community and stakeholder
engagement is guided by the community
engagement principles set out under Section 56
of the Local Government Act 2020.
The Act and a range of other legislation set
out minimum requirements for some specific
consultations. In many instances, Council will go
above and beyond the minimum requirements to
gain a strong understanding of our community’s
wants and needs to ensure we are achieving the
best possible outcomes for our community.

Community Engagement Policy
Community Engagement Policy
Working towards a well governed and empowered community

Maroondah’s Community
Engagement Policy 2021
is a formal expression of
Council’s commitment
to engaging with the
Maroondah community and
understanding the different
views, experiences and
expertise our community
has to offer.

The Policy is built upon a
set of commitments that
guide the planning, development, implementation,
evaluation and continuous improvement of
community engagement processes undertaken
by Council. These commitments are built upon
the core values identified by the International
Association for Public Participation and will be
undertaken in accordance with Council’s Privacy
Policy 2014.
The Policy outlines Council’s position, role and
commitment to ensure community engagement is
integrated into Council activities. The Policy also
seeks to improve Council’s engagement processes
and outcomes by encouraging a consistent
approach and continual learning through
evaluation, and through expanding the range of
engagement methods used.
The Policy is supported by a comprehensive
Community Engagement Toolkit designed to
guide Council officers in the effective planning,
implementation and evaluation of community
engagement activities.
Deliberative engagement
Deliberative engagement is an approach which
encourages community members to critically test,
weigh up and consider a range of information,
perspectives, inputs and evidence to reach a
consensus or make recommendations.
Section 55 of the Local Government Act 2020
specifies that Council’s Community Engagement
Policy is required to give effect to deliberative
engagement practices capable of being applied
to the development of the Community Vision,
Council Plan, Financial Plan and Asset Plan.
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Maroondah City Council is committed to engaging with the community
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Our Council
The role and function of Council

Our Maroondah
community

The role of Council

Service delivery

Advocacy

Section 64A (1) of the Victorian Constitution Act
1975 describes local government as a distinct
and essential tier of government consisting
of democratically elected Councils having the
functions and powers that the Parliament considers
are necessary to ensure the peace, order and good
government of each municipal district.
The role of a Council is defined in the Local
Government Act 2020, which formalises a Council’s
legal status, purpose and objectives; delegates
Council with specific functions and powers; and
imposes Council with various duties.
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Facilitation

At Maroondah City Council, our role is to:
•

deliver services that meet the needs and
expectations of the Maroondah community

•

advocate on behalf of community needs
to other levels of government

•

facilitate the delivery of outcomes by working
in partnership with residents, businesses,
community organisations and key stakeholders.

Over 120 different services are provided by
Council including: aged and disability support
services, business support, community planning
and development, children and youth services,
infrastructure maintenance and renewal, leisure and
sporting facilities, maternal and child health, parks
and reserves, planning and building, drainage,
roads and footpaths, and waste and recycling.

Our Councillors and wards

Mayor and Deputy Mayor

The municipality is divided into nine wards:
Barngeong, Bungalook, Jubilee, McAlpin, Tarralla,
Wicklow, Wombolano, Wonga and Yarrunga. Each
ward is represented by one Councillor.

Cr Kylie Spears was unanimously elected to the
position of Mayor on 11 November 2020. Cr Spears
is Maroondah’s 25th Mayor. During the financial
year, Cr Spears served as Mayor from 11 November
2020 to 30 June 2021.

Councillors are responsible for the stewardship
and governance of Council. The nine Councillors
are the elected representatives of all residents and
ratepayers across the City.
Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2020
defines the role of a Councillor to:
•

participate in the decision making of the Council

•

present the interests of the municipal
community in that decision-making

•

contribute to the strategic direction of
the Council through the development and
review of key strategic documents of the
Council, including the Council Plan.

As Mayor of Maroondah, Cr Spears is the Chair
of the Eastern Region Group of Councils and a
representative on the Victorian Local Government
Women’s Charter. Cr Nora Lamont was elected
to the position of Deputy Mayor on 11 November
2020. The Deputy Mayor position provides support
to the Mayor during the mayoral term.
From 1 July to 23 October 2020 (shortened period
due to 2020 Council Election), Cr Mike Symon held
the position of Mayor, and Cr Marijke Graham was
Deputy Mayor.

Maroondah City Council’s civic and administrative offices are located in Realm at Ringwood Town Square

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
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Council election

Mayoral election

Local government elections in Victoria are for
a term of four years and are conducted by the
Victorian Electoral Commission. The last general
election for Maroondah City Council was held on
24 October 2020. The next general election for
Council will be held on 26 October 2024.

The position of Mayor and Deputy Mayor is elected
by the Councillors for a one-year term. The role
of Mayor is significant as a community leader
and Council spokesperson. The Mayor performs
an important leadership, social and ceremonial
function and chairs all Council meetings.
The position of Deputy Mayor provides support to
the Mayor during the Mayoral term.

Barngeong
Bungalook
Croydon Hills

Jubilee
McAlpin

Warranwood

Tarralla

Barngeong
Croydon
North

Yarrunga

Wicklow
Wombolano
Wonga
NORTH

Yarrunga

McAlpin

Wicklow

Croydon

Wonga
Ringwood
North

Ringwood East

Ringwood
East

Ringwood

Croydon
South

Wombolano

Mitcham
Heatherdale

Bayswater North

Tarralla
Heathmont

Jubilee

Vermont

Wantirna
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Bayswater

Kilsyth
South

Bungalook

Meet your Councillors
Barngeong Ward

Bungalook Ward

Jubilee Ward

Cr Marijke Graham

Cr Tony Dib OAM JP

Cr Mike Symon

Deputy Mayor July to Oct 2020
Mobile: 0418 109 015
marijke.graham@
maroondah.vic.gov.au

Mobile: 0438 515 089
tony.dib@
maroondah.vic.gov.au

Mayor July to Oct 2020
Mobile: 0436 002 080
mike.symon@
maroondah.vic.gov.au

McAlpin Ward

Tarralla Ward

Wicklow Ward

Cr Suzy Stojanovic

Cr Paul Macdonald

Cr Tasa Damante

Mobile: 0429 916 094
suzanne.stojanovic@
maroondah.vic.gov.au

Mobile: 0436 001 760
paul.macdonald@
maroondah.vic.gov.au

Mobile: 0436 704 819
tasa.damante@
maroondah.vic.gov.au

Wombolano Ward

Wonga Ward

Yarrunga Ward

Cr Kylie Spears

Cr Nora Lamont

Cr Rob Steane

Mayor Nov 2020 to June 2021
Mobile: 0436 003 660
kylie.spears@
maroondah.vic.gov.au

Deputy Mayor
Nov 2020 to June 2021
Mobile: 0428 394 581
nora.lamont@
maroondah.vic.gov.au

Mobile: 0407 519 986
rob.steane@
maroondah.vic.gov.au
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Corporate Management Team
Within the framework of strategic leadership and representative government, a position of Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) is established by the Local Government Act 2020 to oversee the day-to-day
management of Council operations in accordance with the strategic directions of the Council Plan.
At Maroondah, the CEO, together with four Directors, form the Corporate Management Team (CMT) that
lead the organisation. CMT meets formally on a weekly basis to oversee and manage the operations of
Council, discuss forthcoming Council agendas and strategic and policy issues. Members of CMT attend all
Council meetings to provide information and advice enabling the Council to make informed decisions.
CMT is supported by Service Area Managers and employees with specialist skills to develop, implement,
manage and deliver the operational, service and administrative activities required to meet the needs and
expectations of the community.
Chief Executive Officer - Steve Kozlowski
Steve has 32 years of senior local government management experience at Chief
Executive Officer and Director levels, including 10 years with Maroondah City
Council from 1994 to 2003. From the start of 2004, he was Chief Executive
Officer at East Gippsland Shire until he rejoined Maroondah City Council on
8 September 2014 as Chief Executive Officer.
Steve has held executive positions on a number of national, state and regional
committees across a range of interests including: economic development,
environmental planning, tourism, coastal settlement development and
community development. Steve is chair of the Melbourne Metropolitan Regional
Development Australia (RDA) Committee having been jointly appointed to
the position by the State and Federal Governments. He is a member of the
Metropolitan Development Advisory Panel that provides advice to the State
Ministers for Planning and Suburban Development. In addition, Steve is also
Chair of the Eastern Region Economy and Planning Working Group, a member
of the Victorian Government’s Eastern Metropolitan Regional Partnership, and a
member of the Eastern Region Group of Councils (ERG).
Steve is a fellow of a number of professional associations including the Australian
Institute of Company Directors (AICD) and Local Government Professionals
(LGPro). He holds an MBA, Grad. Dip. in Business Administration and a Bachelor
of Business (Local Government).
Director Corporate Services - Marianne Di Giallonardo
Marianne is responsible for Finance and Governance; Workplace People and
Culture; Information Technology; and Revenue, Property and Customer Service.
Marianne has over 40 years’ experience in a range of local and Victorian
Government arenas, including senior leadership and management across the
portfolios of Corporate, Community and Leisure, and Infrastructure Services
management. Her tertiary qualifications include Certified Manager with the
Institute of Managers and Leaders, MBA, Grad Dip Bus, BA (Youth Affairs) and
Dip YW. She is a member of a number of sector boards including the Local
Government Professionals Director Special Interest Group Executive and holds
professional memberships with Australian Human Resources Institute (AHRI),
Australian Institute of Company Directors (AICD), Institute of Managers and
Leaders (iML), Committee for Economic Development of Australia (CEDA),
Institute of Public Administration Australia (IPAA), Local Government
Professionals (LGPro) and Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry (VECCI).
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Director Development and Amenity - Andrew Fuaux
Andrew is responsible for Engineering and Building; Health, Local Laws and
Emergency Management; and Statutory Planning.
Andrew has 22 years local government experience. He commenced with
Maroondah City Council in 2010 as Manager Statutory Planning, bringing
a wealth of experience from his leadership and management roles at
Whitehorse and Yarra Ranges Councils across a diverse range of service areas,
including planning, engineering, health services, local laws and environmental
management.
Andrew’s tertiary qualifications include a Graduate Diploma in Urban Policy &
Planning and a Degree in Social Science (Environmental Assessment and Policy).
He is a Fellow of the Institute of Managers and Leaders (previously AIM), and
member of the Victorian Planning and Environment Law Association, and the
Australian Institute of Company Directors (AICD).
Director Operations, Assets and Leisure - Adam Todorov
Adam is responsible for Operations, Assets and Leisure, including the Maroondah
Leisure facilities.
Adam joined Maroondah City Council in 2001 and has over 20 years’ experience
spanning Engineering, Infrastructure Management, Assets and Facilities. He
was responsible for leading the development of the Infor Public Sector Asset
Management System which supports the management of Council’s $1.9 billion in
community assets. It is now recognised as an industry leader in the management
of community assets.
Adam’s tertiary qualifications include a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil) attaining
Upper Second Class Honours. He is an Associate Fellow of the Institute of
Managers and Leaders (iML), and a Member of Engineers Australia.
Director Strategy and Community - Phil Turner
Phil is responsible for Business and Activity Centre Development (including
Council’s involvement in the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre); Community
Services; and Integrated Planning.
Phil commenced with the former City of Ringwood in 1985 and has over 36 years’
experience in local government. His experience spans the management of Town
Planning; Economic Development; Corporate and Business Planning; Local Laws;
and Building Services.
Phil’s tertiary qualifications include a Bachelor of Applied Science in Town
Planning and a Graduate Diploma in Business Administration and Urban
Research and Policy.
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Organisation structure
The following chart details the organisational structure of Maroondah City Council as at 30 June 2021.
There are 14 service area managers and 1168 employees (524.68 EFT) that work to deliver outcomes for
the local community.

Chief Executive Officer
Steve Kozlowski

Communications and Engagement
Sherryn Dunshea

Corporate Services
Director

Marianne Di Giallonardo

Finance and Governance
Tony Rocca

• Contracts and Purchasing
• Financial Services
• Governance
• Payroll
• Risk Management
• Waste Management

Information Technology
Les Schneider

• IT Applications
• IT Infrastructure
• Project Delivery

Development
and Amenity
Director

Andrew Fuaux

Dale Muir

• Customer Service
• Libraries
• Realm Operations
• Revenue and Property

Assets

• Building Services
• Engineering Services
• Infrastructure development

• Assets Management
• Facilities

Andrew Taylor

Steve McIntosh

Strategy and
Community

Director

Phil Turner

Business and Activity
Centre Development
Chris Zidak

• Activity Centre Development
• Business Support

Leisure

Tim Cocks
Health, Local Laws and
Emergency Management • Aquahub
Kirsten Jenkins

• Community Health
• Emergency Management
• Immunisation Services
• Local Laws

Angela Kechich

• Environmental Planning
• Planning Compliance
• Statutory Planning

Workplace People
and Culture
Stephen Bishop

• Learning and Development
• Recruitment
• Workforce Relations
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Director

Adam Todorov

Engineering and
Building Services

Statutory Planning
Revenue, Property
and Customer Service

Operations
Assets and Leisure
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• Aquanation
• Croydon Memorial Pool
• Dorset Golf
• Karralyka
• Maroondah Federation
Estate
• Maroondah Nets
• Ringwood Golf
• Sports and Recreation
• Sportsfields
• The Rings

Community Services
Debra Styles

• Aged and Disability Services
• Arts and Cultural
Development
• Children’s Services
• Maternal and Child Health
• Youth Services
• Wyreena Community Arts
Centre

Integrated Planning
Grant Meyer

Operations

Vincent King
• Built Environment
and Cleansing
• Bushland and Weed
Management
• Fleet
• Park Maintenance
• Trees

• Council and Community
Planning
• Strategic Planning and
Sustainability

Corporate performance and values
The CEO, Directors and service area managers are employed under fixed-term employment contracts
and their performance is measured and reviewed annually against key performance indicators.
Councillors review the performance of the CEO, whilst the CEO reviews the performance of Directors and
service area managers. Employee activities are strongly guided by Council’s values.
These values guide the behaviour of employees and service areas across the organisation, contributing to
Council’s ability to meet community needs and expectations.

Allocation of resources for service delivery
The diagram below outlines how Maroondah City Council allocates available resources for the provision
of a broad range of services to the community.
For more information on Council’s financial performance during 2020/21, please see the Financial Report.
In 2020/21, for every $100 of rates, Council spent:

Leisure &
Culture

$17.70

Capital
Works

$19.42

$38.85

Environment

Transport
& Access

$8.90
Community
Support

$8.41

$6.72
City
Development
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Organisational profile
There was a total of 1168 employees at Maroondah City Council as at 30 June 2021, including 54 employees
employed under the State Government’s Working for Victoria (WfV) grant scheme. The 1168 comprises
381 full-time, 313 part-time, and 474 casual employees; resulting in an equivalent of 524.68 full-time
employees (including 53.4 eft for WfV). The following provides an overview of Council’s workforce:
Total equivalent full-time employees (annually as at 30 June 2021)
Year

EFT

2020/21

524.68

2019/20

469.50

2018/19

473.28

2017/18

482.09

2016/17

471.5

550
535
520
505
490
475
460
445
430
415
400

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

Full-time

2017/18

2016/17

Working for Victoria

Equivalent full-time employees by Directorate (as at 30 June 2021)
EFT
CEO Office
Corporate Services

87.73

CEO Office
Corporate
Services

Development & Amenity

104.62

Development
& Amenity

Operations, Assets & Leisure

212.59

Operations,
Assets & Leisure

Strategy & Community

102.57

Strategy
& Community

Total
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17.17

448.38
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Categories of Employees (% of total employees as at 30 June 2021)

100%
Year

Full-time Part-time

Casual

2020/21

32.6%

26.8%

40.6%

2019/20

29.2%

26.1%

44.7%

2018/19

28.8%

26.5%

44.5%

2017/18

30.2%

28.8%

41.0%

2016/17

29.6%

30.1%

40.3%

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

Full-time

Resignations and new starts
Year

Resignations New Starts

2020/21

32

81

2019/20

32

33

2018/19

48

43

2017/18

43

48

2016/17

58

58

Part-time

7
20
16
/1

8
20
17
/1

9
/1
20
18

20
19
/2
0

20
20
/2
1

0%

Casual

90
80
70
60
50

Note: This data represents Full time Employees only

40
30
20

Resignations

7
20
16
/1

8
20
17
/1

9
20
18
/1

20
19
/2
0

0

20
20
/2
1

10

New Starts

Employee recognition
Major milestones of long service for employees at Maroondah City Council are typically acknowledged
and recognised in June each year. As a consequence of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic the 2020
Milestone event was postponed but these employees will be recognised at the 2021 event (subject to
COVID-19 restrictions at the time). These service milestones demonstrate strong people leadership
within the organisation. In 2020/21, 24 Council employees achieved 10 years of service, five employees
achieved 20 years of service, one employee achieved 30 years of service.
Employees achieving exceptional performance are recognised through the Recognising Extra Value
(REV) Program with five employees receiving a REV Award during 2020/21. Recognition is also given
to employees for successful study completion. In 2020/21, three employees successfully completed
their studies.
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Workplace People and Culture
Workplace People and Culture is committed to
the provision of quality services and activities to
meet the aspirations, needs and expectations of
Council and the community. Our commitment to
continuous improvement and innovation ensures
an ongoing review of our organisational systems
and processes, continually looking for better ways
of working, creating greater effectiveness and
increased efficiency.
Council as a service provider is a people focused
organisation. Given that change is inevitable in
today’s world, human resources initiatives and
strategies must evolve and respond to changing
business, community, market and regulatory
needs and demands whilst maintaining a positive
workplace culture.
Maroondah City Council’s Workforce People and
Culture Strategy operates from values-based
principles that place ‘people’ at the heart of
Council operations and simultaneously seeks
improvement in service effectiveness for the
community and employee wellbeing.
The Workforce People and Culture Strategy
2016–2020 has now concluded and the 2021-2025
is currently being developed as part of Council’s
strategic planning framework. The Strategy will
aim to provide an organisational direction for
the development, implementation, review and
measurement of Workforce People and Culture
initiatives, activities and systems for the next four
years and as a means of achieving optimal and
sustainable outcomes with finite resources.
Council recognises the need to attract quality
people and to optimise their performance
and retention in order to continue to provide
vital services to the community. Furthermore,
implementing active workforce strategies in an
environment of continuous change, potential
uncertainty and continuous improvement requires
a considered approach.
Consistent with an increased focus on managing
risk, corporate governance and people, the
development and implementation of the Strategy
will constitute an essential document for Council’s
Corporate Management Team, line management,
key organisational stakeholders and human
resource professionals.
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Valuing diversity
Maroondah City Council promotes a culture of
awareness and acceptance of diversity. Council
values and promotes equality in the workplace
and commits to providing redress for people
who have been discriminated against, harassed,
or bullied. Council continues to pride itself on
ensuring our employees are well educated in all
aspects of equal opportunity and valuing diversity.
Workplace giving
Employees at Maroondah City Council continue to
donate to various charities on a monthly schedule,
through direct payroll deductions. The charities
selected reflect employee interest or involvement,
with all charities being registered fundraisers
in Australia. A total of $32,551 was donated by
employees in 2020/21.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

39

Annual Report 2020/21

A safe, healthy and active
community
Our vision
In 2040, Maroondah will be a safe, healthy and active community where all
people have the opportunity to experience enhanced levels of social, emotional
and physical wellbeing.

Our commitments
Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21), Council identified 11 priority actions to be delivered
during the 2020/21 financial year to work towards a safe, healthy and active community.

Establish a regional cricket hub at the Jubilee Park
sporting precinct

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure
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The Jubilee Park sporting precinct is home to a range of local
sporting clubs and includes the Russell Lucas Oval, which is a
Premier Grade cricket ground. Successful Council advocacy to
the Victorian Government resulted in $2 million in funding for the
redevelopment of the RO Spencer Pavilion at Jubilee Park which
will become home to the Ringwood District Cricket Association
and to Cricket Victoria’s new Eastern Metro Zone Association.
The design and construction contract for RO Spencer Sporting
Pavilion was endorsed by Council in September 2020 and is due for
completion in 2021. Further advocacy for Stage 2 of the precinct is
currently underway.
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Design and construct sporting/multipurpose pavilion
redevelopments at HE Parker Reserve; Silcock Reserve;
Proclamation Park; and at Springfield and Ainslie Park

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

As a result of funding by the Federal Government, Victorian
Government and Council, several significant redevelopments are
underway for multipurpose pavilions located in sporting reserves
across Maroondah. The $4.25 million redevelopment of the HE Parker
Sporting Pavilion was completed in April 2020 and includes four
female-friendly change rooms as well as a large multipurpose room
and amenities. The facility is home to the Heathmont Cricket Club,
Heathmont Football Club and Sport and Life Training (SALT). The
$3.2 million redevelopment of Silcock Reserve is now complete. The
facility includes multipurpose spaces for enhanced community use,
new flexible change rooms, enhanced amenities, storage areas, office
space, and kitchen areas. To support the pavilion redevelopment,
a $1.7 million sportsfield renovation was also completed with new
lighting and cricket training nets.
The $3.25 million Proclamation Park Sporting Pavilion redevelopment
is underway and will see the demolition of the existing pavilion and
the construction of a new two storey facility, including female change
facilities to meet the growing female participation in cricket and
baseball. Redevelopment of sporting pavilions are also planned at
Springfield and Ainslie Park. The $3.2 million Springfield Multipurpose
Pavilion redevelopment at Croydon Park includes significantly
improved accessibility, female friendly change rooms and amenities
for the Gridiron Club and EFL umpires, as well as multipurpose space
for the community groups and the Vacation Care program.
The $1.5 million Ainslie Park Pavilion redevelopment includes for
improved accessibility, female friendly change rooms and amenities,
umpire change room, public toilets and social space and spectator
viewing improvements.

Undertake a strategic review of Maroondah Golf
To ensure golf in Maroondah is sustainable in the future, Council
has undertaken a review of Maroondah Golf. The Maroondah Golf
Strategy 2020-2030 outlines key priority actions that will enable
golf within Maroondah to remain financially sustainable, achieve
performance targets and see participation continue to increase and
diversify. Maroondah City Council owns and operates two 18-hole
public golf courses, Dorset Golf Course (Dorset) and Ringwood Golf
Course (Ringwood) which are collectively known as Maroondah Golf.
Status: Complete
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure
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Plan and implement the Dorset Recreation Reserve and
Eastfield Park Enhancement Plans and undertake staged
redevelopment works
The Dorset Recreation Reserve redevelopment will include a new
multipurpose pavilion, two soccer fields and upgraded lighting,
carparking and landscaping. The new multipurpose community
and sports hub will be home to Croydon City Soccer Club and
Maroondah’s Burmese/Myanmar community. The facility is being
funded by Council with $2 million from the Australian Government
and $2 million from the Victorian Government for the soccer precinct.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

The Dorset Recreation Reserve Enhancement Plan has been endorsed
by Council and schematic design for the Stage 1 works has begun.
Demolition of the old pavilion is now complete and construction
for the new pavilion is currently in progress with works expected
to be completed by October 2021. The remainder of the civil and
enhancement works are expected to be complete by April 2022.

Develop a Liveability and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2031
(incorporating the Municipal Public Health Plan)
The current Maroondah Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2017-2021 is
due to conclude in 2021 and will be replaced by the new Maroondah
Liveability Wellbeing and Resilience Strategy 2021-2031.
Extensive background research and community consultation has
been undertaken on six key topics including: celebrating diversity;
healthy lifestyles; liveable neighbourhoods; safe communities; social
inclusion; and social harms.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

The strategy will incorporate a range of future health and
wellbeing priorities for Council, including those associated with
longer-term community recovery arising from the coronavirus
(COVID-19 pandemic, building upon the adopted Maroondah
COVID-19 Recovery Plan. Once finalised, the Strategy will provide
overarching strategic direction that inform action plans for health and
wellbeing, disability, active and healthy ageing, and gender equality.

Work with partners of Together for Equality and Respect
(TFER): A Strategy to Prevent Violence Against Women in
Melbourne East
Everyone
deserves
equality and
respect
#16daysofactivism
#callitout

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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The ‘16 Days of Activism Against Gender Based Violence’ is a global
campaign which runs from 25 November (International Day for the
Elimination of Violence Against Women) to 10 December (Human
Rights Day). In the Eastern Metropolitan Region (EMR), the campaign
is supported by partners of Together for Equality and Respect –
the regional strategy for Preventing Violence Against Women. The
strategy led by Women’s Health East, is a partnership between the
seven local governments of the EMR, community health services
and other agencies that focus on primary prevention efforts to
end violence against women. To support the 16 days of activism,
Council displayed billboards in Maroondah from 23 November to 19
December 2020 including key messages about preventing violence.
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Work in partnership to enhance the Maroondah Hoarding and
Squalor website

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

The Maroondah Hoarding and Squalor Network commenced in
2014 for agencies and community groups confronted with hoarding
and squalor. The group provides partners with an opportunity to
develop relationships, share skills and knowledge, and establish
positive collaborative outcomes. A major achievement of the
Network is the development of a dedicated website for support
workers, and the family and friends of people with hoarding
tendencies, which contributes to awareness of the condition and
available avenues of assistance.
The current website, while Maroondah focussed, is accessed by people
from across the state. With funding from the Outer East Primary Care
Partnership (OEPCP), the website has now been updated to include
coronavirus (COVID-19) related information. A Buried in Treasures
Program was established providing a six-week, two-hour self-help
action group for people living with hoarding behaviour. Offering a
judgment-free environment, the program encourages individuals to
make positive changes to their home environment.

Develop and deliver services in the Croydon Community
Wellbeing Precinct
Council has commenced planning for the delivery of a range
of services from the Croydon Community Wellbeing Precinct
(CCWP). The transformation of the Precinct will focus on delivering
enhanced community spaces and functionality in relation to
wellbeing facilities, family and children facilities, arts and cultural
spaces, sport and recreation facilities, and open space. These
combined elements will also enhance accessibility and connectivity
for the community.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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Implement Council's annual sportsfield
improvement program
The sportsfield improvement program for 2020/21 focused on
enhancements to playing fields at Silcock Reserve, which consist
of two cricket ovals and four soccer pitches. Works included the
renewal of the playing surfaces including striping and relevelling
of existing surfaces, the installation of subsurface drainage and an
irrigation system, centre cricket wickets with synthetic runups, and
soccer goals. Works were completed in April 2021 with both ovals
now open for use.
Status: Complete
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

Local Government Victoria's Councils and Emergencies project

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

This project seeks to ‘enhance the capability and capacity of Local
Governments to meet their obligations in the management of
emergencies’. While this has been delayed due to the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic, consultation with local Councils has started
progressing on four key themes: councils and emergencies phase
three; secondary impact assessment; recovery toolkit; and local
government assurance. The Emergency Management Legislation
Amendment Act 2018 also came into effect in December 2020 and
Council has commenced implementation of changes related to this
new legislation. The Council and Emergencies Project is led by the
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions (DJPR) through Local
Government Victoria (LGV).

Implement the changes from the reform of the Environment
Protection Act
Implementation of changes to the Environment Protection Act
2017 have been postponed until 1 July 2021 to ease the burden on
business, industries and community members due to impacts of
coronavirus (COVID-19). In the interim, Council officers have been
attending workshops and forums to better understand the new
legislation and the impacts.

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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Did you know?
A total of 2814 community
members had their say on the
development of the Maroondah
COVID-19 Recovery Plan.

The community showed incredible generosity and kindness during the COVID19 pandemic
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A safe, healthy and active
community
Our strategic indicator results
Indicator/Measure
Overall Maternal and Child Health service client
participation in key ages and stages visits

Target
Actual
Actual
2020/21 2020/21 2019/20

Actual
2018/19

Actual
2017/18

100%

96.99%

98.3 %

98.87%

101.2%

Attendance at Council aquatic and leisure facilities
as a proportion of the residential population
(LGPRF - Number of visits per head of population)

9.0

1.55*

9.93

10.11

8.75

Community satisfaction with recreation facilities
(Local Government Community Satisfaction Survey)

78

79

76

80

80

* The annual utilisation of aquatic facilities remains low due to coronavirus (COVID-19) capacity restrictions and facility
closures

Our achievements
In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken
a wide range of other activities in working towards a safe, healthy and active
community. Some highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards a safe community
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Support for women and families experiencing
domestic violence

Partnerships to improve mental health outcomes
and address family violence

Council has continued to partner with
Together for Equality and Respect (TFER)
to support women and families experiencing
domestic violence. TFER provides a platform
for organisations in the Eastern Metropolitan
Region (EMR) to prioritise and work together
to enable gender equality and equal and
respectful relationships between women and
men. This involves long term, coordinated actions
across individual, community, organisational
and societal levels together with more than
30 partner organisations. A key focus of the
TFER partnership during 2020/21 has involved
development of a Sexual and Reproductive Health
Strategy for the region to inform collaborative
work and targeted initiatives.

Council’s Maternal and Child Health service has
developed strong partnerships to improve the
mental health wellbeing of children and their
families through improved referral pathways.
Key partners include Eastern Access Community
Health (EACH); Eastern Health Mental Health
Services; Eastern Community Legal Centre (ECLC);
Eastern Health Perinatal Emotional Health Service
(PEHS) for women experiencing emotional health
issues including: postnatal depression and trauma
impacting mental health during the first 12 months
post birth; The O’Connell Centre providing early
parenting support for vulnerable families; and Child
and Youth Mental Health Services. Maternal and
Child Health have seen an increase in mental health
and family violence issues during coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions with corresponding increase
in referrals to specialist services.
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Women’s safety walks

VicHealth Risky Drinking Project

Council has recently partnered with Women’s
Health East (WHE) to undertake women’s safety
walks in open space areas where Council projects
are proposed or in progress. These walks are
intended to place a gender lens of access, use and
amenity in public open spaces and to elevate the
voices of women in response to identified safety
concerns. The walks also provide an excellent
opportunity to engage with local women and
provide valuable consumer feedback on major
projects. During the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic in 2020, a successful walk was held
in a virtual setting to inform development of the
Croydon Structure Plan. This walk was attended
by 18 women plus Council representatives from a
range of service areas.

Knox and Maroondah Councils successfully applied
to VicHealth for two years of grant funding to
work with senior and junior sporting clubs to
explore the shared norms and behaviour that
contribute to risky levels of drinking. The project
is one of three initiatives announced by VicHealth
aiming to change the social pressure to drink
when people get together. The joint project will
explore opportunities to positively influence
organisational and cultural change through a range
of codesigned interventions with sporting clubs
through an analysis of current club practices. Initial
engagement commenced in 2020 but the project
was delayed due to the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic. With the restart of local sport, the
project was able to recommence in February
2021 with two football clubs and will extend until
December 2022.

Maroondah Liquor Accord updated
The Maroondah Liquor Accord was established
in 2015 and is a joint initiative between licensees,
Victoria Police, Council and the Victorian
Commission for Gambling and Liquor Regulation.
Liquor Accords are voluntary partnerships
among community members that aim to reduce
alcohol-related issues, anti-social behaviour and
violence. Any Maroondah licensee can participate
and become a member of the Maroondah Liquor
Accord. The Maroondah Liquor Accord meets twice
a year for networking, information and training
opportunities and is one of the largest and most
dynamic Accords in Victoria, attracting 50-80
attendees at meetings. The coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic meant that the Accord did not meet
during 2020, however meetings were able to
recommence in 2021.

Alliance for Gambling Reform
Council is a leadership partner in the Alliance for
Gambling Reform along with 22 other Victorian
Councils. The Alliance is a national advocacy
organisation which works to prevent and minimise
the harm from gambling. Its aim is to remove
the shame that surrounds gambling addiction,
have the problem treated as a public health issue,
and achieve the legislative changes needed to
protect our communities. As part of the Alliance,
Council supported advocacy efforts relating to:
operating hours of poker machines, gambling
advertising reform, reduction of gambling in sports
sponsorship, pokies-free AFL clubs; and online
activities during Gambling Harm Awareness Week.
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A safe, healthy and active
community
Our achievements
Working towards a healthy community
Support for the community to return to daily life
in a COVIDSafe environment
Council has put in place several COVIDSafe
measures to assist the community to return to
public life and to use Council facilities safely.
Reusable masks funded by the Victorian
Government were distributed to vulnerable
residents. Council owned and managed facilities
were provided with highly visible COVIDSafe
communication materials, posters, and decals to
promote physical distancing, hygiene measures,
and COVIDSafe behaviour.
Mental health events to support the community
during COVID-19
Council held several free online community
events to promote mental health during the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. From Surviving
to Thriving was held in October 2020 with
guest speaker Dr Lucy Hone who shared tips
on how to adapt to change and stressful events
in healthy and constructive ways. Women's
resilience in lockdown - share, learn and laugh
together with Georgie Dent was held in December
2020 in partnership with Eastern Melbourne
Councils: Cities of Boroondara, Kingston, Knox,
Manningham, Maroondah, Monash, Whitehorse
and the Shire of Yarra Ranges. An invited panel
gave a light-hearted discussion about women’s
experiences of hardship and resilience during the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. Living Life
with Anxiety with Sarah Wilson in partnership
with Eastern Regional Libraries, Eastern Action
Community Health (EACH) and Neami National,
was held in March 2021, offering advice for
building resilience through life’s ups and downs.
A range of other mental health workshops on
anxiety, resilience, mindfulness and mental health
first aid were also offered during the year.
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Be Kind Maroondah
The Be Kind Maroondah campaign was launched
during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic to
keep the community connected during social
isolation and encourage kindness and goodwill.
Several initiatives were undertaken within three
major themes; Be kind to yourself; Be kind to
others; and Be kind to business. A range of
associated initiatives were undertaken to support
the Maroondah community during the pandemic
as part of this campaign.
Knit One, warm one project
(Be Kind Maroondah initiative)
Council partnered with local community houses
to offer a chance for knitters to help those
sleeping rough or struggling financially during
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. There was
an overwhelming response to the project with
hundreds of knitted scarves, beanies, gloves,
mittens and blankets donated. This project
enabled over 50 experienced knitters, past
knitters and new knitters as well as some knitting
groups to band together to help others. Items
have been donated to several different agencies
across Maroondah including Wellways, Uniting
Crisis and Homelessness Service, Maroondah
Community Meals programs, Maroondah
Supported Residential Services, and the Safer
Futures Foundation.
The Sunflower Effect project
(Be Kind Maroondah initiative)
As part of Be Kind Maroondah, residents were
encouraged to participate in The Sunflower
Effect project and plant sunflower seeds in their
front garden or in a pot to bring some hope and
brightness into Maroondah streets. Commencing
October 2020, seed packets were made available
through Customer Service and community houses
and more than 5,000 seeds were distributed
resulting in streets of bright and cheerful
sunflowers.

Maroondah Moments photography project
(Be Kind Maroondah initiative)
The Maroondah Moments photography project
encouraged residents to take care of their mental
health by taking photographs of people, things
and places that make them feel happy. Research
has shown that participating in the arts can
have a positive effect on your wellbeing and
photography offers a different way to express
feelings without using words. Capturing things
that make us happy also promotes gratitude by
recognising the positive things in life which in
turn enhance mental wellbeing. Photographs were
shared on Council’s Facebook page or tagged as
#MaroondahMoments on Instagram.
Let’s Get Neighbourly Maroondah
(Be Kind Maroondah initiative)
Council in conjunction with Neighbourhood
Connect and local community houses offered
free workshops for people interested in making a
difference in their neighbourhood by becoming
a ‘Community Connector’. A range of new
neighbourhood level community connection
groups were established across Maroondah, led
by community members, in response to this
project the community was also encouraged to
shop locally and support small businesses, in turn
supporting local job growth and helping to build
strong, vibrant communities.
Maroondah Health and Wellbeing Plan
The Maroondah Health and Wellbeing Plan
2017-2021 is a strategic plan that describes how
Council and partners will work together to achieve
improved health and wellbeing for our local
community. The plan was adopted in late 2017
involving input from local community members,
partners and stakeholders from the health and
community service sectors.
A range of actions were undertaken by Council
over the past year including: alcohol-harm
reduction in sporting club settings; delivery of
mental health workshops; implementation of
Be Kind Maroondah initiatives; developing a
position statement and implementation plan for
the introduction of Healthy Choices at Council’s
leisure facilities; coordination support for the
Maroondah Emergency Relief Network during
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic; partnering
with the Outer East Primary Care Partnership
(OEPCP) to promote a collaborative approach
to community recovery with community services
agencies; working in partnership to support
volunteers and volunteer based organisations in
response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic;
commencing delivery of a Certificate of Wellbeing
in partnership with Communities of Wellbeing;
participation in a Regional Homelessness Charter

project; continued advocacy through the Eastern
Affordable Housing Alliance and Alliance for
Gambling Reform; participation in the Together
for Equality and Respect (TFER) partnership;
and social inclusion partnerships with community
houses, indigenous groups and culturally and
linguistically diverse (CALD) communities.
Emergency meals assistance from Karralyka
Karralyka significantly increased its meals output
as part of the response to the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic and the requirement for
older vulnerable residents to self-isolate. Up to
250 clients were provided high-quality meals each
week, totalling over 40,000 meals a year. Meals
provided during the pandemic were supported
through additional Australian Government
funding. This funding was used to produce extra
subsidised meals as well as for the redeployment
of staff to cover the loss of volunteers involved in
meal delivery.
Good Food for Me program for older residents
The successful program Good Food for Me
is helping to teach older residents important
yet simple, practical ways on how improve
wellbeing and independence through better
nutrition. The short course is offered based
upon demand. Open to residents aged 65 and
over, the program introduced the dietary needs
of older people, while learning how to easily
prepare daily meals independently, on a budget,
and with minimal waste. The program is funded
by the Commonwealth Home Support Program
or individual Home Care Packages and referred
through My Aged Care.
Victorian Government’s Healthy Choices
framework to be implemented in Council
facilities
Council has continued the implementation of
the Victorian Government’s Healthy Choices
Framework and standards as part of the funding
agreement for Maroondah Nets. Healthy Choices
aims to improve the availability and promotion
of healthier foods and drinks in community
settings, and sport and recreation centres. Council
has commenced development of policies and
associated implementation plans for identified
Council facilities and for Council employees. In
November 2020, on the reopening of facilities
after coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions
eased, the Ringwood and Dorset golf courses
commenced a trial to determine the impact of
implementing healthy choices for beverages.
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A safe, healthy and active
community
Occupational therapy service continues to
address the needs of the community
Council’s occupational therapy service aims
to improve safety in the home and maximise
independence by providing home safety
assessments, recommending equipment and
strategies to use at home and providing methods
to complete daily tasks independently. Funded
by the Australian Government’s Commonwealth
Home Support Program, the service encourages
individuals to make positive changes to their
home environment and wellbeing. Throughout
this year, innovative programs have included
support for people who are impacted by
hoarding behaviours including 16-week Buried in
Treasures (BITS) self-help action group for people
motivated to make a change for themselves,
BITS peer support group for anyone impacted by
hoarding behaviour, and 1:1 Less is More for
short-term support to set goals and action
decluttering at home where safety of the home
environment is a concern.
Maternal and Child Health service continues
to support parents
With increased demand for support services
because of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic,
Council’s Maternal and Child Health service
has continued to adapt and offer face-to-face
appointments and support for families throughout
2020/21 providing information and advice service
to families regarding concerns about child health
as well as the health of parents. Maternal and
Child Health home visits, breastfeeding support,
an early parenting program, a First Time Parents
Group, and the Supported Playgroup Program
continued during restrictions via Zoom, phone or
Facebook. All these programs have continued to
adapt to varying levels of coronavirus (COVID-19)
restrictions with services gradually returning to
face-to-face delivery.
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New Maternal and Child Health services
In March 2020, Council’s Maternal and Child
Health Service opened a ‘pop-up’ centre in
Eastland Shopping Centre bringing services to
an additional location and offering a convenient
alternative to parents that may be visiting the
shopping centre. Offered in partnership with
Eastland, the centre offers appointments with
nurses, outreach services and ‘pop-up’ playgroups
inviting families to attend activities such as
reading and enjoying music for babies, infants
and toddlers. Council has received Victorian
Government funding for the redevelopment of
the Taralla Kindergarten and Maternal and Child
Health site.
The Maternal and Child Health Centre will be
extended from a two room to three room centre
enabling additional services and partnerships
to be delivered. The new centre is due to open
in early 2022, during the construction phase,
the Taralla Maternal and Child Health Centre has
temporarily relocated to Civic Square Croydon
for all appointments. Council has also received
additional funding from the Department of Health
(DHS) to extend Sleep and Settling programs
whilst Council’s Early Parenting Program has
been extended to include outreach services.
Parent education sessions for 0-3 year olds have
commenced and services will continue to roll out
in the coming months.
Hoarding Persona Project
Council’s Aged and Disability Services and Outer
East Primary Care Partnership (OEPCP) worked
with stakeholders, including residents from
Maroondah, Knox and Yarra Ranges, and members
of the Maroondah Hoarding and Squalor Network,
including local support agencies, emergency
services and staff from Maroondah, Knox and
Yarra Ranges Councils, to produce a resource
to better understand the lived experience of
residents impacted by hoarding behaviours
and professional staff who work with them. The
resource aims to promote and guide best practice
to appropriately support people affected by
hoarding behaviour, through non-judgemental,
practical and collaborative approaches. OEPCP
provided funding and practical resources to
complete the research including interviews and
workshops to inform a Hoarding Persona resource.

Maroondah Positive Education Network
Council continues to work in partnership to deliver
the Maroondah Positive Education Network
to increase the wellbeing and educational
outcomes of students in Maroondah through the
implementation of targeted wellbeing initiatives.
The Victorian Government has committed
ongoing funds to ensure the work of the network
is continued and to enable the work to be
extended to other areas.

Council's Maroondah and Child Health services continued to support services during the COVID-19
pandemic
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A safe, healthy and active
community
Our achievements
Working towards an active community
Support for the community to re-engage
Maroondah Leisure facilities

Walking football, netball, cricket and
pickleball programs

Council supported Aquahub and Aquanation
members and the broader community to keep
active from home during coronavirus (COVID-19)
restrictions through the Maroondah Leisure App
with more than 80 different on demand workouts
where users collect ‘MOVEs’, the app’s unit of
measure. Popular features included the ability
to connect to other apps and devices and track
outdoor activity. A fitness challenge in September
2020, saw over 30,000 ‘MOVEs’ collected by
Maroondah Leisure members during the month.
During the shutdown of facilities, Council
undertook maintenance and refurbishment of
leisure facilities including: new gym equipment
for Aquanation and Aquahub, upgrading and
expanding the Aquahub mind body studio; and
retiling of Aquahub swimming pools. Following the
easing of restrictions, Maroondah Leisure facilities
has seen a strong return from members and the
community.

Council has offered walking football, netball cricket
and pickleball programs to bring together variety
of low-intensity cardio, strength, flexibility and
balance in modified sports. These programs have
been designed so anyone can play, regardless
of age, ability or fitness level. Council together
with Melbourne East Netball Association (MENA)
commenced a walking netball program at
Maroondah Nets. Council also continued the
Walking Football Program in partnership with U3A
Croydon. Walking football is a modified version of
soccer that does not involve running or tackling.
Targeted at participants aged over 50, walking
football aims to improve the physical and mental
health outcomes for older residents and empower
them to be physically active every day.

Support for the community to re-engage with
indoor and outdoor sports
The return of gymnastics, basketball and other
stadium sports following the easing of coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions saw participation
rates return to pre-COVID levels. Community
participation has continued to grow for both
Ringwood and Dorset Golf facilities over the past
year. Participation in games of golf has increased
by 3.7 percent and secondary spend has increased
by 27 percent on the previous twelve months. The
new Maroondah Golf online booking system allows
members and guests to easily view and select
preferred tee-off times.

Walking cricket is a social, modified version of
cricket that doesn’t involve running, uses modified
equipment and is played in a small enclosed area.
Aimed at participants aged over 50, walking
cricket is designed to help people keep an active
lifestyle irrespective of their age and fitness level.
Pickleball is a modified tennis/badminton style
game played with a plastic low bounce ball and
light weight paddles. The sport was trialled during
the months prior to the start of the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic and has returned strongly
with an additional evening introduced to meet
the growing demand. On 23 April 2021, over
95 people participated in a Come and Try
Walking Sports for Seniors event to promote
Maroondah’s walking sports opportunities to over
50’s. Participants were also provided with a free
10 session pass to attend any of the four sport
programs over the following month.
Maroondah Night Run
The Maroondah Night Run was held in March 2021
as part of the Get Active campaign. Open to all
ages and abilities, options included walking or
running through the 5 kilometre light-filled course
at Ringwood Golf. All participants received a
ribbon at the finish line.
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Fun walk and cycle event

Improvements to sporting pavilions

A Fun Walk and Cycle event was held on 11 April
2021 along local walking and cycle as part of the
wider Croydon South 20-Minute Neighbourhood
project. The event was an opportunity for residents
to come together and enjoy a ‘self-guided’ walk
or cycle along the trails surrounding the Eastfield
Shops, including the Tarralla Creek Trail. Participants
could choose from a 3 or 9 kilometre walk, or a 5 or
15 kilometre ride. Following the event, participants
were encouraged to return to the lawn at the south
end of Eastfield Shops for a picnic.

Construction for the Griff Hunt Sporting Pavilion
in Croydon North was completed in 2020/21,
including the rebuild of ageing changeroom
facilities with focus on inclusiveness and
accessibility for all abilities and construction. The
Pavilion is home to the Maroondah Rugby Club and
Maroondah United Football Club. The $1.5 million
Cheong Pavilion Redevelopment will include the
demolition and reconstruction of the change
rooms and amenities, including female friendly
and accessible facilities. The project will also
include umpires changerooms, storerooms, and
major improvements to the existing multipurpose
area. Design work is currently underway, with
construction to commence in 2021/22.

Health and exercise services for older residents
In response to the temporary closure of
Maroondah sports and recreation facilities
during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic,
Council developed alternative physical and social
programs for the community. Sports and recreation
staff were redeployed to assist the volunteer
workforce delivering emergency meals to older
and vulnerable residents and provide advice and
instruction on undertaking safe exercise at home.
School holiday activities
Council’s Vacation Care program continues to be
conducted during the school holidays with a focus
on primary school children aged 5 to 12. Activities
encourage children to socialise, have fun, be active
and learn with a mix of safe and inclusive activities
and excursions.
Successful advocacy for funding for new dog park
in Ringwood North
Maroondah is one of five Melbourne Councils
to receive up to $275,000 in funding under the
Victorian Government’s Suburban Parks Program,
for an off-leash dog park. The purpose-built dog
park in Ringwood North will include a designated
ball play area, rockeries, education and agility
equipment and seating. Local councils were
invited to nominate sites for the new parks, which
were assessed by an independent panel then
selected for funding based on their accessibility
by road, public transport or well-linked to bike
and walking tracks.

Successful advocacy for a new sporting pavilion
at JW Manson Reserve
Council has successfully advocated for $2.5million
in funding for a new double story pavilion for
JW Manson Reserve, which is home to the St
Andrews Cricket Club as well as junior and
women's sides from Ringwood City Soccer
and Aquinas Old Collegians Football Club. The
announcements are the result of a concerted
advocacy campaign which will continue in the
approach to the next Federal and State elections.
Improved lighting sportsfield and tennis lighting
Council has completed the installation of sportsfield
lighting to both the Northern and Southern Ovals
at Silcock Reserve. Before the lighting was installed,
the four pitches at the reserve were underutilised
with only sections near the existing towers were
available for training outside of daylight hours.
The project included the installation of lighting
poles and LED lighting around the oval including
seven 30 metre lighting towers; 150 lux across both
pitches; and LED lamp heads.
The new lighting meets the Australian Standards
for sportsfield lighting and will improve safety for
players and cater for increased demand for soccer
training and possible night matches in the future.
Lighting improvements were also completed at
Cheong Park, Quambee Reserve and Gracedale
Tennis Club.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

53

Annual Report 2020/21

A safe, healthy and active
community
Looking ahead
In continuing to work towards a safe, healthy and active community during
2021/22, Council will:
Implement the Maroondah COVID-19
Recovery Plan

Design and construct a dog park in
Ringwood North

Council’s emergency relief and recovery framework
includes strategic community recovery planning
which will include the coordinated delivery of
recovery initiatives to meet the social, health and
wellbeing and economic needs of the community.
Over the next 12 months, Council will continue to
identify community needs and impacts through
consultation, data analysis and development
of partnerships with key stakeholder agencies.
Council will seek to support emerging social, health
and wellbeing issues through recovery planning
and agency collaboration.

Council was successful in advocating for up to
$275,000 in funding for a purpose-built dog
park Ringwood North. In 2021/22, Council will
commence community engagement and design
of the space.

Review, update and implement Council's Physical
Activity Strategy, and develop and implement
an Indoor High Ball (basketball, netball and
volleyball) Strategy
In 2021/22 Council plans to recommence the
review of the Physical Activity Strategy including
project planning and the collation of participation
data, for endorsement by June 2022.
Design and construct sporting infrastructure
upgrades at Jubilee (regional cricket hub),
Proclamation, Springfield, Cheong and
Ainslie Parks, and at Dorset Recreation and
Silcock Reserves
As a result of funding by the Federal Government,
Victorian Government and Council, several
significant redevelopments are underway for
multipurpose pavilions located in sporting reserves
across Maroondah. Council will continue to
design and construct multipurpose pavilions and
associated infrastructure at Jubilee, Proclamation,
Springfield, Cheong, Ainslie Park and Dorset
Recreation.
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Finalise and implement Council's Liveability,
Wellbeing and Resilience Strategy 2021-2031
(incorporating the Municipal Public Health Plan
and Active and Healthy Ageing Initiative)
The current Maroondah Health and Wellbeing
Strategy 2017-2021 is due to conclude in 2021 and
will be replaced by the new Maroondah Liveability
and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2031. The strategy
will provide a long-term holistic strategy covering
key priorities to improve the health, wellbeing and
resilience of Maroondah residents. The strategy
will meet Council’s requirements under the Public
Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 and support
the longer-term community recovery from the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
Work in partnership with a broad range of service
providers and agencies, to develop and deliver
services and cultural experiences in the Croydon
Community Wellbeing Precinct
The transformation of the existing Croydon Civic
Precinct into the Croydon Community Wellbeing
Precinct (CCWP) will focus on delivering enhanced
community spaces and functionality in relation to
wellbeing facilities, family and children facilities,
arts and cultural spaces, sport and recreation
facilities, and open space. These combined
elements will also enhance accessibility and
connectivity for the community. Since relocating
to the precinct in January 2021, the Maroondah
Occasional Care and Croydon Central Kindergarten
have had an increase in utilisation. Council will
continue engage with the range of services and
user groups in the precinct to plan transitional
moves and ensure that community needs are met.

Our core services
Council delivers a wide range of services aimed at promoting a safe, healthy and
active community. These services include:
Community Health
(Health, Local Laws and Emergency Management)

Local Laws
(Health, Local Laws and Emergency Management)

The Community Health team plays an instrumental
role in protecting and promoting the health and
wellbeing of the community through education
and prevention strategies. The team also initiates
regulatory intervention where there is a risk to the
health, wellbeing and/or safety of our community.
A broad range of proactive and reactive activities
are undertaken that include the registration
and assessment of food and health businesses;
statutory food and water sampling; communicable
disease investigations; preventative health
services; direct immunisation services including
a flu program; and general health promotion and
education activities.

The Local Laws team provide a broad range of
services to ensure the amenity, function and safety
of the City of Maroondah is maintained to a high
standard. The activities include the registration and
management of domestic animals; ensuring the
management of safe and accessible car parking;
protection of resident and business amenity and
safety; fire preparedness and prevention; and
managing Maroondah’s 74 school crossings.

Emergency Management
(Health, Local Laws and Emergency Management)
Activities supporting prevention, response, and
recovery from disasters within the Maroondah
municipality and the surrounding Eastern region
are a key focus of the Emergency Management
team. The team is currently playing a significant
role in Council’s response to the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic in coordination, relief and
recovery planning.

Maroondah Golf and Sportsfields (Leisure)
Maroondah’s golf courses and sportsfields are
operated by Council. Maroondah Golf offers two
18-hole public courses to the community.
Ringwood Golf is on Canterbury Road and is often
referred to as one of Melbourne’s leading public
access courses. Dorset Golf is located on Trawalla
Road, Croydon. The Maroondah Golf team also
provide maintenance of Council’s sportsfields.
This includes grass mowing and maintenance of
landscaped areas within the municipality.

Maroondah Golf offers two 18-hole public golf courses to the Maroondah community
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Maroondah Leisure (Leisure)

Sport and Recreation (Leisure)

Maroondah Leisure operate Maroondah’s aquatic
and leisure facilities - Aquanation, Aquahub and
Croydon Memorial Pool. The facilities provide
a wide range of activities and programs at
affordable prices, to ensure that all the Maroondah
community, and visitors to the region, can access
healthy lifestyle options. Integrated services and
programs across all Maroondah Leisure facilities
ensure that participants have the flexibility to mix
and match leisure choices.

Sport and Recreation supports and encourages
increased community involvement in physical
activity by coordinating the delivery of programs,
activities and events such as the annual Maroondah
Festival and Run Maroondah. The team also seeks
to maximise opportunities for community-based
physical activity by supporting club capacity
and improving infrastructure. This is achieved
through advocacy; providing information and
skill development to local clubs and groups;
establishing partnerships; and monitoring
participation patterns to ensure local service
planning remains relevant to community needs.
Sport and Recreation is also responsible for
managing occupancy of Council’s sporting facilities
and pavilions including seasonal allocations, leases,
licences and casual use.

The Maroondah Leisure Sales and Membership
team work in conjunction with the Maroondah
Leisure facility teams and Communications and
Engagement in acquiring new perpetual members
as well as the management of existing Maroondah
Leisure members. The membership team facilitates
the needs of the business and customers through
business planning, financial management,
communication internally and externally and
maintaining positive customer relationships. The
major focus is to ensure an exceptional customer
experience through service delivery.
Maternal and Child Health (Community Services)
The Maternal and Child Health (MCH) service is
a state-wide universal service for families with
children from birth to school age. The service is
delivered from seven Maternal and Child Health
centres across the municipality and is provided in
partnership with the Department of Education and
Training. The service supports families, and their
children, in the areas of parenting, development
and assessment, promotion of health and
development, wellbeing and safety, social supports,
referrals and links with communities. It includes
key ages and stages consultations and a flexible
service component.
Council’s enhanced MCH service focuses on
children, mothers and families at risk of poor
health and wellbeing outcomes, where multiple
risk factors for poor health outcomes are present.
The team also delivers parent education programs,
drop-in sessions and a lactation service. A new
addition to the MCH Service is the Supported
Playgroup Program for families with particular
vulnerabilities or needs. The facilitated program
supports the development and wellbeing of both
parents and children.
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The Rings and Maroondah Nets (Leisure)
The Rings is a four-court indoor stadium in
Ringwood. The venue offers a range of both
junior and adult competitions and programs,
mainly catering for basketball and netball. The
Rings conducts school holiday activities including
multisport programs and skills coaching.
Maroondah Nets is a new facility which
commenced operations in May 2019. The indoor
facility has multipurpose rooms, gym, café and
caters for four netball courts, six volleyball, pickle
ball and badminton courts plus table tennis. In
addition, there are also four outdoor netball courts.
The facility caters for junior and senior training and
competitions, casual hire and holiday programs.

Did you know?
755 personal training
sessions were offered at
Aquanation and Aquahub
(since 1 February 2021).

Personal trainers at Aquahub and Aquanation work with the community to encourage healthy lifestyles
MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
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A prosperous and learning
community
Our vision
In 2040, Maroondah will be a thriving regional centre of economic activity
and education, where the sustainable growth of local businesses is supported,
and diverse lifelong learning opportunities are accessible for all community
members.

Our commitments
Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21), Council identified seven priority actions to be
delivered during the 2020/21 financial year to work towards a prosperous and learning community.

Undertake a strategic review of shopping centres in
Maroondah

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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A strategic review of Maroondah’s 31 shopping centres is currently
being undertaken to complement the 20-Minute Neighbourhood
Project and provide a basis for prioritising amenity works in the
centres, including replacement of bins, targeted cleaning, weed
management and graffiti removal. The scope for strategic review
was amended to include coronavirus (COVID-19) economic recovery
responses focusing on short-term actions to improve financial
outcomes across each of the 31 shopping centres. Maroondah
received $100,000 through the Neighbourhood Activity Centre
Renewal Fund to support the reopening of the Ringwood East
Shopping precinct. Council is also contributing $100,000 to
encourage people to stay longer in this Precinct through initiatives
including the extension of outdoor dining, providing more open
space, plantings, seating and an art mural.
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Did you know?
Work in partnership to implement
the Bayswater Business Precinct
Strategy to assist local businesses
and promote investment attraction

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Manufacturing accounts
for 33.1% or $5.04 billion of
Maroondah’s economic output.

The Bayswater Business Precinct Strategy is a partnership with Knox
and Yarra Ranges Councils to maintain and strengthen the economic
value of the Bayswater Business Precinct (BBP). The three Councils
are working with key stakeholders, including local businesses, to
attract future investment, maximise business performance and
generate employment growth for the region. Work has continued
growing the usage of the Business to Business (B2B) social platform
‘BBP Connect’ which was launched in 2020. In partnership with the
Victorian Government, the development of a transformation strategy
is underway, which will guide the activities over the short, medium
and long-term. The design for the widening of Canterbury Road, part
of Victoria's principal freight network, is progressing and being led by
the Victorian Government.

Develop and promote the BizHub Coworking Space
The BizHub Coworking Space is located within Realm providing
a flexible working space for local businesses on a permanent or
casual basis. Following the closure of the space due to coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions, an online collaboration platform was
developed to maintain connections with members and the BizHub
team. With the easing of restrictions, the space has reopened with
COVIDSafe capacities and practices in place.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Plan and implement carparking improvements
A review of the Ringwood and Croydon parking strategies has
commenced with internal consultation underway. Both strategies are
expected to be completed in 2021/22 following external community
consultation.

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

59

Annual Report 2020/21

Work in partnership to facilitate appropriate development
within the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre and
Croydon Major Activity Centre

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

The partnership between Council and key stakeholders has focused
on developing an engaging, community focused program to position
and promote the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC) and
the Croydon Major Activity Centre as two of Melbourne’s premier
urban destinations. During 2020/21, several current activity centre
projects have been put on hold to focus on economic recovery
support during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. This has
included the planned upgrade development of an upgrade of
Maroondah Highway boulevard and a Masterplan for the future
development of Staley Gardens. Other works have progressed
including the development of the Croydon Community Wellbeing
Precinct (CCWP) and the Croydon Structure Plan. Stakeholder
engagement has also continued with Queensland Investment
Corporation (QIC), who own and operate Eastland, and Croydon
Main Street Traders Association. Council provided support to
local businesses and these peak organisations during coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions and the following recovery phase.

Plan and deliver the Croydon Library integrated Customer
Service Project
In late 2019, Council shifted its customer service presence from
the former Croydon Civic Offices into the Croydon Library. This
integration of customer service within the library will serve as a
working model in preparation for the new hub within the Croydon
Community Wellbeing Precinct (CCWP) into the future.

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Corporate Services

Implement Better Business Approvals Project
The Better Approvals Project, which is a collaboration between
Council and Small Business Victoria, aims to improve the small
business customer experience. The project went live in September
2020 and provides a streamlined approach to obtaining business
permits from Council. This approach is enabled through improved
customer information on Council's website and the introduction of a
concierge to help navigate the process as well as linking to BizHub
support offerings.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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Our strategic indicator results
Indicator/Measure

Target
2020/21

Actual
2020/21

Actual
2019/20

Actual
2018/19

Actual
2017/18

16.20%

13.84%
***

15.88%

16.26%

16.18%

Participant satisfaction with business support
workshops

90%

96.7% *

100%

97%

97%

Increase in new business skills and networking
achieved through BizWeek activities

90%

90.9%

N/A**

98%

97%

Library membership as a proportion of the
residential population

* Provision of workshops by partners (ASBAS, SBV, ATO and others) delivered online due to coronavirus (COVID-19)
** BizWeek postponed in 2019/20 due to the COVID-19 pandemic
*** The number of active library borrowers within the municipality can be expected to vary over time. Borrowing can
include print and audio-visual materials, which were restricted during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, and digital
materials which were popular during COVID-19 restrictions due to ease of online access. Social distancing requirements
(capped building occupancy), library closures and other movement restrictions had a major impact on reduced borrowing
of physical items.

Main Street, Croydon
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A prosperous and learning
community
Our achievements
In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards a prosperous and learning
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards a prosperous community
Business support for Ringwood East
Neighbourhood Activity Centre

Support for business to expand outdoor dining
opportunities

Council was successful in advocating for Victorian
Government funding of $100,000 through the
Victorian Government’s Neighbourhood Activity
Centre Renewal Fund, to fund infrastructure
improvements to support local business recovery
at Ringwood East Neighbourhood Activity Centre.
This funding supported the creation of parklets,
landscaping, footpath improvements and arts and
cultural installations. Activation of vacant shops
and enhancement of existing business shopfronts
through art installations provided an additional
‘talking point’ that encouraged visitation to the
centres and boosted this local shopping strips. This
funding is a part of the Suburban Revitalisation
Plan which sees the Victorian Government partner
with local governments to deliver streetscape
improvements to support outdoor dining, ‘pop-up’
parks, footpath and bike path upgrades, public art,
greening and other local infrastructure.

Council applied to the Victorian Government
for $500,000 from the Outdoor Eating and
Entertainment grants package to be used in
consultation with our local businesses and trader
associations. Temporary outdoor dining options
were introduced to help hospitality businesses
expand their dining and table services during
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic through
the Street Activities Extension Permit scheme.
During 2020/21, 84 hospitality businesses across
Maroondah have been supported to extend their
service outdoors, expanding their service onto
footpaths, streets, laneways and on-street car
parking spaces. A waiver of permit fees was also
introduced until June 2021 and assessments
undertaken to determine the safest options to
expand trading beyond shopfronts.

Support for women in business
Council held an online event in collaboration with
Knox City Council and Yarra Ranges Council in
December 2020 to support women in business
during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.
Women on the Go: Building a Bold Business
and Brand featured speakers including local
businesswomen to inspire recovery and resilience
in small business in Maroondah. Topics included;
learning how to build a business, bold business
practice, branding, and a speaker coach. Speakers
shared their stories of resilience and triumph on
their way to business success. Participants learnt
how to develop a message that connects with
customers; craft a brand experience that customers
will remember; build business confidence; and
resilience and how to be an agile business in a
changing market.
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BizHub supports businesses during COVID-19
In response to the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic, Council’s BizHub Team mobilised
quickly to establish a triage service for small
to medium enterprises (SMEs). This service
linked businesses to a range of professional
advice including business, legal, financial and
mental health support services. The focus of this
service has evolved to suit the current business
environment as recovery from the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic continues. Local businesses
have been supported with the ‘We’re Still Open’
and ‘Be Kind to Business’ campaigns run for
local shopping centres, support for businesses
via online workshops, mentoring and various
communication channels. Social distancing
decals on footpaths and the distribution of
500 contactless digital thermometers provided
by Victorian Government have assisted
businesses during the recovery phases.

Businesses affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic have been able to access free online
workshops to plan for a stronger future and
take advantage of new opportunities. Extensive
engagement processes with community and
businesses have been undertaken at regular
intervals during the financial year to ensure
services can adapt to new and emerging needs.
Delivery of expert business advice relating to
business operation, legal, health and wellbeing
has continued to be delivered with new small
businesses supported by streamlining relevant
application, permits and approval processes
through Council.
BizWeek
Celebrating its 20th year, BizWeek in 2021
consisted of online events and training sessions
to accelerate business in Maroondah, focusing
on equipping and strengthening businesses to
respond to unpredictability. With last year’s event
cancelled due to the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic, the event was delivered online. The
event provided businesses with opportunities
to be inspired, connect with other businesses,
gain tips from experts, inspirational speakers and
learn through the workshops. Highlights included
seminars and workshops on marketing, social
media, starting a business and an entrepreneur
event featuring Simon Griffiths, CEO and
co-founder of ‘Who Gives a Crap’.
New offerings for small businesses
Council has broadened its support offerings
to Maroondah’s small business community by
strengthening its partnerships with the Victorian
Chamber of Commerce and Industry and the
Australian Small Business Advisory Service Digital
Solutions. These partnerships enabled access to
a broader range of workshops and development
programs for our small to medium enterprises
(SMEs). The coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
saw many of these offerings transferred online to
enable SMEs to continue to gain value from the
webinars and other business support incentives
rolled out by Council during the pandemic.
Partners are moving to offer blended interactions
- in person and online - and adjust in line with
current COVIDSafe guidelines.

Small Business Friendly Charter
Council is rolling out the Small Business Friendly
Council (SBFC) initiative in partnership with
54 local councils to provide small business owners
with the support they need to do business. The
SBFC outlines shared goals for the Victorian Small
Business Commission (VSBC) and participating
local councils in working together to create a
fair and competitive trading environment for
small businesses. When signing the Charter, local
councils are making important commitments
including to: pay small business supplier invoices
within 14 days; support local businesses in
managing the disruption caused by infrastructure
projects; streamline approval processes for people
looking to open a business in the area; and to help
set up and support local business networks.
Working with main street traders
Recognising that Activity Centres are a visible
indicator of social connection and vitality,
Council intensified its working relationships
with traders’ associations and retail centre
businesses as part of its response to the impact
of coronavirus (COVID-19). Support included
establishing outdoor dining facilities, supporting
traders’ associations with grant applications,
the Be Kind Maroondah initiative, and gaining
Victorian Government funding to enable ‘pop-up’
activations at centres including Croydon South
and Ringwood East. The strong relationship
with Eastland continued with support for their
community focused initiatives. Council continued
supporting the reopening of centres, following
COVIDSafe guidelines, to bring people back to
support business and build a sense of community.
Supporting the Maroondah Business Group
Council continues to be an active member and
supporter of the Maroondah Business Group (MBG)
formed in 2019. The MGB actively supports the
local business community by promoting shared
learning, collaboration, engagement and advocacy.
Continue to develop Regional Service
Partnerships such as procurement efficiencies,
services and advocacy
The Eastern Regional Group of Councils has
progressed joint advocacy in support of funding
to key Council and community services, housing
affordability and homelessness. This has included
cost recovery for support to fire affected councils,
and access to JobKeeper for Council staff
impacted by coronavirus (COVID-19).
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Working towards a learning community
Maroondah parenting information sessions
Council has delivered a series of online parenting
information sessions for parents, grandparents
and carers in Maroondah, to support families in
their parenting journeys with children and young
people. Webinars were delivered by a range of
professionals to shed light on topics including:
understanding your teen and helping their
transition to become a young adult; anxious kids;
and understanding communication differences and
anxiety in young children on the autism spectrum.
During these programs, there was a strong
emphasis on understanding anxiety in children and
young people and empowering them to thrive.
Support for local kindergartens during COVID-19
Council offered increased assistance to
kindergartens during the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic, supporting early education providers
as they adapted their services to deliver programs
both on-site and at home. This support ensured
that children and families continued to be engaged.
Developing youth leadership
Through the annual Student Wellbeing Action
Team (SWAT) program in 2021, Council worked
with a select group of Year 10 students from
Maroondah schools who were keen to take their
leadership to the next level. SWAT supports young
people to uncover their strengths and use their
new skills to lead a wellbeing project in their own
school. The 2021 program immersed 21 students
from six secondary schools in Maroondah in topics
such as teamwork, leadership skills and knowledge
of personal and community wellbeing. In 2021
the Junior SWAT Program was introduced, which
provided the same leadership and wellbeing
training for 25 Grade 5 students from 13 local
primary schools who will lead wellbeing projects in
their schools.
Accessible library services during COVID-19
Despite the suspension of Maroondah’s libraries
and the click-and-collect service as a result of
coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions, Eastern
Regional Libraries arranged for the community to
continue accessing books, magazines and DVDs
through a ‘click for home delivery’ postal service. To
keep children at home entertained, Storytime Live
was streamed live to the Eastern Regional Libraries
(ERL) Facebook page each weekday at 11am.
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Community houses offer education programs and
essential services during COVID-19
In response to the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic, Maroondah’s community houses
continued to provide a focal point for community
engagement, making changes to their service
delivery and activities to comply with coronavirus
restrictions. Throughout the year, community houses
continued to offer a range of accredited education
programs and community program via online
mediums, provide childcare services for essential
workers and support emergency relief services.
Central Ringwood Community Centre was
successful in receiving a Victorian Government
Let’s Stay Connected grant to implement three
interconnected programs, including: support
resources modified for culturally and linguistically
diverse (CALD) and First People; a digital
device loan scheme for isolated and vulnerable
community members; and a wellness program
adapted to suit the needs and preferences of
the community. Glen Park Community Centre
established a partnership with Eastland to provide
‘click-and-collect’ meals for community members,
provide an emergency relief donation point and
deliver an employability program to prepare young
people for work in hospitality, cleaning, security,
guest services and maintenance roles.
Continued implementation of the work
experience and student placement program
Council continued to provide its volunteering and
student placement program until placements were
put on hold due to the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic. As restrictions eased, these programs
have been renewed. The program provides
opportunities for volunteers and students to
support the wider community, support and
supplement their studies and provide practical
work experience, as a prerequisite for securing
future career opportunities. Council volunteers
assist with programs such as delivered meals,
maintaining our bushland, reserves and community
gardens, and arts and cultural programs. In
addition to assisting with program delivery
Council’s volunteering opportunities provide a
valuable means of building and strengthening
relationships and building social and community
cohesion, while providing volunteers with a sense
of purpose, meaning and connection.

Maroondah supports young drivers through its
L2P program
The L2P program continued for its sixth year.
The program matches learner drivers with a fully
licensed volunteer mentor to help them gain the
required 120 hours of driving experience to be
eligible for a probationary driver’s licence. The
program is particularly valuable for those learner
drivers who do not have easy access to either a car
or supervisor with a full licence. Volunteer mentor
drivers are provided with comprehensive training
and support. Although driving sessions were not
able to run for a significant period of 2020 due to
coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions, the program
continued to support vulnerable young people
through relevant information and referral pathways
as well as supporting mentors through training
opportunities and online social connections. The
program has attracted an increased number of
volunteer mentors with seven new mentors joining
in the past 12 months. The program recommenced
in 2021 once restrictions were lifted.

Road safety education programs delivered
Road safety education program and events
were restricted in 2020 due to the coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions which involved closures
of early years, schools and community events.
The Be Safe, Stay Safe Program resumed in 2021,
with 355 prep and grade 1 students from four
primary schools learning about pedestrian safety.
Five schools participated in National Ride2School
Day in 2020 and 2021. Heathmont East Primary
School endorse a school travel plan in which was
launched in March 2021. The Active Travel Plan is
a collaboration between the school and Council,
featuring a mix of infrastructure considerations,
such as the new Armstrong Street Shared Pathway,
and educations programs. Heathmont East Primary
School is the first school in Maroondah to install
the innovative ‘tag-on’ system to record student
travel to school.

The L2P program matches learner drivers with a fully licensed volunteer mentor
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A prosperous and learning
community
Looking ahead
In continuing to work towards a prosperous and learning community during
2021/22, Council will:
Complete a strategic review of shopping
centres in Maroondah, and plan and implement
infrastructure and amenity improvements

Work in partnership with the Victorian
Government to plan for and support the rollout of
funded three year old kindergarten in Maroondah

The focus of the Maroondah Shopping Centres
Strategic Review was amended as part of the
coronavirus (COVID-19) economic recovery
planning, to focus on short-term actions to
improve amenity and activate 31 shopping centres
across Maroondah. In 2021/22, a capital works plan
will be developed for centres. Work will continue
identifying and implementing place activations as
part of Councils continued focus on developing
20-minute neighbourhoods building on the
success of the Croydon South and Ringwood East
Neighbourhood Activity Centres projects.

Council is working closely with the Department
of Education and Training (DET) to support the
rollout of funded three-year-old kindergarten
in Maroondah. In 2022, three-year-old-children
will be able to access five hours a week in a free
kindergarten program, this will increase to 15 hours
per week by 2029. Through DET funding, Council
has employed a Kindergarten Initiative Project
Officer to work with services to understand their
needs and ensure that infrastructure will meet
community demand.

Work in partnership to implement the Bayswater
Business Precinct transformation strategy and
investigate and implement opportunities to
enhance business capability, skill development,
employment and education pathways for the
manufacturing sector
The Bayswater Business Precinct Strategy is a
partnership with Knox and Yarra Ranges Councils
to maintain and strengthen the economic value
of the Bayswater Business Precinct. Consultants
have been funded by the Victorian government
to develop a transformation strategy for the
precinct. Once finalised, it will be formally adopted
by the three councils and guide the work in the
precinct. During 2021/22, work will continue the
implementation of BBP Connect (Business-toBusiness platform) as well as a focus on transport
and amenity.
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Facilitate co-working opportunities in Maroondah
In 2021/22 Council will review the needs of
businesses and its co-working offerings. The
BizHub team will continue to strengthen its
partnership with Waterman in the lead up to their
opening their service office operations in Eastland
and the co-working space will continue to operate
in a COVIDSafe manner.

Our core services
Council delivers several services aimed at promoting a prosperous and learning
community. These services include:
Business and Activity Centre development
Business and Activity Centre development
delivers support and programs for the business
community and manages the relationships
between Council, businesses and community. The
team delivers a collaborative co-working space,
programs, information, training, and opportunities
for businesses to connect and support business
growth and employment throughout the region.
The team also stewards development of the
Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre and
the Croydon Major Activity Centre by fostering
partnerships that improve the viability and
prosperity of these important commercial hubs.
These partnerships are enhanced through
co-ordination of activations and programs at
Realm and Ringwood Town Square.

Libraries
(Revenue, Property and Customer Service)
Council provides two library facilities – one at
Realm in Ringwood and one at Civic Square in
Croydon. The library service is delivered under a
regional partnership model by Eastern Regional
Libraries Corporation.

Enjoying a quiet moment at Realm
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A vibrant and culturally
rich community
Our vision
In 2040, Maroondah will be a vibrant and creative community recognised for
celebration of the arts, cultural expression and diverse entertainment options.

Our commitments
Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21), Council identified two priority actions to be
delivered during the 2020/21 financial year to work towards a vibrant and culturally rich community.

Design the Karralyka redevelopment, and undertake staged
works
Design has commenced for the staged Karralyka redevelopment
and work will continue over the next few years subject to funding.
The proposed redevelopment will include a new entrance foyer,
an additional function room, outdoor plaza space and improved
accessibility. Stage One works were completed in 2020/21 including
a major upgrade to heating, cooling, the electrical systems and a
backup generator. Foyer expansion works will also be completed
in 2021/22.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure
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Did you know?
We completed and launched
four public art projects in
2020/21.

Implement the new Arts and Cultural Development Strategy
2020-2025

Status: In progress

The Maroondah Arts and Cultural Development Strategy 2020-2025
was developed through extensive consultation and research, guided
by the Maroondah Arts Advisory Committee. Endorsed by Council
in March 2020, the Strategy represents a significant commitment by
Council to lead, partner and support arts and cultural development
across Maroondah over the next five years. It is built around the
following key strategic themes: a culturally active, engaged and
connected community; vibrant places and spaces; city that is
creative, flourishing and values the arts.

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Our strategic indicator results
Indicator/Measure
Community satisfaction with arts and cultural
facilities
Participation in Maroondah Festival activities

Target
2020/21

Actual
2020/21

Actual
2019/20

Actual
2018/19

Actual
2017/18

78

74

77

82

78

27,000

N/A*

27,000

27,000

30,000

* Events did not go ahead in 2020/21 due to coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions
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A vibrant and culturally rich
community
Our achievements
In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards a vibrant and culturally rich
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards a vibrant and culturally rich community
Indigenous arts and culture celebrated

New public art celebrates indigenous culture

During 2020/21, Council continued to support and
work in close partnership with the local community
as well as with artists, community leaders and
organisations from across Victoria and Australia to
promote a wide range of arts and cultural practice
within Maroondah. Contemporary visual arts
practice and poetry were celebrated with a
three-month program in the Ringwood Arts
Precinct including the ArtSpace at Realm exhibition
Before time: Angkamuthi meets Gunditjmara,
with works by Teho Ropeyarn and Vicki Couzens,
curated by Kelly Koumalatsos. Poems by proud
Wailwan and Mullum Indigenous Gathering Place
Elder Aunty Irene Norman were presented in the
Realm windows and Eastland as part of the annual
RingWORD program. Ringwood-based artist
Simone Thomson (Yorta-Yorta and Wurundjeri)
created the mural I am the land, the land is me for
the Realm ArtWall, exploring her story and her
cultural connection to the local landscape.

Two significant permanent Indigenous public art
commissions were installed in 2020/21 ensuring
lasting legacy, awareness and appreciation of
Indigenous arts and culture in Maroondah. Council’s
first Indigenous public art commission was installed
in the foyer of the new Council Chamber at Realm.
Indigenous artist, Marcus Lee consulted with
Indigenous elder Aunty Janet Turpie-Johnstone for
his work Journey of Discovery. Council has worked
closely with Mullum Mullum Indigenous Gathering
Place (MMIGP) and leading Indigenous artists
Robert Young and Simone Thomson to create a
series of public artworks as part of the Ringwood
East Place Activation Project. The new laneway
park on Railway Avenue in Ringwood East is the
central site for Dancing with Creation, a significant
series of newly installed public art elements which
include a large wall mural, a pavement mural, and
decorated planter boxes located along Railway
Avenue Alongside the park, a temporary ‘pop-up’
exhibition and arts activation site was installed as
part of Reconciliation Week activities, showcasing
work by MMIGP. This public artwork was jointly
funded by Council and the Victorian Government.
All-ages live music event at EV’s Youth Centre
The FReeZA team delivered a range of online
events during 2020/21 including a 1980’s inspired
workout video and an online murder mystery event,
reaching 211 participants. In 2021, the FReeZA
team returned to running live events, successfully
delivering a family and friends event and an
eco-friendly ‘pop-up’ op-shop, craft station and
live music event.
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Ringwood arts precinct attractions
Ringwood Arts Precinct, including Realm, the Town
Square, the Backyard and Maroondah Federation
Estate, has an outstanding collection of outdoor
urban artworks that attract visitors from across
Melbourne. While a range of events, exhibitions
and programs had to be suspended during
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic restrictions,
strong interest and participation continues in this
unique precinct. Program highlights of the 2020/21
program included the sell-out season of ’Romeo
and Juliet’ by Fresh Theatre in the Backyard during
February 2021 and the popular and successful
Ringwood Urban Art Tours presented by Council in
partnership with Eastland.
New public art
The provision of public art around Maroondah is
guided by Council’s Public Art Policy 2015, which
demonstrates Council’s commitment to public art
in Maroondah and responds to the community's
desire for traditional and contemporary art forms
in public settings. Several key locations for future
public art developments were identified within
the Arts and Cultural Development Strategy
2020-2025, including within new multi-level
carparks which are being constructed adjacent
to railway stations in Maroondah. Commissioning
processes have commenced for works to be
installed in 2021-2022. Artwork undertaken by a
local artist, Tricia Van Der-Kuyp was displayed on
the temporary hoarding around the construction
site and a painted mural was established by street
artists Chuck Mayfield and Bryan Kearns who
worked with young people from the Croydon area.
Karralyka events and performances online
Despite the cancellation or postponement of
all onsite events and performances due to the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, Karralyka
continued to offer livestreaming of selected
performances that residents could access free
from home. Toe Tapping Tuesday’s offered
livestreamed performances by well-known
performers and up and coming talent across a
range of genres. The Little Mermaid performed by
the Victorian State Ballet was also livestreamed
from Karralyka. Resumption of the season
recommenced in March 2021.

Support for arts and cultural groups during
COVID-19
Council has developed a wide range of support
and advice for the creative community impacted
by coronavirus (COVID-19) in recognition of the
invaluable contribution that creative industries
make to local employment, community wellbeing
and vitality, tourism and economic development.
This support included subsidies for the hire of
Council’s cultural facilities, and a Creative Recovery
Forum. Council’s ‘Arts in Maroondah’ social
media and other online platforms have provided
information and opportunities for networking for
individuals and groups. Engagement with arts,
community and creative industry stakeholders was
undertaken in 2020 to inform priorities for arts and
cultural recovery.
Children’s Week activities
This year’s National Children’s Week focused
on nature play and exploring outside. Due to
coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions, activities were
adapted to make sure children and families had
the resources to focus on exploring the outdoors
together, while complying with COVIDSafe
guidelines. A Hop to it chalk pack and Nature Play
Pack with clay, magnifier, minibeast ID cards and
activity sheets were used to encouraged families
to explore their neighbourhoods by looking for
minibeasts, teddy bears, Spoonvilles and rainbows.
Events for Children at Artspace
The Land of Nod performances by Thomas and
Wells at Artspace at Realm was held throughout
March 2021, and included adventures filled
with lullabies and stories for preschool children
and their families. Created by performers Neil
Thomas and David Wells, Land of Nod is a playful
investigation into the world of sleep.
Online engagement during coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions
In response to the coronavirus (COVID-19)
restrictions, Council offered creative online classes
for children at Wyreena during 2020/21 including
imaginative storytelling and adventure children
aged 5 to 10 years with Sim Sala Bim. Online
drawing, painting and craft classes were offered
to 5 to 8 years while a targeted program of
creative movement was delivered in partnership
with AusDance for older participants experiencing
isolation. A range of exhibitions were also
delivered online.
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Re-engagement through creative expression
including writing, storytelling, song writing, visual
and performing arts
One of the priorities identified for coronavirus
(COVID-19) social and cultural recovery is for
targeted projects which connect parts of the
community to creatively share stories/experiences.
Notes of Kindness is an intergenerational and
multi-art form cultural recovery project that
involves working with local choirs for community
healing and resilience. Notes of Kindness used
some of the powerful letters of kindness that
were exchanged between people living in nursing
homes and primary school children in Maroondah
during the coronavirus (COVID-19) lockdowns
during 2020. Choirs and other members of the
community have commenced working with local
artists and cultural leaders to develop a series
of installations and performances incorporating
storytelling, music, film and visual installations
that will be presented at Karralyka in July 2021.
In addition, Council has provided advice and
grants to support locally based groups to deliver
a range of recovery projects. One of the 2020/21
recipients of Maroondah’s Arts and Cultural Grant
Program was Yarrunga Community Centre’s ISO
Art. This program allowed participants to express
their experiences of isolation during coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions supporting the community
to share emotions through art, assisting with
mental health self-care and recovery.
Cultural tourism and supporting local creative
industries
Council has provided subsidised use of cultural
facilities for local arts and cultural groups
and creative practitioners including rehearsal,
presentation, and exhibition spaces at Karralyka,
Maroondah Federation Estate, Wyreena
Community Arts Centre, and halls across
Maroondah. Cultural tourism initiatives are being
incorporated into arts activation strategies within
20-minute neighbourhoods and key activity
centres, providing opportunities for our artists and
creative industries to regain sustainability and add
to the cultural vibrancy and social value of these
centres. After many months of limited activity due
to coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions, galleries
returned to their usual programming, with several
new exhibitions featuring local artists. Local artists
have taken centre stage for many of the exhibitions
at Maroondah Federation Estate Gallery and
Wyreena’s Arts Lounge in 2021.

72

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

Christmas in Maroondah
With many events impacted by coronavirus
(COVID-19), including the annual Maroondah
Carols, Maroondah coordinated a number of
smaller events to share the Christmas spirit.
Wyreena Community Arts Centre provided
a magical series of Christmas windows with
vignettes created by local designers. The Elf on
the Shelf campaign encouraged the community
to find one of Santa’s ‘elves’ at shopfronts and
other locations in Maroondah and residents were
encouraged to decorate their houses through
the Light Up Maroondah competition. Spreading
cheer in the community was also achieved through
Christmas banners and decorations on display
throughout local shopping precincts, and nativity
scenes at Ringwood Clocktower Park.
New look Karralyka website
A new look Karralyka website was launched to
coincide with the start of the new theatre season.
The new website is now responsive to all devices
and includes a new online ticketing system.

Did you know?
145 individual Maroondah
artists/arts and cultural groups
were supported to produce and
present their work.

Maroondah Federation Estate Gallery, Ringwood
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A vibrant and culturally rich
community
Looking ahead
In continuing to work towards a vibrant and culturally rich community during
2021/22, Council will:
Deliver the 20 Minute Neighbourhood Place
Activation Projects in the Croydon South local
activity centre and Ringwood East neighbourhood
activity centre

Implement the Arts and Cultural Development
Strategy 2020-2025 and work with the
Maroondah Arts Advisory Committee to maximise
arts and cultural opportunities across Maroondah

A community art project entitled ‘Croydon
South Neighbourhood Snap Shoot’ has been
planned for May-August 2021, encouraging
community members to get involved and be
part of celebrating a collective community
identity. A mural will be made up of black and
white photographs of the community and will
be displayed on the brick wall to the south of
the Eastfield Shopping Centre for approximately
six weeks. The photos will be supported by a
short message from residents highlighting the
community sentiments around place and will
provide an opportunity for community to connect
with one another. Council will continue to monitor
and evaluate the community’s response to the
place activation activities.

Key projects and focus areas for 2021/22 include
significant public art commissions for multi-level
carparks and for Realm and planning for the
integration of arts and cultural facilities within the
Croydon Community Wellbeing Precinct. Further
development of the very successful integration
of arts activations into the regeneration of local
shopping centres and 20-minute neighbourhoods
will take place alongside further innovative
programming and marketing of the Ringwood
arts precinct. Cultural recovery priorities identified
in the Maroondah COVID-19 Recovery Plan will
continue to be a focus for 2021/22.

Design the Karralyka Centre redevelopment, and
undertake staged redevelopment works
Design has commenced for the staged Karralyka
redevelopment and work will continue over the
next few years subject to funding. The proposed
redevelopment will include a new entrance foyer,
an additional function room, outdoor plaza space
and improved accessibility. Council will continue
design of the Karralyka redevelopment and review
staging options.

Jane duRand, Leaf Totems, 2014
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Our core services
Council delivers a number of services aimed at promoting a vibrant and
culturally rich community. These services include:
Arts and Cultural Development
(Community Services)

Karralyka, Maroondah Federation Estate and
Maroondah community halls (Leisure)

Arts and Cultural Development work in partnership
with the community, artists and cultural
producers, and across Council to realise the
community’s vision for a creative and culturally
vibrant Maroondah. The team delivers a range of
facilities, programs and services, which attract
high levels of visitation from Maroondah and the
eastern region. These include ArtSpace at Realm
and other initiatives across the Ringwood arts
precinct; Wyreena Community Arts Centre in
Croydon; Maroondah Federation Estate Gallery
and the Maroondah City Council Art Collection,
as well as the Public Art Collection located in
sites across Maroondah. Local artists, creative
industry professionals, community and cultural
groups are supported through capacity building,
skills development and networking opportunities
in addition to financial support through the Arts
and Cultural Grants program. The team provides
cultural planning advice and expertise across
Council contributing to creative placemaking, the
appreciation of cultural heritage, and embedding
the value of the arts and creativity for wellbeing
and quality of life across social, environmental and
economic domains.

Karralyka opened in 1980 and is a premier theatre
and function centre in Melbourne’s eastern suburbs
and the only facility of this size in Maroondah.
The theatre has a seating capacity of 428 and
generates positive demand as a ‘venue for hire’
as well as presenting its own programs to bring
performing arts to the Maroondah community.
Karralyka is a flexible function venue with a total
capacity for 550 seated guests. The kitchen
facilities at Karralyka are also used to prepare food
for Council’s Delivered Meals service. The team
at Karralyka also oversee the management and
booking of Maroondah Federation Estate and eight
Maroondah community halls.

Roger Archbold, Carnifex, 2021
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A clean, green and
sustainable community
Our vision
In 2040, Maroondah will be a resilient community committed to sustainable
living, enhancing our natural environment, and providing leadership in
responding to climate change.

Our commitments
Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21), Council identified five priority actions to be
delivered during the 2020/21 financial year to work towards a clean, green and sustainable community.

Work in partnership to implement the Reimagining Tarralla
Creek project

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity/Strategy and Community
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Council is working in partnership with Melbourne Water, Yarra
Valley Water and the Department of Environment, Land, Water
and Planning (DELWP) on the project design and construction
delivery of the Tarralla Creek Connects project. The project is one
of five trial sites for Melbourne Water’s ‘Re-imagining Your Creek’
program and looks to enhance the natural environment, create a
place for community to connect to nature and one another, improve
connectivity, and deliver a resilient and maintainable waterway. The
section to be reimagined extends from Dorset Road to Eastfield
Road in Croydon. Council is working with project partners to enhance
the area by adopting contemporary urban design and landscaping
ideas and incorporating suggestions from the community. Works
carried out by Melbourne Water to construct the section between
Norton Road and Vinter Avenue in Croydon commenced in early 2021
and is scheduled to be completed in October 2021.
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Complete the tender and implement contracts for waste
collection, landfill and the receipt and sorting of recyclables

Status: In Progress
Responsibility: Corporate Services

Council has developed a 10-year Waste, Litter and Resource Recovery
Strategy, which will drive the needs of each of Maroondah’s waste
contracts. Key changes over the next decade include introducing a
food and garden organics service; sending waste to an advanced
waste and resource recovery facility instead of landfill; a glass only
recycling service; and standardising bin lids to meet Standards
Australia’s colour, markings and designation requirements for mobile
waste containers. These new services, alongside a comprehensive
action plan of resource recovery, litter, illegal dumping and education
initiatives, will result in significant improvements to how waste and
litter is managed in Maroondah. Tenders and contracts for waste
collection, landfill and the receipt and sorting of recyclables are
planned to be completed in conjunction with the strategy. Work has
commenced in 2021 for an implementation of the new collection and
processing contracts in 2022.

Introduce the Maroondah Environmentally Sustainable
Design Policy into the Maroondah Planning Scheme
The Maroondah Environmentally Sustainable Design (ESD) Local
Policy Planning Scheme Amendment was exhibited in early 2021.
Submissions were considered, and the Amendment was adopted by
Council at the 22 March 2021 Council Meeting. Council has requested
approval of the Amendment from the Minister of Planning.

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Implement an accelerated streetscape enhancement
program, including a significant increase in tree planting
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

The streetscape enhancement program has continued 2020/21 with
significant tree planting.
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Undertake a review and update Council's Sustainability
Strategy and Carbon Neutral Strategy

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Following the completion of the Sustainability Strategy evaluation
process and preparation of an Activities Report for 2016-2020, work
has commenced on the preparation of a new Sustainability Strategy
2021-2030. A series of research papers have been prepared which
will be used to inform the development of an Issues and Options
Paper expected to be released for public comment in July 2021.
Engagement with the Maroondah Environment Advisory Committee
has commenced, with feedback and advice also informing the
development of the paper. A draft Strategy will then be developed
for further consultation before the preparation of the final Strategy
for endorsement towards the end of 2021. Project planning has also
commenced for the review of the Carbon Neutral Strategy, which will
be undertaken in 2021/22.

Our strategic indicator results
Indicator/Measure
Annual understory plantings and grasses
planting within Maroondah
Recycling diversion rate from landfill
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Target
2020/21

Actual
2020/21

Actual
2019/20

Actual
2018/19

Actual
2017/18

15,000

31,650

23,000

17,500

25,000

54%

56.71%

56.83%

54.56%

54.14%

Did you know?
570 different species of
plants, animals and fungi were
recorded in Maroondah during
the City Nature Challenge.
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A clean, green and
sustainable community
Our achievements
In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards a clean, green and sustainable
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards a clean community
Domestic Wastewater Management Strategy
Action Plan developed
An Action Plan for the implementation of the
Domestic Wastewater Management Strategy over
the next year is being developed. Some of the
actions undertaken include providing detailed
information about onsite wastewater system
maintenance on the Maroondah website and
updating mapping overlays with newly sewered
properties on Council’s web-based Geographic
Information System (GIS) mapping data viewer.
A project to provide new residential property
owners with information regarding septic systems
was delayed due to the impending introduction of
the new Environment Protection Act.

Desilting completed
Council has undertaken pond rehabilitation works
in Croydon Hills and Warranwood. Desilting
works has been completed at Settlers Orchard
in Croydon Hills, including a redesign of the
reserve pond. Pond rehabilitation works has been
undertaken in Narr Maen Reserve in Croydon
Hills. Works included draining two of the ponds
and desilting works as part of Council’s ongoing
maintenance schedule. In addition, works have
been undertaken to maintain and desilt the dam
at Yanggai Barring in Warranwood including
draining the dam and further desilting works.

Desilting works were completed at Settlers Orchard in Croydon Hills
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Working towards a green community
City Nature Challenge to connect people
with nature

Work in partnership to undertake renewal works
on the Mullum Mullum shared trail

The City Nature Challenge is an annual global event
coordinated by the California Academy of Sciences
and the Los Angeles County Natural History
Museum, that was first run in 2016. In 2021,
Maroondah teamed up with seven other Councils
in Eastern Melbourne (Boroondara, Greater
Dandenong, Knox, Manningham, Monash,
Stonnington and Whitehorse) along with the Field
Naturalists Club of Victoria and the Entomological
Society of Victoria, to compete against 419 cities
from 44 countries under the collaborative
banner ‘Melbourne - Eastern Metropolitan area’.
During the Challenge’s recently completed
four-day observation period (30 April to 3 May
2021), residents in all eight municipalities were
encouraged to find, photograph and document
(on the iNaturalist online platform) the native
fauna and flora that lives and grows in our
neighbourhoods. As part of the Challenge, Council
organised ten guided walks through different
reserves across the municipality, each led by
someone with local knowledge and expertise of
nature and/or the reserve. Following the success of
the City Nature Challenge, Council will participate
in the 2021 Great Southern BioBlitz in October.

Project planning for Mullum Mullum Creek shared
trail renewal works commenced in 2019/20,
however construction was deferred until 2021/22
due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.
The Mullum Mullum Creek Trail is approximately
5.5 kilometres in length, extending from the
Eastlink Trail at Sherbrook Park in Ringwood
through to Highland Avenue in Croydon.

Nature Play
Nature Play Week in Maroondah was held from
14 to 25 April 2021. Children and their families were
invited to explore, play and imagine outside at
Barngeong Reserve in Croydon. Activities included;
building cubbies, creating with clay and nature,
covering with a game of 'seek and find', going
on a bush walk, bird watching and nature craft.
The Nature Play page was launched on Council’s
website providing children and families information
about enjoying unstructured play activities outside.
A number of parks, walking trails and bushland
reserves are listed on the page encouraging
children to participate in nature to enhance
mindfulness and confidence, increase physical
strength, improve resilience and reduce stress. A
range of nature play activities are suggested and
tips are offered for staying safe outdoors.

Standards for Canopy Tree Provision
Development of the Maroondah Minimum
Standards for Canopy Tree Provision during
2020/21 has marked a key step towards ensuring
urban development contributes to sustaining
Maroondah’s current high levels of canopy cover
into the future. These standards provide clear and
justifiable standards for the provision of canopy
trees as part of landscaping requirements in the
Maroondah Planning Scheme, to ensure that newly
planted canopy trees can achieve their full potential
in terms of growth, health and longevity. These are
expected to be more formally incorporated into the
planning scheme in the future.
Council’s annual planting program
Council commenced its annual street tree planting
program in June with around 2500 new trees being
planted in nature strips across the municipality.
This was part of Council's new capital works tree
improvement program, to sustainably build and
maintain the leafy character of Maroondah. The
new trees were to be a mixture of native and exotic
species with the most appropriate species being
selected for each site based on available space and
existing tree character. Urban trees also provide
many benefits to our community such as filtering
urban pollutants, providing food and protection
for birds and other animals. 6,650 understory
plantings and grasses and 540 trees have been
planted at our parks and reserves, with around
25,000 indigenous plants and trees now at home in
bushland reserves.
Maintaining our bushland
Council in partnership with volunteer groups,
undertook a continuous maintenance program
during 2020/21 that involved control of weed
species, planting of new trees to maintain tree
canopy and other works to both conserve the
bushland reserves and enhance their biodiversity.
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A clean, green and
sustainable community
Our achievements
Working towards a sustainable community
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Environmental Upgrade Agreement

Carbon Neutral Certification

In October 2019, Council endorsed proceeding
with Environmental Upgrade Finance (EUF),
a financing mechanism enabling Maroondah
building owners to better access finance (lower
rates and longer terms) for environmental
upgrades to existing non-residential buildings.
An EUF is a three-party agreement between a
building owner (borrower), a financial institution
(lender) and a Local Government Authority. An
Environmental Upgrade Agreement is used to levy
an Environmental Upgrade Charge on the property
which is payable back to the lender through the
rates system. Council is using this approach to
support industries and enterprises to prosper and
develop by facilitating low carbon businesses,
stimulating a green economy, and facilitating
resource efficient businesses. In 2020/21, one
business accessed the mechanism to install a 99kW
solar photovoltaic system onto the roof of their
business. The installation is expected to result in an
environmental benefit of 129 tonnes CO2 emissions
reduction per annum.

Council committed to becoming carbon neutral
in 2008 and in December 2020 achieved Carbon
Neutral certification by Climate Active for
Council’s operations. Certification recognises
that through our operations, Council is removing
as much carbon from the atmosphere as we are
contributing. Over the recent years, changes have
been made to services and facilities in order to
achieve this commitment including: 5-Star Green
Star certification for the Realm offices; delivering
building energy efficiency upgrades to Aquahub,
Aquanation, Maroondah Federation Estate, Realm
and The Rings under an Energy Performance
Contract program; replacing street lighting with
LEDs; and switching from hardcopy to electronic
payrolls. Council will continue to implement further
projects to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions,
purchase carbon offsets and annually report on our
emissions to support our ongoing certification.
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Sustainability Fair
Central Ringwood Community Centre organised a
sustainability fair on 28 March 2021 at the Bedford
Park Community Garden. Local businesses and
community groups hosted stalls and food vans
featuring sustainably sourced foods. Children
and families participated in an Easter egg hunt,
live music, guest speakers and demonstrations
including the Indigenous Mindfulness practice
Wayapa Wuurrk and West African Drumming.

Looking ahead
In continuing to work towards a clean, green and sustainable community during
2021/22, Council will:
Implement Council’s Environmentally Sustainable
Design Local Planning Policy into the Maroondah
Planning Scheme
The Maroondah Environmentally Sustainable Design
(ESD) Local Policy Planning Scheme Amendment
was adopted by Council at the 22 March 2021
Council Meeting. Council has requested approval of
the Amendment from the Minister of Planning.
Review, update and implement Council’s
Sustainability Strategy, and Climate Change Risk
and Adaptation Strategy
Following the completion of the Sustainability
Activities Report for 2016-2020, project planning will
now commence on preparing a new Sustainability
Strategy that responds to the evaluation of the
past strategy and the advice of the Maroondah
Environment Advisory Committee. A review of the
Carbon Neutral Strategy will be undertaken in 2021.
Review, update and implement Council’s Carbon
Neutral Strategy, including participation in the
power purchasing agreement
Project planning has also commenced for the
review of the Carbon Neutral Strategy, which will
be undertaken in 2021/22.
Work in partnership to implement the
Reimagining Tarralla Creek project
The Reimagining Tarralla Creek Project seeks to
enhance Tarralla Creek and surrounds in Croydon
through an integrated partnership with Melbourne
Water, Yarra Valley Water, and Department of
Environment, Land, Water, and Planning (DELWP).
The project is one of five trial sites for Melbourne
Water’s ‘Re-imagining Your Creek’ program and
looks to enhance the natural environment; create
a place for community to connect to nature and
one another; improve connectivity; create a space
for arts, culture, and education; and deliver a
resilient and maintainable waterway. Detailed
design for the project has been developed in
partnership with Melbourne Water, Yarra Valley
Water, and the Croydon community. The project
will be delivered in four stages with Stage 1
currently under construction and marked for
completion by late 2021. Stages 2 - 4 are currently
unfunded but will be pursued by project partners
through a Federal and State advocacy campaign.

Implement Council's Waste, Litter and Resource
Recovery Strategy
In 2021/22, a number of supporting strategic
documents will be developed to align with the
implement the Strategy. These will include a Litter
and Illegal Dumping Education Strategy and the
Waste Education Strategy which will include
rewards for households who recycle, school
programs, community workshops and competitions,
education materials and other initiatives. Other
implementation initiatives will include design and
planning of the new Food Organics and Garden
Organics service, changeover of the current maroon
garden organics bin lids to the Australian Standard
of lime green, and new recycling stations rolled out
to Council’s Realm and Croydon Library buildings.
Council’s Compost Revolution Program will continue
to offer rebates and free delivery on a range of
home composting, worm farming and fermentation
systems and community drop off recycling
events will be expanded to trial the inclusion of
polystyrene, textiles and cardboard. Council will host
a household chemical collection event in partnership
with Sustainability Victoria.
Prepare and implement a Maroondah Habitat
Connectivity Action Plan
Following adoption of the Maroondah Vegetation
Strategy 2020-2030 by Council in March 2020, a
number of actions have commenced to implement
the strategy. A critical action already underway
includes the identification of the best locations
for improving habitat connectivity across the
municipality to enable more nature throughout
Maroondah. The project has been guided by an
Advisory Group made up of internal and external
representatives with local knowledge and expertise.
A spatial modelling program is being used to model
existing connectivity based on parameters for key
focal species, identifying locations which offer the
greatest opportunity for improving connectivity.
Detailed action plans will be prepared to enable
progressive implementation over the coming years.
Implement an enhanced streetscape
enhancement program, including a significant
increase in tree planting
The streetscape enhancement program will
continue in 2020/21 with significant tree planting.
Council is also investigating the potential to
undertake planned fuel reduction burns in selected
bushland reserves in partnership with the Country
Fire Authority (CFA).
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A clean, green and
sustainable community
Our core services
Council delivers a range of services aimed at promoting a clean, green and
sustainable community. These services include:
Bushland and Waterways (Operations)

Tree Maintenance (Operations)

The Bushland team maintains 44 bushland
reserves, which involves proactively supporting,
conserving and enhancing biodiversity and
maintaining appropriate fire breaks. The team
also maintains water sensitive urban design
elements and waterways that are under Council
management.

Tree Maintenance maintains Council’s tree assets
including all street trees and trees within parks
and reserves. They undertake proactive tree
inspections; remedial tree work and reactive
inspections in response to customer requests
or storm events; and Council’s street tree
planting program.

Park Maintenance (Operations)

Waste Management (Finance and Governance)

Park Maintenance maintains Council managed
parks and gardens including proactive and
reactive maintenance of landscaped areas, grass
mowing, and programmed tree planting in parks
and reserves. The team also maintains Council’s
playgrounds in accordance with Australian
Standards and Best Practice, Council’s reserve
fence line half cost fencing program, and Marveloo
hire bookings.

The Waste Management team provides residential
and commercial waste services to the Maroondah
community, including public recycling bins, street
litter bins, parks and reserves bins, and Council
facility bins. The team manages the contracts for
kerbside collection, receipt and sorting, green
organics, and land fill collection. Services also
include on-call hard waste collection, a schools and
community waste education program and strategic
planning to meet future waste management needs.

Council's Bushland team maintains 44 bushland reserves

84

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

Did you know?
Just over 27,498 tonnes of
garden organics and recyclables
were collected in 2020/21.
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An accessible and
connected community
Our vision
In 2040, Maroondah will be accessible for all ages and abilities with walkable
neighbourhoods, sustainable transport options, and a safe integrated transport
network.

Our commitments
Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21), Council identified eleven priority actions to be
delivered during the 2020/21 financial year to work towards an accessible and connected community.

Complete the Lincoln Road upgrade, east of Dorset Road
in Croydon
Council received funding from Federal Roads to Recovery for the
rehabilitation of Lincoln Road between Dorset Road and Hull Road in
Croydon. The second stage of the Lincoln Road upgrade works from
Dornoch Court to Dorset Road was completed in October 2020.
The works included reconstruction and widening of the road, kerb
and channel, drainage upgrades, bicycle lanes, installation of street
lighting, pedestrian operated signals at Mount View Parade and
improvements to the service roads.
Status: Complete
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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Did you know?
$2.5million worth of drainage
projects were delivered
in 2020-21.

Undertake the renewal of New Street in
Ringwood, including flood mitigation works,
between Maroondah Highway and Sylvia Grove
The construction contract for the road and drainage upgrade at New
Street in Ringwood was awarded in August 2020 with construction
commencing in October 2020. Works completed in 2020/21 include
the pipe drainage upgrade component along with required service
relocation works and commencement of road reconstruction
activities including pavement renewal, kerb and channel renewal,
and footpath works. The remainder of the works are expected to be
completed in 2021/22.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Advocate for public transport improvements in the
Bayswater Business Precinct

Status: In progress

A survey has been conducted to inform the development of the
Bayswater Business Precinct (BBP) Transformation Strategy. One
of the key elements of this strategy will be transportation, including
public transport. The BBP has thousands of people utilising their
own vehicles to get to and from work. A 2019 survey of businesses
and employees identified that one of the reasons for not using
public transport was the current routes and frequencies of service.
Advocacy has continued to focus on changes to public transport
to the BBP.

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Design and construct Activity Centre carparks in Croydon,
Ringwood, Heathmont; and Heatherdale station

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

The Australian Government has provided funding of $81.6 million for
new Activity Centre carparks in Croydon, Ringwood, Heathmont and
at Heatherdale Station. The carpark in Devon Street in Croydon is
progressing during the construction phase with completion expected
in November 2021, including the removal of the existing carpark
layout, to be replaced with an Activity Centre carpark that will
include improved disability parking and access. Other design features
include improvements to Pierson Drive, safer and more legible
pedestrian paths, additional landscaping and trees, safer traffic
movements and screened bin storage at the rear of the Croydon
Main Street shops. There has also been progress on the Ringwood,
Heathmont and Heatherdale carparks, with locations now identified
for both Ringwood and Heathmont and community consultation now
in progress, and a feasibility study has been undertaken for a suitable
location for a new Activity Centre carpark in Heatherdale.
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Undertake improvement works at the carpark at McAlpin
Reserve Ringwood North
Modifications will be carried out to the McAlpin Reserve carpark
to improve the functionality, provide further accessible carparking,
expand the existing gravel carpark, resurface the access road and
create a new sealed pathway from Wonga Road to the reserve’s
internal pathways. The works commenced in April 2021 and was
completed in June 2021.

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Advocate to the Commonwealth and Victorian Government
for provision of new and upgraded major transportation
infrastructure in Maroondah; including freeway connections,
upgrade to arterial roads and intersections and major public
transport enhancements

Status: In progress

Council has continued its advocacy campaign to State and Federal
Members and Ministers for a range of key priority transportation
projects. Council’s comprehensive advocacy strategy resulted
in approximately $26.3 million in budget commitments for the
Maroondah community across both Victorian and Australian levels
of government. This included: an additional $17.7 million towards the
Croydon and Ringwood Activity Centre carparks and $8.6 million
towards intersection and pedestrian improvements at Canterbury
Road and Heathmont Road, Heathmont.

Responsibility: Communications and
Engagement

Deliver an expanded footpath construction program

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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Council has continued the implementation of its footpath
construction program to provide improved pedestrian safety.
Council’s footpath construction program for 2020/21 is now
complete with 3.95 kilometres of footpath constructed at a total
value of $880,000. Completed works include: New Street (100 New
Street to Sylvia Grove); Balmoral Road (Lockhart Road to Melview
Drive); Strathallyn Road (Warrandyte Road to Mullum Mullum
Road); Laurence Grove (Knaith Road to Railway Avenue); Towerhill
Drive (Wonga Road to Frederic Drive); Tunbury Avenue (Towerhill
Drive to Major Street); Major Street (Wonga Road to Tunbury
Avenue); Holyrood Crescent (Stonington Place to Towerhill Drive);
Patterson Street (Eastfield Road to Fairview Avenue); Eastfield Road
(Bayswater Road to Railway Avenue); Seares Drive (Maroondah
Highway to Old Lilydale Road); Ian Avenue (Holland Road to Seares
Drive); Ireland Street (City Road to Reilly Street); and Bellbird Court
(Wantirna Road to Clarke Drive).
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Undertake carpark improvement works at Hughes Park,
Croydon North; Merrindale Shopping Centre, Croydon South;
and Ainslie Park, Croydon
Planned carpark improvement works at Merrindale Shopping Centre
in Croydon South and Ainslie Park in Croydon were deferred due to
the impacts of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. Works are now
expected to commence in 2020/21.

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Implement the Maroondah Carparking Framework action plan

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

The Maroondah Carparking Framework provides a greater
consistency to Council’s approach to planning parking, resolving
issues, applying restrictions and the issuing of parking permits
throughout the municipality. In 2020/21, Council has continued
to implement the Framework including: parking guidelines for
specific land use areas; enhancing traffic safety; increasing the use
of sustainable transport modes; developing a Maroondah car share
policy; adopting a best practice approach to dealing with parking
complaints and safety concerns; reviewing the Ringwood and
Croydon Activity Centre Parking Strategies; reviewing the parking
management strategy around Maroondah Hospital; and addressing
overflow parking issues across the municipality.

Undertake road renewal works for Caroline Street in Ringwood,
Emerald Street in Ringwood; and Norton Road in Croydon
Planned road renewal works for Emerald Street in Ringwood and
Norton Road in Croydon were deferred due to the impacts of the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

Status: Deferred
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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Work in partnership to implement intersection improvement
works at the corner of Reilly Street and Wantirna Road in
Ringwood; and Plymouth Road and Kirtain Drive in Croydon
Council has continued to work in partnership with Department of
Transport/VicRoads on the development of design and community
consultation for improvement works at the corner of Reilly Street
and Wantirna Road, Ringwood; and Plymouth Road and Kirtain
Drive, Croydon. The construction of traffic signals by VicRoads at
the intersection of Reilly Street and Wantirna Road is expected to
commence in 2021/22.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Our strategic indicator results
Indicator/Measure
Proportion of sealed roads below the set
intervention level
Square metres of sealed local roads
reconstructed
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Target
2020/21

Actual
2020/21

Actual
2019/20

Actual
2018/19

Actual
2017/18

3%

2%

2%

2.69%

2.75%

3500

2548

17,352

3499

14,501

Did you know?
10 projects delivered as part
of the Disability Discrimination
Act (DDA) Access Improvement
Program.
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An accessible and
connected community
Our achievements
In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards an accessible and connected
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards an accessible and connected community
Safe and accessible outdoor dining infrastructure
In order to support hospitability businesses and
provide COVIDSafe opportunities for people to
meet, Council has worked with a number of centres
and traders’ associations to provide safe outdoor
dining facilities, which has been supported by
funding from the Victorian Government. Council
adjusted permit processes and fees to help bring
activity and people back to centres.

Safe outdoor dining areas were provided during the
COVID-19 pandemic
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Infrastructure renewal and accessibility
improvement works
The Australian Government has committed
funding through the Local Roads and Community
Infrastructure Program for infrastructure renewal
works in Laurence Grove in Ringwood East to
address the deteriorated condition of the existing
kerb, channel and road pavement. Key elements
of the renewal works include: reconstruction of
the existing concrete kerb and channel on both
sides of the road; reconstruction of all vehicle
crossovers; installation of additional drainage
infrastructure; and application of new asphalt
surface. Accessibility improvement works include:
construction of a new footpath on the east
side of the road, linking Knaith Road to Railway
Avenue; construction of three indented disabled
parking spaces adjacent to Knaith Road Reserve;
construction of an accessible ramp to the Senior
Citizens Centre in Knaith Road Reserve; and the
conversion of the existing pedestrian crossing
at the intersection of Laurence Grove and
Railway Avenue into a raised pedestrian crossing.
Works commenced in October 2020 and were
completed in February 2021. In October 2020,
an additional $1 billion in Australian Government
funding was announced through the Local Roads
and Community Infrastructure Program. Council
is seeking an allocation for improvement works
including streetlights, footpaths, bike paths and
walking tracks.

Local area traffic management improvements
In conjunction with the Safe Travel in Local Streets
program funded by the Transport Accident
Commission (TAC), Council allocated funds in its
Capital Works Program to install traffic calming
measures. Traffic calming measures were installed
in Allendale Road in Croydon including; three
raised pavements and street lighting upgrades
spaced along the length of Allendale Road; and
the removal of the two existing slow points at
Yallambee Way and Lindisfarne Avenue (to be
replaced with raised pavements). Works have also
been undertaken to reinstate the roadway outside
8-10 Bond Street in Ringwood, and to upgrade the
existing pedestrian crossing. Works involved the
reconstruction of the kerb, footpath, pedestrian
crossing, central traffic island and the removal of
the kerb outstand. The pedestrian crossing was
reconstructed as a wombat crossing (and a set of
speed cushions will also be installed outside
20-22 Bond Street. Traffic calming measures have
also been installed in Morinda Street in Ringwood
East (four raised pavements) and Loma Street
(three raised pavements), Parkgate Drive in
Ringwood (one raised pavement) and also in Reilly
Street Ringwood (two raised pavements). Traffic
calming measures have also been completed in
Mount View Parade and Newman Road in Croydon
including the installation of six raised pavements
along Mount View Parade and two along Newman
Parade. Intersection upgrade works have also
been undertaken to improve intersection safety at
Mount View Parade and Newman Road to change
intersection priority that will provide consistency
along Mount View Parade whilst also improving the
available sight distance at the intersection. Traffic
calming measures have also been completed
in Patrick Avenue, Palmer Avenue and Warrien
Road in Croydon. Works included the installation
of four speed cushions along Patrick Avenue,
one in Palmer Avenue and four along Warrien
Road. Intersection upgrade works have also been
undertaken at Patrick Avenue and Palmer Avenue
to improve intersection operation and safety.

Successful advocacy for carparking improvements
in Ringwood and Croydon
Council successfully advocated for new carparks
for the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre
(MAC) and the Croydon Major Activity Centre,
with the Australian Government committing
$30 million of funding in February 2019 for these
carparks. Council was successful in advocating for
an additional $3.0 million for Croydon in July 2020
and $14.7 million for Ringwood in May 2021. Based
on the initial concept design, the new Devon Street
carpark in Croydon Activity Centre is targeting
402 car spaces subject to funding. Council is
currently reviewing options in the Ringwood
Metropolitan Activity Centre with approximately
400 new spaces being targeted subject to funding.
Community consultation and a concept design will
be commenced in 2021/22 for the site located at
1A Bedford Road.
Asphalt resurfacing
As part of Council’s annual road rehabilitation
program, Tereddan Drive in Kilsyth South and
Laurence Grove, Ringwood East were identified
for asphalt road resurfacing works. This type of
road resurfacing will enhance the longevity of
the road pavement and provide a smoother
trafficable surface.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

93

Annual Report 2020/21

An accessible and
connected community
Looking ahead
In continuing to work towards an accessible and connected community during
2021/22, Council will:
Work in partnership with the Victorian
Government to implement road improvement
works at New Street Ringwood, Reilly Street and
Wantirna Road Ringwood, Plymouth Road and
Kirtain Drive Croydon; and undertake carpark
improvement works at Dorset Recreation
Reserve
In 2021/22, Council will continue to work with
Department of Transport/VicRoads on the
delivery of road improvement works at Reilly
Street and Wantirna Road in Ringwood, Plymouth
Road and Kirtain Drive in Croydon; and undertake
carpark improvement works at Dorset Recreation
Reserve. Council is currently working with
VicRoads in finalising the project scope and
design concepts before they complete the final
design for tender of the works. The construction
of improvement works by VicRoads at the
intersection of Reilly Street and Wantirna Road
is expected to commence in the 2021/22 year.
Carpark improvement works will be undertaken
at Dorset Recreation Reserve in conjunction with
construction of a new multipurpose community
sports and two new soccer pitches, with works
due to commence in early 2022.

Design and construct Activity centre carparks
in Croydon, Ringwood and Heathmont; and
Heatherdale station
The Croydon Activity Centre Carpark is scheduled
for construction completion in November 2021.
The Activity Centre Carparks at Ringwood
and Heathmont will progress the community
consultation and design phases.
Work in partnership to undertake renewal works
on the Mullum Mullum Creek and Colchester
Road shared trails; and continue footpath
construction in the Principle Pedestrian Network
In 2021/22, renewal works on the Mullum Mullum
Creek shared trail is scheduled for construction.
The Colchester Road shared trail from Collier
Road to Dandenong Creek is scheduled for
reconstruction in 2024/25.
Advocate to the Australian and Victorian
Government for provision of new and upgraded
major transportation infrastructure in Maroondah
including public transport enhancements
Council will continue its robust advocacy to
address the major transport needs of the
Maroondah community.

Our core services
Council delivers a number of services aimed at promoting an accessible and
connected community. These services include:
Built Environment (Operations)
The Built Environment team provides proactive
and reactive maintenance of Council’s
infrastructure assets including roads, footpaths
and drains. The team provides proactive cleaning
of all drainage pits within road reserves and
programmed street sweeping. The team also
provides all logistical and fleet maintenance
services for Council.
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Engineering Services
(Engineering and Building Services)
Engineering Services provides engineering
technical expertise in areas of traffic and
transportation planning, drainage investigation
and strategy, engineering development approvals,
and project management. Council manages assets
such as roads, footpaths, drainage, and bicycle
paths which provide important links to services
and enhance community wellbeing.

Did you know?
3.95 kilometres of footpaths
were constructed in 2020/21.
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An attractive, thriving and
well built community
Our vision
In 2040, Maroondah will be an attractive, sustainable and well built community
with thriving activity centres and a network of neighbourhoods where everyone
has the opportunity to live, work and play locally.

Our commitments
Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21), Council identified ten priority actions to be
delivered during the 2020/21 financial year to work towards an attractive thriving and well-built
community.

Continue the upgrade of drainage, including flood mitigation
works in Acacia Court catchment in Ringwood; Power Street
catchment in Croydon North; and Scenic Avenue catchment
in Ringwood East
A range of drainage works were deferred until 2021/22 due to the
impacts of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. These include the
planned upgrade of drainage, including flood mitigation works in
Acacia Court catchment in Ringwood; Power Street catchment in
Croydon North; and Scenic Avenue catchment in Ringwood East.

Status: Deferred
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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Did you know?
There are more than 790 lineal
kilometres of stormwater drains.

Implement the Greening the Greyfields project in partnership
with stakeholders to facilitate a sustainable approach to
urban redevelopment in identified residential precincts

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Greening of the Greyfields is an innovative approach to residential
renewal involving landowners working together and redeveloping
at the same time, to positively transform neighbourhoods to be
more sustainable and with greater neighbourhood character appeal.
Council exhibited a Planning Scheme Amendment in early 2021
for the two Greening the Greyfields precincts in Maroondah in
Ringwood North and Croydon South. Community submissions to
the Amendment were discussed by Council in March 2021 and it
was resolved that Planning Panels Victoria be requested to appoint
a Panel for the consideration of submissions. The Panel is expected
to take place in mid-July 2021 with recommendations to then be
considered by Council.

Develop a new Croydon Structure Plan and commence
preparation of a planning scheme amendment to incorporate
the policy into the Maroondah Planning Scheme

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

The Croydon Structure Plan was first adopted by Council in 2006
and has successfully influenced the function and form of this Major
Activity Centre. During 2020/21, Council undertook background
research into the current and emerging issues facing Croydon
to more accurately plan for the future growth of the Croydon
community. This work considered demographic, employment and
business, and the supply and demand of both land and housing.
This work has been summarised into a Discussion Paper on Issues
and Opportunities that was made available for public comments
from 9 April to 14 May 2021. Feedback from the consultation will
help inform the draft Croydon Structure Plan to be developed in
mid-2021.
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Undertake the staged redevelopment of the Croydon
Community Wellbeing Precinct

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

The transformation of the existing Croydon Civic Precinct into
the Croydon Community Wellbeing Precinct (CCWP) will focus
on delivering enhanced community spaces and functionality in
relation to wellbeing facilities, family and children facilities, sport
and recreation facilities, and open space. The creation of a number
of integrated community hubs will also enhance the accessibility
and connectivity for the community. The CCWP Masterplan was
endorsed by Council in July 2020 and works commenced in early
2021. The first of the community groups (Kinder and Occasional
Care) have moved into Community Hub B (former Croydon Civic
Building) and the remainder of the community groups based in the
Precinct will be moved in during 2021.

Develop and implement the Flood Mapping
Communications Plan
A Flood Mapping Communications Plan has been finalised and
actions within the Plan will be implemented in 2020/21 and beyond.
The Council Plan 2021-2025 highlights flood mitigation projects
to be undertaken in New Street, Ringwood, Sherbrook Avenue
catchment in Ringwood, Scenic Avenue and Wingate Avenue
catchments in Ringwood East.

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Develop and commence implementation of priority open
space and public realm enhancement plans

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure
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Public realm enhancement plans are intended to ensure our
community spaces meet evolving community needs. The Jubilee
Park Enhancement Plan and the Croydon Community Wellbeing
Precinct (CCWP) Masterplan were endorsed by Council on 27 July
2020. Work will commence on enhancements for sporting facilities
and accessibility at Jubilee Park, while detailed design work has
commenced for the Croydon Community Wellbeing Precinct.
Council has been consulting with key user groups and the broader
community regarding the proposed elements being considered for
Eastfield Park. These include protecting and enhancing the natural
environment and improvements to Benson’s Pavilion, including
female-friendly change facilities. Council has also created an
Improvement Plan for Ainslie Park Reserve in Croydon, including the
interactions with Melba College. Feedback received has highlighted
a number of opportunities including improvements to existing
lighting, resurfacing of existing gravel car park, improvements to
running/walking paths, and new exercise equipment.
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Implement the new Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre
Masterplan into the Maroondah Planning Scheme

Status: In progress

The Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC) Masterplan
was adopted by Council in late 2018 to position Ringwood as
the principal retail, commercial, community, entertainment
and employment focal point for the region. The directions and
objectives of the Masterplan will be incorporated into a planning
scheme amendment during 2021/22. Part of this Masterplan
involves the implementation of a Developer Contributions Plan to
help fund the future infrastructure needed to support the increased
number of residents, workers and visitors to the centre.

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Work in partnership to develop flood mitigation solutions for
the central Croydon area
Development of flood mitigation solutions for the central Croydon
area is continuing. A flood mitigation works prioritisation framework
and 2020/21 works program is under development. Future reporting
on the flood mitigation actions for the Croydon area catchment is
anticipated to include specific project actions within the Council
Plan 2021-2025.

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Deliver Council's drainage improvement program and
drainage flood mitigation program

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

The delivery of Council’s drainage improvement program and
drainage flood mitigation program for 2020/21 is complete.
Programmed works completed at a total value of $2.50 million
included: Warrandyte Road (Ringwood) drainage diversion works;
Campbell Street (Heathmont) drainage relining project; Wingate
Avenue (Ringwood East) stage 1 construction of earthen flood
levee project; Parry Street (Croydon) easement drain upgrade; Todd
Court (Croydon) drainage upgrade; Derwent Street (Ringwood
North) flood mitigation drainage upgrade and retarding basin; New
Street (Ringwood) renewal and flood mitigation works and drainage
and sewer works; Sherbrook East Drainage Catchment pollutant
traps and drainage works (Ringwood). The design of the next
stage of the Scenic Avenue (Ringwood East) was completed in the
2020/21 financial year with construction scheduled for the 2022/23
financial year.
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Implement the results of the Neighbourhood Character and
Vegetation Reviews

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Following adoption of the Maroondah Vegetation Strategy
2020-2030 by Council in March 2020, implementation of the
strategy has commenced. A critical action involves the identification
of the best locations for improving habitat connectivity across the
municipality to enable more nature throughout Maroondah. An
advisory group comprising internal and external representatives
with local knowledge and expertise has been guided the project.
A sophisticated spatial modelling program is being used to map
existing connectivity based on parameters for key species of
interest, and then to identify locations that offer the greatest
opportunity for improving connectivity. It is expected that once
the highest priority locations and management actions have been
determined, detailed action plans will be prepared to enable
progressive implementation over the coming years.

Our strategic indicator results
Indicator / Measure

Target
2020/21

Actual
2020/21

Actual
2019/20

Actual
2018/19

Actual
2017/18

Council’s infrastructure renewal/
maintenance ratio

114%

104%

83%

97%

94%

Proportion of planning applications
assessed within statutory timeframes

82%

83%

86%

81%

82%

56

59

57

58

54

Community satisfaction with general town
planning policy

100
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Did you know?
There are over 510 Council
buildings and structures
in Maroondah.

Heathmont Sporting Pavilion, HE Parker Reserve, Heathmont
MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

101

Annual Report 2020/21

An attractive, thriving and
well built community
Our achievements
In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
range of other activities in working towards an attractive, thriving and well built
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below:

Working towards an attractive, thriving and well built
community
Graffiti blitz

Playspace renewal

Graffiti in Ringwood and Croydon town centres
was targeted in a three-month blitz initiated by
Council. The Proactive Graffiti Patrol team was
out and about patrolling and responding to graffiti
in known hotspots quickly, with the objective of
reducing graffiti. This was in addition to responding
to graffiti requests from the public or reported by
another agency such as VicRoads, Victoria Police
or a neighbouring Council.

During 2020/21, a number of playground
improvement works were undertaken at a
number of parks and reserves across Maroondah.
Improvement works were undertaken at the
Nangathan Way Reserve in Croydon North
including: a large climbing structure with senior
and junior slides; track slide; interactive elements;
two-bay community swing; basket swing; balance
and scramble area made from sculptural elements
and rocks. A new picnic and shelter area with
seating, basketball and netball multi-sports
area were installed and landscaping works were
completed. Playground improvement works at
Cobain Reserve and Waterloo Reserve to update
the playspace equipment. The improvement works
replaced the existing playground equipment with:
a custom designed combination climbing structure
with: safety slide; track slide; monkey bar; scramble
net; interactive elements; a two-bay community
swing (toddler and sling swing); motion rocker;
comet spinner. The designs allowed for interactive
and imaginative play for all ages and abilities to
utilise the space.

Enhancements to McAlpin and Yarrunga Reserves
Council was successful in advocating for $600,000
in Victorian Government funding for enhancements
at McAlpin and Yarrunga reserves. At McAlpin
Reserve in Ringwood North, the existing playspace
will be upgraded to include all-inclusive equipment
to benefit all ages and abilities. The project will
see the creation of a new playspace closer to
amenities, upgraded furniture, shelters, pathways,
and landscaping. Further accessible carparking,
and a new sealed pathway from Wonga Road
to the reserve's internal pathways are also part
of planned enhancements. Funding secured for
Yarrunga Reserve in Croydon Hills will provide
a safer space for pre-teens and young adults,
improve a pedestrian bridge and enhance BMX
jumps. Over recent times, Yarrunga Reserve
has seen the construction of unauthorised bike
jumps in bush and vegetation areas. Council will
be working with the community and users of the
jumps to ensure they have a say on the final design.
Council will also contribute significant funding to
the two projects.
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Flood mitigation works

20-Minute Neighbourhood Pilot Project

In response to ongoing stormwater flooding
concerns in Derwent and Mersey Streets in
Ringwood North and Wingate Avenue in
Ringwood East, Council allocated funds in its
2020/21 Capital Works Program to undertake
drainage improvements. The works in will assist
with improved stormwater capture within the
roadway whilst also diverting excess overland
flows to a newly constructed basin to provide
further capacity within the stormwater network.
Works commenced in November 2020 and
were completed in December 2020. The works
in Wingate Avenue in Ringwood East involved
the construction of a flood levee to prevent the
overtopping of stormwater flows from the adjacent
waterway. Additionally, to address concerns of
stormwater flooding for residential properties
in New Street Ringwood, Council has allocated
funds in its 2020/21 and 2021/22 Capital Works
Program to undertake drainage improvement
works in conjunction with major road renewal and
footpath construction works. The works involve
the installation of new drainage infrastructure
under New Street from 98 New Street to Molan
Street, including additional grated drainage pits
and also raising the footpath on the western side
of the road to increase the overland flow capacity.
Works commenced in October 2020 and are due
to be completed in late 2021. As part of Council’s
annual stormwater drainage infrastructure renewal
program, the drainage infrastructure within the
rear easement of 180-193 Lincoln Road and
3-8 Todd Court in Croydon, 31 Grey Street in
Ringwood East, and 2-12 Parry Street in Croydon
have also been upgraded.

In 2018, Maroondah City Council was selected by
the Victorian Government to implement one of
three pilots for the 20-Minute Neighbourhood Pilot
Project (Stage 1). At the core of the 20-Minute
Neighbourhood Project is the idea of ‘living locally’
and giving people the ability to meet most of
their everyday needs within a 20-minute walk
from home, with access to safe and convenient
cycling and local transport options. Council has
focused on delivering Victorian Government policy
objectives as outlined in Plan Melbourne, whilst
also developing its own understanding of what
a 20-Minute Neighbourhood means for Council
and communities across Maroondah. Consultation
with community has been undertaken to better
understanding of local needs, values, knowledge,
and place-based activities in Croydon South.
Following the success of Stage 1 and in response
to the impacts of coronavirus (COVID-19), Council
was awarded two Victorian Government grants of
$120,000 and $100,000 to deliver place activation
projects at Croydon South and Ringwood East.

Tarralla Creek Stormwater Harvesting Scheme
In partnership with Department of Environment,
Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) and Yarra
Valley Water, Council has committed funding to
deliver the Tarralla Creek Stormwater Harvesting
Scheme. The harvesting scheme will provide
irrigation for four sportsfields within the Croydon
precinct and include the construction of a Gross
Pollutant Trap, a 900kL underground storage
tank within the Town Park Athletics field, a
500kL header tank at Croydon Park Oval and
associated treatment and pumping infrastructure.
Construction works are scheduled to commence in
early 2022.

These projects aim to trial a new approach for
Council in encouraging community connection to
place, as well as supporting social and economic
recovery from coronavirus (COVID-19) through
the delivery of temporary place activations,
infrastructure, and community events in our local
activity centres.
Activations at Croydon South and Ringwood East
Activations at the Eastfield Shopping Centre in
Croydon South provide a temporary ‘pop-up’
space to improve the vibrancy of the local
activity centre by and delivering place-based,
community-focused activities including local
events and public art projects. Project activities
encourage increased partnership with Council and
community stakeholders, enhanced social cohesion
throughout the community, and local business
recovery and support. These events and activities
have sought to respond to the liveability gaps
identified by the local community during Stage 1 of
the 20-Minute Neighbourhoods Pilot Program and
have encouraged a renewed sense of community
connection to place.
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An attractive, thriving and
well built community
Looking ahead
In continuing to work towards an attractive, thriving and well built community
during 2021/22, Council will:
Develop a new Croydon Structure Plan and
prepare a planning scheme amendment to
incorporate the policy into the Maroondah
Planning Scheme
Council undertook background research into the
issues facing Croydon, including demographic,
employment and business, land and housing
supply and demand, to more accurately plan for
the future growth of the Croydon community.
Feedback from the consultation on the discussion
paper will inform the draft Croydon Structure Plan.
It is anticipated that after the final Structure Plan
for Croydon Major Activity Centre is adopted by
Council, a request to the Minister for a planning
scheme amendment will be prepared.
Work in partnership to implement the Greening
the Greyfields project to facilitate a sustainable
approach to urban redevelopment in identified
residential precincts
This ground-breaking approach to residential
renewal involves landowners working together
and redeveloping at the same time, to positively
transform neighbourhoods to be more sustainable
and with greater neighbourhood character
appeal. Council exhibited the Planning Scheme
Amendment in early 2021 for the two Greening
the Greyfields precincts. At the Council Meeting
on 22 March 2021, Council resolved to request
the Planning Panels Victoria to appoint a Panel
for the consideration of submissions. The Panel
is expected to take place in mid-July 2021 with
recommendations to be provided for Council
consideration. Following the Planning Scheme
Amendment, it is anticipated that further additional
precincts will be identified, and a similar approach
applied to transform neighbourhoods in the
municipality.
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Undertake the staged redevelopment of the
Croydon Community Wellbeing Precinct
The transformation of the existing Croydon Civic
Precinct into the Croydon Community Wellbeing
Precinct (CCWP) will focus on delivering enhanced
community spaces and functionality in relation to
wellbeing facilities, family and children facilities,
sport and recreation facilities, and open space.
These combined elements, proposed to become
integrated community hubs, will also enhance the
accessibility and connectivity for the community.
Following the development of a draft masterplan in
2019/20 and the move of community organisations
into Community Hub B during 2020/21; further
community consultation, design planning and early
works will be undertaken in 2021/22. Council will
continue with community consultation with the
view to developing staged concept plans for Hubs
A and C.
Undertake flood mitigation works in New Street,
Ringwood, Sherbrook Avenue catchment in
Ringwood, and Scenic Avenue and Wingate
Avenue catchments in Ringwood East; and
work in partnership to develop flood mitigation
solutions for central Croydon
The Council Plan 2021-2025 highlights future
partnership work to develop flood mitigation
solutions for central Croydon. This includes
projects to be undertaken in New Street,
Ringwood, Sherbrook Avenue catchment in
Ringwood, Scenic Avenue and Wingate Avenue
catchments in Ringwood East. Design of the
Sherbrook East drainage catchment from Nelson
Street to Maroondah highway is scheduled for
2021/22. The next stage of the drainage upgrade
works from Nelson Street to Bourke Street is
scheduled for 2022/23. Design of the next stage
of the Scenic Avenue (Ringwood East) was
completed in the 2019/20 financial year with
construction scheduled for the 2021/22 financial
year. Works in Wingate Avenue (Ringwood East)
(Stage 2) involve realignment and upgrade of the
floodway pipe drainage with works expected to
commence in 2021/22.

Our core services
Council delivers a range of services aimed at promoting an attractive, thriving
and well built community. These services include:
Asset Management (Assets)

Statutory Planning (Planning)

The Asset Management team is responsible for
the strategic long-term planning and management
of all of Council’s community assets and provides
specialist advice and support to facilitate improved
asset management capabilities for the organisation.
The function provides advice on strategic direction,
policy development and capital works in relation to
all of Council’s community assets

Council has the responsibility for delivering town
planning land use and development advice and
assessments to a diverse community of over
118,000 residents and over 9000 businesses.

Assets Project and Facilities (Assets)
Responsible for the overall delivery and
management of Council’s community facility
assets and provides specialist advice and support
in relation to all building construction works and
reactive and proactive maintenance associated
with facilities.
Building Services
(Engineering and Building Services)
The Building Services team provides services
that are dictated by statutory and legislative
requirements. Although this limits the ability to
introduce new initiatives, it requires work practices
and services/service levels to be responsive to
legislative changes and community expectations.
The team also ensures the compliance of existing
and proposed buildings with the Building Act and
regulations and provides advice on variations to
building regulations and swimming pool/spa
safety barriers.

These residential and commercial land uses are
set in a unique urban environment with high
levels of amenity protected by various landscape
and environmental controls, as set out in the
Maroondah Planning Scheme. The role of statutory
planning is to manage and consult with the
community to ensure that land use changes are to
the social, environmental and economic betterment
of the city.
Strategic Planning and Sustainability
(Integrated Planning)
The Strategic Planning and Sustainability team is
responsible for the development of land use and
planning policies and strategies to ensure the most
sustainable land use patterns; and administering
and reviewing the Maroondah Planning Scheme
including amendments to the scheme. The team
also guides the integration of sustainability into
Council and community activities and operations.
Council takes a holistic and strategic approach
to sustainability focusing on reducing its
environmental footprint, helping the community
adapt to a changing climate, enhancing the
quality of the local environment and promoting
sustainable transport and active travel options.
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An inclusive and diverse
community
Our vision
In 2040, Maroondah will be an inclusive and equitable community where all
people are valued, supported and socially connected, and diversity is embraced
and celebrated.

Our commitments
Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21), Council identified four priority actions to be
delivered during the 2020/21 financial year to work towards an inclusive and diverse community.

Monitor the National Disability Insurance Scheme and
My Aged Care reform agenda and implement transitional
arrangements for relevant areas of Council service delivery

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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Council continues to provide support for people to understand and
access the National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS). This service
assists local residents with information, support and advocacy as
they navigate this system and remains in high demand. Council’s
NDIS Coordinator was acknowledged as the recipient of the Tandem
Award for Mental Health for Exceptional Service by an individual for
demonstrating compassion and family-inclusive practice. Tandem is
Victoria’s peak body representing families and friends supporting
people living with mental health issues. Council also continues
to monitor the My Aged Care reform agenda and is awaiting the
Commonwealth response to the Aged Care Royal Commission to
inform future service delivery.
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Did you know?
Council’s oldest volunteer is
96 years with our youngest
volunteer is 17 years of age.

Continue implementation of the Corporate Volunteering
Program that recruits, promotes and manage volunteers who
support the provision of services and community activities

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Corporate Services

Council will continue to implement its volunteering and student
placement programs during 2020/21. These programs provide
opportunities for volunteers and students to support the wider
community. Council’s volunteers assist with programs such as Meals
on Wheels, Maroondah’s Disability Advisory Committee, maintaining
our bushland and reserves, arts and cultural programs, community
gardens and many more. Council’s Work Experience Program is
offered across all areas of Council and provides an opportunity
for students to learn and give back to the community. In 2021
Council commissioned a formal review of its volunteering programs
against best practice indicators. The outcome of this independent
review will help to shape and prioritise the strategic direction of
volunteering programs and initiatives.

Continue implementation of Council’s Disability Policy and
Action Plan 2019-2021

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Council adopted a new Disability Policy and Action Plan
2019-2021 in April 2019. The Policy and Action Plan incorporates
a range of initiatives across the breadth of Council operations
to remove barriers to discrimination and meet the legislative
obligations for people with disabilities, their families and carers. A
range of actions were undertaken by Council during 2020/21 across
themes of social and economic inclusion, services and information,
design, infrastructure and transport, and advocacy and leadership.
Projects during 2020/21 included: working in partnership to
broaden the scale of the Porn is not the Norm project; ongoing
NDIS support for local recipients; advocating for the inclusion of
sensory rooms in key community facilities, a workshop with local
carers to provide input and understand service needs during the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic; and the continued leadership of
Council’s Disability Advisory Committee.
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Finalise development of a Children and Families Strategy
Following completion of extensive community consultation with
children, young people, parents, carers and school staff, detailed
analysis was undertaken to inform Council’s new Children and
Families Strategy and Action Plan. The Strategy was adopted by
Council in August 2020, and the Action Plan was approved in
April 2021.

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Our strategic indicator results
Indicator/Measure

Target
2020/21

Actual
2020/21

Actual
2019/20

Actual
2018/19

Actual
2017/18

380

386

369

400

348

Number of volunteers engaged within the
organisation
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Did you know?
126 clients were supported
at Kerrabee with
20,053 hours planned
activities/social support.
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An inclusive and diverse
community
Our achievements
In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards an inclusive and diverse
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards an inclusive community
International Women’s Day breakfast with a
focus on wellbeing

Support for older people and vulnerable
residents during COVID-19

This year’s International Women’s Day breakfast
at Maroondah Federation Estate was held in
March 2021. Mandy Hose and Kate Jones,
Maroondah-based presenters of Too Peas in a
Podcast, spoke about how they created a podcast
to reach out and support people parenting children
with disabilities and additional needs, and how
along the way they discovered a connection
with an audience of supportive, strong and
determined women.

Council ensured the continuation of essential
support services for older and vulnerable residents
during the past 12 months, involving escalated
service delivery in response to the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic. Services provided included
delivered meals, the adaptation of the Shopping
Bus service and additional welfare calls to clients
of the Regional Assessment Service and socially
isolated clients through the Maroondah Police
Seniors Register regardless of their usual contact
schedule (increase from 106 clients to over
360). Council partnered with Victoria Police and
a network of local churches who provided and
delivered 400 hampers to isolated community
members of the Maroondah Police Seniors
Register in the weeks leading up to Christmas.
Council also worked in partnership with support
providers, agencies and volunteers to provide
food relief to disadvantaged people as demand for
food increased, with free takeaway meals being
available six nights a week, across three different
venues. Over the winter months of 2020, Council
also partnered with Winter Shelter and Central
Ringwood Community House to provide bathroom
and shower services to people experiencing
homelessness at a temporary location until regular
services could be restored. A range of services
were delivered creatively to Kerrabee clients
during coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions such as
virtual programs, home and telephone check-ins.
Online programs included baking, group games,
and gentle exercise. An Australian Government
emergency grant enabled the delivery of 200
themed activity packs each week.

Council celebrates IDAHOBIT Day
Council celebrated the International Day
Against Homophobia, Biphobia and Transphobia
(IDAHOBIT Day) in May 2021 by flying the rainbow
flag at locations in Ringwood and Croydon, along
with placing messages of support to the lesbian,
gay, bisexual, transgender and intersex community
(LGBTIQA+) on social media and Council’s web
platform. In undertaking these actions, Council
sought to demonstrate its support for, and
commitment to, reducing the barriers faced by
the LGBTIQA+ community and a commitment
to providing excellent services to people of all
sexualities, sex and gender identities.
Gender Equity in Victorian Sport and Recreation
Pilot Program
In 2019/20, Council secured Victorian Government
funding to work with tenant clubs of the RO
Spencer Pavilion at Jubilee Park on a primary
prevention project. The project subsequently
received further funding and an 18 month
extension to create additional Gender Equality
resources for Maroondah sporting clubs and
to deliver gender equality education to South
Croydon Football and Cricket Clubs and
Ringwood Baseball Club.
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Seniors Letter writing initiative
The positive power of letter writing has been
helping isolated older residents across Maroondah
stay connected with their community. More than
500 handwritten letters from seven local primary
schools were distributed. These heartfelt letters
brought feelings of hope and joy to residents
during coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions
when regular social activities were postponed
or cancelled. Children shared messages of hope,
their hobbies, jokes, puzzles and how they felt
about lockdown. Letters were then exchanged
back to the children.
Social Technology Project
The Social Technology Project is the first of its
kind for Maroondah City Council and was offered
to existing and new Kerrabee members as a
way to stay connected while in isolation. Many
people in the community are unable to navigate
online programs, so Council offered 1:1 training
using a free loan device with data to encourage
people to give online activities a go. Council also
established a new online social group program,
Virtual Engagement Recreation Activities (VERA)
with a focus on activities for the body, mind and
spirit while connecting with other people. VERA
continues to be offered on weekdays. An added
benefit for participants was being able to use
their new skills to also connect online with family
and friends.

Seniors Week recognises the contribution of
older people in our community
Seniors Week in October 2020 was disrupted by
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, however
community members were connected with online
options on offer to recognise the achievements
and contributions of older people within our
community.
Tackling Ageism Together campaign
Funded by Inner East Primary Care Partnership,
this campaign is a collaboration of the seven
Eastern Metropolitan Region Councils and based
on the EveryAGE Counts advocacy materials
developed by the Benevolent Society. Partner
Councils including Maroondah City coordinated
a series of social media campaigns to challenge
stereotypes of older people and ageism at any
age. As part of the campaign, Mayors from each
of the seven participating Councils signed the
EveryAGE counts pledge on 15 June, World Elder
Abuse Awareness Day.
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An inclusive and diverse
community
Proud Houses Project

Workplace equality

Glen Park Community Centre received a Victorian
Government Pride Events and Festivals Fund
grant to undertake project entitled ‘Proud Houses’
involving the creation of two videos. The aim of
the project is to promote neighbourhood houses
as welcoming and inclusive spaces for LGBTIQ
people and their families. The first video, entitled
‘your house’, will be used as an educational
tool for staff and volunteers across the sector,
providing advice and tips on how they can make
their neighbourhood house a more inviting
space for their local LGBTIQA+ community. The
second video, entitled ‘our house’ will be for
external use, sharing the wonderful experiences
LGBTIQA+ people have had participating at their
local neighbourhood house. The project was
a partnership between Glen Park Community
Centre, Central Ringwood Community Centre and
Mountain District Learning Centre.

The new Gender Equality Act 2020 came into
effect from 31 March 2021. The new Act places a
greater onus on the Victorian public sector to
improve workplace gender equality with the aim of
influencing equality for communities in policy,
programs and service delivery. The Act is the first
of its kind in Australia, and will require all public
organisations, including Councils, to take ongoing
positive action to achieve gender equality. As part
of our obligations under the new Act, Council will
need to undertake gender impact assessments and
audits, develop an Action Plan and submit progress
reports. Over the past twelve months, Council has
proactively pursued a range of organisational
readiness initiatives to fulfil the requirements of the
legislation. A cross-Council Workplace Equality
Working Group was established to seek employee
feedback on how gender and equal opportunity
has influenced their working life, review Equal
Opportunity policies and processes, identify
gender equality improvements and initiatives and
build awareness of workplace equality and
inclusion principles. Through the work of this
group, Council is well placed to respond to
requirements of the new Act and ensure Council is
an inclusive and respectful workplace for all.

Local Government Women's Charter
The Local Government Women’s Charter was
formed in 1997 and has been adopted by 73 out
of 79 Victorian Councils. Councillors Spears,
Lamont, Graham, Stojanovic and Damante as
well as Marianne Di Giallonardo (Director of
Corporate Services) are endorsed Women’s
Charter Champions. Since endorsing the Victorian
Local Government Association (VLGA) Women’s
Charter in August 2010, Council has undertaken
a range of programs and projects to support the
three key principles: gender equity; diversity; and
active citizenship. An annual report on related
activities was presented to Council on
21 September 2020.
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Support for young people during COVID-19
In December 2020, Maroondah City Council, Yarra
Ranges Council and Knox City Council officially
launched the ConnectUs online service directory
for young people aged 10-25 in the outer east.
ConnectUs is for young people, parents, families,
carers, schools, coaches or anyone who has a
young person in their life and wants to support
them to connect with services and supports that
will help them to be their best. ConnectUs is
anonymous and localised and can connect you or
your young person to local supports and services.

Neighbour Day celebrations
Neighbour Day held on 8 March is Australia’s
annual celebration of community, encouraging
people to connect with their neighbours. The
Neighbour Day 2021 theme was ‘Every day
is neighbour day’ building on the growing
movement of people taking neighbourly actions
every day of the year. Australian research
has found that neighbours helping out and
doing things together has positive effects on
life satisfaction. Through Council’s 'Let's Get
Neighbourly, Maroondah' program, participants
were given the opportunity to make new
friends while turning their streets into their own
communities, including tips, skills and tools
to make it happen with fun workshops and
one-on-one mentoring.
Homelessness Charter
Council has partnered with together with
twelve other municipalities in adopting a joint
Homelessness Charter and advocacy campaign
calling for urgent action for more social housing to
end homelessness. The Charter focuses on a shared
commitment to advocating for inclusive housing
growth, scoping and identifying land in areas to be
repurposed for adaptable housing, and advocate
together for inclusive housing growth including
mandatory inclusionary zoning. Councils are often
the first-responders to people in the community
at-risk of or experiencing homelessness and provide
outreach support to assist community members
to navigate the available housing and community
support services. Local Government areas that are
signatories to the Charter comprise: City of Casey,
City of Cardinia, Frankston City Council, City of
Greater Dandenong, Knox City Council, City of
Kingston, Manningham City Council, City of Monash,
Maroondah City Council, Mornington Peninsula
Shire, City of Whitehorse, Yarra Ranges Council and
Bayside Council. This Charter is also supported by
Eastern Affordable Housing Alliance (EAHA), the
Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV), Eastern
Region Group of Councils and the Department of
Families, Fairness and Housing (DFFH).

Additional female changing facilities at local
sporting venues
Several projects have been identified to provide
additional female changing facilities at sporting
pavilions across Maroondah. Construction has been
completed at HE Parker Pavilion in Heathmont,
Quambee Pavilion in Warranwood, R.O. Spencer
in Jubilee Park, Ringwood Griff Hunt Pavilion in
Croydon North, and Springfield Pavilion in Croydon.
Development of the new Active and Healthy
Ageing Framework
The Active and Health Ageing Initiative 2015-2020
has recently concluded and a new Framework
is under development. The new Framework will
document the role of Council and its partners in
working with, and for, Maroondah residents aged
55 years and over. The Active and Healthy Ageing
Framework will be integrated into Council’s new
Maroondah Liveability and Wellbeing Strategy
2021-2031.
Support for Active and healthy ageing
Supported by a Moving for Life grant provided
by Australian Multicultural Community Services,
Council encouraged residents aged 50 and over
to be physically and socially active through face
to face activities such as Come and Try Walking
Sports, an aqua therapy program for Burmese
seniors and a series of online activities including
dance, yoga and exercise programs. The Prism
Digital Storytelling project was a partnership
involving seniors groups who produced videos
featuring stories of older Maroondah residents who
are active volunteers in the Maroondah community.
The videos were launched through Maroondah’s
social media channels over several months.
Development of second Maroondah Youth
Strategy Action Plan 2019-2021
The Maroondah Youth Strategy is Council’s key
strategic document regarding its work with, and
for, young people aged 10-25 who live, work,
study or play in Maroondah. The development
of the Strategy was informed by extensive
community consultation and research and is
supplemented by a series of two-year Action
Plans. The development of the second Action
Plan was approved in April 2021 and will guide
Council’s activities during the 2021/22 and
2022/23 financial years.
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An inclusive and diverse
community
Our achievements
Working towards a diverse community
Implementation of the Maroondah Reconciliation
Action Plan
Council’s first Reconciliation Action Plan was
endorsed by Council in April 2019. Council has a
strong commitment to promote and work towards
greater reconciliation in the City of Maroondah.
The Plan was endorsed by Reconciliation Australia
and developed in conjunction with our local
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community.
The Plan identifies practical actions and measures
for building relationships, promoting a respectful
culture and creating opportunities to celebrate
traditional and contemporary Indigenous cultures,
knowledge and customary practices. A range
of actions have been undertaken over past
12 months and implementation of the Plan will
continue into 2021/22.
Celebration of National Reconciliation Week
National Reconciliation Week is a time for
people of all ages to come together and
strengthen relationships between Indigenous
and non-Indigenous people. Council worked in
partnership with Mullum Mullum Indigenous
Gathering Place (MMIGP) and the Maroondah
Movement for Reconciliation (MMR), to plan a
number of Reconciliation Week events although the
primary event was cancelled due to coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions introduced in May 2021.
Australia Day celebrations and citizenship
ceremony
Maroondah Australia Day recipients were
announced as part of Australia Day activities at
Ringwood Lake Park. Anupa Shah was named
our Citizen of the Year. Anupa volunteers with
various organisations including Sikh Volunteers
Australia Organisation and the Food and Blanket
Drive Project. She helps to provide free food
and blankets for families and those living on the
streets. She also visits isolated older people in
their homes and provides respite support for
foster families. The Young Citizen of the Year,
Lachlan Kennedy is a member of the Maroondah
Youth Wellbeing Advocates program which
provides two-way engagement between Council
and young people. Lachlan was also part of the
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Maroondah Student Wellbeing Action Teams
project and last year presented at the 2020
Maroondah Youth Awards. The Community Event
of the Year went to the Glen Park and Eastland
Food Relief Collection Services. The Day was also
a chance to welcome 36 new Australian citizens
to our community in one of several citizenship
ceremonies held annually in Maroondah.
Support for culturally and linguistically diverse
groups during COVID-19
Council’s emergency relief and referral system
during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
implemented partnerships with local relief
agencies as well as culturally and linguistically
diverse (CALD) groups to ensure services to
vulnerable people despite restrictions. Throughout
2020, information on coronavirus (COVID-19)
restrictions was offered in Council’s website in a
range of different languages including Burmese,
Chin, Karen, Hindi, Tamil and Chinese in order
to cater for a diverse cross-section of language
and community groups. As part of the COVID-19
Engagement Survey from July to October 2020,
Council provided translated surveys for CALD
communities in nine languages in both online and
electronic formats. Results from the engagement
process were also translated to share with local
communities. In December 2020, Council received
a funding grant through the Victorian Government
CALD Communities Taskforce, to support
translation activities and support the provision of
culturally relevant emergency relief support to local
Burmese communities.

Maternal and Child Health partnerships

Power of Connection multilingual event

Maternal and Child Health (MCH) partnerships
continue to offer direct services to Maroondah
parents with children aged 0-5 years. These
include a speech therapy service at Croydon MCH;
access to EACH family counselling services; joint
home visits to vulnerable families by MCH and
Child, Youth and Mental Health Services (CHYMS);
and the co-location of the Eastern Health Perinatal
Emotional Health Service at Croydon MCH.
Despite the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic,
these services have been maintained and adapted
to meet the various types of restrictions in place
across the year whilst still delivering services to
local families. During the year, Council’s Maternal
and Child Health team completed cultural
awareness training to ensure that the service is
well placed to meet the needs of the Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander community.

Power of Connection was a free guided online
event presented by Esther Xu held on 5 May
2021. Esther Xu is a motivational speaker who
is keen to help guide others to find connection
in their daily lives. She openly discusses her
battle with cancer focusing on the importance of
community connection throughout her struggles.
A downloadable workbook included mindfulness
exercises with a guided meditation at the end. As a
multi-lingual event, the presentation and workbook
was provided in both English and Mandarin.

Supported playgroups and parent education
sessions for culturally diverse groups
Supported playgroups encourage social
connections, embrace diversity and integration
and support parents to understand children’s
emotional and physical needs. In 2020/21, Council
has received 80 referrals to attend the supported
playgroup program. The majority of referrals have
been for families from a refugee background.
Programs are aimed at families developing positive
relationships with children, encouraging social
connections, parent education, improving mental
health and wellbeing and reducing post-trauma
stress disorder symptoms. Council’s MCH service
offers a variety of parent education programs
to refugee families, with interpreters to support
non-English speaking families. The six-week
MCH facilitated parent groups have continued
throughout 2020/21 for Burmese first time parents
with these groups following onto the supported
playgroup program. Both programs are an
ongoing part of the MCH education program and
were adapted during the year to meet evolving
coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions. There are
currently nine supported playgroups running
weekly during school term with up to 15 families
enrolled in each group. Five of these groups
are language specific to support families from
Myanmar. Families have been assisted with referrals
to early start kindergarten and agencies to assist
with material aid.

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander cultural
awareness at Maroondah Occasional Care
The introduction of a Maroondah Occasional
Care Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) has been
instrumental in fostering a greater understanding
of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander heritage
and culture. The RAP has had a meaningful impact
around the Centre, in terms of signage reflecting
different cultures, Aboriginal perspective in our
sand play and craft, and learning words and
phrases from the language of the Wurundjeri
people. Every aspect of the program in relation
to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Island culture is
ethically considered and culturally appropriate.
The service has introduced Floral Friday which is a
Torres Strait Islander tradition where children and
educators dress in bright floral clothing and are
involved in yarning about culture, cooking, song
and dance.

The Maroondah Occasional Care Reconciliation
Action Plan fosters greater understanding
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An inclusive and diverse
community
Looking ahead
In continuing to work towards an inclusive and diverse community during
2021/22, Council will:
Work in partnership to support volunteer-based
organisations and facilitate volunteerism within
Maroondah

Implement the Children and Families Strategy
and Action Plan; and the Youth Strategy and
Action Plan

Council will continue to implement its
volunteering and student placement programs
during 2021/22. These programs provide
opportunities for volunteers and students to
support the wider community.

Following completion of extensive community
consultation with children, young people,
parents, carers and school staff, detailed
analysis was undertaken to inform Council’s new
Children and Families Strategy and Action Plan,
and the new Action Plan for Council’s existing
Youth Strategy. The 20122/22 - 2022/23 action
plans for both the Children and Families Strategy
and Youth Strategy will be implemented over the
next two financial years.

Investigate and implement additional female
changing facilities at local sporting venues
In 2021/22, Council has scheduled sporting
pavilion works which include additional women’s,
unisex and accessible amenities at Cheong
Pavilion in Croydon South, Ainslie Pavilion in
Croydon, and Proclamation Pavilion in Ringwood.

Implement the Gender Equality Act 2020,
including Council's Gender Equality Action Plan
During 2021/22, Council will continue to implement
a range of initiatives in response to the new
Gender Equality Act 2020. These activities will
include participating in public sector employee
survey, developing a Gender Equality Action
Plan, conducting gender impact assessments
and continuing to promote a cross-organisational
approach to workplace equality.
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Our core services
Council delivers a range of services aimed at promoting an inclusive and diverse
community. These services include:
Aged and Disability Services
(Community Services)
Council provides both Commonwealth Home
Support Program (CHSP) Services and the Home
and Community Care Program for Younger People
(HACC PYP). These programs include intake,
assessment and care coordination, domestic
assistance, personal care and individual social
support, respite care, occupational therapy and
allied health, vulnerable persons support, food
services (Delivered Meals), Supported Residential
Services (SRS) social support program, social
support groups and home maintenance services
to eligible residents. The CHSP aims to support
frail older people and their carers to maximise
their independence by supporting them to
remain safely living at home and stay connected
to their community. HACC PYP assists people
with disability during the transition to National
Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) and supports
those people under the age of 65 who may not
be eligible for NDIS. Aged and Disability Services
also provide active and healthy ageing activities,
facilitate carer support groups and provide support
to senior citizens and older persons groups.

The Community Development function builds
partnerships aimed at strengthening community
wellbeing and advocating for community needs.
This includes work in the following areas: disability,
culturally and linguistically diverse communities,
marginalised communities, gender equity, life-long
learning, reconciliation, and community safety.
Youth and Children’s Services
(Community Services)
Youth and Children’s Services works to raise the
wellbeing of Maroondah’s children and young
people. The mission of Youth and Children’s
Services is to build a future where all children and
young people can achieve their potential through:
•

Service delivery, including programs, services,
and events for young people; vacation care,
family day care, and occasional care services for
children; and information and education
sessions for parents.

•

Providing information and resources to
community members and professionals in
Maroondah.

•

Providing support and coordination to the local
child and youth sectors through provision of
professional learning, networking opportunities,
capacity building initiatives, sector coordination
projects, supporting local kindergartens and
schools, and facility management.

•

Planning and strategy work - including
consultation and engagement, and strategic
planning to meet local needs and leverage
strengths.

Council and Community Planning
(Integrated Planning)
The Council and Community Planning team
oversees the integrated planning of Council
activities and seeks to proactively strengthen
community wellbeing. The team consists of three
functions: Council Planning, Community Planning,
and Community Development. The Council
Planning function coordinates the preparation of
the Council Plan, the Annual Report, corporate
strategy and policy development, and the
cyclical service delivery planning process, along
with the Maroondah 2040 Community Vision.
The Community Planning function oversees
social research and policy development, and
the Maroondah Health and Wellbeing Plan.
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A well governed and
empowered community
Our vision
In 2040, Maroondah will be an empowered community actively engaged in
local decision making, led by an innovative community inspired Council that
collaborates regionally and proactively champions local needs.

Our commitments
Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020/21), Council identified fifteen priority actions to be
delivered during the 2020/21 financial year to work towards a well governed and empowered community.

Develop and implement a COVID-19 Recovery Plan
(including social and economic recovery initiatives),
following community consultation and engagement

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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Council’s emergency relief and recovery framework includes strategic
community recovery planning which will include the coordinated
delivery of recovery initiatives to meet the social, health and wellbeing
and economic needs of the community. Over the past twelve months,
Council has sought to identify community needs and impacts of
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic through consultations. This
involved extensive liaison with community service agencies, schools,
organisations and local businesses; and a COVID-19 Community
Survey, translated into nine languages, which received nearly 3,000
responses. The Maroondah COVID-19 Recovery Plan is was adopted in
March 2021 and includes a range of implementation activities across
themes of human, social, built, political, financial, cultural and natural
capitals. Reporting on priority initiatives and elevated service delivery
resulting from the Maroondah COVID-19 Recovery Plan may be found
throughout this Annual Report.
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Did you know?
In 2020/21 we received 100,183
customer service calls.

Develop and implement a COVID-19 community emergency
relief referral process
As part of Council’s emergency response to the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic, a local relief and referral system was
implemented to solidify partnerships with local relief agencies
to ensure services to vulnerable people and groups continue
despite restrictions. During the pandemic, the referral service was
expanded to include practical and emotional support through the
MaroondahConnect initiative, including linking community members
to local social inclusion and community participation initiatives.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Develop a new Customer Service Strategy that will continue
to advance Council's commitment to be highly responsive
and customer focused
Council has been developing a new Customer Service Strategy
during 2021. Key projects and programs highlighted in the Strategy
include: improved integrated service partnerships; multi-channel
customer connectivity; advances in technology and innovation;
simplifying customer processes; and self-service offerings.

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Corporate Services

Advocate on key local issues in the lead up to the State and
Federal elections in 2022
Council has continued its advocacy campaign to State and Federal
Members and Ministers for a range of key priority infrastructure,
sporting and transportation improvement projects that will benefit
the Maroondah community. This has included local briefings and
meetings in Canberra during the ALGA Conference in June 2021.

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Communications and
Engagement
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Implement the new Local Government Act following
its enactment
The new Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) is being
implemented in four transitional stages, during which time it will
co-exist with many provisions within the former Local Government
Act 1989, up until 1 July 2021. The first phase of reforms took effect
on 6 April 2020, which put in place these governance principles
that provide the framework for the new Act. The new Act requires
Council to adopt specific policies within set timeframes within
2020/21 and beyond.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Corporate Services

Following the Council election, prepare a new Council Plan
2021-2025

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

During 2020/21, Council has worked with the Maroondah community
and elected representatives to prepare a new Council Plan for the
2021-2025 period which was adopted on 28 June 2021. To support
development of the Council Plan 2021-2025, a community panel of
40 representatives participated in a deliberative engagement process
over ten sessions to provide input to Council on a broad range of
topics including health and wellbeing, liveable neighbourhoods,
environmental sustainability and Council assets. This document forms
Council’s medium-term plan in responding to the aspirations and
outcomes arising from the community vision identified in Maroondah
2040 - Our future together.

Progress Council's digital transformation that enables
innovation and improved Customer Service delivery
models including access to information, engagement
and online payments
Council has continued its focus on providing more effective
services through the utilisation of new and improved technologies
and industry best practice processes. These have included the
mobilisation of Council’s workforce, the targeted improvement
of key digital processes, and a more considered focus on cyber
security. The wider adoption of more mobile technologies has
enabled Council to maintain the timely and efficient delivery of core
services to our community whilst also providing increased resilience
and preparedness for emergency response.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Corporate Services
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Identify and implement additional ways of providing digital
services associated with planning permits that will improve
the overall customer experience
Council has continued to implement additional ways of providing
digital services associated with planning permits including;
the ability for customers to lodge plans and documents for
endorsement via Council’s online portal; and a method of mail
delivery to the community. New processes to improve the existing
digital planning process will allow staff and the community to
benefit from improved efficiencies with these processes.
Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Develop and implement the Workforce People and Culture
Plan 2021-2025
Council will continue the development of a new Workforce People
and Culture Plan Strategy for the 2021-2025 period. Key areas of
focus will include the strategic alignment of workplace people
and culture strategies with Council objectives; strategic workforce
planning; investing in workforce skills and competencies; improving
organisational efficiency and effectiveness; and effectively
managing a diverse and multi-generational workforce.

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Corporate Services

Advocate for Maroondah to become a "Smart City"

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

The term ‘smart cities’ has emerged in recent years to describe
the transformative effect modern technology is having on the
way urban infrastructure is used, operated and managed. Council
commenced a 12-month Smart City pilot project in June 2020. The
pilot includes the installation of two gateways and three types of
LoRaWAN Internet of Things (IoT) smart sensors fitted to a range
of community assets to capture real time data about capacity
and usage. The sensors include a bin sensor to monitor usage
and capacity; a carpark sensor to monitor the usage, and people
counters to monitor visits and duration of visit. It is anticipated that
the pilot will demonstrate how Council can better: collect real time
data about asset capacity and use; identify usage patterns and
trends for improved asset efficiency and service provision; advocate
for community needs and interests based on data findings and
community feedback; and promote evidence-based, transparent
decision-making.
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Work in partnership with the Victorian Electoral Commission
to coordinate a Council Election in October 2020 for the
2020-2024 period
Council entered into a new contract with the Victorian Electoral
Commission (VEC) to conduct the elections for Council in October
2020, in order to ensure compliance with the Local Government Act
2020 and associated regulations.

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Corporate Services

Implement the Council Caretaker Policy for the Council
election in October 2020 and transition to the new Council
following the election

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Corporate Services

In the lead up to Local Government elections, the Victorian Local
Government sector adopts an election period mode (or caretaker
mode) to avoid actions and decisions that may be interpreted
as influencing voters or binding an incoming Council. Specific
provisions have been incorporated into the Local Government
Act 1989 and Local Government Act 2020 which prohibit Council
making major policy decisions or publishing or distributing electoral
matter during the election period. Maroondah City Council is
committed to the principle of fair and democratic elections and
adopted the Election Period Policy 2020 at the Council Meeting
held on 31 August 2020. This Policy was implemented ahead of
and during the 2020 Council Election held on 24 October 2020.
Transition of the new Council has commenced, including the
implementation of a program of induction activities as prescribed
by the Local Government Act 2020.

Review and update Council's Business Continuity Plan to
enable Council to continue to provide key services to the
community in the event of a disaster
Council developed an updated Business Continuity Plan (BCP) in
order to respond to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The
BCP facilitated the establishment of a Crisis Management Team in
March 2020 which enabled Council to respond effectively to the
challenges the presented by the pandemic throughout the 2020/21
financial year.

Status: Complete
Responsibility: Corporate Services
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Package Council's wide range of integrity policies, action plans
and processes into a comprehensive Integrity Framework to
deliver high ethical standards organisation-wide
Council has implemented a comprehensive Integrity Framework
in order to mitigate the risk of fraud and corruption and to ensure
compliance with legislation. In 2020/21, a major focus has involved
reviewing COVIDSafe plans across Council facilities and ensuring
compliance with Victorian Government directives.

Status: In progress
Responsibility: Corporate Services

Develop and implement a risk management approach to
public health operations that will improve effectiveness
of operations
The project to develop and implement a risk management approach
to public health operations has been delayed due to the increased
focus on coronavirus (COVID-19) related priorities.

Status: Deferred
Responsibility: Corporate Services

Our strategic indicator results
Indicator/Measure

Target
Actual
Actual
2020/21 2020/21 2019/20

Actual
2018/19

Actual
2017/18

Community satisfaction with overall performance
of Council

66

65

65

69

67

Community satisfaction with overall direction
of Council

56

55

56

59

58

Community satisfaction with customer service
provided by Council

74

72

74

80

73

Community satisfaction with Council engagement

56

55

56

58

56

Community satisfaction with Council
lobbying/advocacy

57

56

56

61

57

$1,038

$1,727

$1785

$1034

$1010

$787

$825

$202

$509

$253

$1,802

$1,788

$1736

$1718

$1614

Average liabilities per assessment
Operating result per assessment
Average rates and charges per residential
assessment
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A well governed and
empowered community
Our achievements
In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards a well governed and empowered
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below:

Working towards a well governed community
COVID-19 relief and recovery response
framework
The coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)
significantly impacted the Maroondah community
in 2020 and 2021 resulting in a broad range
of social, health and economic challenges. In
response to the pandemic, Council put in place a
temporary change to the organisational structure
to implement a coordinated relief and recovery
framework. The framework aims to ensure a
community-led recovery through: the provision
of up-to-date community information and
engagement; coordination of personal support;
referrals for emergency shelter, food, material
aid relief and counselling; recovery initiatives
that build on community strengths and needs;
monitoring of the social and economic impacts
of coronavirus COVID-19; support for local
business and economic activity; and ensuring
the continuation of Council service delivery. The
Maroondah COVID-19 Recovery Plan is central to
the framework and has been developed following
an initial impact assessment process, extensive
community consultation, service delivery impacts
and research and learnings from other disasters.
COVID-19 community emergency relief response
In response to the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic, Council coordinated the establishment
an emergency relief referral system in partnership
with agency members of the Maroondah
Emergency Relief Network. The system provided
a centralised process for managing Victorian
Government referrals for requests of emergency
food and other support for people in mandatory
or self-isolation. The ongoing partnership between
Council and seven emergency relief agencies
enabled a quick response in addressing the
needs of the wider community. During the peak
pandemic period (March to December 2020),
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this coordinated emergency relief response in
Maroondah involved the provision of 18,633
community meals, distribution of 8000 masks to
vulnerable community members and supply of
10,738 food parcels to local households.
COVID-19 community grants to kickstart
community recovery
The COVID-19 Community Grants Funding
Program was established to address the
immediate needs within the community arising
from the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic by
funding eligible community organisations and
charities to continue to deliver, expand and
introduce new programs, initiatives and services
to the Maroondah community. Through this
program, nine agencies were provided with
$75,685 in funding as part of the COVID-19
Emergency Relief Grants Scheme. A further
14 community organisations were provided
with $41,178 in funding through the COVID-19
Community Wellbeing Grants Scheme.
Implementation activities associated with the
new Local Government Act 2020
The new Local Government Act 2020 (the Act)
received Royal Assent on 24 March 2020, and
was implemented in four transitional stages,
while co-existing with many the provisions
within the former Local Government Act 1989,
until 1 July 2021. The new Act aims to improve
local government democracy, accountability
and Council operations by introducing a set of
overarching guiding principles which include;
community engagement, public transparency;
strategic planning; good practice guidelines;
service performance; and expanded financial
management principles. The first phase of
reforms took effect on 6 April 2020, which put in
place these governance principles that provide
the foundational framework for the new Act.

Council has adopted a number of policies, as
required by the new Act, including election, public
transparency and audit and risk policies, as well as
strengthening governance procedures based on
good governance and transparency.
Introduction of nine Council wards
Following a review of ward boundaries conducted
by the Victorian Electoral Commission in 2019,
Maroondah has constituted a new nine ward
structure, with one Councillor per ward. The nine
ward names were chosen by Council based on
a range of factors, including geographical and
historical references: Barngeong, Bungalook,
Jubilee, McAlpin, Tarralla, Wicklow, Wonga,
Wombalano and Yarrunga.
Maroondah’s Community Grants Funding
Program supports 64 local community groups
A total of 64 Maroondah community organisations
benefitted from more than $170,578 in funding
from Council’s 2020/21 Community Grants
Funding Program. The annual grants are allocated
to eligible projects that increase community
participation; address a community need; or
provide assistance to a group in need. There are
three schemes covering community development,
small equipment, and emergency food relief.
A diverse range of programs were funded
including emergency food relief for vulnerable
people, support packages for at-risk young
families, mental health and life skills programs
for local sporting clubs, a youth careers forum,
enhancement to programs at local kindergartens
and support for local events.
Update Council's administrative facilities
The upgrade of Council’s administrative facilities,
including the Operations Centre administrative
building and the extension at Realm, was
completed during the 2020/21 financial year. Since
its opening in October 2015, Realm has proven to
be a highly successful community facility in the
heart of Ringwood. The Realm extension enables
a cost-effective integration of Councils services,
functions and civic activities, formerly undertaken
at the Braeside Avenue and Croydon Civic offices.
From August 2020, Council consolidated its
administrative functions at Realm, providing
improved access to Council services for the
Maroondah community from one central location
with better public transport links.
Expansion of e-services for Statutory Planning
Additional e-services have been introduced
in 2020/21 to provide a more efficient and
transparent planning process for our customers
and community. New services include the
capability to lodge more application types, as well

as improvements to internal systems to ensure
electronic communication is delivered in a more
timely manner.
High level of service delivery in Statutory
Planning maintained
Council has continued to deliver a high
percentage of Statutory Planning decisions within
specified timeframes. During the 2020/21 period,
just fifteen percent of Council decisions have been
set aside by VCAT. Council’s consistent decision
making in accordance with the planning scheme
continues to be supported by the Tribunal.
Implementation of Domestic Animal
Management Plan
Council’s Domestic Animal Management Plan
2017-2021 prioritises animal management projects.
Highlights include cleansing of Council’s animal
registration database; continued partnership with
Animal Aid to address state wide concerns on
animal abandonment; activities aimed at reducing
the number of stray and lost animals being
impounded; and increasing the number of animals
being reunited with families. The Domestic Animal
Management Plan 2017-2021 is currently under
development for the 2021-2025 period with
community input sought in June and July 2021.
Redesign of Council’s corporate information
technology networks
Council has commenced a comprehensive
information technology network review and
redevelopment project to support the migration
of Council’s core infrastructure to external data
centres. This has included a process to ensure
minimal impact on the production environment
during migration of core infrastructure. The
design incorporates the appropriate storage and
systems architecture to facilitate the migration
of core infrastructure to the cloud including the
mobilisation of Council’s workforce, increasing
agility and resilience to disasters, and enhanced
business continuity capabilities.
Review the current use of CCTV for its
effectiveness in controlling waste dumping
Council has undertaken a review of the
effectiveness of current Closed-Circuit Television
(CCTV technology, which has informed the
purchase of new cameras. These long-range
wireless cameras will further assist in the
investigation and potential enforcement/
prosecution of illegal dumping while realising a
cost saving for Council and footage can now be
accessed remotely. Trials of this new technology
are currently underway and new policies and
procedures have also been developed to guide
their use in monitoring the dumping of waste.
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A well governed and
empowered community
Working towards an empowered community
Undertake a review of Council's Community
Engagement Policy

Customer engagement and support
during COVID-19

Council has conducted a review of the Community
Engagement Framework and Policy to ensure it
reflects best practice, outcomes of the proposed
new Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) and
community expectations. The new Policy was
finalised in March 2021 in accordance with statutory
implementation timeframes for the new Act. Over
recent years, Council has built capacity across
the organisation and increased our community
engagement activities, including the development
of the Your Say Maroondah online engagement
platform, which gives people an opportunity to
participate at a time, convenient to them. The draft
policy reaffirms our engagement commitment and
increased community engagement activities.

Maroondah residents were able to access
up-to-date emergency information during
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, which
was promptly made available on Council’s
website and supported with a progressive
live chat feature integrated across Council’s
website. This included information provided
by the Victorian Government, along with local
information regarding Council facility closures,
event cancellations and service adaptations.
These webpages also included links to relevant
information relating to public health guidelines
and current restrictions on the Department of
Health and Human Services website. Translated
information was made available along with plain
English versions for key messaging.

COVID-19 Community Survey
Council sought input from the Maroondah
community on the impacts of the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic through the COVID-19
Community Survey conducted from July to
September 2020. The survey explored the level of
impact the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has
had on residents across a number of key areas and
where they thought support was most needed in
Maroondah. More than 3000 responses including
online and telephone surveys were received, with
the survey translated into a range of languages.
The survey looked at immediate needs, aspirational
responses including hopes for once the pandemic
passes, as well as the positive outcomes arising
from the pandemic that people would look to
continue in the future. Community feedback
received in the survey informed responsive Council
service delivery during 2020/21, the development
of the COVID-19 Relief and Recovery Plan adopted
in March 2021, and development of the Liveability
Wellbeing and Resilience Strategy 2021-2031.
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MaroondahConnect supports residents
during COVID-19
During the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic,
Council supported residents by providing a
referral service for vital community programs,
as well as practical support for people impacted
by coronavirus (COVID-19). A new community
support telephone helpline, MaroondahConnect
was launched to help Maroondah residents access a
range of emotional, practical and social community
programs. Services included social connections,
food relief, financial support, family support,
mental health, youth services, senior support,
disability support, drug and alcohol support, family
violence support, gambling support, housing
and homelessness, legal services and access to
masks for vulnerable community members. The
MaroondahConnect service was implemented
with the support of Victorian Government funding
provided through the Community Activation and
Social Inclusion (CASI) initiative.

Online customer engagement channels trial
Progressive customer contact centre technology
has been delivered and continues to enable Council
to deliver a proactive and engaging digital contact
channels, including, live chat, short message
service (SMS), email and outbound customer
contact campaigns. The online web chat facility
has been enhanced over the past twelve months
to include the use of artificial intelligence for
common customer enquiries in lieu of providing
direct contact with a live human. These improved
multi-channel capabilities for customer service
have assisted with the increased customer
service demand following the changing customer
expectations that rapidly evolved through the
coronavirus (COVID-19) restrictions.
Management of customer service knowledge
system
Council has continued to improve customer service
by increasing internal knowledge and emphasising
first point of contact resolution through enhanced
internal service partnerships. Overall, this has
improved the ability to resolve customer enquiries,
questions or needs the first time they call with
no follow-up required. Council aims to provide a
seamless ‘one stop shop’ experience for all our
customers with customer service employees having
the knowledge and information needed to manage
and direct all Council enquiries efficiently and
effectively.
Maroondah Community Panel
As part of developing the Council Plan 2021-2025
and to support the development of a range of other
strategic work, Council established a Deliberative
Panel to enable the community to guide Council
priorities. As part of the panel, 40 community
members assessed how we are progressing towards
the Maroondah 2040 Community Vision and helped
to shape priorities for inclusion in future Council
plans and strategies to align with community needs
and aspirations. The Panel met over ten sessions
in February and March 2021 to provide input
to Council on a broad range of topics including
health and wellbeing, liveable neighbourhoods,
environmental sustainability and Council assets.
Following the Panel, a set of recommendations were
provided to Council in April 2021 for consideration.
Input from the Community Panel informed the
Council Plan 2021-2025 and Financial Plan finalised
in 2020/21; and will also inform the Asset Plan,
Sustainability Strategy, and Liveability Wellbeing
and Resilience Strategy to be finalised in 2021/22.

Community engagement to inform a range
of projects
Council’s commitment to community engagement
is reflected in our Community Engagement Policy
and toolkit, which was endorsed by in March
2021. The policy adheres to the International
Association of Public Participation (IAP2)
principles which is the bench mark for the
engagement sector. Over the past twelve months
there have been 47 projects out for community
consultation ranging from enhancement plans,
infrastructure projects, and strategy and policy
development. Some of these projects include:
Draft Council Plan 2021-2025 and Proposed
Budget 2021/22; Domestic Animal Management
Plan 2021-2025; Draft Road Management Plan;
Aquahub Feasibility Study; Croydon Major Activity
Centre Structure Plan; Draft Waster Litter and
Resource Recovery Strategy; Ringwood East
Place Activation Project; Proposed Heathmont
Carpark; Croydon Multi-level Carpark; Jubilee Park
Enhancement Plan; Draft Maroondah COVID-19
Recovery Plan; Greening the Greyfields Project;
Croydon South 20-Minute Neighbourhood;
Proposed Local Law No. 15 - Common Seal and
Conduct at Meeting.
Council advocates for support at the national level
Council advocates for support at the Federal
level of governments as well as with the state
level. While at the National Assembly for the
Australian Local Government Association (ALGA),
Council advocated strongly for funding for
several sport and community projects and sought
support for the Bayswater Business Precinct.
Maroondah City Council presented a motion to
the Assembly seeking a one-off increase in the
amount of Financial Assistance Grants made
to Local Government for the 2021/22 year. The
motion recognises the substantial costs incurred,
and revenue lost, for all Councils as a result of
the COIVD-19 pandemic and the Federal, State
and Territory Government restrictions imposed
to mitigate the spread of the virus. This motion
received unanimous support, and was referred
to by the ALGA President in her address at the
National Press Club.
Connecting through social media
Council's 25 social media channels continue to
connect exceptionally well with our community,
with more than 41,000 people following our
Facebook, Twitter and Instagram messaging, and
an average weekly reach of more than 77,000
people (up from 71,000 a year ago).
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Recognition of volunteers from our Corporate
Volunteers Program
Council’s volunteers are formally thanked and
recognised at a Volunteer Recognition each
year. This annual event officially acknowledges
volunteers who assist Council by delivering
important services and activities for the
community. At the event, Council publicly
recognises the significant contribution of our
long-serving volunteers. Due to coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions, the event in 2020 was
unable to be held and will instead be rolled into an
event in 2021.

At the Volunteer Recognition event there is
also a presentation of the Bill Wilkins Volunteer
Award. Named in honour of community stalwart
Bill Wilkins, the award will be presented annually
in honour of those volunteers who inspire and
embody the spirit of volunteerism through their
exemplary contribution to the community. The
2020 winner was Dr Graeme Lorimer in recognition
of their conservation efforts including the
protection of the Kilsyth South Spider-orchid and
development of burning and weed management
practices in Maroondah bushland.

A well governed and
empowered community
Looking ahead
In continuing to work towards a well governed and empowered community
during 2021/22, Council will:
Implement the new Local Government Act 2020
The new Local Government Act 2020 (the Act)
is being implemented in four transitional stages,
during which time it will co-exist with many the
provisions within the former Local Government
Act 1989, up until 1 July 2021. The first phase of
reforms took effect on 6 April 2020, which put in
place these governance principles that provide
the foundation framework for the new Act. The
new Act requires Council to adopt specific policies
within set timeframes within 2020/21 and beyond.
Advocate on key local issues on behalf of the
Maroondah community, including in the lead up
to the State and Federal Government Elections
in 2022
Council will continue its robust advocacy to both
levels of Government to seek funding to address
a range of key priority infrastructure, sporting
and transportation improvement projects that will
benefit the Maroondah community.
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Implement the new Customer Service Strategy
that will continue to advance Council's
commitment to be highly responsive and
customer focused
Council will develop a new Customer Service
Strategy in 2021 in line with changing and evolving
customer expectations. This will include the
development and growth of online engagement
channels and further strengthening and
development of internal service partnerships.
Keep our community informed and engaged
To assist our community to stay informed and
engaged with important Council news regarding
services, events and activities, we will increase
the frequency of printed newsletters and provide
improved distribution methods to all households
and businesses. Distribution will also be improved
through additional Council and community
facilities and services and in local outlets. All
newsletters will continue to be distributed
electronically to our registered database and via
our social media channels.

Did you know?
32,120 people visited our
customer service centres.

Croydon Customer Service Centre, Civic Square, Croydon
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A well governed and
empowered community
Core services
Our core services Council delivers a broad range of services aimed at promoting
a well governed and empowered community. These services include:
Communications and Engagement

Financial Services (Finance and Governance)

The role of the Communications and Engagement
team is to promote the work and achievements
of Council and to keep the community informed
and engaged. The team is responsible for the
management of communication and engagement
strategy and planning; Council branding;
management and coordination of print, online,
digital and social media communication and
channels; content creation; media and public
relations; advocacy; community engagement
activity; internal communications; and the
promotion, branding and marketing of Maroondah
City Council’s services, activities and events
including Maroondah Leisure facilities.

This Financial Services team provides sound
financial management that complies with
legislative requirements, and also ensures
that planning and budgeting activities meet
Maroondah’s vision and the long-term financial
sustainability of Council. The core services include:
accounts payable, financial accounting (including
reconciliations, financial accounts and statutory
returns), management accounting (including long
term financial strategy, annual budget, monitoring
and reporting) strategic project analysis and
coordination of Council’s internal audit projects
for the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee.

The team also provides support to the Elected
Representatives, including calendar and
administrative support for the Mayor and
Councillors; management of civic, corporate and
capital project events; activities related to the
Mayor, Councillors and Council Meetings; and
coordination of policies, processes and reporting
related to the Mayor and Councillors.
Customer Service
(Revenue, Property and Customer Service)
The Customer Service team manages and
operates Council’s 1300 Contact Centre and two
service centres: in Croydon Civic Square and
Realm. The team provides information and referral
on Council services, supporting the customer
interface for key Council services such as Waste,
Local Laws, operations and Maroondah Leisure,
referral and triage of customer requests, and cash
receipting for payment of all accounts and fees.
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Governance and Procurement
(Finance and Governance)
The Governance function assists Council service
areas in providing high quality, timely and reliable
governance advice and support services to all
service areas across Council. The Procurement
function assists service areas in the purchasing
of goods and services through the strategic
development and co-ordination of the purchasing,
tendering and contract management processes.
Information Technology
The Information Technology team provides a
diverse range of services, supporting the delivery
of high quality, convenient, and cost-effective
services. This is achieved primarily through: the
enablement of Council employees by increasing
organisational efficiency through the adoption
and use of technology to underpin core service
delivery to the Maroondah community; and by
focusing on our citizens needs and expectations,
increasing the convenience of interacting with
Council by securely providing more services
online, delivering increased accessibility beyond
traditional business hours.

Management Accounting and Payroll
(Finance and Governance)

Risk, Information and Integrity
(Finance and Governance)

The Management Accounting Team ensures that
planning, budgeting and forecasting activities are
undertaken to assist the delivery of Maroondah’s
long-term vision to ensure Council’s long-term
financial sustainability. The Team also delivers
Council’s Payroll function, ensuring all salaries are
delivered accurately and on time.

The Risk, Information and Integrity oversees
the development, implementation and review
of the risk management framework across
Council which includes the development and
maintenance of strategic and operational risks
including risk treatment plans and administration
of the risk register. The function also provides
risk management advice and training to Council
service areas. Mitigation of Council’s liability is
achieved through effective claims management
and maintains appropriate insurance cover for
insurable assets and liabilities. This team also
helps ensure compliance in regard to statutory
registers, freedom of information and privacy
as well as the organisation’s information
management component, which relates to the
accurate and compliant storage of corporate
documents.

Realm Operations
(Revenue, Property and Customer Services
The Realm Operations team is the organisation’s
contact point for Realm operational issues and is
responsible for the day to day Realm operational
duties and requests, hall keeping duties, courier
services, technical support and meeting room
bookings and functionality.
Revenue and Property
(Revenue, Property and Customer Service)
The Revenue and Property team provides,
develops and implements Council’s revenue policy
and strategy, the annual rating strategy, statutory
declarations and notices, and rates and charges
generation. The team issues rate notices, develops
revenue projections, manages concessions,
sundry debtor invoicing, leads Council’s debt
recovery, Electoral Roll production, manages the
property database recording ownership changes,
new property creations, street numbering and
road naming. The team also manages the Name
and Address register and ePathway registration
requests for the organisation, along with Council’s
geographic information system (mapping)
database. The team also collect the Fire Services
Property Levy (FSPL) on behalf of the Victorian
Government. The property component has
carriage of Council’s land portfolio including,
buying, selling, encroachments, and statutory
requirements in relation to its land holdings.

Workplace People and Culture
The Workplace People and Culture team delivers
strategic, operational and advisory workforce
support services and programs designed to
attract, develop and retain high performing
employees who are committed to achieving
excellence in accordance with the workplace
values and strategic goals. Key functions of
the team include: human resources advisory
services; recruitment and selection, workforce/
industrial relations; learning and development;
organisational development; occupational health
and safety; WorkCover and injury management;
and volunteer and student placement
management.
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Corporate Governance
Maroondah City Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1989 and the new Local
Government Act 2020 to provide democratic local government for the Maroondah community. The
purposes and objectives of Council as well as the functions and powers of a local government are also
defined in both Acts.
The new Local Government Act 2020 received Royal Assent on 24 March 2020 and marks the
first comprehensive overhaul of local government in Victoria for over 30 years, replacing the Local
Government Act 1989. The new Act is being implemented in four (4) transitional stages, during which
time it will co-exist with a large number of the provisions within the former 1989 Act, up until 1 July 2021.
Democratic governance in Maroondah is supported by policies and protocols associated with both the
functions of Council and of Council employees.

Transparency in
decision-making

Councillor Briefing
Sessions/workshops

There are a number of underlying processes
that contribute to Council’s decision making;
some of which are formal and structured, while
others less formal. Formal decisions are made by
Council at Council Meetings, by Council Officers
or under formal powers of delegation. In this way
Council’s decision making remains transparent and
accountable to the community.

Before making decisions at a Council Meeting,
it is important that Councillors first satisfy
themselves about the detail of the issues. As a
means of providing this information, Council holds
briefings or workshops called Councillor Briefings.
Councillors do not make legally binding decisions
in these informal forums.

Council meetings
Council determines policy and makes other
decisions at Council Meetings on an ongoing basis.
Policies and budgets endorsed by Council provide
the framework for the provision of services and
programs and for day-to-day operational
decision-making.
Council Officers provide advice and expertise to
assist Council decision-making. At formal Council
meetings, the CEO and Directors present written
reports on matters requiring a Council decision.
These reports make up the Council Meeting
Agenda and provide background to, details of
and recommendations about each matter being
considered.
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These briefing sessions are an important forum
for advice and discussion, on what are often
complex issues facing the municipality in the lead
up to formal decisions being made by Councillors
at Council Meetings. At Councillor Briefings,
or outside them, Councillors also have the
opportunity of requesting additional information
to assist in the decision-making process. These
briefing sessions, which are not open to the
public, are also attended by Council Officers and
sometimes Consultants, to provide Councillors
with a detailed knowledge and understanding of
issues under consideration, to a level of detail that
would inhibit timely decision-making that would
not be possible in an open Council meeting, where
decision-making related debate is governed by
strict meeting procedures and time limits.
Councillor Briefings include a planned or scheduled
meeting, comprising at least five Councillors
and one member of Council staff, that considers
matters that are intended or likely to be:
•

the subject of a decision of the Council

•

subject to the exercise of a delegated
function, duty or power of Council.

Livestreaming of Council
meetings
Livestreaming of Council Meetings commenced
on 20 February 2017 to enhance processes and
provide ratepayers with a greater opportunity to
observe Council’s decision-making.

Community consultation
Council also has an ongoing commitment to
community consultation and ensuring that
residents within the municipality are empowered to
participate in the decision-making processes which
ultimately affect them.
Council recognises that engaging its residents is
essential in achieving effective decision-making
and has adopted its Community Engagement
Policy 2021, which can be viewed on the
Maroondah website. This policy is a formal
expression of Council’s commitment to engaging
the Maroondah community in decision making
processes through the use of appropriate,
effective and inclusive practices. The policy
applies to activities initiated by Council, including
statutory processes, service provision, projects,
strategic planning and policy development, and
other key activities that will have appreciable
impacts on the Maroondah community. This
occurs through a range of measures including
surveys, public forums, focus groups and targeted
consultations.

Councillor Code of Conduct
Council’s Code of Conduct is intended to ensure
all Councillors agree to the standards of conduct
and behaviour documented within this Code.
This Code of Conduct incorporates the statutory
requirements specified for a Code of Conduct
in accordance with section 139 of the Local
Government Act 2020 which has provided the
statutory direction for the 2020/21 financial year.
Many of the standards of conduct and behaviour
are prescribed within the Act.
From the October 2016 Council elections, a
candidate elected to be a Councillor is not
capable of acting as a Councillor until they have
read the Councillor Code of Conduct and made
a declaration stating that they will abide by the
Code. It is the personal responsibility of individual
Councillors to ensure that they will understand,
accept and comply with, the provisions of
this Code.
Councillors completed a review of the Code
which was adopted at a Council Meeting held on
15 February 2021.
The code requires that all Councillors:
•

act with integrity

•

impartially exercise their responsibilities
in the interests of the local community

•

not improperly seek to confer an advantage
or disadvantage on any person

•

avoid conflicts between their public
duties as a Councillor and their
personal interests and obligations

•

act honestly and avoid statements (oral
or in writing) or actions that will or are
likely to mislead or deceive a person

Council also conducts public consultation
meetings, as are an integral part the process when
considering Planning Applications in accord with
the Planning and Environment Act 1987.

•

treat all persons with respect and have
due regard to the opinions, beliefs, rights
and responsibilities of other Councillors,
Council employees and other persons

Ward Councillors determine whether or not a
consultation meeting is required, which is largely
dependent upon the number of objections received
to an application. These meetings, which are not
decision-making forums, provide opportunities for:

•

exercise reasonable care and diligence and
submit themselves to the lawful scrutiny
that is appropriate to their office

•

endeavour to ensure that public resources are
used prudently and solely in the public interest

Council’s Governance Rules makes provision
for public participation at Ordinary Meetings of
Council via Public Question Time.

Statutory planning process

•

the applicant to explain the proposed
development and respond to objections

•

•

residents to express their views and ask
questions of the applicant and Councillors.

act lawfully and in accordance with the trust
placed in them as an elected representative

•

support and promote these principles
by leadership and example and act in a
way that secures and preserves public
confidence in the office of Councillor.
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Delegations

Councillor representation

Council has delegated specific functions to
nominated employees, which enables routine
decisions to be made more speedily and ensures
that Council meetings are not engaged with
procedural and operational administrative
decisions. It also enables Council to utilise the
technical knowledge, training and experience of its
employees to provide the best possible service to
the community.

Council appoints Council delegates at the
commencement of a new mayoral term on an
annual basis. It provides clear communication
and delegate identification for Councillors,
the community and the organisations or
bodies/advisory groups to which a Councillor
is a delegate.

Delegations are made by resolution of Council at a
formal Council meeting and specify the degree of
decision making and action for which employees
are empowered. In exercising their delegated
powers, employees must observe the strategies,
policies and guidelines that have been adopted by
Council. Through the CEO, Directors and Managers,
Council monitors the actions of its employees to
ensure that they exercise their delegated authority
within the general framework it has determined.
Employees to whom delegated authority
has been given include the CEO, Directors,
Managers, planning employees, environmental
health employees, local laws employees, the and
Municipal Building Surveyor and building surveyors.
Many routine decisions of Council are made by
these employees.
Council must also keep a register of all delegations,
which is available for public inspection.
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There are two types of bodies requiring formal
Council representation, either internal or external.
Internal bodies/advisory groups have been initiated
by Council and are serviced administratively.
They typically consider in-depth issues that
are related to Council policy or activities. Their
primary purpose is to advise Council on issues.
An extension of these committees has been the
development of internal committees with a large
degree of community representation.
External bodies are those outside the control of
Council as they operate under their own charter
and determine their own procedures, policies and
practices. In these instances, Council involvement
is to participate and influence the activities of
those external groups where those activities are in
the interests of Maroondah residents. Committee
representation is reviewed on an annual basis and
aligns with the election of Mayor.
Convention indicates that where the Mayor is a
member of an internal Committee of Council, they
would automatically act as the Chair, unless they
relinquish that role. Additionally, in accordance
with good governance practice where the Mayor is
not a specific member of a Committee, they may
exercise the option to attend any committee in an
ex-officio capacity.

Council involvement on internal advisory committees
These committees provide Council advice from key stakeholders on a range of issues.
Representation on Council Advisory Committees
Council Advisory Committee

Council Representative/s

Audit and Risk Advisory
Committee

July to October 2020: Mayor of the Day and Cr Spears

Arts Advisory Committee
Disability Advisory Committee

November to June 2021: Mayor of the Day and Cr Symon
July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Spears, Cr Graham and Cr Symon
November to June 2021: Cr Macdonald, Cr Stojanovic and Cr Symon
July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Spears and Cr Dib
Substitute representative:
July 2020 to October 2020: Program Manager Community Planning
and Development
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Spears, Cr Dib and Cr Steane

Maroondah Access Equity and
Inclusion Committee reps

Cr Graham, Cr Lamont and Cr Stojanovic

Maroondah Community Health
and Wellbeing Advisory
Committee (previously known
as Maroondah Partners
in Community Wellbeing
Committee) reps

Cr Damante, Cr Dib and Cr Stojanovic

Maroondah Community Safety
Committee

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Lamont, Cr Steane and Cr Macdonald
Substitute representative:
July 2020 to October 2020: Community Safety Officer

Maroondah Liveability, Safety
and Amenity Committee
(previously known as
Maroondah Community Safety
Committee)

November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Damante, Cr Lamont and Cr Steane

Maroondah Business Advisory
Committee

July 2020 to June 2021: Cr Spears, Cr Steane and Cr Damante

Maroondah Partners in
Community Wellbeing
Committee

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Mazzuchelli and Cr Damante

Maroondah Environment
Advisory Committee

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Mazzuchelli, Cr Graham and
Cr Macdonald

Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to October 2020: Social Planning and Development Officer
and Program Manager Community Planning and Development

November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Graham, Cr Macdonald and
Cr Stojanovic

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

135

Annual Report 2020/21

Council involvement on external committees
These regional committees provide Council with the opportunity to represent local residents on a broad
range of issues.
Representation on External Committees
External Committee

Council Representative/s

Eastern Affordable Housing
Alliance / Committee

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Dib
Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to October 2020: Program Manager Community Planning
& Development and/or Manager Integrated Planning
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Macdonald
Substitute representatives:
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Stojanovic

Eastern Regional Group Mayors and CEO’s

July to October 2020: The Mayor of the Day, Deputy Mayor of the
Day and the Chief Executive Officer
Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Spears
November 2020 to June 2021: The Mayor of the Day, Deputy Mayor
of the Day and the Chief Executive Officer
Substitute representatives:
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Symon

Eastern Regional Libraries
Corporation

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Spears and Cr Damante
Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Paul Macdonald and Director
Corporate Services (or nominee) and Manager Revenue, Property and
Customer Service
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Spears and Cr Damante
Substitute representatives:
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Lamont

Eastern Alliance for
Greenhouse Action

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Graham
Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to June 2020: Cr Paul Macdonald, and Director Planning
and Community and/or Manager Integrated Planning
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Graham
Substitute representatives:
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Stojanovic

Eastern Transport Coalition

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Damante
Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Graham and the Transport &
Sustainability Planner and/or Team Leader Strategic Planning &
Sustainability
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Graham
Substitute representatives:
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Damante
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Representation on External Committees
External Committee

Council Representative/s

Local Government Safe Cities
Network

July 2020 to June 2021: Cr Steane

Maroondah Age-Friendly Cities
and Communities Network

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Dib, Cr Lamont and Cr Graham

Maroondah - Communities of
Wellbeing Steering Committee

June to October 2020: Cr Mazzuchelli and Cr Graham

Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to June 2021: Cr Lamont

Substitute representatives:
Manager Integrated Planning
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Graham and Cr Macdonald

Metec (Metropolitan Training
Education Centre Inc.)

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Lamont
Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Mazzuchelli
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Steane
Substitute representatives:
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Lamont

Metropolitan Local
Governments’ Waste Forum

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Symon

Metropolitan Waste
Resource Recovery Group
Forum (previously known
as Metropolitan Local
Governments’ Waste Forum)

November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Symon

Municipal Association of
Victoria State Council

July 2020 to June 2021: Cr Symon

Victorian Local Government
Women’s Charter

July 2020 to October 2020: Cr Mazzuchelli, Cr Graham, Cr Spears,
Cr Lamont, Cr Damante and the Director of Corporate Services as
Council’s representatives/Charter Champions

Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to October 2020: Director Corporate Services, Manager
Finance and Governance, and Waste Management Coordinator

Substitute representatives:
November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Graham, Director Corporate
Services, Manager Finance & Governance and Coordinator Waste
Management

Substitute representatives:
July 2020 to June 2021: Cr Spears

November 2020 to June 2021: Cr Stojanovic, Cr Graham, Cr Spears,
Cr Lamont, Cr Damante and the Director of Corporate Services as
Council’s representatives/Charter Champions
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Council meeting attendance
From July 2020 to June 2021, 12 ordinary Council meetings, one (1) Special Council and one (1) Statutory
Council meetings were held. Councillor attendance at the meetings in 2020/21 was as follows:
Councillor attendance at Council Meetings – July 2020 to October 2020
Councillors

Meetings
eligible
to attend

Leave of
absence
Special Statutory
Total
granted
Council
Council attendance (# of mtgs)
Meetings Meetings
Attendance

Ordinary
Council
Meetings

Arrabri Ward Councillors
Cr Tony Dib OAM JP

5

4

1

0

5

0

Cr Paul Macdonald

5

3

1

0

4

0

Cr Kylie Spears

5

4

1

0

5

0

Cr Nora Lamont

5

4

1

0

5

0

Cr Samantha Mazzuchelli

5

4

1

0

5

0

Cr Mike Symon
Mayor

5

4

1

0

5

0

Cr Tasa Damante

5

4

1

0

5

0

Cr Marijke Graham
Deputy Mayor:

5

4

1

0

5

0

Cr Rob Steane

5

4

1

0

5

0

Mullum Ward Councillors

Wyreena Ward Councillors
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Councillor attendance at Council Meetings – November 2020 to June 2021
Councillors

Meetings
eligible
to attend

Leave of
absence
Special Statutory
Total
granted
Council
Council attendance (# of mtgs)
Meetings Meetings
Attendance

Ordinary
Council
Meetings

Barngeong Ward Councillor
Cr Marijke Graham

9

7

0

1

8

0

9

7

0

1

8

0

9

7

0

1

8

1*

9

7

0

1

8

0

9

8

0

1

9

0

9

7

0

1

8

0

9

7

0

1

8

1*

9

8

0

1

9

0

9

7

0

1

8

0

Bungalook Ward Councillor
Cr Tony Dib OAM JP
Jubilee Ward Councillor
Cr Mike Symon
McAlpin Ward Councillor
Cr Suzy Stojanovic
Tarralla Ward Councillor
Cr Paul Macdonald
Wicklow Ward Councillor
Cr Tasa Damante
Wonga Ward Councillor
Cr Nora Lamont
Deputy Mayor
Wombalano Ward Councillor
Cr Kylie Spears
Mayor
Yarrunga Ward Councillor
Cr Rob Steane

*Notes:
Cr Nora Lamont was granted Leave of Absence from the Ordinary Council Meeting held 26 April 2021
Cr Mike Symon was granted Leave of Absence from the Ordinary Council Meeting held 10 May 2021
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Conflict of interest
Conflict of Interest provisions as defined in the
Local Government Act 1989, continued to operate
until 24 October 2020, at which time provisions
within the new Local Government Act 2020
now apply.
The Local Government Act 2020 defines the
circumstances that give rise to a Conflict of
Interest for Councillors, Council employees and
members of Council special committees. It also
specifies the actions that should be taken to
resolve a Conflict of Interest.
Councillors are elected by the residents and
ratepayers of their municipality to act in the best
interests of the community. This is a position of
trust and it needs to be clear that Councillors
are acting in the public interest. When a Council
delegates its powers to a Council officer or a
Committee, the officer or the Committee Members
also need to act in the public interest.
A person in public office has a Conflict of Interest
when they have a personal or private interest
that might compromise their ability to act in the
public interest. A Conflict of Interest exists even
if no improper act results from it. Under the Local
Government Act 2020, there are two types of
conflict of interest, Section 127 General Conflict of
Interest and Section 128 Material Conflict
of Interest.
General conflict of interest in a matter if an
impartial, fair-minded person would consider that
the person's private interests could result in that
person acting in a manner that is contrary to their
public duty.
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•

private interests mean any direct or
indirect interest of a relevant person that
does not derive from their public duty and
does not include an interest that is only
a matter of personal opinion or belief;

•

public duty means the responsibilities
and obligations that a relevant person
has to members of the public in
their role as a relevant person.
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Material conflict of interest in respect of a matter
if an affected person would gain a benefit or
suffer a loss depending on the outcome of
the matter.
(2) The benefit may arise, or the loss incurred:
(a) directly or indirectly
(b) in a pecuniary or non-pecuniary form
(3) For the purposes of this section, any of the
following is an affected person:
(a) the relevant person
(b) a family member of the relevant person
(c) a body corporate of which the relevant
person or their spouse or domestic partner
is a Director or a member of the governing
body
(d) an employer of the relevant person, unless
the employer is a public body
(e) a business partner of the relevant person
(f) a person for whom the relevant person is a
consultant, contractor or agent
(g) a beneficiary under a trust or an object of
a discretionary trust of which the relevant
person is a trustee
(h) a person from whom the relevant person
has received a disclosable gift.
Declaration of a Conflict of Interest is a standard
agenda item for all Ordinary Council, Special
Council, Assembly of Councillor briefings, and
Committee meetings.
While the procedures may vary depending on the
circumstances, in general they involve disclosing
the relevant interests in a specific way and then
stepping aside from the relevant decision-making
process or from the exercise of their public duty.

During 2020/2021, four (4) conflict of interest disclosures were made at Special and Ordinary Meetings
of Council.
Conflict of Interest Disclosures at Ordinary and Special Meetings of Council
Councillor

Officer

Total

Direct interest (section 77B)
Indirect interest by close association (section 78)

1

1

Indirect financial interest (section 78A)
Indirect interest because of conflicting duties (section 78B)
Indirect interest due to receipt of a gift, being of $200 value or more
(section 78C)
Indirect interest as a consequence of becoming party to civil
proceedings (section 78D)
Indirect interest because of impact on residential amenity (section 78E)
Conflicting personal interest (section 79B)
General Conflict of Interest (LGA 2020)

3

Material Conflict of Interest (LGA 2020)
Note: Conflict of Interest is expressed differently under the new Local Government Act 2020, which has introduced the new
concepts of General Conflict of Interest and Material Conflict of Interest - (refer Part 6, Division 2, Sections 126 to 131, which
was enacted on 24 October 2020).:
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Councillor allowances
In accordance with Section 39 of the Local Government Act 2020, Councillors are entitled to receive
an allowance while performing their duty as a Councillor. The Mayor is also entitled to receive a higher
allowance.
The Victorian Government sets the upper and lower limits for all allowances paid to Councillors and
Mayors. Councils are divided into three categories based on the income and population of each
Council. Maroondah City Council is recognised as a Category Two Council.
The following table contains a summary of the Councillor Allowance paid to each Councillor during the
2020/21 financial year.

Councillors
Cr Marijke Graham
Deputy Mayor July to October 2020

$27,721.15

Cr Tony Dib JP

$27,721.15

Cr Mike Symon
Mayor July to October 2020
Cr Suzy Stojanovic
Elected October 2020

$46,487.00
$18,759.74

Cr Paul Macdonald

$27,721.15

Cr Tasa Damante

$27,721.15

Cr Nora Lamont
Deputy Mayor November 2020 to June 2021

$27,721.15

Cr Kylie Spears
Mayor November 2020 to June 2021
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Allowance

$66,002.39

Cr Rob Steane

$27,721.15

Cr Samantha Mazzuchelli
Term concluded October 2020

$8,961.41
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Councillor expenses
In accordance with Section 40 and 42 of the Local Government Act 2020 which has provided the
statutory direction for the 2020/21 financial year, Council is required to reimburse a Councillor for
expenses incurred whilst performing his or her duties as a Councillor. Council is also required to adopt
and maintain a Policy in relation to the reimbursement of expenses for Councillors. The Policy provides
guidance for the payment of reimbursements of expenses and the provision of resources, facilities and
other support to the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors to enable them to discharge their duties. A
budget of $102,000 in the 2020/21 financial year was allocated for the expenses and reimbursement of
Councillors.
Council also publishes in its Annual Report the details of the expenses, including reimbursement of
expenses for each Councillor and member of a Council Committee paid by the council. The details of the
expenses for the 2020/21 financial year are set out in the table below.

Councillor

TR
($)

CM
($)

CC
($)

IC
($)

CT
($)

CCA
($)

Total
($)

525.24

0

80.39

1489.81

6422.27

137.00

8654.71

Cr Tony Dib JP

0

0

0

1250.38

0

35.64

1286.02

Cr Mike Symon
Mayor July to
October 2020

1062.04

4140.09*

0

1282.40

3217.06

403.36

10104.95*

0

0

225.00

664.07

694.85

184.76

1768.68

1252.17

112.60

0

1375.83

2686.44

297.79

5724.83

Cr Tasa Damante

0

0

326.45

1220.99

454.54

229.57

2231.55

Cr Nora Lamont
Deputy Mayor
November 2020 to
June 2021

0

0

0

1132.74

200.27

137.14

1470.15

Cr Kylie Spears
Mayor November 2020
to June 2021

1193.06

7633.33*

0

1630.12

4101.79

492.55

15050.85*

Cr Rob Steane

1610.03

205.64

0

1325.23

2420.91

732.71

6294.52

0

0

0

695.62

77.00

0

772.62

Cr Marijke Graham
Deputy Mayor July to
October 2020

Cr Suzy Stojanovic
Elected October 2020
Cr Paul Macdonald

Cr Samantha
Mazzuchelli Term
concluded October
2020

Legend: TR-Travel, CM-Car Mileage (*A budget allocation of $12,000 is attached to the Office of Mayor for the provision of a
vehicle), CC-Child Care, IC-Information and Communication expenses, CT-Conferences and Training expenses, CCA-Civic and
Community Attendance.
Note: No expenses were paid by Council, including reimbursements, to members of Council committees during the year.
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Accountability
Audit and Risk Advisory Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee is established pursuant to Section 53 of the Local Government Act 2020
which has provided the statutory direction for the 2020/21 financial year. The Committee assists Council
in the discharge of its responsibility for financial reporting, maintaining internal controls, protecting
the integrity of Council assets and facilitating good corporate governance. The Committee has an
independent monitoring role and reports directly to Council.
Role

Membership

The role of the Audit and Risk Committee is to
oversee, monitor and report upon the effectiveness
of Council in carrying out its responsibilities
for accountable financial management, good
corporate governance, maintaining a system
of internal control and risk management, and
fostering an ethical environment.

Membership consists of five members, three
external members (one of which is the chair), the
Mayor and one additional Councillor. Councillor
representatives are appointed annually. External
member positions are advertised, and successful
candidates are appointed for a three year term
with a maximum of six years. The Chief Executive
Officer, Director Corporate Services, Manager
Finance and Governance attend for advice
and administrative support while the internal
auditor and the external auditor attend meetings
by invitation, to assist the committee with
information requests.

Responsibilities
The responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Advisory
Committee include providing assurance that:
•

financial and management reporting is reliable

•

high standards of corporate
governance are maintained

•

accounting policies are appropriate

•

council maintains compliance with all
relevant legislation and regulations

•

risk management frameworks are effective

•

internal and external audit functions
are effective and efficient

•

business continuity and disaster recovery
planning is appropriate and effective

•

council maintains and fosters
an ethical environment.

Key activities
The Committee met on a quarterly basis during
2020/21 and its activities included a
•
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a detailed review of quarterly and
annual financial statements

•

identification and assessment of strategic,
organisational, and operational level
risks (including risks associated with the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic

•

assessing the content and priorities
of the internal audit program

•

reviewing results from the
conduct of internal audits.
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Audit and Risk Advisory Committee membership
Period

July 2020 to
November 2020

November 2020
to June 2021

External
Members

Mr John Watson
(Chair)

Mr John Watson
(Chair)

Mr Bruce Potgieter Mr Bruce Potgieter
Mr Michael Ulbrick Mr Michael Ulbrick
Councillor Cr. Rob Steane
Members (Mayor)

Cr. Kylie Spears
(Mayor)

Cr. Mike Symon

Cr. Mike Symon

External audit
Council is externally audited by the Victorian
Auditor-General. In 2020/21, the Office of the
Auditor-General appointed RSM Australia as their
representative. An external audit is undertaken
each year on Council’s Financial and Standard
Statements, and Performance Statement.

Risk Management
Maroondah City Council continues its commitment to proactive risk management as an integral part of
its corporate governance system and operational service delivery performance. The fundamental aim is
to support and enable Council to achieve its objectives through the identification and management of
risks and the maximisation of opportunities.

Enterprise Risk Management

Risk Register

A risk management framework is defined as a
set of components that provide the foundations
and organisational arrangements for designing,
implementing, monitoring, reviewing and
continually improving risk management
throughout the organisation. Council has adopted
a comprehensive Risk Management Framework
which includes strategic, organisational and
operational level risks.

The Risk Register includes strategic organisational,
operational and coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
related risks and is reviewed in its entirety every
quarter. The fundamental risk assessment process
is used in the identification, treatment and rating
of risks. This review includes evaluation of the
existing risks and addition of new or emerging
risks. Treatment plans are also formulated for any
high or extreme level risks, to lower the level of
risk to a more acceptable medium/low risk target.

The purpose of the Risk Management Framework
is to align effective risk management practices
across Council within a common framework,
based on the Australian standard. The
effectiveness of embedding such a framework
is measured by its state of maturity of the
management of Councils risk which includes
benchmarking across the local government
throughout Australia. Council has developed a risk
aware culture and has increased risk knowledge
and used its application to facilitate decision
making processes, leadership commitment,
reporting and evaluation. The Risk Management
Framework reflects the current risk activity
within Council.

Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Group’s key function is to
monitor the risk management framework across
Council. The group has broad management
representation across operational service areas.
Activities of this group are routinely reported to
the Audit and Risk Committee.
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Freedom of Information requests
The Freedom of Information Act 1982 (the Act) provides the right for individuals to access information
held by Council, subject to the exemptions contained within the Act.
The Act has four basic principles:
1. Local governments are required to publish
information about the documents they hold,
particularly those which affect members of the
public in their dealings with Council.
2. Each person has a legally enforceable right to
access information, limited only by exemptions
within the Act (necessary for the protection of
the public interest and the private and business
affairs of persons from whom information is
collected by Council).

3. People may appeal against a decision not to
give access to information or not to amend a
personal record.
4. People may request inaccurate, incomplete,
out of date or misleading information in their
personal records be amended.
Pursuant to the Act sections 65AA ‘Report
by Council’, and section 64(3) the following
information is supplied relating to Freedom of
Information applications for the period 1 July 2020
to 30 June 2021.

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

20

7

9

10

12

1

0

6

7

6

13

7

2

1

1

Other (Withdrawn, no documents found,
Not proceeded with etc)

6

-

-

-

3

Access denied in full

0

0

-

1

1

Requests still under consideration

1

0

1

1

1

Number of reviews by FOI Commissioner
sought (Internal Reviews prior to 2012/13)

1

0

1

-

-

Appeals lodged with VCAT

0

0

-

-

-

Notices served pursuant to section 12(1) of
the Act

0

0

-

-

-

0

0

-

-

-

$592

$177.60

$173.40

$170.40

$279.00

$0

$0

$36.20

$0

$85.00

Total number of new requests
Access granted in full
Access granted in part

Occasions where disciplinary action was
taken against any officer regarding the
administration of this Act
Application fees collected
Access charges collected

No other facts are relevant pursuant to section 64(3)(a) to (j) of the Act. Freedom of information
requests must be made in writing and be accompanied by a $29.60 application fee. Applicants should
also indicate how they would like to receive the information. Under legislation, Council must decide if the
information will be provided within 30 days.
All enquiries relating to accessing documents under freedom of information should be directed to
Council’s Risk, Information and Integrity Team. The Freedom of Information Officer made all decisions
on requests.
Information regarding Freedom of Information including an outline of the process, initial application fee
and application form is published on Council’s website at www.maroondah.vic.gov.au
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Privacy Risk
Maroondah City Council has adopted a Privacy
Policy to regulate the use and access by
Council to the personal information and health
information that it collects from both its residents
and clients.
To provide services all Councils are required
to collect and use personal, confidential and
sensitive information of individuals. Council is
required to balance the rights of individuals
to have controls over the use of their personal
information to ensure that the right information is
available for services to operate and function.
Both the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014
(the Act) and the Health Records Act 2001 require
all Victorian Councils to comply with a series
of privacy principles that are tailored for either
the collection and use of personal information
or the collection and use of health information.
Maroondah is fully committed to its privacy
obligations.
Council has adopted a Privacy Policy to regulate
the use and access by Council to the personal and
health information that it collects from both its
residents and clients.
Maroondah City Council has always regarded
privacy as very important and has appointed
a Privacy Officer to assist in the handling of
any enquiries.

Public Interest Disclosures
The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (the Act)
commenced operation in February 2013 and was
amended in 2019 which includes new protections
for anyone making a public interest disclosure and
included changing the name of this legislation to
the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012 (PID Act).
The amendments came into effect on 1 January
2020. The purpose of the PID Act is to encourage
and facilitate the disclosure of any improper
conduct. Any person who has reasonable grounds
to believe that improper or corrupt conduct
has occurred may make a disclosure. For Local
Government, disclosures can be made about
Councillors and any Council employees directly
to the Independent broad-based anti-corruption
commission (IBAC). Protection is provided by the
PID Act to those persons within an organisation
disclosing corrupt behaviour.
Maroondah City Council recognises the value
of transparency and accountability in its
administrative and management practices. Council
is committed to the aims and objectives of the
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012. A policy
handling public interests’ disclosures have been
adopted to comply with the provisions of the PID
Act. Copies of this Policy are available on Council’s
website at www.maroondah.vic.gov.au
During 2020/21, Council did not receive any public
interest disclosures.

The privacy officer can be contacted
on 1300 88 22 33 or via email
privacy@maroondah.vic.gov.au

Procurement
Council’s Procurement Policy 2019 aims to
provide a framework that ensures Maroondah City
Council’s purchasing procedures and processes
are undertaken in a manner conversant with
occupational health and safety, risk management
practices, relevant legislation, purchasing principles
and Council’s corporate objectives.
This Policy establishes the framework within which
Council employees undertake the purchasing of
goods and services for the efficient and effective
functioning of their service area.
In accordance with this policy, Council did not
enter into any contracts valued at $150,000 or
greater for services or $200,000 or greater for
works of a kind specified in section 186(5)(a)
and (c) of the Act. There were 3 instances of
Council engaging a contractor for works valued
over $200,000, without first engaging in a
competitive process.
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Legislation
Council delivers a wide range of services and operates within a highly regulated environment.
These Acts and regulations can either:
•

have a direct impact on Council and require significant compliance

•

contain specific provisions relevant to Council

•

have indirect influence and require knowledge by employees carrying out their duties.

Legislation that impacts upon Council activities (but is not limited to) is identified below:
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•

Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

•

Aged Care Act 1997 (Commonwealth)

•

Education and Training Reform Act 2006

•

Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012

•

Electricity Safety Act 1998

•

Australian Accounting Standards

•

Emergency Management Act 2013

•

Building Act 1993

•

Environment Protection Act 2017

•

Building Regulations 2018

•

Environmental Protection Regulations 2021

•

Carers Recognition Act 2012

•

Estate Agents Act 1980

•

Catchment and Land Protection Act 1994

•

Fences Act 1968

•

Charter of Human Rights and
Responsibilities Act 2006

•

Fire Rescue Victoria Act 1958 (formerly known
as the Metropolitan Fire Brigades Act)

•

Child Wellbeing and Safety Act 2005

•

Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012

•

Children Youth and Families Act 2005

•

Flora and Fauna Guarantee Act 1988

•

Children’s Services Regulations 1998

•

Flora and Fauna Guarantee Regulations 2020

•

City of Melbourne Act 2001

•

Food Act 1984

•

City of Melbourne (Electoral) Regulations 2012

•

Freedom of Information Act 1982

•

Climate Change Act 2017

•

Gambling Regulation Act 2003

•

Conservation, Forests and Land Act 1987

•

Geographical Place Names Act 1998

•

Constitution Act 1975

•

Geothermal Energy Resources Regulations 2016

•

Country Fire Authority Act 1958

•

Graffiti Prevention Act 2007

•

Country Fire Authority (Community
Fire Refuges) Regulations 2014
Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978

•

Health (Immunisation) Regulations 1999

•

Health Records Act 2001

•

Heavy Vehicle National Law Application Act 2013

•

Heritage Act 2017

•

Housing Act 1983

•

Impounding of Livestock Act 1994

•

Independent Broad-Based AntiCorruption Commission Act 2011

National Law Regulations 2011

•

Cultural and Recreational Lands Act 1963

•

Dangerous Goods (Explosives) Regulations 2011

•

Dangerous Goods Act 1985

•

Development Victoria Act 2003 (formerly known
as Urban Renewal Authority Victoria Act 2003,
Victorian Urban Development Authority Act)

•

Disability Act 2006

•

Infringements Act 2006

•

Domestic Animals Act 1994

•

Infringements Regulations 2016

•

Drugs, Poisons and Controlled
Substances Regulations 2017

•

Land Acquisition and Compensation Act 1986

•

•

Education and Care Services
National Law Act 2010

Land Acquisition and Compensation
Regulations 2010

•

Land Act 1958

•

Education and Care Services
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•

Liquor Control Reform Act 1998

•

Local Government Act 2020

•

Local Government Act 1989

•

Local Government (Electoral) Regulations 2020

•

Local Government (General) Regulations 2015

•

Local Government (Governance and
Integrity) Regulations 2020

•

Local Government (Long Service
Leave) Regulations 2012

•

Road Management (Works and
Infrastructure) Regulations 2015

•

Road Safety (General) Regulations 2019

•

Road Safety (Traffic Management)
Regulations 2019

•

Road Safety (Vehicles) Regulations 2020

•

Road Safety Act 1986

•

Road Safety Road Rules 2017

•

Second Hand Dealers and Pawnbrokers Act 1989

•

Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2020

•

Sex Work Act 1994 (formerly known
as the Prostitution Control Act)

•

Magistrates' Court Act 1989

•

Sheriff Act 2009

•

Major Transport Projects Facilitation Act 2009

•

Sport and Recreation Act 1972

•

Mineral Resources (Sustainable
Development) Act 1990 (formerly known
as Mineral Resources Development Act)

•

Subdivision (Fees) Regulations 2016

•

Subdivision (Procedures) Regulations 2011

•

Subdivision (Registrar's
Requirements) Regulations 2011

•

Subdivision Act 1988

•

Summary Offences Act 1966

•

Tobacco Act 1987

•

Transfer of Land Act 1958

•

Transport (Safety Schemes Compliance
and Enforcement) Act 2014

•

Transport Integration Act 2010

•

Valuation of Land Act 1960

•

Victorian Local Government Grants
Commission Act 1976 (formerly known
as Victoria Grants Commission Act)

•

Victoria State Emergency Service Act 2005

•

Victorian Inspectorate Act 2011

•

Water Act 1989

•

Municipal Association Act 1907

•

Municipalities Assistance Act 1973

•

Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004

•

Occupational Health and Safety
Regulations 2017

•

Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014

•

Planning and Environment Act 1987

•

Planning and Environment Regulation 2015

•

Planning and Environment
(Fees) Regulations 2016

•

Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012 (formerly
the Protected Disclosure Act 2012)

•

Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008

•

Public Health and Wellbeing Regulations 2019

•

Public Records Act 1973

•

Public Records Regulations 2013

•

Residential Tenancies Act 1997

•

Road Management Act 2004

•

Road Management (General) Regulations 2016

The full text of Victorian Acts and Regulations is
online at: www.legislation.vic.gov.au
Full text of Commonwealth legislation is online at:
www.legislation.gov.au
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Occupational Health and Safety
Maroondah City Council has continued to
actively work with its employees, contractors
and volunteers in order to maintain and improve
positive safety performance and minimise
potentially adverse consequences.
Council continues to focus on incorporating
safety considerations into all aspects of service
delivery and operational activities, via a positive
safety culture. The ongoing maintenance of
effective consultative processes such as Council’s
OHS committee structures continue to assist
with fostering a positive and action orientated
organisational safety culture. Other aspects
of Council’s Occupational Health and Safety
(OHS) systems such as policies, procedures and
processes have been further developed and
improved, with a particular focus on lone workers;
contractor management; and plant safety.

The outcomes of audit and review processes
continue to guide and inform potential
opportunities for further improvements to
Council’s safety management system elements.
Workplace incidents continue to be actively
reported and investigated in order to facilitate
the implementation of effective countermeasures
and corrective actions. Council’s proactive injury
management processes continue to assist with
the effective management of an ageing workforce,
and with minimising the impacts of work-related
injuries or illnesses.

Equal opportunity, harassment and bullying prevention
Maroondah City Council is committed to providing a workplace free of all forms of unlawful
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, bullying and vilification and aims for equality of opportunity for
all employees, Councillors, consultants, contractors, and volunteers.
Discrimination, harassment, victimisation, bullying and vilification are not only unacceptable at Council,
they are unlawful and Council will ensure that all employees, Councillors, consultants, contractors, and
volunteers are educated in the prevention of unlawful equal opportunity (EO) acts.
Maroondah City Council is committed to:

•

protection from any victimisation or reprisals

•

•

encouraging the reporting of
inappropriate behaviour

•

promoting appropriate standards
of conduct at all times.

•

•
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implementing policies, practices, training
and education to ensure compliance with all
relevant legislation, with a particular emphasis
in 2021/22 on Gender Equality Act 2020 and
the VAGO recommendations in relation to
Sexual Harassment in Local Government
creating a working environment which
is free from discrimination, harassment,
victimisation, bullying and vilification, where
all Employees, Councillors, Consultants,
contractors, and volunteers are treated
with dignity, courtesy and respect
implementing training and awareness
raising strategies to ensure that all parties
know their rights and responsibilities,
as far as is reasonably practicable

•

providing an effective procedure for
complaints raising and resolution, based
on the principles of natural justice

•

treating all complaints in a sensitive,
fair, timely, and confidential manner
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Maroondah City Council convenes an Equal
Opportunity Consultative Committee (EOCC)
that meets several times a year. The purpose
of the EOCC is to:
•

stand for the awareness of a fair
and equitable workplace

•

raise awareness on issues and concerns
around EO within the workplace

•

identify opportunities and issues
that relate to our workplace and
facilitate actions to drive change

•

raise prevailing issues that exist
within the organisation

•

provide direction to the broader
organisation on diversity and inclusion.

Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: governance and management checklist
The following statement provides the results in the prescribed form of Council’s assessment against
the governance and management checklist as part of the Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework.
#

Governance and Management Items

Assessment

1

Community Engagement Policy (policy
under section 55 of the Act outlining
Council’s commitment to engaging with the
community on matters of public interest)

Adopted in accordance with section 55 of
the Act

Community engagement guidelines
(guidelines to assist staff to determine
when and how to engage with the
community)

Guidelines

Financial Plan (plan under section 91 of the
Act outlining financial and non-financial
resources required for at least the next 10
financial years

Adopted in accordance with section 91 of
the Act

Asset Plan (plan under section 92 of the
Act setting out the assets maintenance and
renewal needs for key infrastructure asset
classes for at least the next 10 years)

Adopted in accordance with section 92 of
the Act

Revenue and Rating Plan (plan under
section 93 of the Act setting out the rating
structure of Council to levy rates and
charges)

Adopted in accordance with section 93 of
the Act

Annual Budget (plan under section 94
of the Act setting out the services to be
provided and initiatives to be undertaken
during the budget year and the funding and
other resources required)

Adopted in accordance with section 94 of
the Act

Risk policy (policy outlining Council’s
commitment and approach to minimising
the risks to Council’s operations)

Policy

Fraud policy (policy outlining Council’s
commitment and approach to minimising
the risk of fraud)

Policy

Municipal Emergency Management Plan
(plan under section 20 of the Emergency
Management Act 1986 for emergency
prevention, response and recovery)

Prepared and maintained in accordance
with section 20 of the Emergency
Management Act 1986

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9



Date of adoption: 15 February 2021


Date of commencement of current
guidelines: 21 June 2016


Date of adoption: 28 June 2021


Date of adoption: 16 October 2015
Council’s current Asset Management Plans
were adopted in 2015/16. An Asset Plan is
currently under development to meet new
requirements of the Local Government
Act 2020 pursuant to section 92 due for
implementation 30 June 2022.


Date of adoption: 28 June 2021


Date of adoption: 28 June 2021



Date of commencement of current policy:
7 June 2021


Date of commencement of current policy:
10 May 2021


Date of preparation: 17 Feb 2020
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#

Governance and Management Items

Assessment

10

Procurement Policy (policy under section
186A of the Act outlining the principles,
processes and procedures that will apply
to the purchase of goods and services by
Council

Adopted in accordance with section 186A
of the Act

Business continuity plan (plan setting
out the actions that will be undertaken
to ensure that key services continue to
operate in the event of a disaster)

Plan

Disaster recovery plan (plan setting out the
actions that will be undertaken to recover
and restore business capability in the event
of a disaster)

Plan

Risk Management Framework (framework
outlining Council’s approach to managing
risks to the Council’s operations)

Framework

Audit and Risk Committee (see sections 53
and 54 of the Act)

Established in accordance with sections 53
and 54 of the Act

11

12

13

14



Date of adoption: 24 August 2020
A Procurement Policy is currently being
developed under the new requirements
of the Local Government Act 2020 pursuant
to s 108, due for implementation
31 December 2021.


Date of commencement: 2 August 2018



Date of commencement: 14 November 2018



Date of operation of current framework:
7 June 2021


Date of establishment: 1 October 1994
At Maroondah, this Committee is known as
the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee
15

16

17

18
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Internal audit (independent accounting
professionals engaged by Council to
provide analysis and recommendations
aimed at improving Council’s governance,
risk and management controls)

Engaged

Performance reporting framework (a
set of indicators measuring financial and
non-financial performance, including the
performance indicators referred to in
section 98 of the Act)

Framework

Council Plan reporting (report reviewing
the performance of the Council against the
Council Plan, including the results in relation
to the strategic indicators, for the first 6
months of the financial year)

Report

Quarterly budget reports (quarterly reports
to Council under section 97 of the Act
comparing actual and budgeted results and
an explanation of any material variations)

Reports presented to Council in accordance
with section 97(1) of the Act
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Date of engagement of current provider:
1 September 2016



Date of operation of current framework:
26 April 2017



Date of report: 15 February 2021

Dates reports presented:
16 October 2020
14 December 2020
15 February 2021
24 May 2021



#

Governance and Management Items

Assessment

19

Risk Reports (quarterly reports of strategic
risks to Council’s operations, their likelihood
and consequences of occurring and risk
minimisation strategies)

Reports

Performance reports (six-monthly reports
of indicators measuring the results against
financial and non-financial performance,
including performance indicators referred
to in section 98of the Act)

Report

Annual Report (annual report under
sections 98 and 99 of the Act containing a
report of operations and audited financial
and performance statements)

Presented at a meeting of Council in
accordance with section 100 of the Act

Councillor Code of Conduct (Code under
section 139 of the Act setting out standards
of conduct to be followed by Councillors
and other matters)

Reviewed and adopted in accordance with
section 139 of the Act

Delegations (a document setting out the
powers, duties and functions of Council
and the Chief Executive Officer that have
been delegated to members of staff in
accordance with sections 11 and 47 of the
Act)

Reviewed in accordance with sections 11(7)
of the Act and a register kept in accordance
with sections 11(8) and 47(7) of the Act

Meeting procedures (Governance Rules
under section 60 of the Act governing
the conduct of meetings of Council and
delegated committees)

Governance Rules adopted in accordance
with section 60 of the Act

20

21

22

23

24



Date of reports:
30 September 2020
31 December 2020
31 March 2021
30 June 2021


Date of report for the first six months of
financial year: 17 August 2020
Date of report for the second six months of
financial year: 15 February 2021


Date of presentation: 12 October 2020


Date reviewed: 15 February 2021


Date reviewed and adopted:
31 August 2020


Date Governance Rules adopted:
31 August 2020

I certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council’s governance and management
arrangements.

Steve Kozlowski
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: 7 September 2021

Cr. Kylie Spears
Mayor
Dated: 7 September 2021
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Statutory information
The information in this section is provided in accordance with legislative and other requirements applying
to Council. Topics within this section and the applicable legislation/regulations are listed below:
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Topic

Relevant legislation/regulation (if applicable)

Carers Recognition

Carers Recognition Act 2012

Disability Policy and Action Plan

Disability Act 2006

Documents to be made available for public
inspection

Local Government Act 2020 and Local
Government (General) Regulations 2015

Domestic Animal Management

Domestic Animals Act 1994

Food Act Ministerial Directions

Food Act 1984

Freedom of Information requests

Freedom of Information Act 1982

Infrastructure and development contributions

Local Government Act 2020

Local Laws

Local Government Act 2020

National Competition Policy

Local Government Act 2020

Privacy

Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 and the
Health Records Act 2001

Procurement

Local Government Act 2020

Protected Disclosure

Local Government Act 2020

Road Management

Road management Act 2004

Victorian Local Government Indicators

Local Government Act 2020

Victorian Local Government Performance
Reporting Framework: Service Performance
Indicators

Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2020

Victorian Local Government Performance
Reporting Framework: Service Performance
Indicators

Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 amending Local Government
Act 1989
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Carers recognition
Maroondah City Council has taken all practicable
measures to comply with its responsibilities
outlined in the Carers Recognition Act 2012 (the
Act). Council has promoted the principles of the
Act to people in care relationships who receive
Council services, to people in care relationships,
and to the wider community by:
•

distributing printed material through
relevant Council services

•

providing information regarding the Act
to Maroondah Healthy Ageing Network,
Maroondah Police Seniors Register, Senior
Citizens Clubs, older people’s groups, and
clients of Council’s Aged and Disability Services

•

providing links to resource materials
on Council’s website

•

providing Information regarding the Act in
the Active and Healthy Ageing Newsletter,
Maroondah Healthy Ageing Network Chatterbox
newsletter and Commonwealth Home Support
Program Client Information booklet

•

providing written information regarding
the Act within Client Information Packs

•

distributing printed material to all Aged
and Disability employees and volunteers

Council has taken all practicable measures to
ensure employees, Council agents and volunteers
working for Council are informed about the
principles and obligations of the Act by including
information on the care relationship in:
•

Council induction and training programs
for employees working in front-line
positions with the general community

•

internal information sessions for all of
Council’s Aged and Disability employees
and volunteers at team meetings.

Council has taken all practicable measures to
review and modify policies, procedures and
supports to include recognition of the carer
relationship and has provided the following
additional activities and resources to recognise
the care relationship:
•

facilitation of the Maroondah
Carer Support Group

•

facilitation of Akuna, a Dementia
Carers Support Group

•

inclusion of people with Dementia and mild
memory loss in Social Support Group programs
to support carers of people with dementia

•

shared training/professional
development opportunities with other
local services responding to people
with dementia and their carers

•

ongoing staff professional development

•

Council Occupational Therapist will work
with carers to solve and improve safety
issues in the home and community.
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Disability Policy and Action Plan
In accordance with section 38 of the Disability Act 2008, Council must report on the implementation
of the Disability Policy and Action Plan in its Annual Report. During 2020/21 Council undertook a wide
range of activities in delivering on this Plan. These included:
•

An estimated additional $2.3 million of
National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS)
approved plans for Maroondah residents has
been achieved by Council’s role supporting
people accessing and transitioning into the
National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS).

•

Feedback from the Disability Advisory
Committee was received by Council in review of
emergency practices in line with the Vulnerable
People in Emergencies Policy. Changes
were made to the Emergency Relief Centres
guidelines and Council’s coronavirus (COVID-19)
recovery priorities and action as a result.

The move to working safely from home for
much of 2020 was supported by a register
of transferred Council owned ergonomic
equipment (chairs and screens) to individuals,
with further support available on a case by
case basis. Additional support for Council
staff wellbeing was offered through the
Employee Health and Wellbeing Program
run in collaboration with Healthy Business.

•

Local businesses continued to be encouraged
to connect with initiatives like the Small
Business Wellbeing hotline, that promotes
awareness and support for mental health.

•

Council completed the Geographic
Information Systems (GIS) Layer, improving
emergency management processes.

•

Mental Health First Aid training was provided
online to representatives from a broad
range of Maroondah organisations.

•

Council’s website shared COVID-19
information produced by several external
organisations in Easy English and Auslan.

•

•

Council’s submission to the Royal
Commission into Mental Health in Victoria
was acknowledged and the Maroondah
Positive Education Network was noted as
a recommendation for government explore
expanding the project to other areas.

Council’s Community Development Grants
program in 2020 awarded funding to
six different disability groups to better
enable access and participation.

•

A Multicultural Community Services grant
enabled the ‘Moving for Life the Way I Like
It’ program tailored physical activities to our
Burmese community elders. This program
was later adapted to online delivery.

•

Council’s online channels are WCAG
2.0AA accessible and compliant.
Council's online resources are reviewed
and updated each quarter along with
reporting and repair of any broken links.

•

Maternal Child Health commenced new
inclusive programs and referral pathways
for families with additional vulnerabilities.

•

Council continued to support the Pathway
for Carers program which provides support
and information to carers of people with
disabilities or mental health concerns.

•

Eastern Disability Action Group is now
being facilitated by Eastern Volunteers.

•

Council continued to provide public artworks
and art activations in public spaces that
are inclusive of people with disabilities,
utilising a range of locations and formats.

•

The Porn is not the Norm project, received
$900,000 over a three-year period through
Westpac’s 2020 Impact Grant, Safer Children,
Safer Communities program. Council’s role
will evolve to providing support and advice
through the project steering group.

•

Council’s 2020/21 community facilities
improvement program was delivered
consisting of more than 250 individual
projects, many of which facilitate enhanced
accessibility and inclusive design elements.
Springfield, Jubilee, Dorset and Proclamation
multipurpose pavilions will all feature female
friendly accessible changerooms. The McAlpin
Reserve Play-space renewal project has
been designed with an accessible carousel
and accessible jumper (trampoline).

•
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•

Forced closures of Council facilities
enabled maintenance programs to be
brought forward such as the retiling
of the Aquahub warm water pool.
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•

A regional approach is taken on advocacy
for public transport and public safety
improvements with the Eastern Region
Group and Eastern Transport Coalition for
accessibility improvements as part of Box
Hill and Croydon interchange upgrades.

•

Council consults with Queensland Investment
Corporation (QIC) in the establish a sensory
room at the Eastland Shopping Centre.
This space opened in May 2021. Training
for Eastland employees was provided.

•

•

The State Government’s $6 billion Big Housing
Build announcement in 2020 was consistent
with the advocacy efforts of the Eastern
Affordable Housing Alliance of which Council is
an active member. The program is anticipated
to result in new social and affordable
housing being constructed in Maroondah.

•

The Outer East Opening Doors Leadership
program for social inclusion is supported.

Council progressed an innovative planning
scheme amendment for the Greening the
Greyfields initiative during 2020 within two
precincts - Ringwood and Croydon South.
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Documents to be made available for public inspection
Council is committed to open and transparent governance. Section 57 of the Local Government Act 2020
(the Act) entitles any person to inspect and take copies where appropriate (subject to applicable fees,
if any) of prescribed documents and records. Pursuant to the Local Government (General) Regulations
2015, which was proclaimed and commenced on 23 October 2015, the following prescribed documents
and records were available for inspection during the 2020/21 financial year.
For the purposes of section 57 of the Local Government Act 2020, which has provided the statutory
direction for the 2020/21 financial year, the following are prescribed documents:
•

Council Meeting Agendas;

•

Statutory Registers required by the Act; and

•

Council Policies.

a) A document containing details of overseas or
interstate travel (other than interstate travel
by land for less than 3 days) undertaken in an
official capacity by any Councillor or member
of Council staff in the previous 12 months,
including:
i. the name of the Councillors or member of
Council staff
ii. the date on which the travel began and
ended
iii. the destination of the travel
iv. the purpose of the travel
v. the total cost to the Council of the travel,
including accommodation costs;
b) the agendas for, and minutes of, ordinary and
special meetings held in the previous 12 months
which are kept under section 93 of the Act,
other than those agendas and minutes relating
to a part of a meeting which was closed to
members of the public under section 89 of the
Act and are confidential information within the
meaning of section 77(2) of the Act;
c) the minutes of meetings of special committees
established under section 86 of the Act and
held in the previous 12 months, other than
those minutes relating to a part of a meetings
which was closed to members of the public
under section 89 of the Act and are confidential
information within the meaning of section 77(2)
of the Act;
d) a register of delegations kept under sections
87(1) – delegations to special committees and 98(4) – delegations to staff - of the Act,
including the dates on which the last reviews
took place under sections 86(6) and 98(6)
respectively, of the Act took place;
e) a document containing details of all leases
involving land which were entered into by the
Council as the lessor, including the lessee and
the terms and the value of the lease;
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f) a register maintained under section 224(1A) of
the Act of authorised officers appointed under
that section;
g) a list of donations and grants made by the
Council in the previous 12 months, including
the names of persons or bodies which, have
received a donation or grant and the amount of
each donation or grant;
h) Written Public Record of an Assembly of
Councillors, in accordance with section 80A
of the Act;
i) Annual Report – available online;
j) Budget for current financial year – available
online;
k) Council agenda and minutes for the last
12 months – available online;
l) Councillors’ Code of Conduct – available online;
m) Council Plan – available online;
n) Councillor Expenses Policy – available online;
o) Local Laws operative within Maroondah –
available online;
p) Procurement Policy – available online;
q) Public Notices – available online;
r) Register of election campaign donation returns
– available online;
s) Register of Interests of Councillors,
Management Group, Senior Officers, Nominated
Officers and independent members of the Audit
and Risk Advisory Committee.
In accordance with Section 57 of the Local
Government Act 2020 inspection of these
documents can be arranged by contacting
Council’s Governance Team on 1300 88 22 33.
These documents are available for inspection at the
City Offices, 179 Maroondah Highway, Ringwood.
The documents may be viewed, but not removed,
and some are also available online.

Domestic animal
management

Food Act Ministerial
directions

The Domestic Animals Act 1994 (The Act)
requires Council’s across Victoria to prepare and
implement a Domestic Animal Management Plan
(DAMP) every four years. Section 68A of the Act
requires Councils to periodically evaluate any
program, service strategy or review outlined in
the DAMP and publish the evaluation in Council’s
Annual Report.

In accordance with section 7E of the Food Act
1984, Council is required to publish a summary
of any Ministerial Directions received during
the financial year in its annual report. No such
Ministerial Directions were received by Council
during the 2020/21 financial year.

Council is currently reviewing the Domestic
Animal Management Plan 2017-2021 for
2022-2026 and continues to promote and
support responsible pet ownership within
Maroondah. Further details of the progress of
the review can be found on Council’s website.
Responsible pet ownership programs and
activities continue to ensure that the community
is aware of all aspects of responsible pet
ownership and the importance of effective
animal management. These include:
•

education programs to inform the community
of the responsibilities of pet ownership

•

school visits to educate students
on responsible pet ownership

•

demonstrations and information on responsible
pet ownership at the Maroondah Festival

•

programmed and random patrols
of parks and reserves

•

property inspections of the
owners of dog at large

•

annual inspections for declared
menacing and dangerous dogs

•

inspections of properties for
extra animal permits

•

inspections of domestic animal businesses

•

promotion of new and renewal
registration for dogs and cats

•

training of animal management officers in
best practice responsible pet ownership

•

promotion of de-sexing with vets
including vouchers for reduced cost

•

participation and support in community
events such as Adventure Dog

•

analysis of trends and statistics on
registration rates, reunification of lost
animals to ensure best practise principles
and seek opportunities for improvement.

Infrastructure and
development contributions
In accordance with section 46GM and 46QD
of the Planning and Environment Act 1987, any
Council that is a collecting or development
agency must prepare and give a report to the
Minister for Planning on infrastructure and
development contributions including levies and
works in kind. The report must be published in
Council’s annual report.
For the 2020/21 financial year the following
information about infrastructure and development
contributions is disclosed:
Council has no Infrastructure Contribution Plans.
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Development contributions
Total DCP levies received in 2020/21
DCP name (Year approved)

Levies received in 2020/21 financial year

Ringwood Development Contributions Plan Overlay (2006)

$411,826

Total

$411,826

No DCP land, works, services or facilities were accepted in kind in 2020/21
Total DCP contributions received and expended to date
DCP name (Year approved)

Total levies Total levies
received $ expended $

Total works-in- Total DCP contributions
kind accepted $
received (levies and
works-in-kind)

Ringwood Development
Contributions Plan Overlay
(2006)

$0

$0

$0

$411,826

Total

$0

$0

$0

$411,826

Land, works, services or facilities delivered in 2020/21 from DCP levies collected
Project
description

Total
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Project DCP name
ID
(Year
approved)

DCP fund Works- Council’s
Other
Total Percentage
expended in-kind contribution contributions
project
of item
$ accepted
$
$ expenditure delivered
$
$

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

0
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Local Laws
There are a number of Council rules designed to make the community a safe and pleasant place to
live in. Local laws are reviewed regularly and altered if necessary to meet the needs of the community.
Sometimes new laws are required to control a particular problem. Maroondah City Council is responsible
for the management and enforcement of various matters covered by local laws.
Local Laws
(as at 30 June
2021)

Local Law No.
11 - General
Local Law

Local Law No. 11 aims to assure equitable, orderly and enjoyable use by people of
community facilities, including roads.
The objectives of Local Law No 11 - General Local Law are to:
• revoke Local Laws 8 and 10 made by Council
• provide for and assure equitable, orderly and enjoyable use by people of
community facilities, including roads
• protect Council Property and other community assets from loss or unnecessary or
avoidable damage
• support provision by Council of a safe, clean and healthy environment in areas
under its control and management
• provide generally for the peace, order and good government of the Municipal District.
Local Law No. 11 was adopted by Council on 14 December 2015 and came into effect
on Friday 1 January 2016.
Local Law No. 11 was also amended incorporating Local Law No. 13 and came into
effect on 1 September 2016.

Local Law No.
12 - Meetings
Procedure
and Use of
Common Seal

The objectives of Local Law No. 12 - Meetings Procedure & Use of Common Seal are to
regulate the:
• proceedings of Ordinary and Special Meetings of the Maroondah City Council
• election of the Mayor and Acting Chairman
• use of the Common Seal of the Maroondah City Council and
• proceedings of special committees.
Local Law 15 was adopted by Council at its meeting on 28 June 2021 and came into
effect on 1 July deeming Local Law 12 repealed.

Local Law No.
13 - General
(Amendment)
Local Law

Local Law 13 amends Local Law No.11 by clarifying when fires can be lit or remain
alight in the open air or an incinerator, and in particular allows for fires in the open
air for heating purposes by:
• Amending the existing General Local Law 11
• Inserting a new Clause 30.1 – Incinerators and Burning
Local Law No. 13 was adopted by Council on 22 August 2016 and came into effect on
1 September 2016.

Local Law No.
14 - General
(Amendment)
Local Law

Local Law No. 14 amends Local Law No. 11 by:
• prohibiting smoking of tobacco products in Ringwood and Croydon Town Squares.

Local Law No.
15 - Common
Seal and
Conduct at
Meeting

Local Law No. 15 - Common Seal and Conduct at Meeting

Local Law No.14 was adopted by Council on 26 November 2018 and came into effect
on 1 January 2019.
Maroondah City Council, at its meeting on 26 April 2021, resolved to commence the
process for the making of Local Law No. 15.
The purpose of Local Law 15 is to:
• regulate the use of the common seal
• prohibit unauthorised use of the common seal or any device resembling the common seal
• provide for a set of offences and associated penalties relating to conduct at meetings
- with reference to the requirements of the Governance Rules document.
Local Law 15 was adopted by Council at its meeting on 28 June 2021 and came into
effect on 1 July 2021 deeming Local Law 12 repealed.
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Road management
The Road Management Act 2004 provides that Council has a statutory obligation to inspect, maintain
and repair a public road, and that a Road Management Plan may be developed to set reasonable
standards in relation to the performance of road management functions for the maintenance of its public
roads and associated road-related assets.
Maroondah City Council has adopted the Road Management Plan 2021 to set reasonable standards in
relation to the performance of road management functions, including the inspection, maintenance and
repair of all Council's roads as listed in its Register of Public Roads.
In accordance with section 22 of the Road Management Act 2004 (the Act), Council must publish a copy
or summary of any Ministerial direction in its Annual Report. No such Ministerial Directions were received
by Council during the financial year.
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Victorian Local Government Indicators
The following indicators track Council sustainability and performance over time.
Indicator

Target

Actual Results

2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19

2017-18

Affordability/cost of Governance
Average rates and charges per assessment

$1,885

$1,871

$1816

$1,795

$1,707

$1,802

$1,788

$1736

$1,718

$1,614

$1,038

$1,727

$1785

$1034

$1010

$787

$825

$202

$509

$253

64

65

65

69

67

The average revenue derived by Council out of
general rates and garbage services for each property
in the municipality.
Average rates and charges per residential
assessment
The average revenue derived by Council out
of general rates and garbage services for each
residential property in the municipality (i.e. excluding
all commercial and industrial properties)
Sustainability
Average liabilities per assessment
The average value for each property in the
municipality of monies owed by Council at financial
year-end in respect of the supply of goods and
services, the provision of loans and the accrued costs
of employee salaries and entitlements.
Operating result per assessment3
The difference between the average operating
revenue and average operating expenditure for
each property in the municipality. Council rates and
charges comprise the major part of its operating
revenue. The operating result has been adjusted by
excluding the revenue from property, infrastructure,
plant and equipment not previously recognised and
the expenditure in relation to disposal, obsolescence
and adjustments in relation to property and
infrastructure. This allows for a better basis of
comparison.
Services
Community satisfaction rating for overall
performance generally of Council
Overall satisfaction with Council performance
as rated by Maroondah City residents who
were surveyed as part of Victorian Government
commissioned independent state-wide community
satisfaction survey.
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Indicator

Target

Actual Results

2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
Average operating expenditure per assessment

2017-18

$2,394

$2,535

$2583

$2654

$2562

$1,674

$1,579

$893

$951

$513

118%

105%

78%

96%

92%

114%

104%

83%

97%

94%

57

56

56

61

57

56

55

56

58

56

The average cost of operating and maintaining all
Council services to the community for each property
in the municipality. This cost excludes the cost of
acquiring or expanding its asset base used in the
delivery of those services but includes the costs of all
administrative and governance services supporting
that delivery.
Infrastructure
Average Capital expenditure per assessment
The average cost for each property in the municipality
of acquiring new assets and expanding, upgrading or
renewing existing assets used in the delivery of all its
services to the community.
Renewal gap
The sum of all capital expenditure on renewal
of existing infrastructure assets expressed as a
percentage of the total depreciation charge on
all Council infrastructure assets. Such annual
depreciation charge is Council’s best estimate of the
value of those assets ‘consumed’ during the year’s
operations.
Renewal and maintenance gap
The sum of all capital expenditure on renewal of
existing infrastructure assets together with the annual
costs of maintenance of all Council infrastructure
assets expressed as a percentage of the total
depreciation and maintenance charges on all such
infrastructure assets.
Governance
Community satisfaction rating for Council’s
Advocacy and Community Representation on key
local issues
Overall satisfaction with Council performance in
advocacy and community representation as rated by
Maroondah City residents who were surveyed as part
of Victorian Government commissioned independent
state-wide community satisfaction survey.
Community satisfaction rating for Council’s
Engagement in decision making on key local issues
Overall satisfaction with Council performance in
engaging the community in decision making on key
local issues as rated by Maroondah City residents
who were surveyed as part of Victorian Government
commissioned independent state-wide community
satisfaction survey.
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Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: Statement of service performance
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework service performance indicators and measures, including explanation of any material
variations. Please note that a change of less than +/- 10% compared with the previous year is not
considered significant, and therefore not a material variation.
More detailed Council comments on 2020 LGPRF service performance indicator results will be available
once data is released by the Victorian Government at www.knowyourcouncil.vic.gov.au
Service/indicator/
measure

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

Result Comment
2020/21

Aquatic Facilities
Service standard

2.00

3.33

2.00

2.00 Inspections are carried
out annually by Council's
Community Health team for
each of the municipality's three
aquatic facilities, with a follow
up inspection if required. Health
inspections and tracking on
schedule.

8.75

10.11

7.57

3.34 The municipality has three
Council-owned and operated
aquatic facilities. The 2020/21
period faced several challenges
including frequent capacity
restrictions and facility closures
as a result of the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic.

-

-

$0.81

$5.70 This measure considers the
overall cost to Council of
running its aquatic facilities
less revenue received. The cost
per visit also increased due
to the significant impacts of
the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic on utilisation of
aquatic facilities.

Health inspections of
aquatic facilities
Number of health
inspections per Council
aquatic facility
Expected range:
1 to 4 inspections
Utilisation
Utilisation of aquatic
facilities
The number of visits to
aquatic facilities per head
of municipal population.
Expected range:
1 to 10 visits
Service Cost
Cost of aquatic facilities
The direct cost less
any income received of
providing aquatic facilities
per visit.
Expected range: $3 to $20
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Service/indicator/
measure

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

Result Comment
2020/21

Animal Management
Timeliness

1.88

1.24

2.01

6.74%

76.87%

62.55%

-

-

51.90%

$4.94

$5.49

$4.03

Time taken to action
animal requests
The average number
of days it has taken for
Council to action animal
management related
requests.
Expected range:
1 to 10 days
Service standard
Animals reclaimed
The percentage of
collected registrable
animals under the
Domestic Animals Act
1994 reclaimed.
Expected range:
30% to 90%
Service standard
Animals rehomed
The percentage of
collected registrable
animals under the
Domestic Animals Act
1994 that are rehomed.
Expected range:
20% to 80%
Service cost
Cost of animal
management service per
population
The direct cost of the
animal management
service per municipal
population.

1.05 This measure relates to the
average number of days
between the receipt and the first
response action for all animal
management requests. There
was a slight increase in time
taken to action animal requests
in 2020/21 with requests still
actioned on average within
two days.

48.2% This measure considers the
percentage of collected
registrable animals reclaimed
under the Domestic Animals
Act 1994. There has been a
slight decrease in animals
reclaimed compared to the
previous financial year which
is attributed to the overall
increase in the number of
impounded animals.
44.01% This measure considers the
percentage of collected
registrable animals under the
Domestic Animals Act 1994 that
are rehomed. The decrease in
animals rehomed is attributed
to more residents returning to
the workplace after the easing
of coronavirus (COVID-19)
restrictions.
$4.20 This measure captures the
direct cost of the animal
management service per
registrable animal under the
Domestic Animals Act 1994.
The increase in cost is mostly
attributed to staff vacancies
being filled.

Expected range: $3 - $40
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Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: Statement of service performance
Service/indicator/
measure
Health and safety

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

-

- 100.00%

Animal management
prosecutions
Health Inspections of
aquatic facilities
Expected range:
50% - 200%

Result Comment
2020/21
0.00% This measure captures the
percentage of successful animal
management prosecutions
under the Domestic Animals
Act 1994. This measure has
changed to a percentage value
instead of a numeric value. There
have been no prosecutions
due to delays in processing
infringements.

Food Safety
Timeliness

1.88

1.24

2.01

1.95 The indicator measures the
average number of days taken
for Council to respond to
food complaints from receipt
to first response action. Data
shown is for the 2021 calendar
year to align with reporting
to the Department of Health
(DoH). Council have put in
place processes to ensure
that wherever possible, the
customer request is addressed
within 24 hours.

100.00% 100.00%

93.61% This measure relates to the
percentage of registered class
1 food premises and class
2 food premises that receive
an annual food safety
assessment. Data shown is
for the 2021 calendar year
to align with reporting to
the Department of Health
(DoH). The percentage of
food safety assessments has
slightly decreased as a result
of coronavirus (COVID-19)
restrictions, whereby
officers attended essential
inspections only.

Time taken to action food
complaints
The average number
of days it has taken for
Council to action food
complaints received
from members of the
public about the safety or
handling of food for sale.
Expected range:
1 to 10 days
Service standard

98.00%

Food safety assessments
The percentage of
registered class 1 food
premises and class 2 food
premises that receive
an annual food safety
assessment.
Expected range:
50% to 120%
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Service/indicator/
measure

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

Result Comment
2020/21

Service cost

$738.76

$689.36

$599.36 This measure captures the
direct cost of providing food
safety services per food
premises. The direct cost
of food safety service has
decreased from the prior year
due to increase in the overall
number of food premises.

$690.11

Cost of food safety
service
The direct cost of the
food safety service per
food premises registered
by Council, or for which
Council has received
notification, during
the year.
Expected range:
$300 to $1,200
Health and safety

100.00%

99.06% 100.00%

Critical and major noncompliance notifications
The percentage of critical
and major non-compliance
outcome notifications that
are followed up by Council.
Expected range:
60% to 100%

100.00% This indicator measures the
percentage of critical and
major non-compliance outcome
notifications that are followed
up by Council. Council aims
to respond to 100% of these
notifications. Data shown is
for the 2020 calendar year
to align with reporting to the
Department of Health (DoH).
The percentage of critical
and major non-compliance
notifications followed up is
tracking in accordance with
previous financial years.

Governance
Transparency
Council resolutions at
meetings closed to the
public
The percentage of council
resolutions made at
an ordinary or special
meeting of council, or at
a meeting of a special
committee consisting only
of councillors, closed to the
public under section 89(2)
of the Local Government
Act 1989 (the Act).
Expected range:
0% to 30%

13.74%

8.52%

6.59%

13.13% This indicator measures
the percentage of Council
resolutions made at an ordinary
or special Council meeting,
or at a meeting of a special
committee consisting only
of Councillors, closed to the
public under Section 89(2)
of the Local Government Act
1989. The increase in decisions
made closed to the public is a
result of an increase in tender
evaluation recommendations
which are considered
confidential "in-camera"
decisions made at Council
meetings.
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Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: Statement of service performance
Service/indicator/
measure
Consultation and
engagement

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

56.00

58.00

56.00

55.00 The Local Government
Community Satisfaction
Survey is conducted by the
Department of Jobs, Precincts
and Regions (DJPR) on behalf
of Council. A total of 400
local residents and ratepayers
within the municipality over
18 years of age are selected
at random to participate. The
survey asks the respondent to
rate the performance of Council
in relation to community
consultation and engagement.
The rating is consistent with the
2019/20 result and the score
achieved in the 2016/17 period
which covered the last Council
election/caretaker cycle.

86.32%

88.89%

85.47%

92.86% Each year, a range of ordinary
and special meetings of
Council are held. This
indicator measures the overall
attendance levels for these
meetings. The percentage of
attendance at Council meetings
increased when compared to
2019/20 when coronavirus
(COVID-19) restrictions were
in place.

Satisfaction with
community consultation
and engagement
The community
satisfaction rating out of
100 with the consultation
and engagement efforts
of the council. This
includes consulting and
engaging directly with the
community on key local
issues requiring decisions
by council.
Expected range: 40 to 70

Attendance
Council attendance at
Council meetings
The percentage of
attendance at ordinary and
special council meetings
by councillors.
Expected range:
80% to 100%
Service cost
Cost of elected
representation
The direct cost of
delivering council’s
governance service per
councillor.
Expected range:
$30,000 to $80,000
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Result Comment
2020/21

$45,744.44

$48,959.51 $47,451.22 $46,640.44 This measure captures the
direct cost of delivering the
governance service per elected
representative. There was a
slight decrease in the direct
cost of the governance service
in 2020/21 due to a reduction
of expenditure and allowances
during coronavirus (COVID-19)
restrictions.
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Service/indicator/
measure
Decision making

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

Result Comment
2020/21

59.00

62.00

59.00

60.00 The Local Government
Community Satisfaction
survey is conducted by the
Department of Jobs, Precincts
and Regions (DJPR) on behalf
of Council. A total of 400 local
residents and ratepayers within
the municipality over 18 years
of age are selected at random
to participate. The survey
asks the respondent to rate
the performance of Council in
relation to its decision making.
This satisfaction rating slightly
increased in 2020/21.

10.58

10.47

9.15

4.97 Maroondah is a member of
the Eastern Regional Libraries
Corporation, which is a
co-operative venture
serving three outer eastern
metropolitan councils. These
results relate to libraries in
the Maroondah municipality,
which are located in Croydon
and Ringwood (Realm). The
decrease in physical library
collection usage is attributed
to the recent facility capacity
restrictions and library closures
due to coronavirus (COVID-19).

75.47%

72.39%

69.81%

79.27% This measure refers to the
percentage of the library
collection that has been
purchased in the last five
years. There was an increase
in the proportion of the
library collection purchased
in 2020/21. This indicator is
subject to cyclical fluctuations.

Satisfaction with
Council decisions
The community
satisfaction rating out
of 100 with how council
has performed in making
decisions in the interest of
the community.
Expected range: 40 to 70

Libraries
Utilisation
Physical library
collection usage
The number of physical
library collection item
loans per physical library
collection item.
Expected range:
1 to 9 items

Resource standard
Recently purchased
library collection
The percentage of the
library collection that has
been purchased in the last
5 years.
Expected range:
40% to 90%
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Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: Statement of service performance
Service/indicator/
measure
Participation

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

16.18%

16.26%

15.88%

13.83% This indicator highlights the
percentage of the municipal
population that are active
library members. There was
a decrease in active library
members in 2020/21 compared
with the previous financial year
due to coronavirus (COVID-19)
social distancing requirements
and library closures.

$18.20

$18.26

$18.59

$17.37 This measure captures the
direct cost of the library service
per municipal population.
The cost of delivering the
library service in Maroondah
decreased in 2020/21
compared with the previous
financial year reflecting
the reduction on Council’s
contribution when compared to
the previous financial year.

101.06% 100.99%

101.34% The MCH service enrols
newborn infants in the service
at the home visit following
receipt of a birth notification
from the hospital. All birth
notifications received by
Council result in an MCH
enrolment, however, the
phasing of birth notifications
and enrolment across reporting
periods can result in the
reported figure being less than
or greater than 100%.

Active library borrowers
in municipality
The percentage of the
municipal population
that are active library
borrowers.
Expected range:
10% to 40%
Service cost

Result Comment
2020/21

Cost of library service per
population
The direct cost of the
library service per
population.
Expected range:
$10 to $90

Maternal and Child Health
Service standard

101.06%

Infant enrolments in the
MCH service
% of infants enrolled in the
MCH service
Expected range:
90% to 110%
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Service/indicator/
measure
Service cost

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

$71.22

$87.20

$82.83

$97.53 This measure captures the
direct cost of the library service
per municipal population.
The cost of delivering the
library service in Maroondah
slightly decreased in 2020/21
compared with the previous
financial year.

73.88%

78.11%

76.18%

76.19% This measure highlights the
percentage of children enrolled
who participate in the MCH
service, which can vary due
to the timing of appointments
during the financial year. Full
year participation rates are in
line with the Victorian State
average.

69.90%

72.63%

76.24%

78.31% This measure captures the
percentage of Aboriginal
children enrolled who
participate in the MCH service.
Participation rates for this
measure tend to fluctuate
between reporting periods.

-

-

98.17%

97.31% This measure considers the
percentage of infants enrolled
in the Maternal Child Health
(MCH) service who participated
in 4-week Key Age and Stage
visit. The percentage remains
at 100%. Anything below 100%
reflects appointments made
but not yet attended within the
financial year.

Cost of the MCH service
The cost of the MCH
service per hour of service
delivered.
Expected range:
$50 to $200
Participation
Participation in MCH
service
The percentage of children
enrolled who participate in
the MCH service.
Expected range:
70% to 100%
Participation

Result Comment
2020/21

Participation in MCH
service by Aboriginal
children
The percentage of
Aboriginal children
enrolled who participate in
the MCH service.
Expected range:
60% to 100%
Satisfaction
Participation in 4-week
Key Age and Stage visit
The percentage of infants
enrolled in the MCH
service who participated
in 4-week Key Age and
Stage visit.
Expected range:
90% to 110%
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Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: Statement of service performance
Service/indicator/
measure

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

Result Comment
2020/21

Roads
Satisfaction of use

98.35

108.04

115.87

97.25%

97.31%

99.06%

Sealed local road requests
The number of sealed local
road requests per 100
kilometres of sealed
local road.
Expected range:
10 to 120 requests

Condition
Sealed local roads
maintained to condition
standards
The percentage of sealed
local roads that are below
the renewal intervention
level set by Council and
not requiring renewal.
Expected range:
80% to 100%
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93.96 Road requests are defined
as customer requests logged
within the Council corporate
customer service application,
Infor Pathway. Requests
include line marking, pothole
repairs, damaged roads, and
patching and road sweeping.
The number of sealed road
requests reduced due to less
motorists being on the road
due to coronavirus (COVID-19)
restrictions, as well as better
overall management of the
road network where Council is
working to proactively mitigate
potential sealed road issues.
98.85% Council defines a technical level
of service intervention figure
to be a Pavement Condition
Index (PCI) of 5 in Council's
pavement management system,
SMEC Pavement Management
System. There was only minor
variation when compared to the
same time in the previous year.

Service/indicator/
measure
Service cost

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

$87.98

$221.08

$114.19

$250.31 The total project cost
associated with the
reconstruction of a sealed
local road is considered. The
project cost may include but
is not limited to traffic control,
road base, road surface,
kerb, stormwater drain and
traffic management device
costs. Reconstructions for a
full road block as defined in
Council's asset register has
been included in this figure.
Isolated reconstructions are
not included but may have
occurred throughout the
financial year. Costs to deliver
projects over the last 12 months
have increased due to the
complexity of projects and
higher costs for labour and
materials.

$26.60

$119.99

$34.24

$25.37 Council only uses asphalt
products for resealing in line
with community expectations.
Generally, where advanced
pavement deterioration is
present (i.e. crocodile cracking)
Council undertakes deep lift
patching prior to resealing.
Only reseals for a full road
block as defined in Council's
asset register has been
included in this figure. Reseals
that do not cover an entire road
block are considered to be a
patch and are not included.

68.00

70.00

64.00

67.00 The Local Government
Community Satisfaction
Survey is conducted by the
Department of Jobs, Precincts
and Regions (DJPR) on behalf
of Council. A total of 400
local residents and ratepayers
within the municipality over
18 years of age are selected
at random to participate. The
survey asks participants to rate
the condition of local streets
in your area on a scale from
very good to very poor. The
satisfaction rating varies from
year to year depending on a
number of factors.

Cost of sealed local road
reconstruction
The direct reconstruction
cost per square metre
of sealed local roads
reconstructed.
Expected range:
$20 to $200

Service cost
Cost of sealed local road
resealing
The direct resealing cost
per square metre of sealed
local roads resealed.
Expected range: $4 to $30

Satisfaction
Satisfaction with sealed
local roads
The community
satisfaction rating out
of 100 with how Council
has performed on the
condition of sealed
local roads.
Expected range: 50 to 100

Result Comment
2020/21
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Service/indicator/
measure

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

Result Comment
2020/21

Statutory Planning
Timeliness

35.00

34.00

28.00

82.45%

81.63%

88.60%

Time taken to decide
planning applications
The median number
of days taken between
receipt of a planning
application and a decision
on the application.
Expected range:
30 to 110 days

Service standard
Planning applications
decided within required
time frames
The percentage of regular
and VicSmart planning
application decisions
made within legislated
time frames.
Expected range:
40% to 100%
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28.00 This measure looks at the
median number of days taken
between receipt of a planning
application and a decision on
the application. In addition
to Council's dedication to
provide timely decisions,
Council's electronic planning
application processes allowed
for more efficient processing
time. There was no difference
in the number of days taken to
decide planning applications
in 2020/21 compared to the
previous financial year.
86.87% In accordance with the Planning
and Environment Act 1987,
a Council is permitted 60
statutory days to determine
a planning application. The
60 statutory days includes
weekends, public holidays
and commences when the
application is lodged. The
legislation allows for the 60-day
statutory clock to be stopped
and re-started in certain
circumstances. Increased
work in 2020/21 with VCAT
matters, as well as resourcing
(staff movements) has slightly
extended these timeframes.
Maroondah continues to be
among the leaders in meeting
this requirement in comparison
to the Metropolitan Council
average of 63.8% and exceeds
its target of 80%.

Service/indicator/
measure
Service cost

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

$1860.81 $1869.80

$1851.06

$1918.93 This measure looks at the direct
cost of Council to provide the
statutory planning service per
planning application received.
The direct cost of statutory
planning increased due to a
reduction in the number of
planning applications received
during the financial year.

92.59%

81.82% If an applicant disagrees
with the decision of Council
in relation to a planning
application, they have the
opportunity to appeal the
decision at the Victorian Civil
and Administrative Tribunal
(VCAT). This indicator
measures the percentage of
planning application decisions
made by Council, appealed
by an applicant and subject
to review by VCAT that were
not set aside (i.e. VCAT agreed
with the decision of Council).
The measure showed a lower
percentage of decisions upheld
at VCAT compared to the
previous financial year, which
may reflect the smaller number
of decisions being considered
by the Tribunal and lengthy
VCAT timeframes because of
COVID-19. Increased wait times
are seeing a greater number
of applicants negotiating
outcomes with Council in the
lead up to the VCAT hearing,
which in turn increases the
number of consent orders
granted.

Cost of statutory planning
service
The direct cost of the
statutory planning service
per planning application
received
Expected range:
$500 to $4,000
Decision making
Planning decisions upheld
at VCAT
The percentage of
planning application
decisions subject to review
by VCAT that were not set
aside.
Expected range:
30% to 100%

90.41%

90.24%

Result Comment
2020/21
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Service/indicator/
measure

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

Result Comment
2020/21

Waste Collection
Satisfaction

72.05

71.93

68.93

76.91 Council provides a
comprehensive waste
management service that
strives to meet best practice
standards in terms of kerbside
collection. This indicator
focuses on the kerbside bin
collection service. Council
provides a three-bin waste
collection service (garbage,
recyclables, and green
organics). These requests relate
to cancellations, damaged
bin repairs/replacements or
replacing stolen bins. This
figure tends to fluctuate
according to population
movement in the municipality.
The number of requests per
1000 households increased
slightly in 2020/21.

3.38

3.49

4.06

4.55 This indicator identifies the
ratio of bins missed compared
to scheduled bin collections.
This includes 120L, 80L, second
bin and fortnightly recycling
kerbside bin collection. The
increase in missed bins could
be attributed to the 'stay
at home' restrictions from
coronavirus (COVID-19)
restrictions whereby residents
were placed to more readily
report issues with their bin
collections.

Kerbside bin collection
requests
The number of kerbside
bin collection requests
per 1000 kerbside bin
collection households
Expected range:
10 to 300 requests

Service standard
Kerbside collection bins
missed
The number of kerbside
collection bins missed per
10,000 scheduled kerbside
collection bin lifts.
Expected range:
1 to 20 bins
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Service/indicator/
measure
Service cost

Result
2017/18

Result
Result
2018/19 2019/20

Result Comment
2020/21

$103.19

$106.11

$107.56

$109.55 This measure looks at the direct
cost of Council to provide the
kerbside garbage bin collection
service per kerbside garbage
bin. The service cost increased
in 2020/21, due to a 4.2%
increase in waste tonnage.

$43.36

$62.59

$71.43

$77.43 This measure looks at the direct
cost of Council to provide the
kerbside recyclables collection
service per kerbside recyclables
bin. The increase in 2020/21 is
due to an increase cost in gate
fee and an increase collection,
in tonnage, of recyclable
materials.

54.14%

53.66%

56.83%

56.71% This measure refers to the
percentage of garbage,
recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins
that is diverted from landfill.
There was a slight decrease
in the proportion of waste
diverted from landfill in 2020/21
which is within a normal range
of variance.

Cost of kerbside garbage
bin collection service
The direct cost of
the kerbside garbage
bin collection service
per kerbside garbage
collection bin.
Expected range:
$40 to $150
Service cost
Cost of kerbside
recyclables bin collection
service
The direct cost of the
kerbside recyclables
collection service
(including the contract
cost of collection) per
kerbside recyclables
collection bin.
Expected range:
$10 to $80
Waste diversion
Kerbside collection waste
diverted from landfill
The percentage of
garbage, recyclables and
green organics collected
from kerbside bins that is
diverted from landfill.
Expected range:
20% to 60%
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Understanding the Financial Report
Introduction
The Financial Report shows how Council
performed financially during the 2020/21 financial
year and shows it’s overall financial position at the
end (30 June 2021) of the financial year.
Council presents its financial report in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards.
Particular terms required by the Standards may
not be familiar to some readers. Further, Council
is a government organisation and some of the
generally recognised terms used in private sector
company reports are not appropriate for
Council’s reports.
Council is committed to accountability and
transparency. It is in this context that the plain
English guide has been developed to assist readers
to understand and analyse the financial report.

What is contained in the
Annual Financial Report?
Council’s financial report has two sets of
Statements:
1. Financial Statements
2. Performance Statement
Each of these Statements is prepared by Council
employees, examined by Council’s Audit and Risk
Advisory Committee and by the members of
Council, and are audited by the Victorian
Auditor-General.

Financial Statements
The Financial Statements report on how Council
performed financially during the year and shows
it’s overall financial position as at the end of
the year.
The face of the Financial Statements include a
Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of
Cash Flows and Statement of Capital Works. The
Financial Statements also contain Notes, which
set out Council’s accounting policies and details
of the line item amounts contained in the face
of the statements.
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Comprehensive Income
Statement
The Comprehensive Income Statement is
sometimes referred to as a ‘Profit and Loss
Statement’ in the private sector and shows the:
•

Sources of Council’s revenue under
various income headings

•

Expenses incurred in running the Council
during the year. These expenses relate
only to the ‘Operations’ of Council, and do
not include the costs associated with the
purchase or building of assets. While asset
purchase costs are not included in Expenses,
asset depreciation costs are included.

The surplus or deficit for the year is the
key figure to look at on the Comprehensive
Income Statement to assess Council’s financial
performance. It is calculated by deducting the total
expenses for the year from total revenues.
The comprehensive result on the Comprehensive
Income Statement includes items that will not be
reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods.
The main item affecting the comprehensive
income/expense of Council relates to the
revaluation of its assets.

Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet is a summary of Council’s
financial position as at 30 June. It shows what
Council owns as assets and what it owes as
liabilities. The bottom line of this Statement is Net
Assets. This is the equity or net worth of Council,
which has been built up over the life of the Council.
The assets and liabilities are separated into Current
and Non-Current. Current generally means those
assets which will be received or liabilities which will
be paid within the next 12 months. Non-Current are
all those assets and liabilities which are held for a
longer term.
The net current assets or working capital as it
is sometimes called is an important measure of
Council’s ability to meet its debts as and when they
fall due.

Balance Sheet
The components of the Balance Sheet are:
Current and Non-Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalent assets include cash and
investments i.e. cash held in the bank and in petty
cash and the market value of Council’s investments
with a maturity of less than 90 days.

Current and Non-Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables are those to whom
Council owes money as at 30 June.
Trust fund and deposits represent monies held in
trust by Council i.e. security deposits.
Provisions represent estimates of future obligations
and include accrued Long Service and Annual
Leave owed to employees.

Trade and other receivables are monies owed to
Council by ratepayers and others.

Interest-bearing liabilities are borrowings of
Council.

Financial assets are the market value of
investments held with a maturity of greater than
90 days.

Unearned income represents amounts received by
Council in exchange for the provision of services
or products that are yet to be delivered or fully
completed.

Inventories are stocks held for sale or consumption
in Council’s services.
Other assets include prepayments of expenses that
Council has paid for in advance and assets held for
resale which are in a position of being marketed
and sold.
Investments in associates represent Council’s
investment in Eastern Regional Libraries
Corporation and Narre Warren User Group.

Lease liabilities represent Council’s obligations as a
result of entering into lease agreements.
Net Assets
This term is used to describe the difference
between the value of Total Assets and the value
of Total Liabilities. It represents the net worth of
Council as at 30 June.
Total Equity

Intangibles represent non-current assets held by
Council that are not tangible.

This always equals Net Assets. It is made up of the
following components:

Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment is
the largest component of Council’s worth and
represents the value of all the land, buildings,
roads, drains, vehicles, equipment etc. which has
been built up by Council over many years.

•

Assets revaluation reserve, which reflects
the net change in the value of Council’s
revalued assets given their current valuation.
This component of equity is impacted
by Other Comprehensive Income in the
Comprehensive Income Statement.

•

Accumulated surplus, which is reflective
of the cumulative surplus’/deficits
Council has achieved over its lifetime,
as stated in the Comprehensive Income
Statement for each financial year.

Right-of-use assets represent Council’s right to use
an underlying asset as agreed to under the terms
of a lease agreement.
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Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows summarises Council’s
cash payments and cash receipts for the year. This
Statement is presented according to a very specific
Accounting Standard and needs some care in
analysis. The values may differ from those shown in
the Comprehensive Income Statement because the
Comprehensive Income Statement is prepared on
an accrual accounting basis.
Cash in this Statement refers to bank deposits and
other forms of highly liquid investments that can
be readily converted to cash.
Council’s cash arises from, and is used in, three
main areas.

Statement of Changes
in Equity
During the course of the year the value of Total
Equity as set out in the Balance Sheet changes.
This Statement shows the values of such changes
and how these changes arose.
The main reasons for a change in equity stem from:
•

the ‘surplus or deficit’ from operations,
described in the Comprehensive Income
Statement as Comprehensive Result for the year

•

a revaluation of assets which takes place
on a regular basis to ensure the most
up-to-date value is included in Council’s books.

1. Cash flows from operating activities:
•

•

Receipts – all cash received into Council’s
bank account from ratepayers and others
who owe money to Council. Receipts also
include the interest earnings from Council’s
cash investments. It does not include the
costs associated with the sale of assets.
Payments – all cash paid by Council from its
bank account to employees, creditors and
other persons. It does not include the costs
associated with the creation of assets.

2. Cash flows from investing activities:
•

This section shows the cash invested in
the creation or purchase of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment
assets and the cash received from the
sale of these assets. This section also
shows Council’s activity from investing in
term deposits throughout the period.

3. Cash flows from financing activities:
•

This is where the receipt and repayment
of borrowed funds are recorded.

The bottom line of the Cash Flows Statement is the
cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year.
This shows the capacity of Council to meet its cash
debts and other liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements
The Notes are a very important and informative
section of the Financial Statements. The Australian
Accounting Standards are not prescriptive
regarding a lot of issues. Therefore, to enable
the reader to understand the basis on which the
values shown in the face of the Statements are
established, it is necessary to provide details of
Council’s significant accounting policies.
Apart from the accounting policies, the Notes
also give details and context behind many of the
summary figures contained in the face of the
Statements. The Note numbers are shown beside
the relevant items in the Comprehensive Income
Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows, and
should be read in conjunction with these items to
give a clearer picture of the accounts.
The Notes also include information that
Council wishes to disclose but which cannot be
incorporated into the face of the Statements. Other
notes include:
•

The breakdown of expenses, revenues,
reserves and other assets

•

Contingent liabilities

•

Transactions with persons related to Council.

Certification by the Principal
Accounting Officer, Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) and
Councillors
The Certification of the Principal Accounting
Officer is made by the person responsible for the
financial management of Council that, in her/his
opinion, the Financial Statements have met all the
statutory and professional reporting requirements.
The Certification of the CEO and Councillors is
made by two Councillors and the CEO on behalf
of Council that, in their opinion, the Financial
Statements are fair and not misleading or
inaccurate.

Performance Statement
The Performance Statement reflects the Council
performance on indicators included in the Local
Government Performance Reporting Framework.
Please note that the source for some of the data
included in this framework is derived from external
sources such as the Local Government Satisfaction
Survey, the Australian Bureau of Statistics and the
Department of Health and Human Services.

Auditor General’s Report
The Independent Audit Report provides the reader
with an external and independent opinion on the
Financial Statements. It confirms that the Financial
Report has been prepared in accordance with
relevant legislation and professional standards
and that it represents a fair picture of the financial
affairs of the Council.
A separate Independent Audit Report is also
provided with respect to the information contained
within Council’s Performance Statement.
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Maroondah City Council
2020/2021 Financial Report

Comprehensive Income Statement
Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Note

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

Income
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Grants - operating
Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary
Contributions - non monetary
Net gain / (loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Share of net profits / (loss) of associates and joint ventures
Other income
Total income

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.4
3.5
3.5
3.6
6.2
3.7

96,033
4,357
14,094
10,808
23,664
10,205
25
12,689
156
412
172,443

92,769
4,606
20,441
8,921
8,539
5,142
378
289
131
1,123
142,339

Expenses
Employee costs
Materials and services
Depreciation
Amortisation - intangible assets
Amortisation - right of use assets
Bad and doubtful debts
Borrowing costs
Finance costs - leases
Other expenses
Total expenses

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8
4.9

54,924
47,577
22,849
279
807
17
843
72
2,759
130,127

55,463
49,378
21,992
243
324
902
35
3,667
132,004

42,316

10,335

91,936
134,252

(32,288)
(21,953)

Surplus / (deficit) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment / (decrement)
Total comprehensive result

6.1

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Page 4
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Maroondah City Council
2020/2021 Financial Report

Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2021

Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2021

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Inventories
Other assets
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidiaries
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Unearned income
Provisions
Interest-bearing liabilities
Lease liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trust funds and deposits
Unearned income
Provisions
Interest-bearing liabilities
Lease liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Note

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

5.1
5.1
5.1
5.2
5.2
6.3

27,914
13,589
37,917
421
1,338
81,179

47,256
21,441
20,598
404
924
6,799
97,422

5.1
5.1
6.2
6.1
5.8
5.2

571
1,057
3,732
1,937,472
2,149
874
1,945,855
2,027,034

277
1,057
3,578
1,788,458
1,287
784
1,795,441
1,892,863

5.3
5.3
5.3
5.5
5.4
5.8

15,036
6,466
30,963
14,389
1,541
934
69,329

8,963
5,576
30,876
13,429
2,618
513
61,975

5.3
5.3
5.5
5.4
5.8

330
1,952
1,507
14,277
1,252
19,318
88,647

6
10,780
1,863
15,817
789
29,255
91,230

1,938,387

1,801,633

837,204
1,101,183
1,938,387

793,386
1,008,247
1,801,633

Net assets

Equity
Accumulated surplus
Reserves
Total Equity

9.1

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 30For
June
the2021
Year Ended 30 June 2021

Note
2021
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Adjustment for prior periods - property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment
Adjusted Opening balance
Surplus / (deficit) for the year
Net asset revaluation increment / (decrement)
Transfers to other reserves
Transfers from other reserves
Balance at end of the financial year

6.1

6.1
9.1
9.1

2020
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Impact of change in accounting policy - AASB
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Impact of change in accounting policy - AASB
1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
Adjustment for prior periods - property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment
Adjusted Opening balance
Surplus / (deficit) for the year
Net asset revaluation increment / (decrement)
Balance at end of the financial year

6.1

6.1

Total
$'000

Accumulated
Surplus
$'000

Revaluation
Reserve
$'000

Other
Reserves
$'000

1,801,633

793,386

997,247

11,000

2,502
1,804,135
42,316
91,936
1,000
(1,000)
1,938,387

2,502
795,888
42,316
(1,000)
837,204

997,247
91,936
1,089,183

11,000
1,000
12,000

Total
$'000

Accumulated
Surplus
$'000

Revaluation
Reserve
$'000

Other
Reserves
$'000

1,861,473

820,938

1,029,535

11,000

(80)

(80)

-

-

(2,550)

(2,550)

-

-

(35,257)
1,823,586
10,335
(32,288)
1,801,633

(35,257)
783,051
10,335
793,386

1,029,535
(32,288)
997,247

11,000
11,000

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Note

2021
Inflows/
(Outflows)
$'000

2020
Inflows/
(Outflows)
$'000

95,458
4,362
14,664
18,111
16,606
10,321
367
42,597
9,336
(54,067)
(58,136)
(75)
(41,383)
58,161

91,677
4,621
23,676
20,003
26,317
5,239
994
18,583
7,249
(53,810)
(62,012)
(114)
(17,830)
64,593

(58,385)
2,518
(127,726)
110,407
(73,186)

(49,438)
928
(73,262)
89,881
(31,891)

(843)
(2,617)
(72)
(785)
(4,317)

(460)
(691)
(35)
(309)
(1,495)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

(19,342)
47,256

31,207
16,049

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

27,914

47,256

Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Grants - operating
Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary
Interest received
Trust funds and deposits taken
Net GST refund / (payment)
Employee costs
Materials and services
Short-term, low value and variable lease payments
Trust funds and deposits repaid
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

9.2

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Payments for investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs
Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid - lease liability
Repayment of lease liabilities
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities

Financing arrangements
Financial assets

5.6
5.1

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Note

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

8,310

4,196

Property
Land
Total land

8,310

4,196

Buildings

55,866

23,832

Total buildings

55,866

23,832

Total property
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Computers and telecommunications
Total plant and equipment

64,176

28,028

1,058
358
50
1,466

2,365
37
2,402

Infrastructure
Roads
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Waste management
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Off street car parks
Other infrastructure
Total infrastructure

4,329
2,296
3,110
20
5,246
374
46
15,421

3,298
3,436
2,594
27
4,610
489
727
15,181

Total capital works expenditure

81,063

45,611

Represented by:
New asset expenditure
Asset renewal expenditure
Asset upgrade expenditure
Total capital works expenditure

53,877
21,907
5,279
81,063

16,696
15,481
13,435
45,611

1.2, 6.1

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

OVERVIEW
Introduction
The Maroondah City Council ("The Council") was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 15 December 1994 and is a body corporate. The
Council's main office is located at 179 Maroondah Highway Ringwood, VIC 3134.
Statement of compliance
These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes
in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report
complies with the Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local
Government Act 1989 , and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 (as per the transitional provisions of the Local Government Act
2020).
Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are
recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated judgements are based on professional judgement derived from historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are affected by the revision.
Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate
to:
- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.1)
- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.1)
- the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 5.5)
- the determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific so as to determine whether an arrangement is within the scope of AASB 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers or AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (refer to Note 3)
- the determination, in accordance with AASB 16 Leases , of the lease term, the estimation of the discount rate when not implicit in the lease and whether an
arrangement is in substance short-term or low value (refer to Note 5.8)
- other areas requiring judgements
Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate, comparative figures have been
amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any material changes to comparatives.
Disclosure of COVID-19 impacts on the current reporting period
On 16 March 2020 a state of emergency was declared in Victoria due to the global pandemic COVID-19 virus, known as coronavirus. A state of disaster was
subsequently declared on 2 August 2020. Maroondah City Council and its employees, stakeholders and constituents have been subject to variable levels of
restrictions since this period of time up until the date of these annual financial statements, 30 June 2021.
COVID-19 had a significant impact on the operations of Council in the current reporting period ending 30 June 2021. The financial implications of the pandemic
have been considered in the preparation of these financial statements.
The significant effects on the financial statements and estimates, as a result of the pandemic, have been reflected and can be observed in the following
components of these financial statements:
- Performance against budget (refer to Note 1)
- Statutory fees and fines (refer to Note 3.2)
- User fees (refer to Note 3.3)
- Funding from other levels of government (refer to Note 3.4)
- Employee costs (refer to Note 4.1)
- Reserves, in relation to the decision making of reserve allocations for the year (refer to Note 9.1)
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Note 1 Performance against budget

The performance against budget notes compare Council’s financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual performance. The
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances. Council has adopted a
materiality threshold of the lower of 10 percent or $1 million where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for
variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.
The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 27 July 2020. The Budget was based on assumptions that were relevant at
the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines and parameters for income and expense targets in this budget in order to meet
Council’s planning and financial performance targets for both the short and long-term. The budget did not reflect any changes to equity
resulting from asset revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.
These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 (as per the transitional provisions of the Local Government Act 2020).
1.1 Income and expenditure

Budget
2021
$'000

Actual
2021
$'000

Variance
2021
$'000

Variance
2021
%

96,240
5,145
20,162
8,384
26,557
4,726
-

96,033
4,357
14,094
10,808
23,664
10,205
25

(207)
(788)
(6,068)
2,424
(2,893)
5,479
25

(0%)
(15%)
(30%)
29%
(11%)
116%
NA

12,075

12,689

614

5%

Other income
Total income

1,134
174,423

156
412
172,443

156
(722)
(1,980)

NA
(64%)
(1%)

Expenses
Employee costs
Materials and services
Depreciation
Amortisation - intangible assets
Amortisation - right of use assets
Bad and doubtful debts
Borrowing costs
Finance costs - leases
Other expenses
Total expenses

56,574
50,360
24,441
516
861
41
1,482
134,275

54,924
47,577
22,849
279
807
17
843
72
2,759
130,127

1,650
2,783
1,592
(279)
(291)
(17)
18
(31)
(1,277)
4,148

3%
6%
7%
NA
(56%)
NA
2%
(76%)
(86%)
3%

Surplus / (deficit) for the year

40,148

42,316

2,168

5%

Income
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Grants - operating
Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary
Contributions - non monetary
Net gain / (loss) on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment
Share of net profits / (losses) of associates and joint
ventures

Ref

1
2
3
4
5

6

7
8
9
10

11
12

(i) Explanation of material variations
Item
Variance
Ref
1
Statutory fees and fines

Explanation
The unfavourable variance relates mainly to fines ($675k). Traffic fines were lower than
budgeted due to the impact of the COVID pandemic ($529k). Election fines were also
lower than anticipated ($133k), the Victorian Electoral Commission has advised that
Maroondah had a much higher level of voter participation than in previous elections and
that they applied a higher level of concession in not fining individuals for a failure to vote
due to the COVID pandemic.
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1.1 Income and expenditure (cont'd)
Item
Variance
Ref
2
User fees

Explanation
The continued impact of the COVD pandemic on Council has been profound. During the
various lockdowns throughout the year, the required closure and/or reduced operating
capacity of leisure facilities including Karralyka, Federation Estate, Aquanation,
Aquahub, Ringwood Golf, The Rings and Maroondah Nets resulted in a loss of
anticipated user fee income of $6.4m. This is against a budget that was already partially
moderated for anticipated impacts of the pandemic, however, it was not foreseeable that
Council would face multiple lockdowns leading to facility closures.

3

Grants - operating

The favourable variance relates mainly to the receipt of the Working for Victoria grant
($1.3m) and the COVID-19 Outdoor Dining grant ($285k) both from the State
Government and also the Meals on Wheels Emergency Support grant ($185k) from the
Federal Government all of which had not been budgeted. All these are offset by
associated expenditure that was also unbudgeted, but a direct result of obtaining these
grants. The Federal Government Financial Assistance Grant ($190k) was less than
budgeted and part payment received is in relation to 21/22 grants.

4

Grants - capital

5

Contributions - monetary

6

Other income

7

Employee costs

8

Materials and services

The unfavourable variance relates mainly to car park development (Ringwood $7m,
Heathmont $760k) due to delays in commencement of construction and ensuring the
correct application of AASB 1058 in terms of income recognition.
Additionally, there have been revised construction programs for pavilion redevelopments
(Dorset Multipurpose $2m, Ainslie Park $500k and Springfield Sports $500k).
Capital projects $2.9m (including Pavilion redevelopment $2.8m) which had not been
budgeted for were undertaken during the period.
The improved position compared to budget was due to several factors including
developer contributions ($3.3m) including the Maroondah Transform project ($3.2m),
Public Open Space funds ($1.6m), and contributions for capital projects ($395k).
Public Open Space funds and developers contributions have restrictions and set
requirements in relation to how and what they are spent on.
The unfavourable variance is due to lower than anticipated interest rates for investments
held ($423k) and lower than budgeted commercial rent ($305k) with the COVID
pandemic being a contributing factor for some rental relief.
The continued impact of the COVD pandemic on Council has been profound. During the
various lockdowns throughout the year, the required closure and/or reduced operating
capacity of leisure facilities including Karralyka, Aquanation, Aquahub, Ringwood Golf,
Dorset Golf, The Rings and Maroondah Nets resulted in a reduction of anticipated
employee costs ($1.4m).
The favourable variance relates to a number of factors including, electricity ($530k)
(Leisure facilities $362k), water ($289k), and gas ($155k) were all less than budgeted
with the main impact due to closure of and/or reduced operating capacity in leisure
facilities during the various lockdowns throughout the year. Savings were achieved in
Street Lighting ($211k) reflecting use of energy efficient options. Council's advertising
and marketing and promotion was also underspent ($301k), impacted by the COVID
pandemic lockdowns with many planned activities cancelled and advertising/marketing
and promotion not required. Fuel costs ($133k) were also down compared to budget,
less vehicle usage during the pandemic. Waste management services ($1.3m) were
underspent for the period in the areas domestic, recyclables and green waste collection,
however, will be spent in future years given the Waste Strategy targets.
Tree maintenance, including reactive and storm damage were higher than budgeted
specifically due to recent storm events ($978k).

9

Depreciation

The favourable variance in depreciation compared to the adopted budget is reflective of
an asset base that was adjusted downwards at year-end 2019/20, post the 2020/21
Budget having been adopted. This resulting in a over inflated depreciation figure
reflected in the 2020/21 budget compared to the actual result during the year, which was
calculated on a lower asset base.

10

Amortisation - right of use assets

AASB 16 Leases requires right of use assets and related liabilities for all lease
agreements to be recognised on the balance sheet. The Statement of Comprehensive
Income is to separately recognise the amortisation of the right of use asset, and the
finance costs relating to the lease. The unfavourable variance relates to the amortisation
of IT equipment ($153k) and Leisure Facility ($120k) leases, both of which had not been
budgeted for.

11

Finance costs - leases

Council had higher than budgeted for additions of right of use assets/liabilities during the
period, and as such, had higher corresponding financing costs in relation to them. Refer
to Note 5.8 for details of additions during the period.

12

Other expenses

Other expenses are lower than expected due to savings in lease payments ($331k),
however this category also includes expenses related to assets written off during the
period ($2.2m), which is subject to variation. Refer to Note 4.9.
Page 11
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Note 1 Performance against budget (cont'd)
1.2 Capital works

Budget
2021
$'000

Actual
2021
$'000

Variance
2021
$'000

Variance
2021
%

69,284
69,284
69,284

8,310
8,310
55,866
55,866
64,176

(8,310)
(8,310)
13,418
13,418
5,108

NA
NA
19%
19%
7%

Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Computers and telecommunications
Total plant and equipment

1,634
383
678
2,695

1,058
358
50
1,466

576
25
628
1,229

35%
7%
93%
46%

Infrastructure
Roads
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Waste management
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Off street car parks
Other infrastructure
Total infrastructure

2,890
3,051
2,576
4,117
250
603
13,487

4,329
2,296
3,110
20
5,246
374
46
15,421

(1,439)
755
(534)
(20)
(1,129)
(124)
557
(1,934)

(50%)
25%
(21%)
NA
(27%)
(50%)
92%
(14%)

Total capital works expenditure

85,466

81,063

4,403

5%

Represented by:
New asset expenditure
Asset renewal expenditure
Asset upgrade expenditure
Total capital works expenditure

54,817
25,757
4,892
85,466

53,877
21,907
5,279
81,063

940
3,850
(387)
4,403

2%
15%
(8%)
5%

Property
Land
Total land
Buildings
Total buildings
Total property

Ref

1
2

3
4

5
6
7
8
9
10

11

(i) Explanation of material variations
Variance
Ref
1
Land

Item

Explanation
This was not anticipated to occur during the year, hence there was no budget against it.
Opportunity arose to undertake a Land exchange with the Department of Education and
Traning during the year ($8.3M).

2

Buildings

3

Plant, machinery and equipment

4

Computers and telecommunications

The majority of the cloud migration project has now been completed. There is a change
to the hardware replacement policy to a cloud subscription option (operating rather than
capital) with funds to be transferred from capital to operating cost in 2021/22 ($400K).

5

Roads

The grant funded Roads to Recovery - Lincoln Road project is completed ahead of
schedule with future funding brought forward ($1.0M).
The Local Area Traffic Management funding program was extended to 2020/21 with
eligible projects being 50% funded. Future funding for eligible future projects were
utilised to take advantage of the extension ($0.4M).

The Ringwood Multi Level Car Park development schedule is extended with the project
deliverables expanding slightly. Timing as a result of further scope works and analysis
leading to an extended timeframe ($9.7M).
The Proclamation Park Pavilion development project completion is extended to 2021/22
($2.0M). The Dorset Multipurpose Pavilion Redevelopment construction will start in
2021/22 ($2.0M).
There was an underspend in this class of capital, given there were supply availability
issues as a direct impact of COVID. The underspend is partially offset against lower than
anticipated income received, given assets were not turned over as planned.
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1.2 Capital works (cont'd)
Item
Variance
Ref
6
Footpaths and cycleways

Explanation
Projects were completed ahead of time during the 2019/20 financial year, however,
established post the 2020/21 Budget being adopted. Hence, 2020/21 funding was
allocated towards these program of works/projects ($0.4m). Reducing the actual spend
during the current financial period.

7

Drainage

The Stormwater Drainage Renewal program of works were completed ahead of time
during the 2019/20 financial year, however, established post the 2020/21 Budget being
adopted. Hence, 2020/21 funding was allocated towards these program of works
($0.4m) and reduced acutal spend during the current financial period.

8

Parks, open space and streetscapes

The Silcock Ovals Redevelopment project is ahead of schedule with future funding
utilised ($0.4m). The Quambee Reserve Surface Renovation project was ahead of
schedule in the 2019/20 financial year with 2020/21 funding allocated during 2019/20.

9

Off street car parks

The Car Park Improvement program of works was completed ahead of schedule during
the 2019/20 financial year, however, established post the 2020/21 Budget being
adopted. Hence, future funding was allocated towards these program of works ($0.1m).

10

Other infrastructure

11

Asset renewal expenditure

The Street Lighting Improvement projects is significantly delayed as the product
shipment has been delayed affecting the installation works ($0.4m).
The Proclamation Park Pavilion development project completion is extended to 2021/22
($2.0m).
The Dorset Multipurpose Pavilion Redevelopment construction schedule will now
commence in 2021/22 ($2.0m).
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Note 2 Analysis of Council results by program

Council delivers its functions and activities through the following programs/directorates.
(a) Chief Executive Office
The Chief Executive Officer is the principal advisor to Council and the key liaison between the elected Council and Council administration. The
responsibility of the office is to ensure that Council's vision is realised through the organisation's activities and that policies and programs of
Council are effectively managed.
Corporate Services
The directorate is responsible for the provision of corporate services to operational areas of Council, and includes:
- Finance and Governance, including Waste Management and Risk Management
- Workplace People and Culture
- Information Technology
- Revenue, Property and Customer Service including library services.
Development and Amenity
The directorate is responsible for:
- Engineering and Building Services, which delivers the engineering related component of Council’s Capital Works program including traffic
management, stormwater drainage and flood management, and advice on private subdivisions and developments. Building Services issue
building permits and carry out inspections, essential services, swimming pool audits and complaint resolution
- Statutory Planning manages Council’s statutory and compliance activities, including the provisions of the Planning and Environmental Act and
the Maroondah Planning Scheme
- Health, Local Laws and Emergency Management; manages a range of Council’s statutory and compliance activities: including the Public
Health and Wellbeing Act, Food Act, Emergency Management Act and Council’s Local Laws. It includes Environmental Health, Immunisation,
Emergency Management and Local Laws teams.

Operations, Assets and Leisure
The directorate is responsible for:
- Assets, which include strategic asset management, open space strategic direction and policy development, capital works renewal program
development for roads, car parks, community facilities and public open spaces, and the delivery of community facility and open space capital
works projects
- Leisure, which provides opportunities, activities and events to encourage increased community involvement and physical activity. In addition, it
manages Karralyka, Maroondah Federation Estate and Council’s Maroondah Leisure facilities, including Aquanation, Aquahub, Ringwood and
Dorset Golf, The Rings, The Nets and Croydon Memorial Pool. It is also responsible for overall occupancy of Councils sporting facilities and
pavilions including seasonal allocations, leases, licences and casual use
- Operations maintains Maroondah’s community assets, including parks, gardens, bushland, roads and footpath; as well as fleet management
and maintenance.

Strategy and Community
The directorate is responsible for:
- Business and Development, which coordinates Council’s efforts in major projects such as the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre, including
Realm. The team also facilitates and supports the sustainable growth of the local economy and business networks
- Community Services, which provides maternal & child health, children’s, youth, and aged and disability services to meet the needs of a diverse
community, as well as Arts and Cultural Development
- Integrated Planning which looks after strategic land use, environmental sustainability, Maroondah Planning Scheme amendments, and
community and policy development.
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Note 2 Analysis of Council results by program
(b) Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program
Income
2021
Chief Executive Office
Corporate Services
Development and Amenity
Operations, Assets and Leisure
Strategy and Community

$'000
179
102,447
14,430
50,131
5,256
172,443

Income
2020
Chief Executive Office
Corporate Services
Development and Amenity
Operations, Assets and Leisure
Strategy and Community

$'000
181
99,950
9,529
27,495
5,184
142,339

Expenses
$'000
2,886
35,199
10,831
67,048
14,163
130,127

Expenses
$'000
2,377
33,207
10,804
71,108
14,508
132,004

Surplus /
Grants included
(Deficit)
in income
$'000
$'000
(2,707)
5,434
67,248
143
3,599
25,231
(16,917)
3,663
(8,907)
42,316
34,472

Surplus /
Grants included
(Deficit)
in income
$'000
$'000
(2,196)
66,743
5,416
(1,275)
116
(43,613)
8,596
(9,324)
3,332
10,335
17,460

Total assets
$'000
89,279
1,937,755
2,027,034

Total assets
$'000
97,357
1,795,506
1,892,863

Commentary on allocations
Amounts included in the above categories that Council does not allocate for internal reporting purposes include:
Corporate Services: rates revenue including supplementary, Victorian grants commission, insurances
Operations, Assets and Leisure: capital grants, depreciation
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services
3.1 Rates and charges

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

Council uses capital improved value ("CIV") as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district. The CIV of a property is the
market value of land and improvements.
The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2020/21 was $37.47 billion (2019/20 $35.64 billion).
General rates
Waste management charge
Special rates and charges
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments
Interest on rates and charges
Cultural and recreational
Total rates and charges

79,379
15,742
156
414
324
18
96,033

76,868
14,770
153
785
175
18
92,769

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2021, and the valuation will be
first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2021.
Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates are recognised when a
valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.
3.2 Statutory fees and fines

2021
$'000
772
204
1,422
104
1,743
112
4,357

Infringements and costs
Court recoveries
Town planning fees
Land information certificates
Permits
Other
Total statutory fees and fines

2020
$'000
1,038
258
1,548
91
1,512
159
4,606

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is
received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.
3.3 User fees
Active leisure centres
Aged and health services
Asset Protection
Child care and children's programs
Community facilities recreation
Community health
Local laws
Occupation road reserve
Performing arts, functions and conferences
Public notices
Youth programs
Other fees and charges
Total user fees

2021
$'000
9,536
453
349
264
461
12
45
221
1,249
104
1,400
14,094

2020
$'000
14,808
473
295
273
412
17
25
179
2,883
97
3
976
20,441

User fees by timing of revenue recognition
User fees recognised at a point in time
Total user fees

14,094
14,094

20,441
20,441

User fees are recognised as revenue at a point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied. Recognition is based
on the underlying contractual terms.
3.4 Funding from other levels of government
Grants were received in respect of the following:
Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants
State funded grants
Total grants income
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2021
$'000

2020
$'000

25,834
8,638
34,472

13,388
4,072
17,460
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3.4 Funding from other levels of government (cont'd)
(a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Children's services
Community health
Financial assistance grants
Aged care
Sport and recreation
Other
Recurrent - State Government
Aged care
Council and community planning
Children services
Youth services
Maternal and child health
Other
Total recurrent operating grants
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Asset management
Aged care
Non-recurrent - State Government
Sport and recreation
Asset management
Waste management
Community health
Maternal child and health
Youth services
Integrated planning
Children's services
Council and community planning
Working 4 Victoria
COVID - 19
Other
Total non-recurrent operating grants
Total operating grants
(b) Capital Grants
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Buildings
Roads
Car parks
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Non-recurrent - State Government
Buildings
Roads
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks and open space
Commercial centres
Total non-recurrent capital grants
Total capital grants
(c) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner
Operating
Balance at start of year
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date
Received in prior years and remained unspent at balance date
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year
Balance at year end

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

419
104
4,743
1,044
20
1

391
95
5,127
836
-

537
73
1
32
1,065
124
8,163

539
1
69
1,035
8,093

32
-

8
31

180
11
138
27
131
230
43
85
3
1,324
428
13
2,645
10,808

8
42
289
20
82
237
50
55
6
828
8,921

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

45
3,527
15,896
2

1,122
858
4,810
110

2,924
582
24
51
418
6
189
23,664
23,664

759
439
9
15
417
8,539
8,539

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

11,231
1,507
140
(165)
12,713

1,640
11,039
192
(1,442)
11,231
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3.4 Funding from other levels of government (cont'd)
(c) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner (cont'd)

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

2021
$'000
10,205
25
10,230

2020
$'000
5,142
378
5,520

Capital
30,203
2,613
Balance at start of year
5,254
28,368
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date
8,000
1,835
Received in prior years and remained unspent at balance date
(778)
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year
(20,228)
23,229
30,203
Balance at year end
Grant income is recognised at the point in time when the council satisfies its performance obligations as specified in the underlying agreement.
3.5 Contributions
Monetary
Non-monetary
Total contributions

Contributions of non monetary assets were received in relation to the following asset classes:
Land
Drainage
Plant machinery and equipment
25
Roads
25
Total non-monetary contributions
Monetary and non monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the contributed asset.
3.6 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds of sale - monetary
Proceeds of sale - non-monetary
Written down value of assets disposed
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.
3.7 Other income
Interest on investments
Interest other
Rent
Total other income

157
187
34
378

2021
$'000
619
20,310
(8,240)
12,689

2020
$'000
854
(565)
289

2021
$'000
250
3
159
412

2020
$'000
811
2
310
1,123

Interest is recognised as it is earned. Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when Council gains control over the right to receive the income.
Note 4 The cost of delivering services
4.1 (a) Employee costs
Wages and salaries
Workcover
Superannuation
Fringe benefits tax
Total employee costs
(b) Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:
Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)
Employer contributions payable at reporting date.
Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)
Employer contributions - other funds
Employer contributions payable at reporting date.
Refer to note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligations.
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2021
$'000
49,446
297
4,686
495
54,924

2020
$'000
49,923
379
4,648
513
55,463

201
201
-

251
251
-

2,353
2,132
4,485
-

2,462
1,935
4,397
-
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4.2 Materials and services

Agency staff
Apprentices
Bank charges
Cleaning
Communications, postage and advertising
Consultants
Cost of goods sold
Fire services levy
Food costs - meals on wheels
Fuels, oil, registrations and running costs - plant and fleet
Grants to the community
Insurance
Legal fees
Library contribution
Licence fees
Maintenance
Marketing and promotion
Materials - depot and golf courses
Memberships and subscriptions
Printing and stationary
Security
Training
Uniforms
Utilities
Other
Contract payments - waste
Contract payments - operations
Contract payments - valuations
Contract payments - election
Contractors - other
Total materials and services
4.3 Depreciation
Property
Plant and equipment
Infrastructure
Total depreciation

2021
$'000
651
534
325
915
1,181
673
630
116
516
904
663
1,014
449
2,543
252
3,756
78
1,238
184
218
582
304
97
3,217
2,953
13,099
4,201
25
461
5,798
47,577

2020
$'000
829
484
368
926
1,222
976
794
110
508
1,034
438
888
611
2,679
191
3,740
355
1,258
306
142
378
370
103
3,553
3,426
12,830
4,457
76
6,326
49,378

2021
$'000
5,228
2,008
15,613
22,849

2020
$'000
4,530
2,090
15,372
21,992

Refer to note 5.2(c), 5.8 and 6.1 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges and accounting policy.
4.4 Amortisation - intangible assets
Software
Total amortisation - intangible assets
4.5 Amortisation - right of use assets
Photocopiers
IT equipment
Leisure equipment
Land
Total amortisation - right of use assets
4.6 Bad and doubtful debts
Other debtors
Total bad and doubtful debts

2021
$'000
279
279

2020
$'000
243
243

2021
$'000
42
590
171
4
807

2020
$'000
29
275
20
324

2021
$'000
17
17

2020
$'000
-
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4.6 Bad and doubtful debts (cont'd)
Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year
New provisions recognised during the year
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible
Amounts provided for but recovered during the year
Balance at end of year

26
17
(4)
39

49
(19)
(4)
26

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised based on an expected credit loss model. This model considers both historic and forward looking
information in determining the level of impairment.
2021
$'000
843
843

4.7 Borrowing costs
Interest - borrowings
Total borrowing costs

2020
$'000
902
902

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are capitalised as part of a qualifying
asset constructed by Council.
4.8 Finance costs - leases
Interest - lease liabilities
Total finance costs
4.9 Other expenses
Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements, performance statement
and grant acquittals
Auditors' remuneration - internal
Councillors' allowances
Operating lease rentals
Assets written-off / impaired
Total other expenses
Note 5 Our financial position
5.1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Term deposits
Total cash and cash equivalents
(b) Other financial assets
Term deposits - current
Term deposits - non-current
Total other financial assets
Total financial assets

2021
$'000
72
72

2020
$'000
35
35

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

69

76

71
307
75
2,237
2,759

132
317
202
2,940
3,667

2021
$'000
23
1,308
26,583
27,914

2020
$'000
25
10,213
37,018
47,256

37,917
1,057
38,974
66,888

20,598
1,057
21,655
68,911

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary use. These include:
- Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3)
6,796
5,582
6,796
5,582
Total restricted funds
21,118
41,674
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Intended allocations
Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been allocated for specific future purposes by Council:
- cash held to fund carried forward capital works (inclusive of grant funded works)
11,379
-Grants received during the financial year, or previous financial years that remain unspent
24,563
at balance date (excluding cash held to fund carry forward capital works that are grant
funded)

2,075
30,876

35,942

32,951

Total funds subject to intended allocations

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost.
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5.1 Financial assets (cont'd)
(c) Trade and other receivables

Current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors
Garbage charges - debtors
Infringement debtors
Provision for doubtful debts - infringements
Non statutory receivables
Loans and advances to community organisations
Interest accrued - other investments
Other debtors
Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors
Total current trade and other receivables
Non-current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors
Infringement debtors
Non statutory receivables
Loans and advances to community organisations
Interest accrued - other investments
Other debtors
Total non-current trade and other receivables
Total trade and other receivables

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

3,811
767
170
(4)

3,290
645
165
(9)

35
41
8,804
(35)
13,589

33
73
17,261
(17)
21,441

41
1

41
-

74
5
450
571
14,160

60
73
103
277
21,718

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that an
impairment has occurred. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
(d) Ageing of receivables
The ageing of the Council's trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:
Current (not yet due)
5,247
Past due by up to 30 days
617
Past due between 31 and 180 days
2,948
Past due between 181 and 365 days
67
Past due by more than 1 year
529
Total trade and other receivables
9,408

3,020
13,658
65
607
236
17,586

(e) Ageing of individually impaired receivables
At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $177,766 (2020: $84,820) were impaired. The amount of
the provision raised against these debtors was $17,777 (2020: $8,482). They individually have been impaired as a result of their doubtful
collection. Many of the long outstanding past due amounts have been lodged with Council's debt collectors or are on payment arrangements.
The ageing of receivables that have been individually determined as impaired at reporting date was:
Current (not yet due)
Past due by up to 30 days
Past due between 31 and 180 days
Past due between 181 and 365 days
Past due by more than 1 year
Total individually impaired receivables

5.2 Non-financial assets
(a) Inventories
Inventories held for distribution
Inventories held for sale
Total inventories

2
176
178

31
53
84

2021
$'000
145
276
421

2020
$'000
138
266
404

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential. All other inventories, including
land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where inventories are acquired for no cost or nominal
consideration, they are measured at current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.
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5.2 Non-financial assets (cont'd)
(b) Other assets

2021
$'000
1,312
26
1,338

2020
$'000
923
1
924

2021
$'000
874
874

2020
$'000
784
784

Software
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2019
Additions
Disposals - fully amortised
Balance at 1 July 2020
Additions
Disposals - fully amortised
Balance at 30 June 2021

$'000

Total
$'000

1,790
245
(639)
1,396
369
(152)
1,613

1,790
245
(639)
1,396
369
(152)
1,613

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2019
Amortisation expense
Disposals - fully amortised
Balance at 1 July 2020
Amortisation expense
Disposals - fully amortised
Balance at 30 June 2021

1,008
243
(639)
612
279
(152)
739

1,008
243
(639)
612
279
(152)
739

784
874

784
874

Prepayments
Accrued income
Total other assets
(c) Intangible assets
Software
Total intangible assets

Net book value at 30 June 2020
Net book value at 30 June 2021

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised as an expense on a systematic basis over the asset's useful life. Amortisation is generally
calculated on a straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful life.
Estimates of the remaining useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at least annually, and adjustments made where appropriate.
5.3 Payables
(a) Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Total trade and other payables
(b) Trust funds and deposits
Current
Refundable deposits
Fire services levy
Retention amounts
Other refundable deposits
Special rate assessment
Total current trust funds and deposits
Non-current
Other refundable deposits
Special rate assessment
Total non-current trust funds and deposits
Total trust funds and deposits

2021
$'000
13,721
1,315
15,036

2020
$'000
7,704
1,259
8,963

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

3,921
525
698
1,164
158
6,466

3,323
405
642
551
655
5,576

6
324
330

6
6

6,796

5,582

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are returned, transferred in
accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in council gaining control of the funds, are to be
recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.
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5.3 Payables (cont'd)
(b) Trust funds and deposits
Purpose and nature of items
Refundable / Other Refundable Deposits - Deposits are taken by council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances, including in relation
to building works, tender deposits, contract deposits and the use of civic facilities.
Fire Service Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government. Council remits amounts received on a
quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the state government in line with that process.
Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain requirements or a related
warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts
will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with Council's contractual obligations.

Current
Grants received in advance - operating
Grants received in advance - capital
Total current unearned income

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

12,573
18,390
30,963

11,066
19,810
30,876

Non-current
Grants received in advance - capital
Total current unearned income
Total unearned income

1,952
1,952
32,915

10,780
10,780
41,656

(c) Unearned income

Non-current unearned income amounts represent grant funding received by Council in relation to large, multi-year capital construction
agreements. The non-current portion has been identified via planned expenditure and progress towards the projects as per Council's 10 year
capital works program and adopted budget.
5.4 Interest-bearing liabilities
Current
Borrowings - secured
Total current interest-bearing liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings - secured
Total non-current interest-bearing liabilities
Total interest-bearing liabilities

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

1,541
1,541

2,618
2,618

14,277
14,277
15,818

15,817
15,817
18,435

1,541
6,967
7,310
15,818

2,618
6,637
9,180
18,435

Borrowings are secured by a deed of charge over Council rates.
(a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of transaction costs. The measurement basis
subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its interest-bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities
designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or financial liabilities at amortised cost. Any difference between the initial recognised amount
and the redemption value is recognised in net result over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The Council determines the classification of its interest bearing liabilities at
initial recognition.
5.5 Provisions

Total
$ '000

2021
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Additional provisions
Amounts used
Change in the discounted amount arising because of time and
the effect of any change in the discount rate
Balance at the end of the financial year

15,292
4,571
(3,878)
(89)
15,896
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5.5 Provisions (cont'd)

2020
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Additional provisions
Amounts used
Change in the discounted amount arising because of time and
the
effectatofthe
anyend
change
the discount
Balance
of theinfinancial
year rate

(a) Employee provisions
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave
Long service leave
Service gratuities
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave
Long service leave
Service gratuities
Total current employee provisions
Non-current
Long service leave
Total non-current employee provisions
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current
Non-current
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions

13,849
5,205
(3,912)
150
15,292

2021
$'000
3,357
1,101
5
4,463

2020
$'000
3,168
1,089
5
4,262

1,467
8,402
57
9,926
14,389

1,148
7,942
77
9,167
13,429

1,507
1,507

1,863
1,863

14,389
1,507
15,896

13,429
1,863
15,292

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date.
Wages and salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick leave expected to be wholly settled
within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services up to the reporting
date, classified as current liabilities and measured at their nominal values.
Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits
as current liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration
rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
Long service leave
Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. LSL is measured at present value. Unconditional LSL
is disclosed as a current liability. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of employment, is
disclosed as a non-current liability.
2021
0.88%
2.95%

2020
0.57%
4.25%

The Council has the following funding arrangements in place:
Bank overdraft
Corporate purchasing cards
Total facilities

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

1,300
300
1,600

1,300
300
1,600

Used facilities
Unused facilities

16
1,584

111
1,489

Key assumptions:
- weighted average discount rate
- inflation rate
5.6 Financing arrangements
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5.7 Commitments
The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at
their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

Not later than
1 year

2021

Later than 1 Later than 2
year and not years and not
later than 2
later than 5
years
years

Later than 5
years

Total

$'000

$'000

Operating
Recycling
Waste management
Cleaning contracts for council buildings
Other
Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

1,311
12,457
1,085
1,086
15,939

334
3,177
310
543
4,364

141
449
590

-

1,645
15,634
1,536
2,078
20,893

Capital
Buildings
Roads
Parks and reserves
Total

19,989
3,067
1,138
24,194

281
592
873

227
1,559
1,786

-

20,497
3,067
3,289
26,853

Not later than
1 year

2020
Operating
Recycling
Waste management
Other
Cleaning contracts for council buildings
Total
Capital
Buildings
Roads
Parks and reserves
Total

Later than 1 Later than 2
year and not years and not
later than 2
later than 5
years
years
$'000

Later than 5
years

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

1,290
10,308
2,783
959
15,340

329
2,628
1,553
626
5,136

1,393
634
2,027

-

1,619
12,936
5,729
2,219
22,503

2,329
1,439
122
3,890

-

-

-

2,329
1,439
122
3,890

5.8 Leases
At inception of a contract, all entities would assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To identify whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, it is necessary to assess whether:
- The contract involves the use of an identified asset;
- The customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and
- The customer has the right to direct the use of the asset.
This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2019.
As a lessee, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for:
- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; plus
- any initial direct costs incurred; and
- an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
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5.8 Leases (cont'd)
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain measurements of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, an appropriate incremental borrowing rate. Generally, Council
uses an appropriate incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- Fixed payments;
- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;
- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
- The exercise price under a purchase option that Council is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if
Council is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless Council is reasonably certain
not to terminate early.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
Council has elected to apply the temporary option available under AASB 16 Leases which allows not-for-profit entities to not measure right-ofuse assets at initial recognition at fair value in respect of leases that have significantly below-market terms.
Right-of-use assets

Photocopiers

IT equipment

Leisure
equipment

Land

Total

$'000
18
121
(29)
110
67
(42)
135

$'000
1,411
(275)
1,136
755
(590)
1,301

$'000
25
36
(20)
41
836
(171)
706

$'000
11
(4)
7

$'000
43
1,568
(324)
1,287
1,669
(807)
2,149

Lease liabilities
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 30 June:

2021
$'000
989
1,298
2,287

2020
$'000
555
815
1,370

Lease liabilities included in the Balance Sheet at 30 June:
Current
Non-current
Total lease liabilities

934
1,252
2,186

513
789
1,302

Balance at 1 July 2019
Additions
Amortisation charge
Balance at 1 July 2020
Additions
Amortisation charge
Balance at 30 June 2021

Short-term and low value leases
Council has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets (individual assets worth less than existing capitalisation thresholds for a like asset up to a maximum of
AUD$10,000), including IT equipment. Council recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
2021
$'000
75
75

Expenses relating to:
Short-term leases
Total

2020
$'000
114
114

Non-cancellable lease commitments - short-term and low-value leases
Commitments for minimum lease payments for short-term and low-value leases are payable within:
One year
3
18
3
18
Total lease commitments
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20,739
29
10,586
31,354

13,040
543
7,402
20,985

Works of Art
Roads
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage

248
919
109
1,226
2,502

1 July 2020
$'000

Additions
$'000

248
2,254
2,502

Opening WIP
$'000

1,117,176
9,554
640,743
20,985
1,788,458

Adjustments for prior periods
Council has brought to account a number of additional assets inadvertently
omitted, overstated or not discovered during prior recognition processes. This has
been adjusted against opening asset balances for Property, Infrastructure, Plant
and Equipment and Accumulated Surplus at 1 July 2020.

Property
Plant and equipment
Infrastructure
Total

Summary of work in progress

Property
Plant and equipment
Infrastructure
Work in progress

Adjustments
for prior
periods
$'000
$'000

At fair value 30
June 2020

Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Note 6 Assets we manage
6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

2020/2021 Financial Report

Maroondah City Council

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

213

Page 27

(121)
(121)

Write Off
$'000

43,437
1,437
4,835
31,354
81,063

$'000

Additions

(10,614)
(422)
(3,822)
(14,858)

Transfers
$'000

25
25

$'000

Contributions

23,165
29
14,166
37,360

Closing WIP
$'000

73,858
18,078
91,936

$'000

Revaluation

Notes to the Financial Report
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(5,228)
(2,008)
(15,613)
(22,849)

$'000

Depreciation

(5)
(70)
(2,027)
(121)
(2,223)

$'000

Write off

(1,350)
(90)
(1,440)

$'000

Disposals

10,603
358
3,897
(14,858)
-

$'000

Transfers

1,238,491
9,429
652,192
37,360
1,937,472

$'000

At fair value 30
June 2021
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At fair value 30 June 2021
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2021

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Adjustment for prior period
Depreciation and amortisation
Revaluation
Write off
Transfers

Movements in fair value
Additions
Write off
Revaluation
Transfers
Disposals

At fair value 1 July 2020
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2020

232,523
232,523

770,852
770,852

-

8,310
81,701
(1,350)
88,661

(37)
(37)
-

$'000
682,191
682,191

Land - non
specialised

$'000
232,560
232,560

Land specialised

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd)
(a) Property

021 Financial Report

(5,228)
(7,806)
4
(13,030)

8,310
81,664
(1,350)
88,624
-
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358,601
(123,485)
235,116

35,127
(9)
10,603
45,721

$'000
914,751
914,751

1,003,375
1,003,375

Buildings non
specialised
$'000
312,880
(110,455)
202,425

Total Land

358,601
(123,485)
235,116

(5,228)
(7,806)
4
(13,030)

35,127
(9)
10,603
45,721

$'000
312,880
(110,455)
202,425

Total
Buildings

Notes to the Financial Report
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23,165
23,165

-

20,739
(10,614)
10,125

$'000
13,040
13,040

Work In
Progress

1,385,141
(123,485)
1,261,656

(5,228)
(7,806)
4
(13,030)

64,176
(9)
81,664
(11)
(1,350)
144,470

$'000
1,240,671
(110,455)
1,130,216

Total Property

Annual Report 2020/21

At fair value 30 June 2021
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2021

Disposals

Write off

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Adjustment for prior period
Depreciation and amortisation

Movements in fair value
Adjustment for prior period
Additions
Contributions
Write off
Transfers
Disposals

At fair value 1 July 2020
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2020

(413)
256
(157)

(1,528)
200
621
(707)
6,571
(3,208)
3,363

248
341
(290)
155
454

1,046
(236)
203
(711)
302

12,479
(6,551)
5,928

$'000
6,117
(3,051)
3,066

Fixtures
fittings and
furniture

$'000
12,177
(5,844)
6,333

Plant
machinery and
equipment

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd)
(b) Plant and Equipment
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1,235
(1,097)
138

(43)

(67)
24

26

50
(24)

$'000
1,209
(1,054)
155

Computers and
telecomms

29
29

-

-

29
(121)
(422)
(514)

$'000
543
543

Work In
Progress

20,314
(10,856)
9,458

621
(907)

(2,008)
480

248
1,466
(671)
(64)
(711)
268

$'000
20,046
(9,949)
10,097

Total Plant and
equipment
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At fair value 30 June 2021
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2021

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Adjustment for prior period
Depreciation and amortisation
Revaluation
Write-off
Transfers

Movements in fair value
Adjustment for prior period
Additions
Revaluation
Contributions
Write-off
Transfers

At fair value 1 July 2020
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2020

(1,451)
(562)
(2,013)

(33)
(7,069)
(1,346)
34
(8,414)
113,071
(83,442)
29,629

109
867
908
437
2,321

952
1,123
3,673
25
(147)
1,848
7,474

462,610
(178,104)
284,506

$'000
110,750
(81,429)
29,321

Footpaths and
cycleways

$'000
455,136
(169,690)
285,446

Roads

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd)
(c) Infrastructure
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459,891
(178,321)
281,570

(3,953)
(9,374)
113
(13,214)

1,226
959
24,606
(297)
457
26,951

73,117
(36,116)
37,001

(2,738)
1,310
(1,428)

1,603
(3,040)
1,022
(415)

23,835
(4,349)
19,486

(402)
(25)
(427)

283
198
133
614

Parks open
Off street car
spaces and
parks
streetscapes
$'000
$'000
$'000
432,940
73,532
23,221
(165,107)
(34,688)
(3,922)
267,833
38,844
19,299

Drainage
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14,166
14,166

-

10,586
(3,822)
6,764

$'000
7,402
7,402

Work In
Progress

1,146,690
(480,332)
666,358

(33)
(15,613)
(11,307)
1,457
(25,496)

2,287
15,421
29,385
25
(3,484)
75
43,709

$'000
1,102,981
(454,836)
648,145

Total
Infrastructure
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Note 6 Assets we manage (cont'd)

Acquisition
The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as consideration at the date of
acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to
transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during
construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads.
In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset class and unless
otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods

Depreciation
period
Years

Threshold limit
$'000

Property
land

-

-

25 - 150

10

Buildings
buildings
Plant and equipment
plant, machinery and equipment

2 - 10

3

fixtures, fittings and furniture

2 - 15

0.7

works of art
computers and telecommunications

-

-

2 - 10

0.7

36 - 65

20

Infrastructure
road pavements and seals
road substructure
road formation and earthworks

36

20

150 - 200

20

65

5

road appurtenance

10 - 65

5

footpaths and cycleways

50 - 80

5

110

5

sub-surface drainage

10

5

irrigation

10

5

lake improvement works

60 - 80

5

sporting grounds surfaces

20 - 50

5

playground equipment

15 - 20

5

15 - 20

5

5

2

road kerb, channel and minor culverts

drainage
Parks, reserves and recreational

public seating
Intangible assets
intangible assets
Land under roads
Council recognises land under roads it controls at fair value.

Depreciation and amortisation
Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited useful lives are systematically depreciated
over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of
remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and
methods are reviewed annually.
Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned distinct useful
lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.
Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.
Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.
Depreciation periods used are listed above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.
Repairs and maintenance
Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the cost is capitalised
and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed.
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Note 6 Assets we manage (cont'd)

Valuation of land and buildings
The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being market value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning
provisions. Where land use is restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This adjustment is
an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.
Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or un-serviced) characteristics, access rights
and private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assets and services. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the
valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.
Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the fair value of these
assets.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within a fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable; and
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
An indexed based revaluation was conducted on land in the current year by a qualified independent valuer (Alvin Lee - Certified Practising
Valuer No. 62944), and a full revaluation will be conducted in 2021/22.
Full revaluations for financial reporting purposes are conducted bi-annually by Council, with the most recent previous revaluation undertaken in
May 2020 by a qualified independent valuer (James Graps AAPI - Certified Practising Valuer No. 101826).
Details of the Council’s land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2021 are as follows:
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3 Date of Valuation
Land
12,723
758,129
Jun-21
Specialised land
232,523
Jun-21
Buildings
1,929
233,187
Jun-21
Total
14,652
1,223,839
Valuation of infrastructure
The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table. An index based revaluation was conducted in the current year, this valuation
was based on Rawlinsons Australian Construction Handbook 2021 - Edition 39. The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less
accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation.
Details of the Council’s infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2021 are as follows:

Level 1
-

Roads
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Parks open spaces and streetscapes
Off street car parks
Total

Level 2
-

Level 3 Date of Valuation
284,506
Jun-21
29,629
Jun-21
281,570
Jun-21
37,001
Jun-21
19,486
Jun-21
652,192

Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations
Specialised land (land under roads) is valued using a market based direct comparison technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the
extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square metre. The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and
results in a reduction to surrounding land values of 95%. The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the land and
the current market conditions. Currently land values average $543.94 per square metre.
Non specialised land is valued using a market based mass modelling technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the extent and impact
of restriction of use. The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies, and the market value of land varies significantly depending on the
location of the land and the current market conditions.
Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the current replacement
cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets are determined on the basis of the current
condition of the asset. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to
the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the
useful lives of infrastructure assets.
2021
$'000
232,523
232,523

Reconciliation of specialised land
Land under roads
Total specialised land
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$'000
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232,560
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6.2 Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidiaries
(a) Investments in associates
Investments in associates accounted for by the equity method are:
- Eastern Regional Library Corporation
- Narre Warren User Group
Total

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

3,471
261
3,732

3,305
273
3,578

Eastern Regional Library Corporation
Background
Council's equity share in the Eastern Regional Library Corporation as at 30 June 2021, based on the Corporation’s unaudited financial report, is
disclosed as a non-current investment.
The equity holders in the Eastern Regional Library Corporation are:
Maroondah City Council - 24.89%
Knox City Council - 36.39%
Yarra Ranges Shire Council - 38.72%
Council's share of accumulated surplus / (deficit)
Council's share of accumulated surplus / (deficit) at start of year
Reported surplus / (deficit) for year
Council's share of accumulated surplus / (deficit) at end of year

3,305
166
3,471

3,150
155
3,305

Narre Warren User Group
Background
Council holds a 15.94% interest in the net assets relating to the use of the now closed Narre Warren regional landfill facility. The investment
held by the Narre Warren User Group is used for monitoring of the site, receipt of royalties and interest on the investment. Refer to Note 8.1
Contingent assets and liabilities.
Council's share of accumulated surplus / (deficit)
Council's share of accumulated surplus / (deficit) at start of year
Reported surplus / (deficit) for year
Council's share of accumulated surplus / (deficit) at end of year

273
(12)
261

297
(24)
273

Associates are all entities over which Council has significant influence but not control or joint control. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.
Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations
each investor has, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.
For joint operations, Council recognises its direct right to, and its share of jointly held assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint
operations.
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under this method, the interests are initially recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise Council’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income in profit or loss and other comprehensive income respectively.
Committees of management
All entities controlled by Council that have material revenues, expenses, assets or liabilities, such as committees of management, have been
included in this financial report. Any transactions between these entities and Council have been eliminated in full.
6.3 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Land and buildings - carrying amount

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

-

6,799
6,799

Non-current assets classified as held for sale (including disposal groups) are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less
costs of disposal, and are not subject to depreciation. Non-current assets, disposal groups and related liabilities and assets are treated as
current and classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset's sale (or disposal group sale) is expected to be
completed within 12 months from the date of classification.
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Note 7 People and relationships
7.1 Council and key management remuneration

(a) Related Parties
Parent entity
Maroondah City Council is the parent entity.
Subsidiaries and Associates
Interests in subsidiaries and associates are detailed in Note 6.2.

2021
No.

2020
No.

(b) Key Management Personnel
Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any time during the year are:
Councillors

T. Damante
T. Dib
M. Graham (including as Deputy Mayor July 2020 - September 2020)
N. Lamont (including as Deputy Mayor November 2020 to current)
P. Macdonald
S. Mazzuchelli (from July 2020 - September 2020)
K. Spears (including as Mayor November 2020 to current)
R. Steane
S. Stojanovic (from November 2020 to current)
M. Symon (including as Mayor July 2020 - September 2020)
Key Management Personnel Chief Executive Officer
Director - Corporate Services
Director - Development and Amenity
Director - Operations, Assets and Leisure
Director - Strategy and Community
Total Number of Councillors

10

9

Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel
Total Number of Key Management Personnel

5
15

5
14

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

1,589
26
154
1,769

1,562
(26)
150
1,686

2021
No.
1
1
6
1
1
2
2
1
15

2020
No.
7
1
1
1
1
2
1
14

(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-term benefits
Long-term benefits
Post employment benefits
Total Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any
related entities, fall within the following bands:
$1,000 - $9,999
$10,000 - $19,999
$20,000 - $29,999
$40,000 - $49,999
$50,000 - $59,999
$60,000 - $69,999
$230,000 - $239,999
$240,000 - $249,999
$260,000 - $269,999
$270,000 - $279,999
$390,000 - $399,999
$400,000 - $409,999
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7.1 Council and key management remuneration (cont'd)
(d) Senior Officer Remuneration
A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or
b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $151,000
The number of Senior Officers are shown below in their relevant income bands:
Income Range:
$151,000 - $169,999
$170,000 - $179,999
$180,000 - $189,999
$190,000 - $199,999
Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers included above, amounted to:
7.2 Related party disclosure
(a) Transactions with related parties
During the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parties.
There were 12 transactions that occurred during the current period with one related party for
mowing services. The total of these transactions was $53,678, and were made on standard
terms through an open tender process. There were 4 transactions that occured during the
current period with one related party, as contributions to the Eastern Regional Libraries. The total
of these transactions was $2,532,706.

2021
No.
3
9
2
3
17
3,014

2020
No.
3
10
4
17
2,974

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

2,586

2,716

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to
transactions with related parties.
There were no outstanding balances with related parties for the period ending 30 June 2021.

-

9

(c) Loans to / from related parties
The aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed
or secured by the council to a related party as follows:
No loans to / from related parties for the 2020/21 year.
(d) Commitments to / from related parties
The aggregate amount of commitments in existence at balance date that have been made,
guaranteed or secured by the council to a related party are as follows:
Commitments to related parties noted for the 2020/21 year.

2,771

These commitments are related to contributions to the Eastern Regional Libraries.
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties
8.1 Contingent assets and liabilities
(a) Contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed and if quantifiable, are measured at
nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable, respectively.
Superannuation
Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make additional contributions to the
scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined in Note 9.3. As a result of the volatility in financial markets the likelihood of
making such contributions in future periods exists.
Insurance claims
Council regularly receives claims and demands arising from incidents which occur on land belonging to Council or that arise from the actions or
omissions of Council and or its officers. Council is a participant of the MAV Liability Mutual Insurance (LMI) Scheme. Council carries $600m of
public liability insurance and $600m of professional indemnity insurance, both with a policy excess of $50,000 each. The maximum liability of
Council in any single claim is the extent of its excess. There are no above excess claims of which Council is aware which would either fall
outside the terms of Council's insurance policies or that have not been reported to the LMI scheme.
Legal matters
The Council is presently involved in several confidential legal matters, which are being conducted through Council's solicitors. As the matters are
yet to be finalised, and the financial outcomes are unable to be estimated, no allowance for these contingencies have been made in the financial
report.
Liability Mutual insurance
Council is a participant of the MAV Liability Mutual Insurance (LMI) Scheme. The LMI scheme provides public liability and professional indemnity
insurance cover. The LMI scheme states that each participant will remain liable to make further contributions to the scheme in respect of any
insurance year in which it was a participant to the extent of its participant’s share of any shortfall in the provision set aside in respect of that
insurance year, and such liability will continue whether or not the participant remains a participant in future insurance years.
Other contingent liabilities
Approximately $1,641,315 ($1,715,275 in 2020) is held by Whitehorse City Council in a Landfill Site Aftercare Reserve in relation to the Narre
Warren Landfill Site to deal with any environmental problems that could arise in relation to the completed landfill site. Based on experience
during operation no problems are expected but the Reserve will continue to be held for approximately the next 20 years until the site is safe.
Council’s exposure is 15.94% per cent of any works that are required to be completed.
(b) Guarantees for loans to other entities
The amount disclosed for financial guarantee in this note is the nominal amount of the underlying loan that is guaranteed by the Council, not the
fair value of the financial guarantee.
Financial guarantee contracts are not recognised as a liability in the balance sheet unless the lender has exercised their right to call on the
guarantee or Council has other reasons to believe that it is probable that the right will be exercised.
Maroondah City Council acts as guarantor against the borrowings for Ringwood Diving Inc. The liability is limited to $25,000.
8.2 Change in accounting standards
Certain new Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2021 reporting
period. Council has assessed the impact of these new standards, and as at 30 June 2021, there are no new or pending accounting standards
and interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) applicable for the year ending 30 June 2022 that are expected
to impact Council.
8.3 Financial instruments
(a) Objectives and policies
The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory receivables), payables
(excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in the notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior
management under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to Council and
appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.
(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of council financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to
foreign currency risk.
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8.3 Financial instruments (cont'd)
(b) Market risk (cont'd)
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. Council's interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long term loans and borrowings at fixed rates which
exposes council to fair value interest rate risk. Council does not hold any interest bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair value,
and therefore has no exposure to fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk.
Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989 . Council manages interest rate
risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:
- diversification of investment products;
- monitoring of return on investment; and
- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.
There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing interest rate risk or the
methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end result.
(c) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council to make a financial
loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the balance sheet. Credit risk exists in relation to outstanding fees
and fines as well as loans and receivables from sporting clubs and associations. To help manage this risk:
- council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities council deal with;
- council may require collateral where appropriate; and
- council only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in council's investment policy.
Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government sectors. Credit risk associated with
the council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a charge over the rateable property. There are no material
financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.
Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when council provide a guarantee
for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1(a).
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for
impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. Council does not hold any collateral.
(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of council's operational liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction
when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset. To help reduce
these risks Council:
- have a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;
- have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;
- have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;
- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and
- set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal repayments to rate revenue.
The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the face of the balance sheet and
the amounts related to financial guarantees disclosed in Note 8.1(b), and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data and current
assessment of risk.
There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity risk or the methods
used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade. Details of the maturity profile for
borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.4.
Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of the financial
markets, Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months:
- A parallel shift of +1% and -1% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 0.10%.
These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will they have a material impact
on the results of Council's operations.
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8.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy
Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, Council's financial assets and liabilities are
measured at amortised cost.
Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting Standards. AASB 13 Fair
value measurement , aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within a fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable; and
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Revaluation
Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured at their fair value,
being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure
that each asset materially approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date, the class
of asset was revalued.
Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only occur if an external
change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset result in changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. In
addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from 2 to 5 years. The
valuation is performed either by experienced council officers or independent experts.
Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that an
increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the increment is
recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments
are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the
remaining increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.
Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to
the comprehensive income statement, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised
directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount
in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.
8.5 Events occurring after balance date
No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.
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Note 9 Other matters
9.1 Reserves

Balance at
beginning of
reporting period
$'000

Adjustments for
prior periods
$'000

Increment
(decrement)
$'000

Balance at end of
reporting period
$'000

(a) Asset revaluation reserves
2021
Property
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Roads
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Off street car parks
Total asset revaluation reserves
2020
Property
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Roads
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Off street car parks
Total asset revaluation reserves

499,956
65,739
565,695

-

81,664
(7,806)
73,858

581,620
57,933
639,553

249,992
27,699
153,415
447
431,553
997,247

-

2,327
346
15,232
173
18,078
91,936

252,319
28,045
168,647
620
449,631
1,089,183

549,322
63,449
612,771

-

(49,366)
2,290
(47,076)

499,956
65,739
565,695

243,352
26,953
146,459
416,764
1,029,535

-

6,640
746
6,956
447
14,789
(32,288)

249,992
27,699
153,415
447
431,553
9,972,477

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time.
Balance at
beginning of
reporting period
$'000

Adjustments for
prior periods
$'000

Transfer from
accumulated
surplus
$'000

Balance at end of
reporting period
$'000

(b) Other reserves
2021
General
Total Other reserves

11,000
11,000

-

1,000
1,000

12,000
12,000

2020
General
Total Other reserves

11,000
11,000

-

-

11,000
11,000

The general reserve is used to record funds set aside for future possible contingencies e.g. unfunded superannuation call, unplanned capital
expenditure.
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9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus / (deficit)

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

Surplus / (deficit) for the year
Depreciation and amortisation
(Profit) / loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Assets written off and adjustments
Finance costs
Contributions - non-monetary assets
Other

42,316
23,935
(12,689)
2,225
915
(25)
(1,227)

10,335
22,559
(289)
2,718
937
(378)
(205)

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase / (decrease) in trust funds and other deposits
(Increase) / decrease in inventories
Increase / (decrease) in unearned income
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

7,558
(414)
2,507
1,214
(17)
(8,741)
604
58,161

(9,883)
(454)
(1,959)
753
(11)
39,027
1,443
64,593

9.3 Superannuation
Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authorities Superannuation
Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of which is funded differently.
Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or due.
Accumulation
The Fund's accumulation categories, Vision MySuper / Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee contributions on a
progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2021,
this was 9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee (SG) legislation).
Defined benefit
Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit category. This is because
the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.
There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating employers as the defined benefit
obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the only time that the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific
employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared
with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers for
the purposes of AASB 119 Employee Benefits .
Funding arrangements
Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on the advice of the Fund
Actuary.
A triennial actuarial review for the Defined Benefit category as at 30 June 2020 was conducted and completed by the due date of 31 December
2020. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer was 104.6%. The financial
assumptions used to calculate the VBI were:
Net investment returns 5.6% pa
Salary information 2.5% pa for two years, and 2.75% pa thereafter
Price inflation (CPI) 2.0% pa
As at 30 June 2021, an interim actuarial investigation is underway as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit category.
Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at 30 June 2021 was 109.7%. The financial assumptions used to calculate tis VBI were:
Net investment returns 4.8% pa
Salary information 2.75% pa
Price inflation (CPI) 2.25% pa
The VBI is used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2020 actuarial investigation determined the
Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was necessary to the Defined Benefit category’s funding
arrangements from prior years.
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9.3 Superannuation (cont'd)
Employer contributions
Regular contributions
On the basis of the results of the 2020 triennial actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council makes employer contributions to
the Fund’s Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund’s Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2021, this rate was 9.5% of
members' salaries (9.5% in 2019/2020). This rate is expected to increase in line with any increases in the SG contribution rate and was
reviewed as part of the 30 June 2020 triennial valuation.
In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment above the funded
resignation or retirement benefit.
Funding calls
If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation or the Defined Benefit category‘s VBI is
below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for the purposes
of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. The
Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%.
In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund’s participating employers
(including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shortfall.
Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on the pre-1 July 1993 and post30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund’s Defined Benefit category, together with the employer’s payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the
shortfall has been calculated.
Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund includes lifetime
pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.
If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returned to the participating employers.
In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be transferred to that employer’s
successor.
The 2020 triennial actuarial investigation surplus amounts
An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer. Generally, a full
actuarial investigation conducted every three years and interim actuarial investigations are conducted for each intervening year. A full
investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2020.
The Fund’s actuarial investigations identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer:
2020
$'000
Triennial
100,000
200,000
217,800

A VBI surplus
A total service liability surplus
A discount accrued benefits surplus

2019
$'000
Interim
151,300
233,400
256,700

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund’s assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the vested benefits that the
defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited on 30 June 2020.
The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category plus expected future
contributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2020.
The discounted accrued benefit surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category exceeds the value of
benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2020.
Council was notified of the 30 June 2020 VBI during August 2020 (2019: August 2019).
The 2021 interim actuarial investigation
An interim actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2021 as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the
Defined Benefit category. It is anticipated that this actuarial investigation will be completed by October 2021. Council was notified of the 30 June
2021 VBI during August 2021 (2020: August 2020).
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The City of Maroondah covers a land area of 61.4 square kilometres in Melbourne’s
outer east, 22 kilometres from the Central Business District (CBD). The area is a
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substantially
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2
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includes the future
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to expand, with on-road cycling paths and shared paths on major trails, including the
Mullum Mullum Creek Trail, the EastLink Trail, Taralla Creek Trail and the Dandenong
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Estimated Residential Population, Australian Bureau of Statistics, 2019.
Maroondah Population Forecasts, Id Consulting, 2019.

Estimated Residential Population, Australian Bureau of Statistics, 2019.
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[Municipal population / Kilometres of local
roads]

Population density per length of road

[Value of infrastructure / Municipal
population]

Infrastructure per head of municipal
population

[Total expenses / Municipal population]

Expenses per head of municipal
population

Population

Indicator / measure

For the year ended 30 June 2021

244

$7,066

$1,095

2018

Sustainable Capacity Indicators
Sustainable Capacity Indicators

246

$7,457

$1,134

2019

2020

248

$7,369

$1,113

Results

245

$7,823

$1,090

2021

No material variation.

This is reflective of Maroondah's view on placing
importance on community infrastructure, as well as this,
the large capital program that has been supplemented
by grant funding and an opportunity to stimulate the
economy during COVID.

Although the variance is not significant, when comparing
like-for-like municipalities in the prior period, Maroondah
has spent anywhere between $500 to nearly $3,000 per
head more on infrastructure than those comparable
municipalities (Know Your Council website).

No material variation.

Material Variations

Annual Report 2020/21

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

233

[Number of permanent staff resignations
and terminations / Average number of
permanent staff for the financial year]
x100

Percentage of staff turnover

Workforce turnover

[Index of Relative Socio-Economic
Disadvantage by decile]

Relative socio-economic disadvantage

Disadvantage

[Recurrent grants / Municipal population]

Recurrent grants per head of municipal
population

Recurrent grants

[Own-source revenue / Municipal
population]

Own-source revenue per head of
municipal population

Own-source revenue

Indicator / measure

9.0%

9

$102

$995

2018

13.0%

9

$95

$1,045

2019

2020

8.5%

9

$68

$1,007

Results

9.4%

9

$68

$1,070

2021

There were a number of retirements during the year, as
well as resignations, mainly driven by people relocating
to other states. However, the 2020/21 turnover of 9.40%
is lower than the average of the previous three periods
of 10.16%.

No material variation.

No material variation.

No material variation.

Material Variations
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"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.

"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than:
(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and
(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above
“infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004
"population" means the resident population estimated by council
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants)
"relative socio-economic disadvantage", in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial
year, of the area in which the municipality is located according to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA
"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Internet website

Definitions
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[Number of critical non-compliance
notifications and major non-compliance
notifications about a food premises
followed up / Number of critical noncompliance notifications and major
non-compliance notifications about a
food premises] x100

Critical and major non-compliance
outcome notifications

Health and safety

Food safety

[Number of successful animal
management prosecutions / Total
number of animal management
prosecutions] x 100

The percentage of successful animal
management prosecutions

Health and safety

Animal management

[Number of visits to aquatic facilities /
Municipal population]

Utilisation of aquatic facilities

Utilisation

Aquatic facilities

Service / indicator / measure

For the year ended 30 June 2021

For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

100.0%

-

8.75

2018

Service Performance Indicators
Service Performance Indicators

99.06%

-

10.11

2019

100.00%

100.00%

7.57

2020

Results

100.00%

0.00%

3.34

2021

Data shown is for the 2020 calendar year to align with
reporting to the Department of Health (DoH). The percentage
of critical and major non-compliance notifications followed up
is tracking in accordance with previous financial years.

The number of successful prosecutions remains low due to
delays in processing infringements and not as a result of
unsuccessful prosecutions. Animal prosecutions cannot be
controlled by Council and will arise as matters progress
through the lifecycle of an infringement, or as matters such
as dog attacks are reported and are taken to court. The Chief
Magistrate has also set a 20-week lag time for matters to be
lodged at court which means Council are working through a
backlog of matters.

The annual utilisation of aquatic facilities decreased further
during the 2020/21 period as a direct result of the COVID
pandemic. The facilities were closed 151 days during the
2020/21 year, compared to 63 days of closure during the
2019/20 year. Additionally, when the facilities were reopened, there were capacity limits in place.
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[Number of children who attend the
MCH service at least once (in the year)
/ Number of children enrolled in the
MCH service] x100

Participation in the MCH service

Participation

Maternal and child health

[Number of active library borrowers in
the last three years / The sum of the
population for the last three years]
x100

Active library borrowers in municipality

Participation

Libraries

[Community satisfaction rating out of
100 with how council has performed in
making decisions in the interest of the
community]

Satisfaction with council decisions

Satisfaction

Governance

Service / indicator / measure

73.88%

16.18%

59

2018

78.11%

16.26%

62

2019

76.18%

15.88%

59

2020

Results

76.19%

13.83%

60

2021

This measure captures participation of children in key age
and stage appointments which can vary due to timing of
appointments during the financial year. Full year participation
rates remain consistent with the Victorian state average.

The number of active library borrowers within the municipality
can be expected to vary over time. Borrowing can include
print and audio-visual materials, which were restricted during
the COVID pandemic, and digital materials which were
popular during restrictions due to ease of online access.
Social distancing requirements (capped building occupancy),
library closures and other movement restrictions had a major
impact on reduced borrowing of physical items.

No material variation.

Material Variations

Annual Report 2020/21

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

237

[Number of VCAT decisions that did
not set aside council’s decision in
relation to a planning application /
Number of VCAT decisions in relation
to planning applications] x100

Council planning decisions upheld at
VCAT

Decision making

Statutory Planning

[Community satisfaction rating out of
100 with how council has performed on
the condition of sealed local roads]

Satisfaction with sealed local roads

Satisfaction

Roads

[Number of Aboriginal children who
attend the MCH service at least once
(in the year) / Number of Aboriginal
children enrolled in the MCH service]
x100

Participation in the MCH service by
Aboriginal children

Participation

Service / indicator / measure

90.41%

68

69.90%

2018

90.24%

70

72.63%

2019

92.59%

64

76.24%

2020

Results

81.82%

67

78.31%

2021

The measure showed a lower percentage of decisions upheld
at VCAT compared to the previous financial year, which may
reflect the smaller number of decisions being considered by
the Tribunal and lengthy VCAT timeframes because of the
coronavirus COVID pandemic. Increased wait times are
seeing a greater number of applicants negotiating outcomes
with Council in the lead up to the VCAT hearing, which in turn
increases the number of consent orders granted.

This satisfaction rating can vary year on year due to variety of
reasons including but not limited to: the term 'local road' not
being defined; some respondents may take into account the
condition of VicRoads' arterial roads when responding; the
term 'condition' not being defined; and some respondents
taking into account traffic congestion and safety when
responding. The associated additional works undertaken
during the year could correlate to an improved satisfaction
result.

Participation rates for aboriginal children vary over time due
to Aboriginal families moving in and out of Maroondah,
accessing services beyond municipal boundaries and
children entering home care. MCH outreach services
including Enhanced Home Visiting, Supported Playgroups,
new Eastland Centre and drop in service, have seen
participation rates steadily rising.
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54.14%

2018

53.66%

2019

56.83%

2020

56.71%

2021

No material variation.

Material Variations

"food premises" has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

"critical non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984 , or advice given to
council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health

"Community Care Common Standards "means the Community Care Common Standards for the delivery of HACC services, published from time to time by
the Commonwealth

“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984 , that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section
19C of that Act

“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 1 food premises under section
19C of that Act

“CALD” means culturally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons born outside Australia in a country whose national language is not English

"annual report" means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act

"active library member" means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library

"Aboriginal person" has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

"Aboriginal child" means a child who is an Aboriginal person

Definitions

[Weight of recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside bins
/ Weight of garbage, recyclables and
green organics collected from
kerbside bins] x 100

Kerbside collection waste diverted
from landfill

Waste diversion

Waste Collection

Service / indicator / measure

Results
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"WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident" means an incident relating to a council aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian
WorkCover Authority under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004.

"target population" has the same meaning as in the Agreement entered into for the purposes of the Home and Community Care Act 1985 of the
Commonwealth

"population" means the resident population estimated by council

"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of children within the municipality from
birth until school age

"major non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given
to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no
remedial action is taken

"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004

"HACC service" means home help, personal care or community respite provided under the HACC program

"HACC program" means the Home and Community Care program established under the Agreement entered into for the purpose of the Home and
Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth
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[Total expenses / Number of
property assessments]

Expenses per property assessment

Expenditure level

[Total rate revenue (general rates
and municipal charges) / Number of
property assessments]

Average rate per property
assessment

Revenue level

Efficiency

Dimension / indicator / measure

$2,562

-

2018

$2,654

-

2019

$2,583

$1,520

2020

Results

Indicators

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Performance
ForFinancial
the Year Ended
30 June 2021

Financial Performance Indicators

$2,551

$1,565

2021

$2,781

$1,602

2022

$2,830

$1,628

2023

$2,899

$1,664

2024

Forecasts

$2,941

$1,694

2025

Movement has been
consistent across the
past four years with the
current year actuals
within $40 of the past
three-year average. The
increment in the
expenses per property
assessment mainly
relates to increased
materials and services
expenditure in 21/22,
however, this also has
other corresponding
income recognised
during the year that is

Increase is in the
acceptable and
expected parameters,
as are the forwardlooking forecasts across
the next four years.

Material Variations

Annual Report 2020/21

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

241

[Current assets / Current liabilities]
x100

Current assets compared to current
liabilities

Working capital

Liquidity

Dimension / indicator / measure

204.09%

2018

199.11%

2019

157.20%

2020

Results

117.09%

2021

123.39%

2022

157.90%

2023

145.42%

2024

Forecasts

146.71%

2025

Changes/fluctuations in
the 2019/20 and
2020/21 liquidity ratio
are a result of newly
adopted accounting
standards, which have
increased the value of
Council's short-term
liabilities. As well as this,
Council's cash balance
has been significantly
impacted due to the
COVID Pandemic, with
2020/21 alone, resulting
in reduction in user fees
of over $6m. The
indicator then looks to
stabilise in future years.

not reflected in this
measure. This is
similarly applicable to
the future periods.
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[Asset renewal and asset upgrade
expenses / Asset depreciation] x100

Asset renewal and upgrade
compared to depreciation

Asset renewal and upgrade

Obligations

[Unrestricted cash / Current
liabilities] x100

Unrestricted cash compared to
current liabilities

Unrestricted cash

Dimension / indicator / measure

-

2.45%

2018

-

9.69%

2019

131.48%

14.08%

2020

Results

118.98%

30.46%

2021

114.33%

35.31%

2022

85.79%

46.77%

2023

112.85%

42.05%

2024

Forecasts

111.58%

42.45%

2025

This was a new indicator
in 2019/20, which
includes renewal and
upgrade expenditure.
The drop during the
2020/21 period was
expected, given the
level of dollars directed
towards new
infrastructure, which
were mostly grant
funded. However, the
ratio is still within the
range that is considered
low risk and one Council
considers to be meeting
targeted ranges. The

Unrestricted cash is as
per the accounts
2020/21. At 30 June
2021, Council had $38m
in term deposits due to
mature within 90 days.
These deposits are not
reflected in this measure
as they are included in
Other Financial Assets,
being term deposits held
with an original maturity
term greater than 90
days.
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[Interest bearing loans and
borrowings / Rate revenue] x100

Loans and borrowings compared to
rates

Loans and borrowings

Dimension / indicator / measure

23.60%

2018

20.77%

2019

19.90%

2020

Results

16.50%

2021

24.57%

2022

21.10%

2023

17.69%

2024

Forecasts

14.61%

2025

This indicator measures
total interest-bearing
liabilities compared to
rate revenue. Due to
impact of the COVID
pandemic, Council
deferred one of the biannual loan repayments.
With that, Council then
made three (one
additional) loan
repayments during
2020/21 period. In
2021/22, this figure is
expected to increase
given Council's Budget
2021/22 has proposed
new borrowings
included in its forecasts.
This percentage is then
expected to decline
year-on-year from
2022/23 onwards.

future forecasts are
based on the 10 year
capital works program,
with a dip below
expected ranges in
2022/23 that will be
consistently reviewed,
given cumulative COVID
pandemic impacts.
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[Interest and principal repayments
on interest bearing loans and
borrowings / Rate revenue] x100

Loans and borrowings repayments
compared to rates

Loans and borrowings

Dimension / indicator / measure

2.71%

2018

2.56%

2019

1.24%

2020

Results

3.61%

2021

3.59%

2022

3.46%

2023

3.32%

2024

Forecasts

3.23%

2025

The indicator increases
for the current period,
however, it will have a
decreasing trend from
2021/22 onwards. Due
to impact of the COVID
pandemic, Council
deferred one of the biannual loan repayments
in 2019/20. In 2020/21
we have made three
(one additional) loan
repayments, hence the
increase in 2020/21.
Next year, this figure is
expected to be similar,
given Council's Budget
2021/22 has proposed
new borrowings
included in its forecasts.
This percentage is then
expected to decline
year-on-year from
2022/23 onwards.
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[Non-current liabilities / Own source
revenue] x100

Non-current liabilities compared to
own source revenue

Indebtedness

Dimension / indicator / measure

17.23%

2018

15.41%

2019

24.51%

2020

Results

15.12%

2021

18.23%

2022

15.92%

2023

12.77%

2024

Forecasts

10.74%

2025

The 2019/20 year was
the first year of new
Accounting Standard
implementation, in
relation to income
earning for both
operating and capital
grants, has led to higher
than otherwise predicted
non-current liability
amounts. Future
forecasts remain quite
steady, with a slight
increase projected in
2021/22 (additional
borrowings projected)
and gradually decline,
as Council repays
borrowings over time.
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[Adjusted underlying surplus
(deficit) / Adjusted underlying
revenue] x100

Adjusted underlying surplus (or
deficit)

Adjusted underlying result

Operating position

Dimension / indicator / measure

5.35%

2018

6.58%

2019

1.06%

2020

Results

12.52%

2021

2.64%

2022

3.53%

2023

4.90%

2024

Forecasts

4.76%

2025
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However, achieving a
higher underlying
surplus been the result
of one-off gains from the
sale of Warrandyte Rd
and other land swap
transactions (non-cash
transactions). Future
forecasts would indicate
levels that are more
normalised over time,
with not as many one-off
events currently
anticipated when
compared to those
events that impacted the
2020/21 outcome.

The impact of the
COVID Pandemic on
Council has been
significant. Council has
experienced a material
decrease in user fees
income (over $6m
compared to budget)
and partial decrease in
the associated costs.

Material Variations
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[Rate revenue / Capital improved
value of rateable properties in the
municipality] x100

Rates compared to property values

Rates effort

[Rate revenue / Adjusted underlying
revenue] x100

Rates compared to adjusted
underlying revenue

Rates concentration

Stability

Dimension / indicator / measure

0.26%

62.97%

2018

0.23%

63.09%

2019

0.26%

69.42%

2020

Results

0.25%

64.45%

2021

0.26%

68.02%

2022

0.26%

68.10%

2023

0.27%

67.61%

2024

Forecasts

0.27%

68.00%

2025

No material variation.

The impact of the
COVID pandemic has
resulted in reduced user
fees income, hence
resulting in a
concentration in rates,
however, slightly
masked by grants and
net gain on sales
income. In future years,
it is anticipated that this
percentage will increase
slightly as Council
recovers from COVID
impacts and has less
net gains on disposals
than what was achieved
during 2020/21.
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"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.

"restricted cash" means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use other than for a purpose for which it is restricted, and
includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure from the previous financial year

"residential rates" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied on residential properties

"recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant

“rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges

"population "means the resident population estimated by council

"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants

“non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expected to be received again during the period
covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan

"non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than current liabilities

“non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets

"current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the AAS

“current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS

"asset renewal expenditure" means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that returns the service capability of the asset to its original
capability

"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure

(c)

(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than:

Definitions
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Other
Information
Other Information
For
3030
June
2021
For the
theYear
yearEnded
ended
June
2021

Basis of preparation
Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report.
The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity,
service performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a
description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results.
This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act
1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 (as per the
transitional provisions of the Local Government Act 2020).
Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on
accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other
results are based on information drawn from council information systems or from third
parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).
The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the
prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the
council’s strategic resource plan. The Local Government Act 1989 and the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 (as per the transitional provisions of
the Local Government Act 2020) requires explanation of any material variations in the results
contained in the performance statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant
to each indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below
the materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered to be material because of its
nature.
The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by council in
its strategic resource plan on 28 June 2021 and which forms part of the council plan. The
strategic resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that
were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long
term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose
Financial Statements. The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting council.
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Our integrated service delivery
































Asset Management









Building Services









Built Environment









Bushland and Waterways





Business and Activity Centre
Development







Communications and
Engagement







Community Health



Council and Community
Planning





COVID-19 Recovery


















Customer Service



Emergency Management



Engineering Services









Financial Services



Governance and Procurement



Information Technology



Karralyka, Maroondah
Federation Estate and
Community Halls
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A well governed and empowered community



An inclusive and diverse community

Arts and Cultural Development



An accessible and connected community



A clean, green and sustainable community



A vibrant and culturally
rich community

A prosperous and
learning community

Aged and Disability Services

A safe, healthy and
active community

Council service

An attractive, thriving and
well built community

Council delivers a broad range of services that all play a role in delivering on the Maroondah 2040
Community Vision and the associated outcome areas. The table below indicates the range of primary
outcome areas for different services delivered by Council.
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An attractive, thriving and
well built community

An accessible and connected community

A clean, green and sustainable community

A vibrant and culturally
rich community

A well governed and empowered community

Local Laws



An inclusive and diverse community

Libraries

A prosperous and
learning community

A safe, healthy and
active community

Council service











Management Accounting
and Payroll



Maroondah Golf and
Sportsfields



Maroondah Leisure



Maternal and Child Health



Park Maintenance









Projects and Facilities
























Realm Operations



Revenue and Property





Risk, Information and Integrity




Sport and Recreation





Statutory Planning





Strategic Planning and
Sustainability



The Rings and Maroondah Nets



Tree Maintenance

















Waste Management
Workplace People and Culture





Youth and Children’s Services
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To contact Council
•
•
•
•

phone 1300 88 22 33 or (03) 9298 4598
SMS 0480 020 200
visit our website at www.maroondah.vic.gov.au
email maroondah@maroondah.vic.gov.au

Translating and Interpreter Service
13 14 50
National Relay Service (NRS)
13 36 77
MaroondahCityCouncil
maroondahcitycouncil
Maroondah City Council
CityofMaroondah
Maroondah City Council

mcc332-June21

